#### ISSUANCE ADVICE LETTER

### August 16, 2016

### LONG ISLAND POWER AUTHORITY

#### ORDER NO. 4

#### ISSUANCE ADVICE LETTER FOR RESTRUCTURING BONDS, SERIES 2016B

Pursuant to the Restructuring Cost Financing Order No. 4 (the "Financing Order") issued by the Authority on June 26, 2015, LIPA, as the initial servicer of the Bonds, hereby submits this Issuance Advice Letter with respect to the above-referenced bonds (the "Bonds") priced on August 11, 2016. Any capitalized terms not defined in this Issuance Advice Letter shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Financing Order.

#### **PURPOSE:**

This filing sets forth the following:

- (a) Terms of Issuance, including pricing and principal amount of the Bonds;
- (b) The net proceeds from the sale of the Bonds and estimated Upfront Financing Costs;
- (c) The initial Charge;
- (d) The Target Debt to be purchased, redeemed, repaid or defeased by the Authority with the proceeds of the sale of the Restructuring Property to be purchased by the Securitization Authority with the net proceeds from the sale of the Bonds;
- (e) The expected savings to Consumers; and
- (f) Confirmation of compliance with the requirements of the Financing Order.

#### **<u>ACTUAL TERMS OF ISSUANCE:</u>**

Issuer: Utility Debt Securitization Authority

Total Amount Issued (Taxable): \$-0-

Total Amount Issued (Non-Taxable): \$469,320,000

Trustee: The Bank of New York Mellon

Sale Date: August 11, 2016

Closing Date: September 8, 2016

Bond Ratings: S&P AAA (sf), Fitch AAA sf, Moody's Aaa (sf)

Target Amortization Schedule: See Schedule B-1.

#### **Call Provisions:**

The 2016B Restructuring Bonds with a Final Maturity Date prior to December 15, 2030 are not subject to optional redemption prior to maturity at the option of the Issuer. The 2016B Restructuring Bonds with a Final Maturity Date on or after December 15, 2030 are subject to redemption at the option of the Issuer in whole or in part, in any order, from time to time on any Business Day on and after June 15, 2026, upon payment of the redemption price of 100% of the principal amount of the 2016B Restructuring Bonds to be redeemed, together with accrued interest to the redemption date.

The Term Bonds under the Indenture shall be subject to redemption, on and after the applicable dates set forth in Schedule B-2 hereto from Sinking Fund Payments, at a redemption price of 100% of the principal amount of the applicable Term Bonds to be redeemed, together with accrued interest to the redemption date. The Expected Sinking Fund Schedules attached hereto as Schedule B-2 hereto set forth the Scheduled Sinking Fund Redemption Dates, the scheduled Outstanding Amount as of each such date, the scheduled Sinking Fund Payment for each such date and the minimum remaining Outstanding Amount as of such date for each Term Bond.

Semiannually, beginning on June 15, 2017

means, as of any date of calculation, an amount equal to the greater of (a) 1.5% of the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding minus the minimum principal amount of the Bonds shown as being expected to be paid on the Expected Amortization Schedule on any Payment Date subsequent to such date of calculation and (b) \$0. For the avoidance of doubt, to the extent that no principal amount is shown as being expected to be paid on the Expected Amortization Schedule on any Payment Date subsequent to a date of calculation, the minimum principal amount of the Bonds shown as being expected to be paid on the Expected Amortization Schedule on any Payment Date subsequent to such date of calculation for purposed of calculating the Required Debt Service Reserve Level will be \$0.

means, as of any date of calculation, an amount equal to 0.50% of the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds originally issued; provided, however, that if any Bonds are refunded in advance of their maturity as permitted by the Indenture, on and after the date that provision for the payment of the Bonds so refunded has been made pursuant to the Indenture the Required Operating Reserve Level shall be equal to 0.50% of the Outstanding Amount of the Bonds immediately after such date.

### Payments to Holders:

Required Debt Service Reserve Level:

Required Operating Reserve Level:

The initial annual Servicing Fee as a percentage of the original Bond principal balance is 0.05%.

The principal amounts of each Tranche of the Bonds to be issued and sold by the Securitization Authority on September 8, 2016 are as follows:

Tranche	Principal Amount Offered	Scheduled Maturity Date*	Final Maturity Date*	Toterest Rate	Yield	Public Offering Price	CUSIP*
Tranche 1	\$26,250,000	June 15, 2017	June 15, 2019	5.000%	0.550%	103.411%††	91802RDA4
Tranche 2	33,200,000	December 15, 2017	December 15, 2019	5.000	0,590	105.568%††	91802RCN7
Tranche 3	37,715,000	June 15, 2018	June 15, 2020	5,000	0.680	107.584%††	91802RDB2
Tranche 4	38,655,000	December 15, 2018	December 15, 2020	5.000	0.720	109,616%††	91802RCP2
Tranche 5	8,015,000	June 15, 2020	June 15, 2022	5.000	0.930	115.040%††	91802RDC0
Tranche 6	8,215,000	December 15, 2020	December 15, 2022	5.000	0.990	116.721%††	91802RCQ0
Tranche 7	35,850,000	June 15, 2021	June 15, 2023	5.000	1,060	118.275%††	91802RDD8
Tranche 8	36,745,000	December 15, 2021	December 15, 2023	5,000	I.110	119.855%††	91802RCR8
Tranche 9	44,930,000	June 15, 2022	June 15, 2024	5.000	1.170	121.305%††	91802RCS6
Tranche 10	46,050,000	December 15, 2022	December 15, 2024	5.000	1.220	122.746% <b>†</b> †	91802RDE6
Tranche 11	12,930,000	June 15, 2023	June 15, 2025	5.000	1.270	124.119%††	91802RCT4
Tranche 12	13,255,000	December 15, 2023	December 15, 2025	5.000	1.320	125.426%††	91802RDF3
Tranche 13	2,940,000	June 15, 2025	June 15, 2027	5.000	1.520	128.467%††	91802R <i>C</i> U1
Tranche 14	3,010,000	December 15, 2025	December 15, 2027	5,000	1.560	129.579%††	91802RDG1
Tranche 15**	36,645,000	December 15, 2028	December 15, 2030	5.000	1.830	128.238%ተተተ	91802RCV9
Tranche 16**	4,350,000	December 15, 2030	December 15, 2032	5.000	1.960	126.906%†††	91802RCW7
Tranche 17**	26,830,000	December 15, 2031	December 15, 2033	5.000	1,980	126,702%†††	91802RCX5
Tranche 18**	28,185,000	December 15, 2032	December 15, 2034	5.000	2.000	126.499%†††	91802RCY3
Tranche 19**	10,000,000	December 15, 2033	December 15, 2035	4.000	2.220	115.553%†††	91802RDH9
Tranche 20**	15,550,000	December 15, 2033	December 15, 2035	5.000	2.040	126.095%†††	91802RCZ0
Total:	\$469,320,000					•	

<sup>\*</sup>CUSIP numbers have been assigned by an organization not affiliated with the Issuer or the Authority and are included solely for the convenience of the holders of the 2016B Restructuring Bonds. Neither the Issuer nor the Authority is responsible for the selection or uses of these CUSIP numbers, nor is any representation made as to the correctness of the CUSIP numbers on the 2016B Restructuring Bonds or as indicated above.

The maximum scheduled principal and interest payments in any bond year on all restructuring bonds heretofore issued under Restructuring Cost Financing Order No. 2, Restructuring Cost Financing Order No. 3 and Restructuring Cost Financing Order No. 4, together with the Bonds, is calculated to be \$265,059,875, which is less than the expected aggregate maximum scheduled annual principal and interest payments of \$475 million as set forth in said restructuring cost financing orders.

None of the Bonds will have a legal final maturity exceeding 30 years from the date of their issuance.

The final scheduled maturity of each series of Bonds shall be no later than the final scheduled maturity date of the Authority bonds to be purchased, redeemed, repaid or defeased with the proceeds of such series of Bonds.

The Bonds, taken as a whole, are expected to have the following weighted average yield and life:

Effective Annual Weighted Average Yield on the Bonds:

2.011376%

**Expected Weighted Average Life of Issuance:** 

6.868 yrs

<sup>\*\*</sup>Subject to Sinking Fund Payments. See "THE 2016B RESTRUCTURING BONDS—Redemption-Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption; Expected Sinking Fund Schedules" in this Official Statement.

<sup>†</sup>If such date is not a Business Day, the next Business Day without additional interest.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>17</sup>Priced at the stated yield to the Scheduled Maturity Date.

f<sup>††</sup> Priced at the stated yield to the June 15, 2026 optional redemption date at the redemption price of par.

# **NET PROCEEDS: UPFRONT FINANCING COSTS:**

The net proceeds from the sale of the Bonds are as follows:

		<b>AMOUNT</b>
1	Bond Proceeds	\$555,094,845.85
2	Accrued Interest (LIPA Contribution)	7,253,348.30
3	Operating Reserve (LIPA Contribution)	2,346,600.00
4	Gross Proceeds (Sum of Lines 1 through 3)	\$564,694,794.15
5	Rating agency fees	680,364.00
6	Bond Trustee fee	3,500.00
7	Printing and filing fees (estimated)	6,750.00
8	Accountant's / auditor's fees (estimated)	110,000.00
9	Legal fees and expenses for Authority's/Bond Issuer's counsel (estimated)	300,000.00
10	Legal fees and expenses for Bond Trustee's counsel (estimated)	6,500.00
11	Legal fees and expenses for underwriters' counsel (estimated)	140,000.00
12	Fees and expenses for Authority's financial advisor (estimated)	55,000.00
13	Underwriting fees/expenses (estimated)	1,745,879.17
14	Deposit to Debt Service Reserve Subaccount	7,039,800.00
15	Deposit to Operating Reserve Subaccount	2,346,600.00
16	Verification Agent	4,000.00
17	Servicer Set up Fee	50,000.00
18	17g-5 Website	5,000.00
19	Miscellaneous	54,697.21
20	Total estimated Upfront Financing Costs (Sum of Lines 5 through 19)	\$12,548,090.38
21	Net Proceeds (Line 4 minus Line 20)	\$552,146,703.77

# **INITIAL CHARGE:**

The initial Charge, calculated pursuant to the Financing Order, is \$0.003650/kWh.

The table below shows the current assumptions for variables used in the calculation of the initial Charge.

	Input Values For Initial Charge	
	Applicable period: from September 8, 2016 to May 15, 2017	
	1 Forecasted retail kWh sales for the applicable period:	12,684,986,989
	2 Scheduled Bond payments and estimated other Ongoing Financing	\$44,579,397
	Costs for the applicable period:  Percent of billed amounts expected to be charged-off:	0.72%
	Forecasted % of billed kWhs collected by May 15, 2017:	96.97%
	Forecasted retail kWh sales billed and collected during the applicable period: (line 1 * line 4, subject to rounding)	\$12,300,848,484
	6 Total billing requirement for applicable period: (line 2 * (1/(1-line 3))	\$44,902,696
	7 Initial Charge per kWh (line 6 / line 5)	\$0.003650

#### **TARGET DEBT:**

The Net Proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used to purchase the Restructuring Property. The portions of the Target Debt to be purchased, redeemed, repaid or defeased with the proceeds of the sale of the Restructuring Property and the Restructuring Costs are set forth in Schedule A hereto.

#### **EXPECTED SAVINGS:**

The expected Net Present Value Savings to Consumers, calculated pursuant to the Financing Order, the Securitization Debt Service based upon the scheduled payments on the Bonds specified in Schedule B-1 hereto, the expected other Ongoing Financing Costs specified in Schedule C hereto, and the expected Charges specified in Schedule D hereto, and the LIPA Debt Service specified in Schedule E hereto, are as follows:

	Expected LIPA Debt Service	UDSA Expected Charges	Expected Savings
Net Present Value	\$618,887,206	\$562,479,599	\$56,407,606

#### **BASIC DOCUMENTS:**

Attached to this Issuance Advice Letter are forms of the Servicing Agreement, Administration Agreement, Indenture, and Sale Agreement to be executed and delivered in connection with the issuance of the Bonds.

Respectfully submitted:

LONG ISLAND LIGHTING COMPANY d/b/a
LIPA, as Servicer

By: /s/ Thomas Falcone
Chief Executive Officer

#### CONFIRMATION AND APPROVAL OF ISSUANCE ADVICE LETTER

The undersigned Authority Designee, as and on behalf of Long Island Power Authority, hereby (a) confirms that the pricing of the Bonds and the other matters described in foregoing Issuance Advice Letter comply with the Financing Order referred to therein and (b) approves (i) the Restructuring Costs, the expected Upfront Financing Costs, the expected Ongoing Financing Costs described in such Issuance Advice Letter, and (ii) the forms of the Servicing Agreement, Administration Agreement, Indenture, and Sale Agreement attached to such Issuance Advice Letter.

LONG ISLAND POWER AUTHORITY

By: /s/ Thomas Falcone
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: August 16, 2016

# SUMMARY OF BONDS REFUNDED

		Maturity Date	Interest Rate	Par Amount	Purchase or Call Date	Purchase or Call Price
Series 2006D Electric Sys	stem Gener			rrent Refunding:		
	SERIAL	9/1/2017	5.000%	\$ 8,445,000.00	9/8/2016	100.000%
	DD. W. 12	9/1/2020	5.000	8,890,000.00	9/8/2016	100.000
		9/1/2021	5.000	3,935,000.00	9/8/2016	100.000
		9/1/2022	4.500	3,270,000.00	9/8/2016	100.000
		9/1/2023	5.000	22,530,000.00	9/8/2016	100.000
		9/1/2025	5.000	6,495,000.00	9/8/2016	100,000
·	···	37112020	0,000	\$53,565,000.00	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Series 2006E Electric Sys	stem Genera	al Revenue - 12	2/1/16 Call, C	urrent Refunding:		
	SERIAL	12/1/2017	5.000%	\$ 24,965,000.00	12/1/2016	100.000%
·		12/1/2017	5.000	31,635,000.00	12/1/2016	100.000
		12/1/2018	5.000	29,800,000.00	12/1/2016	100.000
		12/1/2018	4.000	4,535,000.00	12/1/2016	100.000
		12/1/2018	5.000	19,115,000.00	12/1/2016	100.000
		12/1/2020	5.000	18,450,000.00	12/1/2016	100.000
		12/1/2021	5.000	54,105,000.00	12/1/2016	100.000
		12/1/2021	5.000	5,130,000.00	12/1/2016	100.000
		12/1/2022	5.000	7,955,000.00	12/1/2016	100.000
		12/1/2022	4.125	2,745,000.00	12/1/2016	100.000
		12/1/2022	5.000	71,785,000.00	12/1/2016	100.000
		12/1/2022		\$270,220,000.00		
				<b>4-</b> · • <b>y</b> y		
Series 2006F Electric Syst	em Genera	l Revenue - 11/	7/16 Call, Cu			
		l Revenue - 11/ 5/1/2018	7/16 Call, Cu 5.000%		11/1/2016	100.000%
	em Genera SERIAL	5/1/2018	71/16 Call, Cu 5.000% 5.000	rrent Refunding:	11/1/2016 11/1/2016	100.000% 100.000
Series 2006F Electric Syst S		5/1/2018 5/1/2019	5.000%	rrent Refunding: \$ 29,530,000.00		
		5/1/2018 5/1/2019 5/1/2020	5.000% 5.000	rrent Refunding: \$ 29,530,000.00 14,435,000.00	11/1/2016	100.000
		5/1/2018 5/1/2019 5/1/2020 5/1/2021	5.000% 5.000 4.000 4.000	rrent Refunding: \$ 29,530,000.00 14,435,000.00 5,645,000.00	11/1/2016 11/1/2016	100.000 100.000
		5/1/2018 5/1/2019 5/1/2020 5/1/2021 5/1/2028	5.000% 5.000 4.000	rrent Refunding: \$ 29,530,000.00 14,435,000.00 5,645,000.00 8,905,000.00	11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016	100.000 100.000 100.000
S	SERIAL	5/1/2018 5/1/2019 5/1/2020 5/1/2021 5/1/2028 5/1/2028	5.000% 5.000 4.000 4.000 4.250 4.500	rrent Refunding: \$ 29,530,000.00 14,435,000.00 5,645,000.00 8,905,000.00 22,905,000.00 14,755,000.00	11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016	100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000
S		5/1/2018 5/1/2019 5/1/2020 5/1/2021 5/1/2028 5/1/2028 5/1/2030	5.000% 5.000 4.000 4.000 4.250 4.500 4.250	rrent Refunding: \$ 29,530,000.00 14,435,000.00 5,645,000.00 8,905,000.00 22,905,000.00 14,755,000.00 4,850,000.00	11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016	100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000
S	SERIAL	5/1/2018 5/1/2019 5/1/2020 5/1/2021 5/1/2028 5/1/2028 5/1/2030 5/1/2031	5.000% 5.000 4.000 4.000 4.250 4.500 4.250 4.250	rrent Refunding: \$ 29,530,000.00 14,435,000.00 5,645,000.00 8,905,000.00 22,905,000.00 14,755,000.00 4,850,000.00 27,525,000.00	11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016	100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000
S	SERIAL	5/1/2018 5/1/2019 5/1/2020 5/1/2021 5/1/2028 5/1/2028 5/1/2030 5/1/2031 5/1/2032	5.000% 5.000 4.000 4.000 4.250 4.500 4.250 4.250 4.250	rrent Refunding: \$ 29,530,000.00 14,435,000.00 5,645,000.00 8,905,000.00 22,905,000.00 14,755,000.00 4,850,000.00	11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016	100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000
S	SERIAL	5/1/2018 5/1/2019 5/1/2020 5/1/2021 5/1/2028 5/1/2028 5/1/2030 5/1/2031	5.000% 5.000 4.000 4.000 4.250 4.500 4.250 4.250	rrent Refunding: \$ 29,530,000.00 14,435,000.00 5,645,000.00 8,905,000.00 22,905,000.00 14,755,000.00 4,850,000.00 27,525,000.00 28,715,000.00	11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016	100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000
Т	SERIAL TERM	5/1/2018 5/1/2019 5/1/2020 5/1/2021 5/1/2028 5/1/2030 5/1/2031 5/1/2032 5/1/2033	5.000% 5.000 4.000 4.000 4.250 4.500 4.250 4.250 4.250 4.250	rrent Refunding: \$ 29,530,000.00 14,435,000.00 5,645,000.00 8,905,000.00 22,905,000.00 14,755,000.00 4,850,000.00 27,525,000.00 28,715,000.00 25,890,000.00 \$183,155,000.00 ance Refunding:	11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016	100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000
Teries 2008B Electric Syste	SERIAL TERM	5/1/2018 5/1/2019 5/1/2020 5/1/2021 5/1/2028 5/1/2030 5/1/2031 5/1/2032 5/1/2033	5.000% 5.000 4.000 4.000 4.250 4.500 4.250 4.250 4.250 4.250	rrent Refunding: \$ 29,530,000.00 14,435,000.00 5,645,000.00 8,905,000.00 22,905,000.00 14,755,000.00 4,850,000.00 27,525,000.00 28,715,000.00 25,890,000.00 \$183,155,000.00	11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016	100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000
Teries 2008B Electric Syste	SERIAL FERM em General	5/1/2018 5/1/2019 5/1/2020 5/1/2021 5/1/2028 5/1/2030 5/1/2031 5/1/2032 5/1/2033 Revenue - 4/1/	5.000% 5.000 4.000 4.000 4.250 4.500 4.250 4.250 4.250 4.250	rrent Refunding: \$ 29,530,000.00 14,435,000.00 5,645,000.00 8,905,000.00 22,905,000.00 14,755,000.00 4,850,000.00 27,525,000.00 28,715,000.00 25,890,000.00 \$183,155,000.00 ance Refunding:	11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016	100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000
Teries 2008B Electric Syste	SERIAL FERM em General	5/1/2018 5/1/2019 5/1/2020 5/1/2021 5/1/2028 5/1/2030 5/1/2031 5/1/2032 5/1/2033 Revenue - 4/1/4/1/2019	5.000% 5.000 4.000 4.000 4.250 4.250 4.250 4.250 4.250 4.250	rrent Refunding: \$ 29,530,000.00 14,435,000.00 5,645,000.00 8,905,000.00 22,905,000.00 14,755,000.00 27,525,000.00 28,715,000.00 25,890,000.00 \$183,155,000.00 ance Refunding: \$ 9,000,000.00	11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016	100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000
Teries 2008B Electric Syste	SERIAL FERM em General	5/1/2018 5/1/2019 5/1/2020 5/1/2021 5/1/2028 5/1/2030 5/1/2031 5/1/2032 5/1/2033 Revenue - 4/1/4/2019 4/1/2020	5.000% 5.000 4.000 4.000 4.250 4.250 4.250 4.250 4.250 4.250 719 Call, Adv. 5.250% 5.375	rrent Refunding: \$ 29,530,000.00 14,435,000.00 5,645,000.00 8,905,000.00 22,905,000.00 14,755,000.00 27,525,000.00 28,715,000.00 25,890,000.00 \$183,155,000.00 ance Refunding: \$ 9,000,000.00 9,645,000.00	11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016	100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000
Teries 2008B Electric Syste	SERIAL FERM em General	5/1/2018 5/1/2019 5/1/2020 5/1/2021 5/1/2028 5/1/2030 5/1/2031 5/1/2032 5/1/2033 Revenue - 4/1/4/1/2019 4/1/2020 4/1/2021	5.000% 5.000 4.000 4.000 4.250 4.250 4.250 4.250 4.250 4.250 719 Call, Adv. 5.250% 5.375 5.500	rrent Refunding: \$ 29,530,000.00 14,435,000.00 5,645,000.00 8,905,000.00 22,905,000.00 14,755,000.00 27,525,000.00 28,715,000.00 25,890,000.00 \$183,155,000.00 ance Refunding: \$ 9,000,000.00 9,645,000.00 2,930,000.00	11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2019	100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000
Teries 2008B Electric Syste	SERIAL FERM em General	5/1/2018 5/1/2019 5/1/2020 5/1/2021 5/1/2028 5/1/2030 5/1/2031 5/1/2032 5/1/2033 Revenue - 4/1/4/1/2019 4/1/2020 4/1/2021 4/1/2022	5.000% 5.000 4.000 4.000 4.250 4.250 4.250 4.250 4.250 4.250 719 Call, Adv. 5.250% 5.375 5.500 5.500	rrent Refunding: \$ 29,530,000.00 14,435,000.00 5,645,000.00 8,905,000.00 22,905,000.00 14,755,000.00 27,525,000.00 28,715,000.00 25,890,000.00 \$183,155,000.00 ance Refunding: \$ 9,000,000.00 9,645,000.00 4,845,000.00	11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 11/1/2016 4/1/2019 4/1/2019 4/1/2019	100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000 100.000% 100.000 100.000

# TARGET AMORTIZATION SCHEDULE

Period		•			Annual Debt
Ending	Principal	Coupon	Interest	Debt Service	Service
6/15/2017	\$ 26,250,000	5.000%	\$ 17,978,838.8	9 \$ 44,228,838.89	
12/15/2017	33,200,000	5.000	11,026,750.0		\$ 88,455,588.89
6/15/2018	37,715,000	5.000	10,196,750.0		
12/15/2018	38,655,000	5.000	9,253,875.0	47,908,875.00	95,820,625.00
6/15/2019			8,287,500.00		
12/15/2019			8,287,500.00	8,287,500.00	16,575,000.00
6/15/2020	8,015,000	5.000	8,287,500.00		
12/15/2020	8,215,000	5.000	8,087,125.00	16,302,125.00	32,604,625.00
6/15/2021	35,850,000	5.000	7,881,750.00	43,731,750.00	·
12/15/2021	36,745,000	5.000	6,985,500.00	43,730,500.00	87,462,250.00
6/15/2022	44,930,000	5.000	6,066,875.00		•
12/15/2022	46,050,000	5.000	4,943,625.00		101,990,500.00
6/15/2023	12,930,000	5.000	3,792,375.00		
12/15/2023	13,255,000	5.000	3,469,125.00		33,446,500.00
6/15/2024			3,137,750.00		
12/15/2024			3,137,750.00	3,137,750.00	6,275,500.00
6/15/2025	2,940,000	5.000	3,137,750.00		
12/15/2025	3,010,000	5.000	3,064,250.00	6,074,250.00	12,152,000.00
6/15/2026			2,989,000.00		
12/15/2026			2,989,000.00		5,978,000.00
6/15/2027			2,989,000.00	2,989,000.00	
12/15/2027			2,989,000:00	2,989,000.00	5,978,000.00
6/15/2028	18,095,000	5.000	2,989,000.00		
12/15/2028	18,550,000	5.000	2,536,625.00	21,086,625.00	42,170,625.00
6/15/2029			2,072,875.00	2,072,875.00	
12/15/2029			2,072,875.00	2,072,875.00	4,145,750.00
6/15/2030	2,150,000	5.000	2,072,875.00	4,222,875.00	
12/15/2030	2,200,000	5.000	2,019,125.00	4,219,125.00	8,442,000.00
6/15/2031	13,250,000	5.000	1,964,125.00	15,214,125.00	
12/15/2031	13,580,000	5.000	1,632,875.00	15,212,875.00	30,427,000.00
6/15/2032	13,920,000	5.000	1,293,375.00	15,213,375.00	
12/15/2032	14,265,000	5.000	945,375.00	15,210,375.00	30,423,750.00
6/15/2033	12,630,000	**	588,750.00	13,218,750.00	
12/15/2033	12,920,000	. **	298,000.00	13,218,000.00	26,436,750.00
	\$469,320,000		\$159,464,463.89	\$628,784,463.89	\$628,784,463.89

# EXPECTED SINKING FUND SCHEDULES

	EXPECTED SINKING FUNI	SCHEDULE - TRANCHE 15	_
Scheduled Sinking Fund	Scheduled	Scheduled Sinking	Minimum Remaining
Redemption Date	Outstanding Amount	Fund Payment	Outstanding Amount
June 15, 2028	\$36,645,000	\$18,095,000	\$18,550,000
December 15, 2028	\$18,550,000	\$18,550,000	\$0
•	EXPRACTED SINKING RUND	SCHEDULE - TRANCHE 16	
Scheduled Sinking Fund	Scheduled	Scheduled Sinking	Minimum Remaining
Redemption Date	Outstanding Amount	Fund Payment	Outstanding Amount
June 15, 2030	\$4,350,000	\$2,150,000	\$2,220,000
December 15, 2030	\$2,220,000	\$2,220,000	\$0
2000			
		CONTRACTOR OF THE ASSOCIATION	
	EXPECTED SINKING FUND	Scheduled Sinking	Minimum Remaining
Scheduled Sinking Fund	Scheduled	Fund Payment	Outstanding Amount
Redemption Date	Outstanding Amount	\$13,250,000	\$13,580,000
June 15, 2031 December 15, 2031	\$26,830,000 \$13,580,000	\$13,580,000	\$0
Develoe 13, 2031.	<b>\$23,000</b>	2,-,,	
	EXPECTED SINKING FUND		
Scheduled Sinking Fund	Scheduled	Scheduled Sinking	Minimum Remaining
Redemption Date	Outstanding Amount	Fund Payment	Outstanding Amount
June 15, 2032	\$28,185,000	\$13,920,000	\$14,265,000
December 15, 2032	\$14,265,000	\$14,265,000	\$0
	EXPECTED SINKING FUND	SCHEDILE - TRANCHE 19	
Scheduled Sinking Fund	Scheduled	Scheduled Sinking	Minimum Remaining
Redemption Date	Outstanding Amount	Fund Payment	Outstanding Amount
June 15, 2033	\$10,000,000	\$5,000,000	\$5,000,000
December 15, 2033	\$5,000,000	\$5,000,000	\$0
2-4-4	, ,		
	EXPECTED SINKING FUND S	SCHEDULE - TRANCHE 20	
Scheduled Sinking Fund	Scheduled	Scheduled Sinking	Minimum Remaining
Redemption Date	Outstanding Amount	Fund Payment	Outstanding Amount
June 15, 2033	\$15,550,000	\$7,630,000	\$7,920,000 \$0
December 15, 2033	\$7,920,000	\$7,920,000	ΦU

# ESTIMATED OTHER ONGOING FINANCING COSTS

	Annual Amount
Ongoing Servicer Fee (LIPA as Servicer)	\$234,660
Administration Fees	65,000
Bond Administration Fees	100,000
Bond Trustee Fees and Expenses	14,000
Legal Fees	10,000
Rating Agency Fees	20,000
Accounting Fees	65,000
Directors and Officers Insurance Fees	60,000
Miscellaneous	6,000
TOTAL ESTIMATED OTHER ONGOING FINANCING COSTS	\$574,660

# SUMMARY OF EXPECTED CHARGES

Year	Bond Payments (1)	Other Financing Costs <sup>(2)</sup>	Total Nominal Charge Requirements <sup>(3)</sup>	PV of Expected Charges <sup>(4)</sup>
2017	\$ 59,450,000.00	\$ 574,660.00	\$ 60,024,660.00	\$ 87,233,321.35
2018	76,370,000.00	574,660.00	76,944,660.00	92,578,249.50
2019	-	574,660.00	574,660.00	16,144,216.06
2020	16,230,000.00	574,660.00	16,804,660.00	30,615,181.09
2021	72,595,000.00	574,660.00	73,169,660.00	79,623,808.28
2022	90,980,000.00	574,660.00	91,554,660.00	90,925,645.47
2023	26,185,000.00	574,660.00	26,759,660.00	29,562,680.25
2024	<u>-</u>	. 574,660.00	574,660.00	5,834,502.82
2025	5,950,000.00	574,660.00	6,524,660.00	10,624,940.75
2026	, · · -	574,660.00	574,660.00	5,362,131.37
2027	-	574,660.00	574,660.00	5,255,884.20
2028	36,645,000.00	574,660.00	37,219,660.00	33,606,599.96
2029	-	574,660.00	574,660.00	3,637,680.51
2030 <sup>-</sup>	4,350,000.00	574,660.00	4,924,660.00	6,810,825.71
2031	26,830,000.00	574,660.00	27,404,660.00	22,953,374.61
2032	28,185,000.00	574,660.00	28,759,660.00	22,496,216.09
2033	25,550,000.00	574,660.00	26,124,660.00	19,214,341.28
TOTAL	\$469,320,000.00	\$9,769,220.00	\$479,089,220.00	\$562,479,599.32

<sup>(1)</sup> From Schedule B.

<sup>(2)</sup> From Schedule C, applied semi-annually.

<sup>(3)</sup> Sum of Bond Payments and Ongoing Financing Costs.

<sup>(4)</sup> The discount rate used is the "all-in" true interest cost of the Bonds, applied semi-annually.

Period Ending	Principal	Coupon	Interest	Debt Service	Annual Debt Service
Ending 9/8/2016	<u> гинстрат</u>	Сопроп	Interest	Dept Service	SCITICE
10/1/2016			\$ 822,334.38	\$ 822,334.38	
11/1/2016			4,057,168.75	4,057,168.75	
12/1/2016	•		6,720,815.63	6,720,815.63	
12/1/2016			0,720,015.05	0,720,013.03	\$ 11,600,318.76
			1,330,950.00	1,330,950.00	Ψ 11,000,510.70
3/1/2017			822,334.38	822,334.38	
4/1/2017				-	
5/1/2017			4,057,168.75	4,057,168.75	
6/1/2017		£ 0000/	6,720,815.63	6,720,815.63	
9/1/2017	\$ 8,445,000	5.000%	1,330,950.00	9,775,950.00	
10/1/2017			822,334.38	822,334.38	
11/1/2017			4,057,168.75	4,057,168.75	
12/1/2017	56,600,000	5.000%	6,720,815.63	63,320,815.63	
12/15/2017					90,907,537.52
3/1/2018			1,119,825.00	1,119,825.00	
4/1/2018			822,334.38	822,334.38	
5/1/2018	29,530,000	5.000%	4,057,168.75	33,587,168.75	
6/1/2018			5,305,815.63	<b>5,305,815.6</b> 3	
9/1/2018			1,119,825.00	1,119,825.00	
10/1/2018			822,334.38	822,334.38	
11/1/2018			3,318,918.75	3,318,918.75	
12/1/2018	53,450,000	**	5,305,815.63	58,755,815.63	
12/15/2018			, .		104,852,037.52
3/1/2019			1,119,825.00	1,119,825.00	
4/1/2019	9,000,000	5.250%	822,334.38	9,822,334.38	
5/1/2019	14,435,000	5.000%	3,318,918.75	17,753,918.75	•
6/1/2019	21,777,		3,992,240.63	3,992,240.63	
9/1/2019			1,119,825.00	1,119,825.00	
10/1/2019			586,084.38	586,084.38	
11/1/2019			2,958,043.75	2,958,043.75	
12/1/2019	•		3,992,240.63	3,992,240.63	
12/15/2019			2,772,2010.00	3,772,210102	41,344,512.52
3/1/2020			1,119,825.00	1,119,825.00	11,511,012.02
	9,645,000	5.375%	586,084.38	10,231,084.38	
4/1/2020		4.000%	2,958,043.75	8,603,043.75	
5/1/2020	5,645,000	4.00070		3,992,240.63	
6/1/2020	0.000.000	5.00007	3,992,240.63		
9/1/2020	8,890,000	5.000%	1,119,825.00	10,009,825.00	
10/1/2020			326,875.00	326,875.00	
11/1/2020			2,845,143.75	2,845,143.75	
12/1/2020	18,450,000	5.000%	3,992,240.63	22,442,240.63	50 550 050 7.4
12/15/2020			00=	000 555	59,570,278.14
3/1/2021			897,575.00	897,575.00	
4/1/2021	2,930,000	5.500%	326,875.00	3,256,875.00	
5/1/2021	8,905,000	4.000%	2,845,143.75	11,750,143.75	

6/1/2021			3,530,990.63	3,530,990.63	3
9/1/2021	3,935,000	5.000%	897,575.00		
10/1/2021			246,300.00	246,300.00	)
14/1/2021			2,667,043.75	2,667,043.75	;
12/1/2021	59,235,000	5.000%	3,530,990.63	62,765,990.63	
12/15/2021					89,947,493.76
3/1/2022			799,200.00	799,200.00	
4/1/2022	4,845,000	5.500%	246,300.00	5,091,300.00	ł
5/1/2022			2,667,043.75	2,667,043.75	
6/1/2022			2,050,115.63	2,050,115.63	
9/1/2022	3,270,000	4.500%	799,200.00	4,069,200.00	
10/1/2022			113,062.50	113,062.50	
11/1/2022			2,667,043.75	2,667,043.75	
12/1/2022	82,485,000	**	2,050,115.63	84,535,115.63	
12/15/2022					101,992,081.26
3/1/2023			725,625.00	725,625.00	
4/1/2023	4,020,000	5.625%	113,062.50	4,133,062.50	
5/1/2023			2,667,043.75	2,667,043.75	
9/1/2023	22,530,000	5.000%	725,625.00	23,255,625.00	
11/1/2023			2,667,043.75	2,667,043.75	
12/15/2023					33,448,400.00
3/1/2024			162,375.00	162,375.00	
5/1/2024			2,667,043.75	2,667,043.75	
9/1/2024			162,375.00	162,375.00	
11/1/2024			2,667,043.75	2,667,043.75	
12/15/2024		•			5,658,837.50
3/1/2025			162,375.00	162,375.00	
5/1/2025			2,667,043.75	2,667,043.75	
9/1/2025	6,495,000	5.000%	162,375.00	6,657,375.00	
11/1/2025			2,667,043.75	2,667,043.75	
12/15/2025					12,153,837.50
5/1/2026			2,667,043.75	2,667,043.75	
11/1/2026	•		2,667,043.75	2,667,043.75	
12/15/2026					5,334,087.50
5/1/2027			2,667,043.75	2,667,043.75	
11/1/2027			2,667,043.75	2,667,043.75	
12/15/2027					5,334,087.50
5/1/2028	37,660,000	**	2,667,043.75	40,327,043.75	
11/1/2028	, ,		1,848,325.00	1,848,325.00	
12/15/2028			, ,	, -	42,175,368.75
5/1/2029			1,848,325.00	1,848,325.00	
11/1/2029	•		1,848,325.00	1,848,325.00	
12/15/2029			, ,	, ,	3,696,650.00
5/1/2030	4,850,000	4.250%	1,848,325.00	6,698,325.00	
11/1/2030	-,~,		1,745,262.50	1,745,262.50	
12/15/2030			-,,	.,,	8,443,587.50
5/1/2031	27,525,000	4.250%	1,745,262.50	29,270,262.50	- <b>, ,</b>
11/1/2031	27,025,000		1,160,356.25	1,160,356.25	
12/15/2031			. 1,100,100	-,,	30,430,618.75
5/1/2032	28,715,000	4.250%	1,160,356.25	29,875,356.25	. ,,
11/1/2032		5070	550,162.50	550,162.50	
12/15/2032			550,102.50		30,425,518.75
5/1/2033	25,890,000	4,250%	550,162.50	26,440,162.50	,,
12/15/2033	23,050,000	.,22370	223,10200	-0,,10000	26,440,162.50
	\$537,380,000		\$166,375,415.73	\$703,755,415.73	\$703,755,415.73
	ψυυ 1,000,000		+ x v v y v 1 v y 1 x v 1 1 v	-,,,,	,,

# Utility Debt Securitization Authority Restructuring Bonds – Series 2016B Series 2006D Electric System General Revenue - 9/8/16 Call, Current Refunding

Period	Yhada ada a I	Course	Interest	Debt Service	Annual Debt Service
Ending 2/1/2017	Principal	Сопрол	\$ 1,330,950	\$ 1,330,950	DEI VICE
3/1/2017	£ 9.445.000	5.000%	1,330,950	9,775,950	
9/1/2017	\$ 8,445,000	3,00076	1,330,930	9,113,930	\$11,106,900
12/15/2017			1,119,825	1,119,825	Φχ1,100,500
3/1/2018			1,119,825	1,119,825	
9/1/2018			1,119,023	1,119,023	2,239,650
12/15/2018			1 110 925	1 110 000	2,239,030
3/1/2019			1,119,825	1,119,825	
9/1/2019			1,119,825	1,119,825	2 220 660
12/15/2019			1 110 005	1 110 000	2,239,650
3/1/2020		<b>5</b> 0.000/	1,119,825	1,119,825	
9/1/2020	8,890,000	5.000%	1,119,825	10,009,825	11 100 (50
12/15/2020			207.575	007.575	11,129,650
3/1/2021			897,575	897,575	
9/1/2021	3,935,000	5.000%	897,575	4,832,575	5.500.150
12/15/2021				s,	5,730,150
3/1/2022			799,200	799,200	
9/1/2022	3,270,000	4,500%	799,200	4,069,200	
12/15/2022					4,868,400
3/1/2023			725,625	725,625	
9/1/2023	22,530,000	5.000%	725,625	23,255,625	
12/15/2023					23,981,250
3/1/2024			162,375	162,375	
9/1/2024			162,375	162,375	
12/15/2024					324,750
3/1/2025			162,375	162,375	
9/1/2025	6,495,000	5.000%	162,375	6,657,375	
12/15/2025					6,819,750
	\$53,565,000		\$14,875,150	\$68,440,150	\$68,440,150

# Utility Debt Securitization Authority Restructuring Bonds – Series 2016B Series 2006E Electric System General Revenue - 12/1/16 Call, Advance Refunding

Period					Annual Debt
Ending	Principal	Сопрол	Interest	Debt Service	Service
12/1/2016			\$ 6,720,815.63	\$ 6,720,815.63	
12/15/2016					\$ 6,720,815.63
6/1/2017			6,720,815.63	6,720,815.63	
12/1/2017	\$ 56,600,000	5.000%	6,720,815.63	63,320,815.63	
12/15/2017					70,041,631.26
6/1/2018			5,305,815.63	5,305,815.63	
12/1/2018	53,450,000	**	5,305,815.63	58,755,815.63	•
12/15/2018					64,061,631.26
6/1/2019			3,992,240.63	3,992,240.63	
12/1/2019			3,992,240.63	3,992,240.63	
12/15/2019					7,984,481.26
6/1/2020			3,992,240.63	3,992,240.63	
12/1/2020	18,450,000	5.000%	3,992,240.63	22,442,240.63	
12/15/2020					26,434,481.26
6/1/2021			3,530,990.63	3,530,990.63	
12/1/2021	59,235,000	5.000%	3,530,990.63	62,765,990.63	
12/15/2021					66,296,981.26
6/1/2022			2,050,115.63	2,050,115.63	
12/1/2022	82,485,000	**	2,050,115.63	84,535,115.63	
12/15/2022	•				86,585,231.26
	\$270,220,000		\$57,905,253.19	\$328,125,253.19	\$328,125,253.19

# Utility Debt Securitization Authority Restructuring Bonds – Series 2016B Series 2006F Electric System General Revenue - 11/1/16 Call, Advance Refunding

Period	Yanka aka ak	<b>C</b>	Y-44	Dobt Comic-	Annual Debt
Ending 11/1/2016	Principal	Coupon	\$ 4,057,168.75	<b>Debt Service</b> \$ 4,057,168.75	Service
11/1/2016			\$ 4,057,100.75	5 4,037,106.73	\$ 4,057,168.75
12/15/2016			A 057 160 75	4 AST 160 TS	\$ 4,037,100.73
5/1/2017			4,057,168.75	4,057,168.75	
11/1/2017			4,057,168.75	4,057,168.75	0 114 227 FA
12/15/2017	4 00 500 000	c 0000/	4 055 168 55	22 507 160 75	8,114,337.50
5/1/2018	\$ 29,530,000	5.000%	4,057,168.75	33,587,168.75	
11/1/2018			3,318,918.75	3,318,918.75	0.000.007.00
12/15/2018					36,906,087.50
5/1/2019	14,435,000	5.000%	3,318,918.75	17,753,918.75	
11/1/2019			2,958,043.75	2,958,043.75	
12/15/2019				•	20,711,962.50
5/1/2020	5,645,000	4.000%	2,958,043.75	8,603,043.75	
11/1/2020			2,845,143.75	2,845,143.75	
12/15/2020					11,448,187.50
5/1/2021	8,905,000	4.000%	2,845,143.75	11,750,143.75	
11/1/2021			2,667,043.75	2,667,043.75	
12/15/2021				•	14,417,187.50
5/1/2022			2,667,043.75	2,667,043.75	
11/1/2022			2,667,043.75	2,667,043.75	
12/15/2022					5,334,087.50
5/1/2023			2,667,043.75	2,667,043.75	
11/1/2023			2,667,043.75	2,667,043.75	
12/15/2023			• •		5,334,087.50
5/1/2024			2,667,043.75	2,667,043.75	
11/1/2024			2,667,043.75	2,667,043.75	
12/15/2024			_,,.	_,,	5,334,087.50
5/1/2025		•	2,667,043.75	2,667,043.75	-,,-
11/1/2025		•	2,667,043.75	2,667,043.75	
12/15/2025			2,001,017	_,50.,0120	5,334,087.50
5/1/2026			2,667,043.75	2,667,043.75	-, ',
11/1/2026	•		2,667,043.75	2,667,043.75	
12/15/2026	•		2,001,043.13	2,007,013.75	5,334,087.50
5/1/2027			2,667,043.75	2,667,043.75	3,554,007.50
			2,667,043.75	2,667,043.75	
11/1/2027			4,007,043.73	۷,007, <del>04</del> 3.73	5,334,087.50
12/15/2027	27 660 000	**	2 667 042 75	40 227 042 75	3,334,007.30
5/1/2028	37,660,000	717 717	2,667,043.75	40,327,043.75	
11/1/2028			1,848,325.00	1,848,325.00	40 105 260 TE
12/15/2028			1 040 305 00	1 040 225 22	42,175,368.75
5/1/2029			1,848,325.00	1,848,325.00	

11/1/2029 12/15/2029			1,848,325.00	1,848,325.00	3,696,650.00
5/1/2030	4,850,000	4.250%	1,848,325.00	6,698,325.00	<b>-,</b>
11/1/2030	, .		1,745,262.50	1,745,262.50	
12/15/2030					8,443,587.50
5/1/2031	27,525,000	4.250%	1,745,262.50	29,270,262.50	
11/1/2031			1,160,356.25	1,160,356.25	• •
12/15/2031	•				30,430,618.75
5/1/2032	28,715,000	4.250%	1,160,356.25	29,875,356.25	
11/1/2032			550,162.50	550,162.50	
12/15/2032					30,425,518.75
5/1/2033	25,890,000	4.250%	550,162.50	26,440,162.50	
12/15/2033					26,440,162.50
	\$183,155,000		\$86,116,362.50	\$269,271,362.50	\$269,271,362.50

# Utility Debt Securitization Authority Restructuring Bonds – Series 2016B Series 20008B Electric System General Revenue - 4/1/19 Call, Advance Refunding

Period					Annual Debt
Ending	Principal	Coupon	Interest	Debt Service	Service
10/1/2016		·····	\$ 822,334.38	\$ 822,334.38	
12/15/2016					\$ 822,334.38
4/1/2017			822,334.38	822,334.38	
10/1/2017			822,334.38	822,334.38	
12/15/2017				•	1,644,668.76
4/1/2018			822,334.38	822,334.38	
10/1/2018			822,334.38	822,334.38	
12/15/2018					1,644,668.76
4/1/2019	\$ 9,000,000	5.250%	822,334.38	9,822,334.38	
10/1/2019			586,084.38	586,084.38	
12/15/2019					10,408,418.76
4/1/2020	9,645,000	5.375%	586,084.38	10,231,084.38	
10/1/2020			326,875.00	326,875.00	
12/15/2020					10,557,959.38
4/1/2021	2,930,000	5.500%	326,875.00	3,256,875.00	
10/1/2021			246,300.00	246,300.00	
12/15/2021					3,503,175.00
4/1/2022	4,845,000	5.500%	246,300.00	5,091,300.00	
10/1/2022			113,062.50	113,062.50	
12/15/2022					5,204,362.50
4/1/2023	4,020,000	5.625%	113,062.50	4,133,062.50	
12/15/2023					4,133,062.50
	\$30,440,000		\$7,478,650.04	\$37,918,650.04	\$37,918,650.04

### **BOND INDENTURE**

Dated as of September 8, 2016

between

### UTILITY DEBT SECURITIZATION AUTHORITY

as Bond Issuer

and

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON,

as Bond Trustee

relating to

\$469,320,000

RESTRUCTURING BONDS, SERIES 2016B

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

		<u>Page</u>
	ARTICLE I	
	Definitions and Incorporation by Reference	
Section 1.01.	Definitions	2
Section 1.02.	Rules of Construction	
	A DITICLE II	
	ARTICLE II The Bonds	
	The Bollds	
Section 2.01.	Authorization of Bonds	12
Section 2.02.	Terms of the Bonds	12
Section 2.03.	Form	15
Section 2.04.	Execution, Authentication and Delivery	16
Section 2.05.	Registration; Registration of Transfer and Exchange	16
Section 2.06.	Mutilated, Destroyed, Lost or Stolen Bonds	
Section 2.07.	Persons Deemed Owner	
Section 2.08.	Payment of Principal and Interest; Interest on Overdue Principal;	
	Principal and Interest Rights Preserved	18
Section 2.09.	Cancellation	19
Section 2.10.	Authentication and Delivery of Bonds	20
Section 2.11.	Release of Collateral	23
Section 2.12.	Tax Withholding	23
Section 2.13.	State Pledge	23
Section 2.14.	Security Interest	
Section 2.15.	Limitation of Liability for Payments	
Section 2.16.	Book-Entry and Definitive Bonds	25
Section 2.17.	Reservation of Right to Issue Additional Bonds	
	ARTICLE III	
	Covenants	
Section 3.01.	Payment of Principal and Interest	
Section 3.02.	Maintenance of Agent for Registration of Exchanges and Transfers	
Section 3.03.	Money for Payments To Be Held in Trust	
Section 3.04.	Protection of Collateral	
Section 3.05.	Performance of Obligations; Servicing; Certain Filings	
Section 3.06.	Negative Covenants	
Section 3.07.	Servicer's Obligations	
Section 3.08.	No Borrowing	
Section 3.09.	No Additional Bonds	
Section 3.10.	Guarantees, Loans, Advances and Other Liabilities	
Section 3.11.	Capital Expenditures	31
Section 3.12.	Notice of Events of Default	
Section 3.13.	Further Instruments and Acts	
Section 3.14.	Tax Covenants	31

# ARTICLE IV Satisfaction and Discharge; Defeasance

Section 4.01.	Satisfaction and Discharge of Bond Indenture; Defeasance	32
Section 4.02.	Conditions to Defeasance	
Section 4.03.	Application of Trust Money	34
Section 4.04.	Repayment of Moneys Held by Paving Agent	34
	ARTICLE V	
	Remedies	
Section 5.01.	Events of Default	
Section 5.02.	Acceleration of Maturity; Rescission and Annulment	35
Section 5.03.	Collection of Indebtedness and Suits for Enforcement by Bond Trustee	36
Section 5.04.	Remedies; Priorities	
Section 5.05.	Optional Possession of the Collateral	
Section 5.06.	Limitation of Suits.	
Section 5.07.	Unconditional Rights of Bondholders To Receive Principal and Interest	
Section 5.08.	Restoration of Rights and Remedies	
Section 5.08.	Rights and Remedies Cumulative	
Section 5.10.	Delay or Omission Not a Waiver	
Section 5.10.	Control by Bondholders	
Section 5.11.	Waiver of Past Defaults	
Section 5.12.	Undertaking for Costs	
Section 5.14.	Waiver of Stay or Extension Laws	
Section 5.15.	Action on Bonds	
Section 5.16.	Performance and Enforcement of Certain Obligations	
	ARTICLE VI	
	The Bond Trustee and Paying Agents	
Section 6.01.	Duties of Bond Trustee	
Section 6.02.	Rights of Bond Trustee	
Section 6.03.	Individual Rights of Bond Trustee	
Section 6.04.	Bond Trustee's Disclaimer	
Section 6.05.	Notice of Defaults	
Section 6.06.	Reports by Bond Trustee to Holders	
Section 6.07.	Compensation and Indemnity	
Section 6.08.	Replacement of Bond Trustee	
Section 6.09.	Successor Bond Trustee by Merger	
Section 6.10.	Appointment of Co-Trustee or Separate Trustee	
Section 6.11.	Eligibility; Disqualification	
Section 6.12.	Representations and Warranties of Bond Trustee	
Section 6.13.	The Paying Agents	
Section 6.14.	Custody of Collateral	52

# ARTICLE VII The Bondholders

Section 7.01.	Acts of Bondholders; Evidence of Ownership	
Section 7.02.	Notice to Bondholders	53
Section 7.03.	Bond Issuer to Furnish Bond Trustee Names and Addresses of Bondholders	53
Section 7.04.	Preservation of Information; Communications to Bondholders	
Section 7.05.	Provisions of Servicer Reports	
	•	
	ARTICLE VIII	
	Accounts, Disbursements and Releases	
Section 8.01.	Collection of Money	
Section 8.02.	Collection Account	
Section 8.03.	General Provisions Regarding the Collection Account	58
Section 8.04.	Release of Collateral	59
Section 8.05.	Opinion of Counsel	60
Section 8.06.	Reports by Independent Registered Accountants	60
	ARTICLE IX	
	Supplemental Bond Indentures	
G 0.01		60
Section 9.01.	Supplemental Bond Indentures Without Consent of Bondholders	
Section 9.02.	Supplemental Bond Indentures with Consent of Bondholders	
Section 9.03.	Execution of Supplemental Bond Indentures	
Section 9.04.	Effect of Supplemental Bond Indenture	63
	ARTICLE X	
	Redemption of Bonds	
Section 10.01.	Redemption by Bond Issuer	64
Section 10.02.	Privilege of Redemption and Redemption Price	
Section 10.03.	Redemption at the Direction of the Bond Issuer	
Section 10.03.	Redemption Otherwise Than at the Bond Issuer's Direction	
Section 10.05.	Selection of Bonds to be Redeemed	
Section 10.05.	Notice of Redemption	
Section 10.00. Section 10.07.	Payment of Redeemed Bonds	
	·	
	ARTICLE XI Miscellaneous	
	Wiscendieous	
Section 11.01.	Form of Documents Delivered to Bond Trustee	
Section 11.02.	Notices	
Section 11.03.	Effect of Headings and Table of Contents	
Section 11.04.	Successors and Assigns	
Section 11.05.	Severability	
Section 11.06.	Benefits of Bond Indenture	
Section 11.07.	Legal Holidays	68
Section 11.08.	Governing Law	68
Section 11.09.	Counterparts	68

Section 11.10.	No Recourse to Trustees, Etc., and Shareholders, Etc	69
Section 11.11.	No Recourse to Bond Issuer, Authority or LIPA	69
Section 11.12.	Inspection	69
	Trustee Capacity	
	Waiver of Jury Trial	
	Rule 17g-5 Compliance	

# EXHIBIT A – FORM OF BOND

BOND INDENTURE dated and effective as of September 8, 2016, between UTILITY DEBT SECURITIZATION AUTHORITY, a special purpose corporate municipal instrumentality, body corporate and politic, political subdivision and public benefit corporation of the State of New York (including any successor thereto, the "Bond Issuer"), and THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON, a New York banking corporation, in its capacity as bond trustee (including any successor thereto, the "Bond Trustee").

#### **RECITALS**

The Bond Issuer has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Bond Indenture to provide for the issuance of its Bonds with an aggregate principal amount of \$469,320,000 and the Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee are executing and delivering this Bond Indenture in order to provide for the issuance of the Bonds.

The Bond Issuer has the power under clause (c)(xi) of subdivision 2 of Section 4 of the LIPA Reform Act, as security for the payment of the principal of and interest on any restructuring bonds issued by it pursuant to the LIPA Reform Act, and any agreement made in connection therewith, to pledge all or any part of its revenues or assets, including, without limitation, restructuring property, unspent proceeds of its restructuring bonds, transition charge revenues, and earnings from the investment and reinvestment of unspent proceeds of its restructuring bonds and transition charge revenues (as all of such terms are defined and/or used in the LIPA Reform Act).

#### GRANTING CLAUSE

The Bond Issuer hereby Grants to the Bond Trustee at the Issuance Date, as Bond Trustee for the benefit of the Holders of the Bonds and the Bond Trustee, all of the Bond Issuer's right, title and interest in and to (a) the Restructuring Property (created by Sections 5 and 7 of the LIPA Reform Act and Ordering Paragraph 11 of the Financing Order) transferred by the Seller to the Bond Issuer pursuant to the Sale Agreement and all proceeds thereof, including the Charges as estimated, determined and adjusted from time to time pursuant to the Servicing Agreement in accordance with the Financing Order, (b) the Statutory Lien, (c) the Sale Agreement, (d) the Servicing Agreement, (e) the Administration Agreement, (f) the Collection Account (including all Subaccounts thereof) and all amounts or investment property on deposit therein or credited thereto from time to time, (g) the security interest with respect to the Restructuring Property granted by the Seller to the Bond Issuer in the Sale Agreement, (h) all present and future claims, demands, causes and choses in action in respect of any or all of the foregoing and all payments on or under and all proceeds of every kind and nature whatsoever in respect of any or all of the foregoing, including all proceeds of the conversion thereof, voluntary or involuntary, into cash or other liquid property, all cash proceeds, accounts, accounts receivable, notes, drafts, acceptances, chattel paper, checks, deposit accounts, securities accounts, insurance proceeds, condemnation awards, rights to payment of any and every kind, and other forms of obligations and receivables, instruments and other property which at any time constitute all or part of or are included in the proceeds of any of the foregoing and (i) all proceeds of the foregoing (collectively, the "Collateral"; it being understood that the following do not constitute Collateral: (1) amounts required to be released pursuant to or contemplated by the terms hereof, (2) proceeds from the sale of the Bonds required to pay the purchase price of the Restructuring Property paid pursuant to the Sale Agreement and the costs of issuance with respect to the Bonds as deposited into the Upfront Financing Costs Subaccount (together with any interest earnings thereon) and (3) any restructuring property purchased by the Bond Issuer with the proceeds of the Bond Issuer's Prior Restructuring Bonds or any restructuring property created pursuant to any financing order other than the Financing Order.

The foregoing Grants are made to the Bond Trustee in trust to secure the payment of principal of, interest on, and all other amounts owing in respect of, the Bonds, including all amounts payable to the Bond Trustee under this Bond Indenture and the other Basic Documents, equally and ratably without prejudice, priority or distinction, except as expressly provided in this Bond Indenture, and to secure compliance with the provisions of this Bond Indenture with respect to the Bonds, all as provided in this Bond Indenture (collectively, the "Secured Obligations").

The Bond Trustee, as trustee on behalf of the Holders of the Bonds and as agent for itself, acknowledges such Grants, accepts the trusts hereunder in accordance with the provisions hereof and agrees to perform its duties specifically required herein.

AND IT IS HEREBY COVENANTED, DECLARED AND AGREED between the parties hereto that all Bonds are to be issued, countersigned and delivered and that all of the Collateral is to be held and applied, subject to the further covenants, conditions, releases, uses and trusts hereinafter set forth, and the Bond Issuer, for itself and any successor, does hereby covenant and agree to and with the Bond Trustee and its successors in said trust, for the benefit of the Holders and the Bond Trustee, as follows:

#### **ARTICLE I**

Definitions and Incorporation by Reference

Section 1.01. Definitions.

Except as otherwise specified herein or as the context may otherwise require, the following terms have the respective meanings set forth below for all purposes of this Bond Indenture.

"Act" has the meaning specified in Section 7.01(a).

- "<u>Administration Agreement</u>" means the Administration Agreement dated as of September 8, 2016, between Long Island Lighting Company d/b/a LIPA, as Administrator, and the Bond Issuer, as the same may be amended and supplemented from time to time.
- "<u>Administration Fee</u>" means the fee payable to the Administrator pursuant to the Administration Agreement.
- "Administrator" means Long Island Lighting Company d/b/a LIPA, or any successor Administrator under the Administration Agreement.
- "Affiliate" means, with respect to any specified Person, any other Person controlling or controlled by or under common control with such specified Person. For the purposes of this definition, "control" when used with respect to any specified Person means the power to direct the management and policies of such Person, directly or indirectly, whether through the ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise; and the terms "controlling" and "controlled" have meanings correlative to the foregoing.
- "Aggregate Scheduled Debt Service" means, for any period and as of any date of calculation, an amount equal to the principal of and interest on any Outstanding Bonds scheduled to be payable during such period, in accordance with the Expected Amortization Schedule.
- "<u>Authority</u>" means Long Island Power Authority, a corporate municipal instrumentality of the State of New York, and any successor thereto.

"<u>Authorized Officer</u>" means, with respect to the Bond Issuer, any officer of the Bond Issuer who is authorized to act for the Bond Issuer in matters relating to the Bond Issuer and who is identified on the list of Authorized Officers delivered by the Bond Issuer to the Bond Trustee on the Issuance Date (as such list may be modified or supplemented by the Bond Issuer from time to time thereafter).

"Basic Documents" means, collectively, this Bond Indenture, the Sale Agreement, the Servicing Agreement and the Administration Agreement.

"Bondholder" or "Holder" means the Person in whose name a Bond is registered on the Bond Register.

"Bond Indenture" or "this Bond Indenture" means this instrument as originally executed and, as from time to time supplemented or amended by one or more indentures supplemental hereto entered into pursuant to the applicable provisions hereof, as so supplemented or amended, or both, and shall include the forms and terms of the Bonds established hereunder.

"Bond Interest Rate" means, with respect to any Series and Tranche of Bonds, the Bond Interest Rate therefor as specified in Section 2.02.

"Bond Issuer" means the party named as such in this Bond Indenture until a successor replaces it and, thereafter, means the successor.

"Bond Purchase Agreement" means the Bond Purchase Agreement dated August 11, 2016, between the Bond Issuer and the underwriters named therein.

"Bond Register" and "Bond Registrar" have the respective meanings specified in Section 2.05.

"Bonds" has the meaning specified in Section 2.01.

"Bond Trustee" means The Bank of New York Mellon, as Bond Trustee under this Bond Indenture, or any successor Bond Trustee under this Bond Indenture.

"Book-Entry Bonds" means, with respect to any Bond, a beneficial interest in such Bond, ownership and transfers of which shall be made through book entries by a Clearing Agency as described in Section 2.16.

"Business Day" means any day other than a Saturday, a Sunday or a day on which banking institutions or trust companies in New York, New York, are authorized or obligated by law, regulation or executive order to remain closed.

"Clearing Agency" means an organization registered as a "clearing agency" pursuant to Section 17A of the Exchange Act.

"<u>Clearing Agency Participant</u>" means a broker, dealer, bank, other financial institution or other Person for whom from time to time a Clearing Agency effects book entry transfers and pledges of securities deposited with the Clearing Agency.

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time, and the applicable regulations thereunder.

"Collateral" has the meaning specified in the Granting Clause of this Bond Indenture.

"Collection Account" has the meaning specified in Section 8.02(a).

"Corporate Trust Office" means the office of the Bond Trustee at which at any particular time this Bond Indenture shall be administered, which office at the date of the execution of this Bond Indenture is located at 101 Barclay Street, Floor 7 W, New York, New York 10286, Attention: Frederic Belen, Vice President, or at such other address as the Bond Trustee may designate from time to time by notice to the Bondholders and the Bond Issuer, or the principal corporate trust office of any successor Bond Trustee (the address of which the successor Bond Trustee will notify the Bondholders and the Bond Issuer).

"<u>Debt Service Reserve Subaccount</u>" has the meaning set forth in Section 8.02(a).

"<u>Default</u>" means any occurrence that is, or with notice or the lapse of time or both would become, an Event of Default.

"<u>Defeasance Securities</u>" mean direct obligations of, or obligations fully and unconditionally guaranteed as to timely payment by, the United States of America.

"<u>Definitive Bonds</u>" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.16(a).

"<u>DTC</u>" means The Depository Trust Company, as securities depository for the Bonds, or its successor or any successor securities depository.

"Eligible Account" means a segregated trust account with an Eligible Institution.

"Eligible Institution" means (a) the corporate trust department of the Bond Trustee so long as any securities of the Bond Trustee have either a short-term credit rating from Moody's of at least "P-1" or a long-term unsecured debt rating from Moody's of at least "A2" and have a credit rating from each other rating agency in one of its generic categories which signifies investment grade, or (b) a depository institution organized under the laws of the United States of America, any State or the District of Columbia (or any domestic branch of a foreign bank), (i) which has either (A) a long-term issuer rating of "AA-" or higher by Standard & Poor's and "A2" or higher by Moody's, and, if rated by Fitch, the equivalent of the lower of those two ratings by Fitch, or (B) a short-term issuer rating of "A-1+" or higher by Standard & Poor's and "P-1" or higher by Moody's, and, if Fitch provides a rating thereon, "F1+" by Fitch, or any other long-term, short-term or certificate of deposit rating acceptable to Standard & Poor's and Moody's and (ii) whose deposits are insured by the FDIC. If so qualified under clause (b) above, the Bond Trustee may be considered an Eligible Institution for the purposes of the definition of Eligible Account.

"<u>Eligible Investments</u>" mean instruments and investment property denominated in United States currency which meet the criteria described below:

- (a) direct obligations of, or obligations fully and unconditionally guaranteed as to timely payment by, the United States of America;
- (b) demand deposits, time deposits or certificates of deposit and bankers' acceptances of Eligible Institutions (including the Bond Trustee in its commercial capacity);
- (c) commercial paper having, at the time of the investment or contractual commitment, a rating of not less than "A-1" from Standard & Poor's, not less than "P-1" by Moody's and not less than "F1" by Fitch (including commercial paper issued by the Bond Trustee);

- (d) money market funds which have the highest rating from each of the Rating Agencies from which a rating is available (including funds for which the Bond Trustee or any of its Affiliates is an investment manager or advisor);
- (e) repurchase obligations with respect to any security that is a direct obligation of, or fully guaranteed by, the United States of America or certain of its agencies or instrumentalities, entered into with Eligible Institutions;
- (f) repurchase obligations with respect to any security or whole loan entered into with an Eligible Institution or a registered broker-dealer, acting as principal and that meets certain ratings criteria set forth below:
  - (i) a broker/dealer (acting as principal) registered as a broker or dealer under Section 15 of the Exchange Act (any broker/dealer being referred to in this definition as a "broker/dealer"), the unsecured short-term debt obligations of which are rated at least "P-1" by Moody's, "A-1+" by Standard & Poor's and, if Fitch provides a rating thereon, "F-1+" by Fitch, and the long-term debt obligations of which are rated at least "Aa3" by Moody's, in each case at the time of entering into this repurchase obligation, or
  - (ii) an unrated broker/dealer acting as principal, that is a wholly-owned subsidiary of a non-bank or bank holding company the unsecured short-term debt obligations of which are rated at least "P-1" by Moody's, "A-1+" by Standard & Poor's and, if Fitch provides a rating thereon, "F-1+" by Fitch, and the long-term debt obligations of which are rated at least "Aa3" by Moody's, in each case at the time of purchase so long as the obligations of such unrated broker/dealer are unconditionally guaranteed by such non-bank or bank holding company; and
- (g) any other investment permitted by each of the Rating Agencies, as evidenced by Issuer Order accompanied by evidence of such permission reasonably satisfactory to the Bond Trustee.

"Event of Default" has the meaning specified in Section 5.01.

"Excess Funds Subaccount" has the meaning specified in Section 8.02(a).

"Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

"Expected Amortization Schedule" means a schedule specifying for each Tranche the initial principal amount, Bond Interest Rate, Scheduled Maturity Date and Final Maturity Date, including the Expected Sinking Fund Schedule for Term Bonds and the matters specified in the definition thereof. The Expected Amortization Schedules for the Bonds are included in Section 2.02(b).

"<u>Expected Sinking Fund Schedule</u>" means a schedule specifying for any Term Bonds the Scheduled Sinking Fund Redemption Dates, Scheduled Outstanding Amounts, Scheduled Sinking Fund Payments and Minimum Remaining Outstanding Amounts. The Expected Sinking Fund Schedules for the Bonds that are Term Bonds are included in Section 2.02(e).

"FDIC" means the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or any successor.

"<u>Final Maturity Date</u>" means, with respect to any Tranche of Bonds, the respective Final Maturity Date therefor as specified in Section 2.02(b).

"<u>Financing Cost</u>" has the meaning specified in Section 2 of the LIPA Reform Act and consists of Upfront Financing Costs and Ongoing Financing Costs.

"Financing Order" means the Authority's Restructuring Cost Financing Order No. 4 approved and adopted June 26, 2015.

"Fitch" means Fitch Ratings, or its successor.

"General Subaccount" has the meaning set forth in Section 8.02(a).

"Grant" means mortgage, pledge, collaterally assign and grant a Lien upon and a security interest pursuant to this Bond Indenture. A Grant of the Collateral or of any other agreement or instrument shall include all rights, powers and options (but none of the obligations) of the Granting party thereunder, including the immediate and continuing right to claim for, collect, receive and give receipt for payments in respect of the Collateral and all other moneys payable thereunder, to give and receive notices and other communications, to make waivers or other agreements, to exercise all rights and options, to bring Proceedings in the name of the Granting party or otherwise and generally to do and receive anything that the Granting party is or may be entitled to do or receive thereunder or with respect thereto.

"Independent" means, when used with respect to any specified Person, that the Person (a) is in fact independent of the Bond Issuer, any other obligor upon the Bonds, the Seller, the Servicer and any Affiliate of any of the foregoing Persons, (b) does not have any direct financial interest or any material indirect financial interest in the Bond Issuer, any such other obligor, the Seller, the Servicer or any Affiliate of any of the foregoing Persons and (c) is not connected with the Bond Issuer, any such other obligor, the Seller, the Servicer or any Affiliate of any of the foregoing Persons as an officer, employee, promoter, underwriter, trustee, partner, director or person performing similar functions.

"Independent Certificate" means a certificate or opinion to be delivered to the Bond Trustee, made by an Independent appraiser or other expert appointed by an Issuer Order and consented to by the Bond Trustee, and such opinion or certificate shall state that the signer has read the definition of "Independent" in this Bond Indenture and that the signer is Independent within the meaning thereof.

"Issuance Date" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.02(g)(i).

"<u>Issuer Order</u>" and "<u>Issuer Request</u>" means a written order or request signed in the name of the Bond Issuer by any one of its Authorized Officers and delivered to the Bond Trustee.

"Legal Defeasance" has the meaning specified in Section 4.01(b).

"<u>Lien</u>" means a security interest, lien, mortgage, charge, pledge, claim, or encumbrance of any kind.

"<u>LIPA Reform Act</u>" means Part B of Chapter 173, Laws of New York, 2013, as amended to the date hereof.

"Minimum Denomination" means \$5,000 or integral multiples thereof.

"<u>Minimum Remaining Outstanding Amount</u>" means, as of any Scheduled Sinking Fund Redemption Date and with respect to any Term Bond, the Minimum Remaining Outstanding Amount therefor as specified in the applicable Expected Sinking Fund Schedule set forth in Section 2.02(e).

"Moody's" means Moody's Investors Service Inc. or its successor.

"Officer's Certificate" means a certificate signed by any Authorized Officer of the Bond Issuer and delivered to the Bond Trustee.

"Ongoing Financing Costs" has the meaning specified in the LIPA Reform Act and the Financing Order.

"Operating Expenses" means all Ongoing Financing Costs other than principal (including amortization, sinking fund or redemption payments) and redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds and amounts required to replenish each of the Subaccounts within the Reserve Subaccount.

"Operating Reserve Subaccount" has the meaning set forth in Section 8.02(a).

"Opinion of Counsel" means one or more written opinions of counsel who may, except as otherwise expressly provided in this Bond Indenture, be an employee of or counsel to the Bond Issuer and who shall be reasonably satisfactory to the Bond Trustee, and which opinion or opinions shall be addressed to the Bond Trustee, and shall be in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Bond Trustee.

"<u>Outstanding</u>" means, as of the date of determination, all Bonds theretofore authenticated and delivered under this Bond Indenture except:

- (a) Bonds theretofore cancelled by the Bond Registrar or delivered to the Bond Registrar for cancellation;
- (b) Bonds or portions thereof the payment for which money in the necessary amount has been theretofore deposited with the Bond Trustee or any Paying Agent in trust for the Holders of such Bonds; and
- (c) Bonds in exchange for or in lieu of other Bonds which have been authenticated and delivered pursuant to this Bond Indenture unless proof satisfactory to the Bond Trustee is presented that any such Bonds are held by a bona fide purchaser;

provided, however, that in determining whether the Holders of the requisite Outstanding Amount of the Bonds or any Series or Tranche thereof have given any request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent or waiver hereunder or under any Basic Document, Bonds owned by the Bond Issuer, the Seller or any Affiliate of any of the foregoing Persons shall be disregarded and deemed not to be Outstanding, except that, in determining whether the Bond Trustee shall be protected in relying upon any such request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent or waiver, only Bonds that the Bond Trustee actually knows to be so owned shall be so disregarded. Bonds so owned that have been pledged in good faith may be regarded as Outstanding if the pledgee establishes to the satisfaction of the Bond Trustee the pledgee's right so to act with respect to such Bonds and that the pledgee is not the Bond Issuer, any other obligor upon the Bonds, the Seller or any Affiliate of any of the foregoing Persons.

"Outstanding Amount" means the aggregate principal amount of all Bonds or, if the context requires, all Bonds of a Series or of a Tranche, Outstanding at the date of determination.

"PACB" means the New York Public Authorities Control Board and any successor thereto.

"Paying Agent" means the Bond Trustee or any other Person that meets the eligibility standards for the Bond Trustee specified in Section 6.11 and is authorized by the Bond Issuer to make payment of principal of or interest on the Bonds on behalf of the Bond Issuer.

"Payment Date" has the meaning specified in Section 2.02(g)(iii).

"Person" means any individual, corporation, limited liability company, estate, partnership, joint venture, association, joint stock company, trust (including any beneficiary thereof), unincorporated organization or government or any agency or political subdivision thereof.

"Predecessor Bond" means, with respect to any particular Bond, every previous Bond evidencing all or a portion of the same debt as that evidenced by such particular Bond; and, for the purpose of this definition, any Bond authenticated and delivered under Section 2.06 in lieu of a mutilated, lost, destroyed or stolen Bond shall be deemed to evidence the same debt as the mutilated, lost, destroyed or stolen Bond.

"<u>Prior Restructuring Bonds</u>" means, collectively, the Bond Issuer's Restructuring Bonds, Series 2013TE and Series 2013T, the Bond Issuer's Restructuring Bonds, Series 2015 and the Bond Issuer's Restructuring Bonds, Series 2016A.

"Proceeding" means any suit in equity, action at law or other judicial or administrative proceeding.

"<u>Projected Principal Balance</u>" means, as of any Payment Date for any Tranche of the Bonds, the initial principal amount of such Tranche for such Payment Date as set forth in the Expected Amortization Schedule.

"Rating Agency" means, collectively, Moody's, Standard & Poor's and Fitch. If no such organization or successor is any longer in existence, "Rating Agency" shall be a nationally recognized statistical rating organization or other comparable Person designated by the Bond Issuer, notice of which designation shall be given to the Bond Trustee and the Servicer.

"Rating Agency Condition" means, with respect to any action, not less than ten (10) Business Days' prior written notification to each Rating Agency of such action, and written confirmation from each of Standard & Poor's and Moody's to the Servicer, the Bond Trustee and the Bond Issuer that such action will not result in a suspension, reduction or withdrawal of the then current rating by such Rating Agency of any Series or Tranche of Bonds and that prior to the taking of the proposed action no other Rating Agency shall have provided written notice to the Bond Issuer that such action has resulted or would result in the suspension, reduction or withdrawal of the then current rating of any Series or Tranche of Bonds; provided, however, that if within such ten (10) Business Day period, any Rating Agency (other than Standard & Poor's) has neither replied to such notification nor responded in a manner that indicates that such Rating Agency is reviewing and considering the notification, then (i) the Bond Issuer shall be required to confirm that such Rating Agency has received the Rating Agency Condition request, and if it has, promptly request the related Rating Agency Condition confirmation and (ii) if the Rating Agency neither replies to such notification nor responds in a manner that indicates it is reviewing and considering the notification within five (5) Business Days following such second request, the applicable Rating Agency Condition requirement shall not be deemed to apply to such Rating Agency. For the purposes of this definition, any confirmation, request, acknowledgment or approval that is required to be in writing may be in the form of electronic mail or a press release (which may contain a general waiver of a Rating Agency's right to review or consent).

"Record Date" means, with respect to a Payment Date, the close of business on the Business Day next preceding such Payment Date; provided however, that if Definitive Bonds are issued, the Record Date shall mean the last Business Day of the calendar month immediately preceding such Payment Date.

"Redemption Price" means, with respect to any Bonds to be redeemed, the principal amount of such Bonds or percentage thereof specified for such redemption in Section 2.02.

"Registered Holder" means the Person in whose name a Bond is registered on the Bond Register on the applicable Record Date.

"Required Debt Service Reserve Level" means, as of any date of calculation, an amount equal to the greater of (a) 1.5% of the aggregate principal amount of Bonds then outstanding minus the minimum principal amount of Bonds shown as being expected to be paid on the Expected Amortization Schedule on any Payment Date subsequent to such date of calculation and (b) \$0. For the avoidance of doubt, to the extent that no principal amount is shown as being expected to be paid on on the Expected Amortization Schedule on any Payment Date subsequent to a date of calculation, the minimum principal amount of Bonds shown as being expected to be paid on the Expected Amortization Schedule on any Payment Date subsequent to such date of calculation for purposes of calculating the Required Debt Service Reserve Level will be \$-0.

"Required Operating Reserve Level" means, as of any date of calculation, an amount equal to 0.50% of the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds originally issued; provided, however, that if any Bonds are refunded in advance of their maturity as permitted by Section 2.02(f), on and after the date that provision for the payment of the Bonds so refunded has been made pursuant to Section 4.02 hereof the Required Operating Reserve Level shall be equal to 0.50% of the Outstanding Amount of the Bonds immediately after such date.

"Required Reserve Level" means, as of any date of calculation, the sum of the Required Debt Service Reserve Level and the Required Operating Reserve Level.

"Reserve Subaccount" has the meaning set forth in Section 8.02(a).

"Responsible Officer" means, with respect to the Bond Trustee, any officer assigned to the Corporate Trust Office, including any Vice President, Assistant Vice President, Secretary, Assistant Secretary, Treasurer or Assistant Treasurer or any other officer of the Bond Trustee customarily performing functions similar to those performed by any of the above designated officers, in each case having direct responsibility for the administration of this Bond Indenture.

"Sale Agreement" means the Restructuring Property Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of September 8, 2016, between the Bond Issuer and the Seller, as the same may be amended and supplemented from time to time.

"Scheduled Maturity Date" means, with respect to any Serial Bonds, the Scheduled Maturity Date therefor as specified in the Expected Amortization Schedule set forth in Section 2.02(b).

"Scheduled Sinking Fund Payment" means, with respect to any Term Bonds, the Scheduled Sinking Fund Payment therefor as specified in the Expected Sinking Fund Schedule set forth in Section 2.02(e).

- "Scheduled Sinking Fund Redemption Date" means, with respect to any Term Bonds, the Scheduled Sinking Fund Redemption Date therefor as specified in the Expected Sinking Fund Schedule set forth in Section 2.02(e).
  - "Securities Act" means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
- "Securities Intermediary" means The Bank of New York Mellon, a New York banking corporation, solely in its capacity as a "securities intermediary" as defined in Section 8-102(a)(14) of the UCC, or any successor securities intermediary.
  - "Seller" means Long Island Power Authority.
  - "Semiannual Interest" has the meaning specified in Section 2.02(g)(iv).
- "Semiannual Principal" means, with respect to any Payment Date and any Series and Tranche of Bonds, (i) for any Serial Bonds, the amount required to be paid to the Holders pursuant to Section 2.02(d), and (ii) for any Term Bonds, the amount required to be redeemed and paid to the Holders pursuant to Section 2.02(e).
  - "Serial Bonds" means Bonds which are not Term Bonds.
- "Series" or "Series of Bonds" or "Bonds of a Series" means all Bonds designated as being of the same series issued and delivered on original issuance in a simultaneous transaction, and any Bonds thereafter delivered in lieu thereof or in substitution therefor pursuant to this Bond Indenture.
- "Servicer" means Long Island Lighting Company d/b/a LIPA as Servicer under the Servicing Agreement, which may contract with others for the performance of some duties under the Servicing Agreement.
- "Servicing Agreement" means the Restructuring Property Servicing Agreement dated as of September 8, 2016, between the Bond Issuer and Long Island Lighting Company d/b/a LIPA, as Servicer, as the same may be amended and supplemented from time to time in accordance with Section 7.01 thereof.
- "<u>Sinking Fund Payment</u>" means a payment upon redemption of Term Bonds on a Payment Date as specified in the Expected Sinking Fund Schedule applicable thereto, or with respect to any Tranche a payment without redemption prior to maturity that reduces the Outstanding Amount thereof to zero.
- "<u>Standard & Poor's</u>" means Standard & Poor's Ratings Services, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., or its successor.
  - "State" means any one of the states of the United States of America or the District of Columbia.
  - "State Pledge" has the meaning specified in Section 2.13.
- "<u>Statutory Lien</u>" means the Lien on the Restructuring Property created by subdivision 2 of Section 7 of the LIPA Reform Act and the Financing Order in the Restructuring Property Granted and pledged by this Bond Indenture.

"Subaccounts" means, collectively, the General Subaccount, the Excess Funds Subaccount, the Reserve Subaccount(which consists of the Operating Reserve Subaccount and the Debt Service Reserve Subaccount) and the Upfront Financing Costs Subaccount in the Collection Account.

"Successor Servicer" has the meaning specified in Section 3.05(d).

"<u>Term Bonds</u>" means Bonds the retirement of which shall be provided for from scheduled periodic redemptions prior to maturity.

"Tranche" or "Tranche of Bonds" or "Bonds of a Tranche" means all Bonds designated as being of the same tranche issued and delivered on original issuance in a simultaneous transaction, and any Bonds thereafter delivered in lieu thereof or in substitution therefor pursuant to this Bond Indenture.

"Trust Indenture Act" means the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 as in force on the date hereof, unless otherwise specifically provided.

"<u>UCC</u>" means, unless the context otherwise requires, the Uniform Commercial Code, as in effect in the State of New York, as amended from time to time.

"<u>Underwriters</u>" means the underwriters who purchase the Bonds from the Bond Issuer and sell the Bonds pursuant to the Bond Purchase Agreement.

"Upfront Financing Costs Subaccount" has the meaning set forth in Section 8.02(a).

"<u>Upfront Financing Costs</u>" has the meaning specified in the LIPA Reform Act and the Financing Order.

"<u>U.S. Government Obligations</u>" means direct obligations (or certificates representing an ownership interest in such obligations) of the United States of America (including any agency or instrumentality thereof) for the payment of which the full faith and credit of the United States of America is pledged.

"17g-5 Website" has the meaning specified in Section 11.15.

Except as otherwise specified herein or as the context may otherwise require, the following terms have the respective meanings set forth in Appendix A to the Servicing Agreement as in effect on the Issuance Date for all purposes of this Bond Indenture, and the definitions of such terms are equally applicable both to the singular and plural forms of such terms:

Adjustment Notice
Allocation Agent
Annual Accountant's Report
Charges
Excess Remittance
Financing Order
Issuance Advice Letter
LIPA
Principal Balance
Restructuring Property
Seller
Semiannual Servicer Certificate

Servicer Default Servicing Fee True-Up Adjustment

Section 1.02. Rules of Construction. Unless the context otherwise requires:

- (a) a term has the meaning assigned to it;
- (b) an accounting term not otherwise defined has the meaning assigned to it in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as in effect from time to time;
  - (c) "or" is not exclusive;
  - (d) "including" means including without limitation;
  - (e) words in the singular include the plural and words in the plural include the singular;
- (f) words of the masculine gender shall mean and include correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders;
- (g) words importing persons shall include firms, associations, partnerships (including limited partnerships), trusts, corporations and other legal entities, including public bodies, as well as natural persons, and shall include successors and assigns;
- (h) each time of day shall be local time in The City of New York, New York, except as otherwise specified herein;
  - (i) each reference to Bonds includes portions thereof in Authorized Denominations;
- (j) the words "herein," "hereof," "hereunder" and other words of similar import refer to this Bond Indenture as a whole and not to any particular Article, Section or other subdivision;
- (k) all references in this Bond Indenture to designated "Articles," "Sections" and other subdivisions are to the designated Articles, Sections and other subdivisions of this Bond Indenture; and
- (l) except as otherwise specified herein, UCC terms shall have the meanings given to such terms in the UCC.

#### **ARTICLE II**

The Bonds

Section 2.01. Authorization of Bonds.

There are hereby authorized to be issued pursuant to and for the purposes specified in the LIPA Reform Act and the Financing Order an issue of restructuring bonds (as defined in the LIPA Reform Act) designated as "Restructuring Bonds, Series 2016B" and as further designated below (the "Bonds").

Section 2.02. Terms of the Bonds.

(a) *Authorization; Designation.* The issuance of one Series of Bonds is hereby authorized, which Bonds shall be designated as the "Restructuring Bonds" and further designated as "Series 2016B".

(b) Initial Principal Amounts; Bond Interest Rates; Scheduled Maturity Dates; Final Maturity Dates. The Bonds shall be issued in twenty (20) separate tranches. Bonds of a Tranche with a specified Final Maturity Date shall be designated by reference to its Final Maturity Date. The Bonds shall be issued in the aggregate initial principal amount of \$469,320,000, and shall bear interest at the rates per annum and have initial principal amount, Scheduled Maturity Dates and Final Maturity Dates as set forth below:

Tranche	Initial Principal Amount	Scheduled Maturity Date <sup>†</sup>	Final Maturity Date <sup>†</sup>	Interest Rate
Tranche 1	\$26,250,000	June 15, 2017	June 15, 2019	5.000%
Tranche 2	\$33,200,000	December 15, 2017	December 15, 2019	5.000%
Tranche 3	\$37,715,000	June 15, 2018	June 15, 2020	5.000%
Tranche 4	\$38,655,000	December 15, 2018	December 15, 2020	5.000%
Tranche 5	\$8,015,000	June 15, 2020	June 15, 2022	5.000%
Tranche 6	. , ,	,	•	5.000%
	\$8,215,000	December 15, 2020	December 15, 2022	
Tranche 7	\$35,850,000	June 15, 2021	June 15, 2023	5.000%
Tranche 8	\$36,745,000	December 15, 2021	December 15, 2023	5.000%
Tranche 9	\$44,930,000	June 15, 2022	June 15, 2024	5.000%
Tranche 10	\$46,050,000	December 15, 2022	December 15, 2024	5.000%
Tranche 11	\$12,930,000	June 15, 2023	June 15, 2025	5.000%
Tranche 12	\$13,255,000	December 15, 2023	December 15, 2025	5.000%
Tranche 13	\$2,940,000	June 15, 2025	June 15, 2027	5.000%
Tranche 14	\$3,010,000	December 15, 2025	December 15, 2027	5.000%
Tranche 15*	\$36,645,000	December 15, 2028	December 15, 2030	5.000%
Tranche 16*	\$4,350,000	December 15, 2030	December 15, 2032	5.000%
Tranche 17*	\$26,830,000	December 15, 2031	December 15, 2033	5.000%
Tranche 18*	\$28,185,000	December 15, 2032	December 15, 2034	5.000%
Tranche 19*	\$10,000,000	December 15, 2033	December 15, 2035	4.000%
Tranche 20*	\$15,550,000	December 15, 2033	December 15, 2035	5.000%

<sup>\*</sup> Term Bonds subject to Sinking Fund Payments as provided in Section 2.02(e)

- (c) General Priority of Payment of Principal. Unless an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing and the unpaid principal amount of all Bonds and accrued interest thereon has been declared to be immediately due and payable, or except as to Bonds of a Tranche that may be redeemed pursuant to any optional redemption provisions applicable to such Bonds, no payment of the principal on any Tranche of Bonds of any Final Maturity Date shall be made on any Payment Date prior to the payment in full of all of the principal of all Tranches of Bonds with an earlier Final Maturity Date and no principal payments on any Tranche of Bonds shall be made on any Payment Date until interest due on all Bonds on such Payment Date is paid in full. Partial payments of any scheduled payment shall be allocated within the Bonds of a particular tranche pro rata. Partial payments (if any) of any amortization payments shall be allocated between Tranches of Bonds with the same Final Maturity Date pro rata.
- (d) Serial Bond Payments of Principal. Tranche 1 through Tranche 14 of the Bonds shall be Serial Bonds. Unless an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing and the unpaid principal amount of all Bonds and accrued interest thereon has been declared to be immediately due and payable, or except as to Bonds of a Tranche that may be redeemed pursuant to any optional redemption provisions applicable to such Bonds, on each Payment Date, the Bond Trustee shall pay to the Registered Holders of such Serial Bonds amounts payable pursuant to Section 8.02(e) as principal, until the Outstanding Amount of such Serial Bonds has been reduced to zero; provided, however, that no principal payment shall be made on a Serial Bond pursuant to this Section 2.02(d) prior to the Scheduled Maturity Date for that Serial Bond.

Term Bond Payments of Principal. Tranche 15 through Tranche 20 of the Bonds shall constitute Term Bonds and shall be subject to redemption from time to time as hereinafter provided at a Redemption Price of 100% of the principal amount of such respective Term Bonds to be redeemed, together with accrued interest to the redemption date. Unless an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing and the unpaid principal amount of all Bonds and accrued interest thereon has been declared to be due and payable, or except as to any Tranche of the Bonds that may be redeemed pursuant to any optional redemption provisions applicable to such Bonds, on each Scheduled Sinking Fund Redemption Date, the Bond Trustee shall redeem the respective Term Bonds prior to maturity and pay to the Registered Holders of such Bonds amounts payable pursuant to Section 8.02(e) as a Sinking Fund Payment until the Outstanding Amount of the respective Term Bonds has been reduced to zero; provided, however, that any payment that reduces the Outstanding Amount to zero shall be applied as a payment of a maturity of the respective Term Bonds and not as a redemption prior to maturity; provided further, however, that no Sinking Fund Payment shall be made pursuant to this Section 2.02(e) prior to the respective first Scheduled Sinking Fund Redemption Date and on any Payment Date in an amount that reduces the Outstanding Amount of the respective Term Bonds below the Minimum Remaining Outstanding Amount specified in the Expected Sinking Fund Schedule below; and provided further, however, that any Term Bonds presented to the Bond Trustee for cancellation on or before forty-five (45) days prior to a Payment Date shall reduce the amount to be redeemed on such Payment Date by a like principal amount.

Scheduled		
	Scheduled Sinking	Minimum Remaining
Outstanding Amount	Fund Payment	Outstanding Amount
\$36,645,000	\$18,095,000	\$18,550,000
\$18,550,000	\$18,550,000	\$0
EXPECTED SINKING FUND	SCHEDULE - TRANCHE-16	
		Minimum Remaining
		Outstanding Amount
Ü		\$2,200,000
\$2,200,000	\$2,200,000	\$0
		_
		Minimum Remaining
		<b>Outstanding Amount</b>
\$26,830,000	\$13,250,000	\$13,580,000
\$13,580,000	\$13,580,000	\$0
EXPECTED SINKING FUND	SCHEDULE _ TRANCHE-18	
		Minimum Remaining
	8	Outstanding Amount
		\$14,265,000
\$14,265,000	\$14,265,000	\$0
EVDECTED SINKING FUND	SCHEDULE TRANCHE-10	
		- Minimum Remaining
		Outstanding Amount
Ü		\$5,000,000
\$5,000,000	\$5,000,000	\$0
EVDECTED CHIZING ELIND	CONTENTINE TENANGUE 40	
		Minimum Damaini
Scheduled Outstanding Amount	Scheduled Sinking Fund Payment	Minimum Remaining Outstanding Amount
Outstanding Amount		
\$15,550,000	\$7,630,000	\$7,920,000
	\$36,645,000 \$18,550,000  EXPECTED SINKING FUND Scheduled Outstanding Amount  \$4,350,000 \$2,200,000  EXPECTED SINKING FUND Scheduled Outstanding Amount  \$26,830,000 \$13,580,000  EXPECTED SINKING FUND Scheduled Outstanding Amount  \$28,185,000 \$14,265,000  EXPECTED SINKING FUND Scheduled Outstanding Amount  \$28,185,000 \$14,265,000  EXPECTED SINKING FUND Scheduled Outstanding Amount  \$10,000,000 \$5,000,000	\$36,645,000 \$18,095,000 \$18,550,000 \$18,550,000 \$18,550,000 \$18,550,000 \$18,550,000 \$18,550,000 \$18,550,000 \$18,550,000 \$18,550,000 \$2,200,000 \$2,150,000 \$2,200,000 \$13,250,000 \$13,250,000 \$13,250,000 \$13,580,000 \$13,580,000 \$13,580,000 \$13,580,000 \$2,200,000 \$2,2

(f) Optional Redemption. The Bonds with a Final Maturity Date prior to December 15, 2030 shall not be subject to optional redemption prior to maturity.

Notwithstanding any priority of payment set forth in this Bond Indenture or any other limitations as to the redemption of Bonds, Bonds with a Final Maturity Date on or after December 15, 2030 shall be subject to optional redemption by the Bond Issuer in whole or in part, in any order, from time to time on any Business Day on and after June 15, 2026, upon payment of the Redemption Price of 100% of the principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed, together with accrued interest to the redemption date.

- (g) Authentication Date; Registered Form and Denominations; Semiannual Interest; Computation of Interest.
  - (i) Authentication Date. The Bonds that are authenticated and delivered by the Bond Trustee to or upon the order of the Bond Issuer on September 8, 2016 (the "Issuance Date") shall have as their date of authentication September 8, 2016.
  - (ii) Registered Form and Denominations. The Bonds shall be issued in fully registered form without coupons and in not less than Minimum Denominations.
  - (iii) Payment Dates. The Payment Dates for the Bonds shall be June 15 and December 15 of each year or, if any such date is not a Business Day, the next succeeding Business Day, commencing on June 15, 2017 and continuing until the earlier of repayment of the Bonds in full or the respective Final Maturity Date.
  - (iv) Semiannual Interest. Semiannual Interest will be payable on each Tranche of Bonds on each Payment Date in an amount equal to one-half of the product of (A) the applicable Bond Interest Rate and (B) the Outstanding Amount of the related Tranche of such Bonds as of the close of business on the preceding Payment Date after giving effect to all payments of principal made to the Holders of the related Tranche of such Bonds on such preceding Payment Date; provided, however that with respect to the initial Payment Date or, if no payment has yet been made, interest on the outstanding principal balance will accrue from and including the Issuance Date to but excluding that Payment Date.
  - (v) Interest Rate Computation. Bond Interest Rates shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.

Section 2.03. Form.

The Bonds and the Bond Trustee's certificate of authentication shall be in substantially the forms set forth in Exhibit A, with such appropriate insertions, omissions, substitutions and other variations as are required or permitted by this Bond Indenture and may have such letters, numbers or other marks of identification and such legends or endorsements placed thereon as may, consistently herewith, be determined by the officers executing such Bonds, as evidenced by their execution of such Bonds.

The Bonds shall be typewritten, printed, lithographed or engraved or produced by any combination of these methods (with or without steel engraved borders), all as determined by the officers executing such Bonds, as evidenced by their execution of such Bonds.

Pursuant to recommendations promulgated by the Committee on Uniform Security Identification Procedures, "CUSIP" numbers may be printed on the Bonds. The Bonds may bear such endorsement or

legend satisfactory to the Bond Trustee as may be required to conform to usage or law with respect thereto.

Unless otherwise directed by the Bond Issuer, the Bonds of each Series shall be numbered from R-1 upward, unless otherwise determined by the Bond Trustee and approved by the Bond Issuer.

The terms of the Bonds set forth in Exhibit A are part of the terms of this Bond Indenture.

The Bonds shall contain a statement to the following effect: "Neither the full faith and credit nor the taxing power of the State of New York is pledged to the payment of the principal of, or interest on, this Bond."

Section 2.04. Execution, Authentication and Delivery.

The Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the Bond Issuer by any of its Authorized Officers. The signature of any such Authorized Officer on the Bonds may be manual or facsimile.

Bonds bearing the manual or facsimile signature of individuals who were at any time Authorized Officers of the Bond Issuer shall bind the Bond Issuer, notwithstanding that such individuals or any of them have ceased to hold such offices prior to the authentication and delivery of such Bonds or did not hold such offices at the date of such Bonds.

At any time and from time to time after the execution and delivery of this Bond Indenture, the Bond Issuer may deliver Bonds executed by the Bond Issuer to the Bond Trustee pursuant to an Issuer Order for authentication; and the Bond Trustee shall authenticate and deliver such Bonds as provided in this Bond Indenture and not otherwise.

No Bond shall be entitled to any benefit under this Bond Indenture or be valid or obligatory for any purpose, unless there appears on such Bond a certificate of authentication substantially in the form provided for herein, executed by the Bond Trustee by the manual signature of one of its authorized signatories, and such certificate upon any Bond shall be conclusive evidence, and the only evidence, that such Bond has been duly authenticated and delivered hereunder.

Section 2.05. Registration; Registration of Transfer and Exchange.

The Bond Issuer shall cause to be kept a register (the "Bond Register") in which, subject to such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, the Bond Issuer shall provide for the registration of Bonds and the registration of transfers and exchanges of Bonds. The Bond Issuer shall cause the Bond Registrar to designate, by a written notification to the Bond Trustee, a specific office location (which may be changed from time to time, upon similar notification) at which the Bond Register is kept.

The Bond Trustee shall be "Bond Registrar" for the purpose of registering Bonds and transfers of Bonds as herein provided. Upon any resignation of any Bond Registrar, the Bond Issuer shall promptly appoint a successor or, if it elects not to make such an appointment, assume the duties of Bond Registrar. Any Person other than the Bond Trustee undertaking to act as Bond Registrar shall first execute a written agreement, in form satisfactory to the Bond Trustee, to perform the duties of a Bond Registrar under this Bond Indenture, which agreement shall be filed with the Bond Trustee.

If a Person other than the Bond Trustee is appointed by the Bond Issuer as Bond Registrar, the Bond Issuer will give the Bond Trustee prompt written notice of the appointment of such Bond Registrar and of the location, and any change in the location, of the Bond Register, and the Bond Trustee shall have

the right to inspect the Bond Register at all reasonable times and to obtain copies thereof, and the Bond Trustee shall have the right to rely upon a certificate executed on behalf of the Bond Registrar by a Responsible Officer thereof as to the names and addresses of the Holders of the Bonds and the principal amounts and number of such Bonds.

Upon surrender for registration of transfer of any Bond at the office or agency of the Bond Issuer to be maintained as provided in Section 3.02, the Bond Issuer shall execute, and the Bond Trustee shall authenticate and the Bondholder shall obtain from the Bond Trustee, in the name of the designated transferee or transferees, one or more new Bonds in any Minimum Denominations, of a like Series and Tranche and aggregate principal amount; provided, however, if any such surrendered Bond shall have become or within 15 days shall be due and payable, instead of issuing a replacement Bond, the Bond Trustee may pay such surrendered Bond when so due and payable without surrender thereof.

At the option of the Holder, Bonds may be exchanged for other Bonds in any Minimum Denominations, of a like Series and Tranche and aggregate principal amount, upon surrender of the Bonds to be exchanged at the designated office of the Bond Registrar or its agent. Whenever any Bonds are so surrendered for exchange, the Bond Issuer shall execute, and the Bond Trustee shall authenticate and the Bondholder shall obtain from the Bond Trustee, the Bonds which the Bondholder making the exchange is entitled to receive.

All Bonds issued upon any registration of transfer or exchange of Bonds shall be the valid obligations of the Bond Issuer, evidencing the same debt, and entitled to the same benefits under this Bond Indenture, as the Bonds surrendered upon such registration of transfer or exchange.

Every Bond presented or surrendered for registration of transfer or exchange shall be duly endorsed by, or be accompanied by (a) a written instrument of transfer in form satisfactory to the Bond Trustee duly executed by the Holder thereof or such Holder's attorney duly authorized in writing, with such signature guaranteed by an institution which is a member of one of the following recognized Signature Guaranty Programs: (i) The Securities Transfer Agent Medallion Program (STAMP); (ii) The New York Stock Exchange Medallion Program (MSP); (iii) The Stock Exchange Medallion Program (SEMP); or (iv) in such other guarantee program acceptable to the Bond Trustee, and (b) such other documents as the Bond Trustee may require.

No service charge shall be made to a Holder for any registration of transfer or exchange of Bonds, but the Bond Issuer may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in connection with any registration of transfer or exchange of Bonds.

The preceding provisions of this Section notwithstanding, the Bond Issuer shall not be required to make and the Bond Registrar need not register transfers or exchanges of any Bond during the period from and including the Record Date for any payment with respect to the Bond to and excluding such payment date.

# Section 2.06. Mutilated, Destroyed, Lost or Stolen Bonds.

If (i) any mutilated Bond is surrendered to the Bond Trustee, or the Bond Trustee receives evidence to its satisfaction of the destruction, loss or theft of any Bond, and (ii) there is delivered to the Bond Trustee such security or indemnity as may be required by it to hold the Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee harmless, then, in the absence of notice to the Bond Issuer, the Bond Registrar or the Bond Trustee that such Bond has been acquired by a protected purchaser, the Bond Issuer shall execute and, upon its request, the Bond Trustee shall authenticate and deliver, in exchange for or in lieu of any such mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Bond, a replacement Bond of like Series, Tranche, tenor and principal

amount, bearing a number not contemporaneously outstanding; provided, however, that if any such destroyed, lost or stolen Bond, but not a mutilated Bond, shall have become or within seven (7) days shall be due and payable, instead of issuing a replacement Bond, the Bond Issuer may pay such destroyed, lost or stolen Bond when so due or payable, without surrender thereof. If, after the delivery of such replacement Bond or payment of a destroyed, lost or stolen Bond pursuant to the proviso to the preceding sentence, a protected purchaser of the original Bond in lieu of which such replacement Bond was issued presents for payment such original Bond, the Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee shall be entitled to recover such replacement Bond (or such payment) from the Person to whom it was delivered or any Person taking such replacement Bond from such Person to whom such replacement Bond was delivered or any assignee of such Person, except a protected purchaser, and shall be entitled to recover upon the security or indemnity provided therefor to the extent of any loss, damage, cost or expense incurred by the Bond Issuer or the Bond Trustee in connection therewith.

Upon the issuance of any replacement Bond under this Section, the Bond Issuer may require the payment by the Holder of such Bond of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in relation thereto and any other reasonable expenses (including the fees and expenses of the Bond Trustee) connected therewith.

Every replacement Bond issued pursuant to this Section in replacement of any mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Bond shall constitute an original additional contractual obligation of the Bond Issuer, whether or not the mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Bond shall be at any time enforceable by anyone, and shall be entitled to all the benefits of this Bond Indenture equally and proportionately with any and all other Bonds duly issued hereunder.

The provisions of this Section are exclusive and shall preclude (to the extent lawful) all other rights and remedies with respect to the replacement or payment of mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Bonds.

### Section 2.07. Persons Deemed Owner.

Prior to due presentment for registration of transfer of any Bond, the Bond Issuer, the Bond Trustee and any agent of the Bond Issuer or the Bond Trustee may treat the Person in whose name any Bond is registered (as of the day of determination) as the owner of such Bond for the purpose of receiving payments of principal of and interest on such Bond and for all other purposes whatsoever, whether or not such Bond be overdue, and neither the Bond Issuer, the Bond Trustee nor any agent of the Bond Issuer or the Bond Trustee shall be affected by notice to the contrary.

Section 2.08. Payment of Principal and Interest; Interest on Overdue Principal; Principal and Interest Rights Preserved.

(a) Any installment of interest or principal payable on any Bond which is punctually paid or duly provided for by the Bond Issuer on the applicable Payment Date shall be paid to the Person in whose name such Bond (or one or more Predecessor Bonds) is registered on the Record Date for such Payment Date, by check mailed first-class, postage prepaid to such Person's address as it appears on the Bond Register on such Record Date; provided, however, that (i) upon application to the Bond Trustee by any Holder owning Bonds of any single Tranche (*i.e.*, not in the aggregate among all such Tranches or Series) in the principal amount of \$10,000,000 or more not later than the applicable Record Date, payment will be made by wire transfer to an account maintained by such Holder and (ii) with respect to Book-Entry Bonds, payments will be made by wire transfer in immediately available funds to the account designated by the Holder of the applicable Bond and as required by the operational rules and procedures of the Clearing Agency unless and until such Bond is exchanged for Definitive Bonds (in which event payments

shall be made as provided above) and except for the final installment of principal payable with respect to such Bond on a Payment Date, which shall be payable as provided below. The funds represented by any such checks returned undelivered shall be held in accordance with Section 3.03.

- The principal of each Bond of each Tranche shall be paid, to the extent funds are available therefor in the Collection Account, in installments on each Payment Date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, installments of principal not paid or redeemed when scheduled to be paid or redeemed in accordance with the Expected Amortization Schedule or Expected Sinking Fund Schedule shall be paid or redeemed upon receipt of money available for such purpose, on the next Payment Date, to the Registered Holder on the applicable Record Date, in the order set forth in the Expected Amortization Schedule or Expected Sinking Fund Schedule, as the case may be, subject to the general priority of payment of principal set forth in Section 2.02(c) and subject to prior redemption as provided in Section 2.02(f). Subject to the provisions below, failure to pay principal or, with respect to Bonds constituting Term Bonds, Redemption Price in accordance with such Expected Amortization Schedule or Expected Sinking Fund Schedule, as the case may be, because money is not available pursuant to Section 8.02 to make such payments shall not constitute an Event of Default under this Bond Indenture; provided, however, that failure to pay the entire unpaid principal amount of the Bonds of a Tranche upon the Final Maturity Date of the Tranche shall constitute an Event of Default, and the entire unpaid principal amount of the Bonds shall be due and payable, if not previously paid, on any other date on which an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, if the Bond Trustee or the Holders of the Bonds representing not less than a majority of the Outstanding Amount of the Bonds have declared the Bonds to be immediately due and payable in the manner provided in Section 5.02. All payments of principal on the Bonds shall be made pro rata to the Holders entitled thereto unless otherwise provided herein with respect to any Tranche. The Bond Trustee shall notify the Person in whose name a Bond is registered at the close of business on the Record Date preceding the Payment Date on which the Bond Issuer expects that the final installment of principal of and interest on such Bond will be paid. Such notice shall be mailed by first class mail, postage prepaid, no later than five (5) days prior to such final Payment Date and shall specify that such final installment will be payable only upon presentation and surrender of such Bond and shall specify the place where such Bond may be presented and surrendered for payment of such installment.
- (c) If the Bond Issuer defaults in a payment of interest on the Bonds when due, the Bond Issuer shall be required to pay such defaulted interest (plus interest on such defaulted interest at the applicable Bond Interest Rate to the extent lawful) to the Persons who are Bondholders on a subsequent special record date, which date shall be at least five (5) Business Days prior to the payment date. The Bond Issuer shall fix or cause to be fixed any such special record date and payment date, and, at least 20 days before any such special record date, the Bond Trustee shall mail to each affected Bondholder, by first class mail, postage prepaid, a notice that states the special record date, the payment date and the amount of defaulted interest (plus interest on such defaulted interest) to be paid.

#### Section 2.09. Cancellation.

All Bonds surrendered for payment, registration of transfer or exchange shall, if surrendered to any Person other than the Bond Trustee, be delivered to the Bond Trustee and shall be promptly cancelled by the Bond Trustee. The Bond Issuer may at any time deliver to the Bond Trustee for cancellation any Bonds previously authenticated and delivered hereunder which the Bond Issuer may have acquired in any manner whatsoever, and all Bonds so delivered shall be promptly cancelled by the Bond Trustee. No Bonds shall be authenticated in lieu of or in exchange for any Bonds cancelled as provided in this Section, except as expressly permitted by this Bond Indenture. All cancelled Bonds may be held or disposed of by the Bond Trustee in accordance with its standard retention or disposal policy as in effect at the time.

# Section 2.10. Authentication and Delivery of Bonds.

On the Issuance Date, the Bonds shall be executed by the Bond Issuer and delivered to the Bond Trustee for authentication and thereupon the same shall be authenticated and delivered by the Bond Trustee upon Issuer Request and upon receipt by the Bond Trustee (or other satisfaction) of the following upon which the Bond Trustee may conclusively rely to the extent permitted to so rely under Article VI hereof:

- Bond Issuer Action; Application of Proceeds of Bonds and Other Moneys. An Issuer (a) Order authorizing and directing the Bond Trustee to authenticate and deliver global Bonds, each to be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, and to confirm its custody of the Bonds to DTC in New York, New York, so that the Bonds may be credited to or upon the order of the Underwriters named in said order for the purchase price specified therein and directing the application of the proceeds thereof, which application shall be solely for the purposes of (i) purchasing Restructuring Property from the Seller, (ii) depositing into the Debt Service Reserve Subaccount cash in an amount equal to the Required Debt Service Reserve Level, and (iii) paying or providing for the payment of Upfront Financing Costs, provided that (A) Upfront Financing Costs may be paid from Bond proceeds directly, as specified in such Issuer Order, and (B) any proceeds not required for Upfront Financings Costs may be used for Ongoing Financing Costs. The Bond Trustee shall establish a temporary segregated trust account in the Bond Trustee's name, apart from the Collateral Account, for the deposit of all or any portion of the proceeds of the Bonds to be applied for the purpose of purchasing Restructuring Property and for the application of such proceeds to such purpose as directed by such Issuer Order. Cash provided by the Authority in an amount equal to the Required Operating Reserve Level shall be deposited in the Operating Reserve Subaccount.
- (b) <u>Authorizations</u>. An Opinion of Counsel that any authorization by, registration with, consent of, or approval by, any governmental agency, board, or commission that is necessary for the execution, delivery and issuance by the Bond Issuer of the Bonds, and the execution and delivery by the Bond Issuer of the Bond Indenture and the other Basic Documents, has been obtained.
- (c) <u>Authorizing Certificate</u>. A certificate of an Authorized Officer of the Bond Issuer certifying that the Bond Issuer has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Bond Indenture and the execution, authentication and delivery of the Bonds.

# (d) Certificates of the Bond Issuer and the Seller.

- (i) An Officer's Certificate from the Bond Issuer, dated as of the Issuance Date:
- (A) to the effect that the Bond Issuer is not in Default under this Bond Indenture and that the issuance of the Bonds applied for will not result in any Default or in any breach of any of the terms, conditions or provisions of or constitute a default under any material indenture, mortgage, deed of trust or other agreement or instrument to which the Bond Issuer is a party or by which it or its property is bound or any order of any court or administrative agency entered in any Proceeding to which the Bond Issuer is a party or by which it or its property may be bound or to which it or its property may be subject that would have a material adverse effect on the Bonds; and that all conditions precedent provided in this Bond Indenture relating to the authentication and delivery of the Bonds have been complied with;
- (B) to the effect that all instruments furnished to the Bond Trustee pursuant to this Bond Indenture conform to the requirements set forth in this Bond Indenture and

constitute all of the documents required to be delivered hereunder for the Bond Trustee to authenticate and deliver the Bonds applied for, and all conditions precedent provided for in this Bond Indenture relating to the authentication and delivery of the Bonds have been complied with;

- (C) to the effect that the Bond Issuer has not assigned any interest or participation in the Collateral except for the Lien of this Bond Indenture and of the LIPA Reform Act; the Bond Issuer has the power and right to Grant the Collateral to the Bond Trustee as security hereunder; and the Bond Issuer, subject to the terms of this Bond Indenture, has Granted to the Bond Trustee all of its right, title and interest in and to such Collateral free and clear of any Lien, mortgage, pledge, charge, security interest, adverse claim or other encumbrance, except the Lien of this Bond Indenture and of the LIPA Reform Act;
- (D) to the effect that the Bond Issuer has appointed a firm of Independent certified public accountants as contemplated in Section 8.06; and
- (E) to the effect that attached thereto are duly executed, true and complete copies of the Sale Agreement and the Servicing Agreement that have not been further amended or supplemented.
- (ii) An Officer's Certificate (as defined in the Sale Agreement) from the Seller, dated as of the Issuance Date, to the effect that (A) the representations and warranties set forth in Article III of the Sale Agreement are true and correct and (B) the attached copy of the Financing Order creating the Restructuring Property and Issuance Advice Letter are true and correct and have not been further amended or supplemented.
- (e) <u>Opinion of Counsel</u>. An Opinion of Counsel, portions of which may be delivered by counsel for the Bond Issuer, by counsel for the Seller and the Servicer, or by other counsel satisfactory to the Bond Trustee, dated the Issuance Date, in each case subject to customary exceptions, qualifications and assumptions contained therein (and upon which the Bond Trustee shall be entitled to rely), to the collective effect that:
  - (i) the Bond Issuer is duly organized and is validly existing as a special purpose corporate municipal instrumentality, constituting a body corporate and politic, political subdivision and public benefit corporation of the State of New York and has the power and authority to execute and deliver this Bond Indenture and the other Basic Documents and to issue the Bonds:
  - (ii) this Bond Indenture has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the Bond Issuer and is a valid and binding agreement of the Bond Issuer, enforceable in accordance with its terms, except as such enforceability may be subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, fraudulent transfer and other laws relating to or affecting the rights of creditors generally, whether theretofore or thereafter enacted, and general principles of equity (regardless of whether such enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law), including that the availability of specific performance or injunctive relief is subject to the discretion of the court before which any such proceeding is brought;
  - (iii) the Bonds have been duly authorized and executed and, when authenticated in accordance with the provisions of the Bond Indenture and delivered against payment of the purchase price therefor, will constitute valid and binding obligations of the Bond Issuer, entitled

to the benefits of the Bond Indenture subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, fraudulent transfer and other laws relating to or affecting the rights of creditors generally, whether theretofore or thereafter enacted, and general principles of equity (regardless of whether such enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law), including that the availability of specific performance or injunctive relief is subject to the discretion of the court before which any such proceeding is brought;

- (iv) (A) by operation of subdivision 2 of Section 7 of the LIPA Reform Act, the provisions of this Bond Indenture create a first priority Statutory Lien on the Collateral in favor of the Bond Trustee for the benefit of the Bondholders, and (B) the Statutory Lien is valid, perfected and enforceable against the Bond Issuer and all third parties without any further public notice;
- (v) the Bonds are exempt from the registration requirements under the Securities Act;
- (vi) the Bond Issuer is not an "investment company" or under the "control" of an "investment company" as such terms are defined under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, or is exempt pursuant to Section 2(b) thereof;
- (vii) the Sale Agreement and the Servicing Agreement are valid and binding agreements of the Bond Issuer, enforceable in accordance with their respective terms, except as such enforceability may be subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, fraudulent transfer and other laws relating to or affecting the rights of creditors generally, whether theretofore or thereafter enacted, and general principles of equity (regardless of whether such enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law) including that the availability of specific performance or injunctive relief is subject to the discretion of the court before which any such proceeding is brought;
- (viii) the sale of the Restructuring Property by the Seller to the Bond Issuer pursuant to the Sale Agreement constitutes an absolute transfer of all of the Authority's right, title and interest (as in a true sale), and not as a pledge or other financing, of the Restructuring Property, other than for federal, state and local income and franchise tax purposes; and
- (ix) (A) the Financing Order has been duly authorized and issued by the Authority in accordance with all applicable State of New York laws, rules and regulations, including the LIPA Reform Act; (B) the Financing Order and the process by which it was issued comply with all applicable State of New York laws, rules and regulations, including the LIPA Reform Act; (C) the Financing Order is in full force and effect and is final and not appealable; (D) as of the issuance of the Bonds, the Bonds are entitled to the protections provided under the LIPA Reform Act and the Financing Order, and the Holders of the Bonds shall be, to the extent permitted by State of New York and federal law and this Bond Indenture, entitled to enforce the protections of the LIPA Reform Act and the Financing Order; and (E) the Servicer is authorized to file True-Up Adjustments to the Charge to the extent necessary to ensure the timely recovery of revenues sufficient to provide for the payment of all principal and interest on the Bonds and all other approved Financing Costs.
- (f) <u>Accountant's Letter</u>. Such letter or letters of a firm of Independent certified public accountants of recognized national reputation as may be required by the Bond Purchase Agreement.

- (g) <u>Reserve Subaccount</u>. The deposit into the Operating Reserve Subaccount of cash in an amount equal to the Required Operating Reserve Level and the deposit into the Debt Service Reserve Subaccount of cash in an amount equal to the Required Debt Service Reserve Level.
- (h) <u>Upfront Financing Costs Subaccount</u>. The deposit into the Upfront Financing Costs Subaccount of cash in an amount equal to the Upfront Financing Costs specified in the Issuance Advice Letter.
- (i) Other Requirements. Such other documents, certificates, agreements, instruments or opinions as may be required by the Bond Issuer in its discretion or as the Bond Trustee may reasonably require.
- (j) <u>Satisfaction of Conditions</u>. Payment of the purchase price for the Bonds by the Underwriters in accordance with the Bond Purchase Agreement shall constitute satisfaction of the conditions set forth in this Section 2.10.

#### Section 2.11. Release of Collateral.

The Bond Trustee shall release property from the Lien of this Bond Indenture only as specified in Section 8.04.

# Section 2.12. Tax Withholding.

Amounts properly withheld under the Code or other tax laws by any Person from a payment to any Holder of interest or principal shall be considered as having been paid by the Bond Issuer to such Holder for all purposes of this Bond Indenture.

## Section 2.13. State Pledge.

Section 9(a) of the LIPA Reform Act (the "State Pledge") provides as follows and, as authorized by Section 9(b) of the LIPA Reform Act, is included in this Bond Indenture as a part hereof:

"The state pledges to and agrees with the holders of restructuring bonds, any assignee, and all financing entities that the state will not in any way take or permit any action that limits, alters or impairs the value of restructuring property or, except as required by the adjustment mechanism described in the restructuring cost financing order, reduce, alter or impair transition charges that are imposed, collected and remitted for the benefit of the owners of restructuring bonds, any assignee, and all financing entities, until any principal, interest and redemption premium in respect of restructuring bonds, all ongoing financing costs and all amounts to be paid to an assignee or financing party under an ancillary agreement are paid or performed in full."

The Bond Issuer hereby acknowledges that the purchase of any Bond by a Holder or the purchase of any beneficial interest in a Bond by any Person and the Bond Trustee's obligations to perform hereunder are made in reliance on such agreement and pledge by the State of New York. The Bond Issuer hereby represents and warrants to the Bond Trustee, for the benefit of the Bondholders, that it constitutes an "assignee" under Section 2 of the LIPA Reform Act and a "restructuring bond issuer" under subdivision 10 of Section 2 of the LIPA Reform Act, that the Bonds constitute "restructuring bonds" under subdivision 3 of Section 2 of the LIPA Reform Act, that the Bonds are entitled to the protections provided in subdivisions 4 and 5 of Section 5 and Section 9 of the LIPA Reform Act, and that the Holder of the Bonds shall be, to the extent permitted by state and federal law and this Bond Indenture, entitled to enforce such sections of the LIPA Reform Act.

# Section 2.14. Security Interest.

The Bond Issuer hereby makes the following representations and warranties. Other than the Lien of this Bond Indenture, the Bond Issuer has not pledged, granted, sold, conveyed or otherwise assigned any interest or security interest in the Collateral. The Lien of this Bond Indenture constitutes a pledge of Restructuring Property and proceeds thereof in accordance with and pursuant to clause (c)(xi) of subdivision 2 of Section 4 of the LIPA Reform Act, subdivision 2 of Section 7 of the LIPA Reform Act and the Financing Order, and is perfected, valid and binding. The proceeds, moneys or revenues so pledged and hereafter received by the Bond Issuer as the owner of Restructuring Property shall immediately be subject to the lien of such pledge, and such lien is perfected, without any physical delivery thereof or further act. The lien of any such pledge is perfected, valid and binding as against all parties having claims of any kind in tort, contract or otherwise against the owner of Restructuring Property irrespective of whether such parties have notice thereof and shall be superior to any judicial liens or other liens obtained by such claimants or transferees. Pursuant to the LIPA Reform Act, no instrument by which such pledge or lien is created need be recorded in order to perfect such pledge or lien. Pursuant to the LIPA Reform Act, the pledge of Restructuring Property is a continuously perfected security interest and has priority over any other lien, created by operation of law or otherwise, that may subsequently attach to that Restructuring Property or proceeds thereof. The Holders, and the Bond Trustee on their behalf, have a perfected security interest in the amount of all Restructuring Property revenues or other proceeds that are deposited in any deposit account or other account of the Servicer or other entity in which Restructuring Property revenues or other proceeds have been commingled with other funds, subject to payments of Excess Remittances from the Collection Account pursuant to Section 3.03(c) of the Servicing Agreement and Section 8.02(e) and releases of Collateral permitted by Section 8.04. Any other security interest that may apply to Restructuring Property revenues or other proceeds shall be terminated when such revenues or proceeds are transferred to the Collection Account for an assignee or a financing party. No application of the adjustment mechanism as described in the LIPA Reform Act, the Financing Order or the Servicing Agreement shall affect the validity, perfection, or priority of a pledge of, security interest in or the sale or transfer of Restructuring Property.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Bond Issuer shall file any initial financing statements, and the Bond Trustee hereby agrees to file any necessary continuation statements, which in the case of Restructuring Property shall be for informational purposes only describing the pledge and referring to the Financing Order and the Restructuring Property described therein under Article 9 of the UCC, as required by subdivision 2 of Section 7 of the LIPA Reform Act.

## Section 2.15. Limitation of Liability for Payments.

All payments or distributions made to Holders of Bonds under this Bond Indenture, of Operating Expenses and of any expenses of the Bond Issuer to be paid or incurred that are not specifically denominated an Operating Expense shall be made only from the Collateral and only to the extent that the Bond Trustee shall have sufficient income or proceeds from the Collateral to make such payments in accordance with the terms of Article VIII of this Bond Indenture. Except as otherwise provided in this Bond Indenture, each Holder of a Bond, by acceptance of such Bond, agrees that it will look solely to the income and proceeds from the Collateral to the extent available for payment and distribution to such Holder as provided in this Bond Indenture.

The Bonds shall not constitute a debt, general obligation or a pledge of the faith and credit or taxing power of the State of New York or of any county, municipality or any other political subdivision, agency or instrumentality of the State of New York, other than the Bond Issuer. The issuance of the Bonds does not obligate the State of New York or any county, municipality or any other political

subdivision, agency or instrumentality of the State of New York to levy any tax or make any appropriation for payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds.

# Section 2.16. Book-Entry and Definitive Bonds.

- (a) The Bonds may be issued in the form of one or more typewritten certificates representing Book-Entry Bonds, to be delivered to The Depository Trust Company, the initial Clearing Agency, by, or on behalf of, the Bond Issuer. In such case, the Bonds delivered to The Depository Trust Company shall initially be registered on the Bond Register in the name of Cede & Co., the nominee of the initial Clearing Agency, and no Bondholder will receive a definitive Bond representing such Bondholder's interest in the Bonds, except as provided in Section 2.16(f). Unless and until definitive, fully registered Bonds ("Definitive Bonds") have been issued pursuant to Section 2.16(f):
  - (i) the provisions of this Section 2.16(a) shall be in full force and effect with respect to the Bonds;
  - (ii) the Bond Issuer, the Paying Agent, the Bond Registrar and the Bond Trustee may deal with the Clearing Agency for all purposes (including without limitation the making of payments and distributions on the Bonds and giving notices of redemption) as the authorized representative of the Bondholders and in accordance with the Clearing Agency's rules and procedures;
  - (iii) to the extent that the provisions of this Section 2.16 conflict with any other provisions of this Bond Indenture, the provisions of this Section 2.16 shall control;
  - (iv) the rights of Bondholders shall be exercised only through the Clearing Agency and shall be limited to those established by law and agreements between such Bondholders and the Clearing Agency Participants; and until Definitive Bonds are issued pursuant to Section 2.16(e), the Clearing Agency will make book-entry transfers among the Clearing Agency Participants and receive and transmit payments and distributions of principal of and interest on the Bonds to such Clearing Agency Participants; and
  - (v) whenever this Bond Indenture requires or permits actions to be taken based upon instructions or directions of Bondholders holding Bonds representing a specified percentage of the aggregate Outstanding Amount of Bonds, the Clearing Agency shall be deemed to represent such percentage only to the extent that it has received instructions to such effect from Bondholders or Clearing Agency Participants owning or representing, respectively, Bonds representing such percentage of the aggregate Outstanding Amount of Bonds, and has delivered such instructions to the Bond Trustee; the Bond Trustee shall have no obligation to determine whether the Clearing Agency has in fact received any such instructions.
- (b) Whenever notice or other communication to the Holders of Bonds issued in the form of Book-Entry Bonds is required under this Bond Indenture, unless and until Definitive Bonds shall have been issued pursuant to Section 2.16(e), the Bond Trustee shall give all such notices and communications specified herein to be given to Holders of Bonds to the Clearing Agency.
- (c) Except in the case of payment upon maturity or redemption if the book-entry system is not in effect, any provision of this Bond Indenture permitting or requiring the delivery of Bonds shall, while the book-entry system is in effect, be satisfied by the notation on the books of the Clearing Agency, of the transfer of the beneficial owner's interest in such Bond.

- (d) With respect to Bonds registered in the name of a Clearing Agency (or its nominee) neither the Bond Trustee nor the Bond Issuer shall have any obligation to any of its members or participants or to any Person on behalf of whom an interest is held in the Bonds.
- (e) So long as the book-entry system is in effect, the Bond Trustee and Paying Agents shall comply with the terms of all agreements with and operational requirements of DTC.
- If (i) a Clearing Agency advises the Bond Trustee in writing that a Clearing Agency is no longer willing or able to properly discharge its responsibilities with respect to the Bonds, and the Bond Trustee or the Bond Issuer is unable to locate a qualified successor, (ii) the Bond Issuer at its option advises the Bond Trustee in writing that it elects to terminate the book-entry system through a Clearing Agency with respect to the Bonds, subject to applicable policies of such Clearing Agency, or (iii) after the occurrence of an Event of Default, Bondholders representing beneficial interests aggregating at least a majority of the Outstanding Amount of the Bonds advise the Clearing Agency and the Bond Trustee in writing that the continuation of a book-entry system through the Clearing Agency is no longer in the best interests of the Bondholders, then the Clearing Agency shall notify all Bondholders and the Bond Trustee of the occurrence of any such event and of the availability of Definitive Bonds to Bondholders requesting the same. Upon surrender to the Bond Trustee of the typewritten certificate or certificates representing the Book-Entry Bonds by the Clearing Agency, accompanied by registration instructions, and upon written direction by the Bond Issuer and delivery to the Bond Trustee by the Bond Issuer of executed Definitive Bonds, the Bond Trustee shall authenticate such Definitive Bonds in accordance with the instructions of the Clearing Agency. None of the Bond Issuer, the Bond Registrar or the Bond Trustee shall be liable for any delay in delivery of such instructions and may conclusively rely on, and shall be fully protected in relying on, such instructions. Upon the issuance of Definitive Bonds, the Bond Trustee shall recognize the Holders of the Definitive Bonds as Bondholders.

# Section 2.17. Reservation of Right to Issue Additional Bonds.

To the extent permitted by the laws of the State of New York, additional bonds, notes or other obligations may be issued or incurred by the Bond Issuer for any purpose and secured as provided by such laws of the State of New York, other than by the Collateral, provided that the Rating Agency Condition shall have been satisfied.

### ARTICLE III

Covenants

Section 3.01. Payment of Principal and Interest.

The Bond Issuer will duly and punctually pay the principal of and redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds in accordance with the terms of the Bonds and this Bond Indenture.

Section 3.02. Maintenance of Agent for Registration of Exchanges and Transfers.

The Bond Issuer hereby appoints the Bond Trustee as its agent to receive all Bonds that are surrendered for registration of transfer or exchange. Such surrenders shall be received at the Corporate Trust Office of the Bond Trustee.

Section 3.03. Money for Payments To Be Held in Trust.

As provided in Section 8.02(a), all payments of amounts due and payable with respect to any Bonds that are to be made from amounts withdrawn from the Collection Account pursuant to

Section 8.02(e) shall be made on behalf of the Bond Issuer by the Bond Trustee or by another Paying Agent, and no amounts so withdrawn from the Collection Account for payments of Bonds shall be paid over to the Bond Issuer except as provided in this Section 3.03 and Section 8.02.

The Bond Issuer will cause each Paying Agent other than the Bond Trustee to execute and deliver to the Bond Trustee an instrument in which such Paying Agent shall agree with the Bond Trustee (and if the Bond Trustee acts as Paying Agent, it hereby so agrees), subject to the provisions of this Section, that such Paying Agent will:

- (a) hold all sums held by it for the payment of amounts due with respect to the Bonds in trust for the benefit of the Persons entitled thereto until such sums shall be paid to such Persons or otherwise disposed of as herein provided and pay such sums to such Persons as herein provided;
- (b) give the Bond Trustee notice of any Default by the Bond Issuer of which it has actual knowledge in the making of any payment required to be made with respect to the Bonds;
- (c) at any time during the continuance of any such Default, upon the written request of the Bond Trustee, forthwith pay to the Bond Trustee all sums so held in trust by such Paying Agent;
- (d) immediately resign as a Paying Agent and forthwith pay to the Bond Trustee all sums held by it in trust for the payment of Bonds if at any time it ceases to meet the standards required to be met by a Paying Agent at the time of its appointment; and
- (e) comply with all requirements of the Code with respect to the withholding from any payments made by it on any Bonds of any applicable withholding taxes imposed thereon and with respect to any applicable reporting requirements in connection therewith.

The Bond Issuer may at any time, for the purpose of obtaining the satisfaction and discharge of this Bond Indenture or for any other purpose, by Issuer Order direct any Paying Agent to pay to the Bond Trustee all sums held in trust by such Paying Agent, such sums to be held by the Bond Trustee upon the same trusts as those upon which the sums were held by such Paying Agent; and upon such payment by any Paying Agent to the Bond Trustee, such Paying Agent shall be released from all further liability with respect to such money.

Subject to applicable laws with respect to escheat of funds, any money held by the Bond Trustee or any Paying Agent in trust for the payment of any amount due with respect to the principal of or interest on any Bond and remaining unclaimed for two (2) years after such amount has become due and payable shall be discharged from such trust and be paid to the Bond Issuer on Issuer Request and, subject to Section 11.16, the Holder of such Bond shall thereafter, as an unsecured general creditor, look only to the Bond Issuer for payment thereof (but only to the extent of the amounts so paid to the Bond Issuer and forming a part of the Collateral), and all liability of the Bond Trustee or such Paying Agent with respect to such trust money shall thereupon cease; provided, however, that the Bond Trustee or such Paying Agent, before being required to make any such repayment, may at the expense of the Bond Issuer cause to be published once, in a newspaper published in the English language, customarily published on each Business Day and of general circulation in The City of New York, notice that such money remains unclaimed and that, after a date specified therein, which shall not be less than 30 days from the date of such publication, any unclaimed balance of such money then remaining will be repaid to the Bond Issuer. The Bond Trustee may also adopt and employ, at the expense of the Bond Issuer, any other reasonable means of notification of such repayment (including mailing notice of such repayment to Holders whose right to or interest in moneys due and payable but not claimed is determinable from the records of the Bond Trustee or of any Paying Agent, at the last address of record for each such Holder).

### Section 3.04. Protection of Collateral.

The Bond Issuer will from time to time execute and deliver all such supplements and amendments hereto and except to the extent required to be made by the Seller or Servicer, make all such filings pursuant to the LIPA Reform Act or the Financing Order, instruments of further assurance and other instruments, and will take such other action necessary or advisable to:

- (a) maintain or preserve the Lien and security interest (and the priority thereof) of this Bond Indenture or carry out more effectively the purposes hereof;
- (b) perfect, publish notice of or protect the validity of any Grant made or to be made by this Bond Indenture;
  - (c) enforce any of the Collateral;
- (d) preserve and defend title to the Collateral and the rights of the Bond Trustee and the Bondholders in such Collateral against the claims of all Persons and parties, including without limitation the challenge by any party to the validity or enforceability of the Financing Order, any Adjustment Notice or the Restructuring Property or any proceeding relating thereto and institute any action or proceeding necessary to compel performance by the PACB or the State of New York of any of its obligations or duties under the LIPA Reform Act, the Financing Order or any Adjustment Notice; or
  - (e) pay any and all taxes levied or assessed against all or any part of the Collateral.

The Bond Issuer hereby designates the Bond Trustee its agent and attorney-in-fact with authorization to execute and/or file on behalf of the Bond Issuer, except to the extent required to be filed or furnished by the Seller or Servicer, any filings pursuant to the Financing Order or other instrument required by the Bond Trustee pursuant to this Section, it being understood that the Bond Trustee shall have no such obligation.

# Section 3.05. Performance of Obligations; Servicing; Certain Filings.

The Bond Issuer (i) will diligently pursue any and all actions to enforce its rights under each instrument or agreement included in the Collateral and (ii) will not take any action and will use its reasonable efforts not to permit any action to be taken by others that would release any Person from any of such Person's covenants or obligations under any such instrument or agreement or that would result in the amendment, hypothecation, subordination, termination or discharge of, or impair the validity or effectiveness of, any such instrument or agreement, except, in each case, as expressly permitted in this Bond Indenture, the Sale Agreement, the Servicing Agreement or such other instrument or agreement.

- (a) The Bond Issuer may contract with other Persons to assist it in performing its duties under this Bond Indenture, and any performance of such duties by a Person identified to the Bond Trustee in an Officer's Certificate of the Bond Issuer shall be deemed to be action taken by the Bond Issuer. Initially, the Bond Issuer has contracted with the Administrator and the Servicer to assist the Bond Issuer in performing its duties under this Bond Indenture.
- (b) The Bond Issuer will punctually perform and observe all of its obligations and agreements contained in this Bond Indenture, in the Basic Documents and in the instruments and agreements included in the Collateral, including filing or causing to be filed all filings pursuant to the LIPA Reform Act or the Financing Order required to be filed by it by the terms of this Bond Indenture, the Sale Agreement and the Servicing Agreement in accordance with and within the time periods

provided for herein and therein. Except as otherwise expressly permitted therein, the Bond Issuer shall not waive, amend, modify, supplement or terminate any Basic Document or any provision thereof without the written consent of the Bond Trustee (which consent shall not be withheld if (i) the Bond Trustee shall have received an Officer's Certificate stating that such waiver, amendment, modification, supplement or termination shall not adversely affect in any material respect the interests of the Bondholders and (ii) the Rating Agency Condition shall have been satisfied with respect thereto) or the Holders of at least a majority of the Outstanding Amount of Bonds.

- (c) If the Bond Issuer shall have knowledge of the occurrence of a Servicer Default under the Servicing Agreement, the Bond Issuer shall promptly give written notice thereof to the Bond Trustee and the Rating Agencies, and shall specify in such notice the action, if any, the Bond Issuer is taking with respect of such default. If a Servicer Default shall arise from the failure of the Servicer to perform any of its duties or obligations under the Servicing Agreement with respect to the Restructuring Property, including the Charge, the Bond Issuer shall take all reasonable steps available to it to remedy such failure.
- (d) As promptly as possible after the giving of notice to the Servicer and the Bond Trustee of termination of the Servicer's rights and powers pursuant to Section 6.01 of the Servicing Agreement, the Bond Issuer, subject to certain conditions set forth in the Servicing Agreement, shall appoint a successor Servicer (the "Successor Servicer") with the Bond Trustee's prior written consent thereto (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld and shall be given upon the written direction of Holders of not less than a majority of the Outstanding Amount of the Bonds), and such Successor Servicer shall accept its appointment by a written assumption in a form acceptable to the Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee. If within 30 days after the delivery of the notice referred to above, the Bond Issuer shall not have obtained such a new Servicer, the Bond Trustee, at the expense of the Bond Issuer, may petition a court of competent jurisdiction to appoint a Successor Servicer. In connection with any such appointment, the Bond Issuer may make such arrangements for the compensation of such successor as it and such successor shall agree, subject to the limitations set forth below and in the Servicing Agreement, and in accordance and in compliance with Section 6.04 of the Servicing Agreement, the Bond Issuer shall enter into an agreement with such successor for the servicing of the Restructuring Property (such agreement to be in form and substance satisfactory to the Bond Trustee).
- (e) Upon any termination of the Servicer's rights and powers pursuant to the Servicing Agreement, the Bond Trustee shall promptly notify the Bond Issuer, the Bondholders and the Rating Agencies. As soon as a Successor Servicer is appointed, the Bond Issuer shall notify the Bond Trustee, the Bondholders and the Rating Agencies of such appointment, specifying in such notice the name and address of such Successor Servicer.
- Trustee under this Bond Indenture or the rights of the Bond Trustee hereunder, the Bond Issuer agrees that it will not, without the prior written consent of the Bond Trustee or the Holders of at least a majority in Outstanding Amount of the Bonds, amend, modify, waive, supplement, terminate or surrender, or agree to any amendment, modification, supplement, termination, waiver or surrender of, the terms of any Collateral or the Basic Documents, or waive timely performance or observance of any material term by the Seller or the Servicer under the Sale Agreement or the Servicing Agreement, respectively; provided, however, that no such consent of the Bond Trustee or the Holders shall be required with respect to any agreements between the Servicer and others for the performance of duties under the Servicing Agreement as then in effect or for any amendment of the Servicing Agreement permitted by Section 7.01(c) thereof including, upon satisfaction of the Rating Agency Condition, to accommodate the issuance of bonds, notes or other obligations pursuant to Section 2.17. If any such amendment, modification, supplement or waiver shall be so consented to by the Bond Trustee or such Holders, the Bond Issuer agrees to execute and deliver, in its own name and at its own expense, such agreements, instruments, consents and other

documents as shall be necessary or appropriate in the circumstances. The Bond Issuer agrees that no such amendment, modification, supplement or waiver shall adversely affect the rights of the Holders of the Bonds Outstanding at the time of any such amendment, modification, supplement or waiver, except as otherwise agreed to by the Holders in accordance with the Basic Documents.

Section 3.06. Negative Covenants.

So long as any Bonds are Outstanding, the Bond Issuer shall not:

- (a) except as expressly permitted by this Bond Indenture, sell, transfer, exchange or otherwise Grant or dispose of any of, or assign any interest in, the Collateral, unless directed to do so by the Bond Trustee in accordance with Article V;
- (b) claim any credit on, or make any deduction from the principal or interest payable in respect of, the Bonds (other than amounts properly withheld from such payments under the Code or other tax law) or assert any claim against any present or former Bondholder by reason of the payment of the taxes levied or assessed upon any part of the Collateral;
- (c) voluntarily consent to the termination of its existence or its dissolution or liquidation in whole or in part;
- (d) (i) permit the validity or effectiveness of this Bond Indenture to be impaired, or permit the Lien of this Bond Indenture to be amended, hypothecated, subordinated, terminated or discharged, or permit any Person to be released from any covenants or obligations with respect to the Bonds under this Bond Indenture except as may be expressly permitted hereby, (ii) permit any Lien, charge, excise, claim, security interest, mortgage or other encumbrance (other than the Lien of this Bond Indenture and the Statutory Lien) to be created by the Bond Issuer on or extend to or otherwise arise upon or burden the Collateral or any part thereof or any interest therein or the proceeds thereof or (iii) subject to the Statutory Lien, permit the Lien of this Bond Indenture not to constitute a valid first priority security interest in the Collateral; or
- (e) take any action which is subject to a Rating Agency Condition without satisfying the Rating Agency Condition.

Section 3.07. Servicer's Obligations.

The Bond Issuer shall enforce the Servicer's compliance with all of the Servicer's obligations under the Servicing Agreement to the extent material to the payment and security of the Bonds.

Section 3.08. No Borrowing.

The Bond Issuer shall not issue, incur, assume, guarantee or otherwise become liable, directly or indirectly, for any indebtedness except for the Bonds, except pursuant to Section 2.17.

Section 3.09. No Additional Bonds.

The Bond Issuer shall not issue any additional Bonds hereunder, except pursuant to Section 2.05 or 2.06. Additional bonds, notes or other obligations may be issued or incurred by the Bond Issuer secured other than by the Collateral, subject to the limitations set forth in Section 2.17.

### Section 3.10. Guarantees, Loans, Advances and Other Liabilities.

Except as otherwise contemplated by the Sale Agreement, the Servicing Agreement or this Bond Indenture, the Bond Issuer shall not make any loan or advance or credit to, or guarantee (directly or indirectly or by an instrument having the effect of assuring another's payment or performance on any obligation or capability of so doing or otherwise), endorse or otherwise become contingently liable, directly or indirectly, in connection with the obligations, stocks or dividends of, or own, purchase, repurchase or acquire (or agree contingently to do so) any stock, obligations, assets or securities of, or any other interest in, or make any capital contribution to, any other Person.

# Section 3.11. Capital Expenditures.

Other than expenditures in connection with the Bond Issuer's purchase of Restructuring Property from the Seller, the Bond Issuer shall not make any expenditure (by long-term or operating lease or otherwise) for capital assets (either realty or personalty).

#### Section 3.12. Notice of Events of Default.

The Bond Issuer agrees to give the Bond Trustee and the Rating Agencies prompt written notice of each Event of Default hereunder as provided in Section 5.01, or waiver thereof and each default on the part of the Servicer of its obligations under the Sale Agreement or the Servicing Agreement, respectively, materially and adversely affecting the Bonds.

### Section 3.13. Further Instruments and Acts.

Upon request of the Bond Trustee, the Bond Issuer will execute and deliver such further instruments and do such further acts as may be reasonably necessary or proper to carry out more effectively the purpose of this Bond Indenture and maintain a first priority perfected security interest in the Collateral in favor of the Bond Trustee.

### Section 3.14. Tax Covenants.

The Bond Issuer covenants that it shall comply with the applicable provisions of the Code relating to the exclusion of the interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal income taxation purposes. In furtherance of the foregoing covenant:

(i) The Bond Issuer shall not take or cause to be taken, or permit to be taken, any action or actions with respect to the application and investment of any proceeds of the Bonds or any other funds from whatever source derived which would cause any Bonds to be "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code or "private activity bonds" within the meaning of Section 141 of the Code. The Bond Issuer covenants not to consent to any amendment to, or waive performance of, any covenant of the Authority or the Servicer relating to the use, ownership or management of the projects or any portion thereof financed or refinanced by the Bonds in the tax agreements or certificates entered into by the Authority and the Servicer in connection with the Bonds unless the Bond Issuer has received an Opinion of Counsel from a nationally recognized bond counsel to the effect that such amendment or waiver would not, by itself, cause any Bonds to be "private activity bonds" within the meaning of Section 141 of the Code or otherwise cause interest on the Bonds to be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes.

(ii) The Bond Issuer shall comply with the tax agreements executed and delivered by it and the letter of instructions, if any, delivered by bond counsel, in connection with the issuance of the Bonds as to compliance with applicable provisions of the Code, as such tax covenants and agreements and letter may be amended from time to time, as a source of guidance for achieving compliance with the Code, including, without limitation, timely payments of all rebate or other amounts to the United States Department of the Treasury under Section 148 of the Code.

Notwithstanding anything else in this Bond Indenture to the contrary, including without limitation Article IV, the covenants of this Section 3.14 shall survive the payment or defeasance of the Bonds.

#### ARTICLE IV

Satisfaction and Discharge; Defeasance

Section 4.01. Satisfaction and Discharge of Bond Indenture; Defeasance.

(a) This Bond Indenture shall cease to be of further effect with respect to the Bonds and the Bond Trustee, on reasonable written demand of and at the expense of the Bond Issuer, shall execute such instruments as the Bond Issuer reasonably requests acknowledging satisfaction and discharge of this Bond Indenture with respect to the Bonds, when

#### (i) either

- (A) all Bonds theretofore authenticated and delivered (other than (1) Bonds that have been mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen and that have been replaced or paid as provided in Section 2.06 and (2) Bonds for whose payment money has theretofore been deposited in trust or segregated and held in trust by the Bond Issuer and thereafter repaid to the Bond Issuer or discharged from such trust, as provided in Section 3.03) have been delivered to the Bond Trustee for cancellation; or
- (B) the final Payment Date has occurred with respect to all Bonds not theretofore delivered to the Bond Trustee for cancellation and the Bond Issuer has irrevocably deposited or caused to be irrevocably deposited with the Bond Trustee, in trust for such purpose, cash in an amount sufficient to pay and discharge the entire indebtedness on such Bonds not theretofore delivered to the Bond Trustee for cancellation on the final Payment Date therefor;
- (ii) the Bond Issuer has paid or caused to be paid all other sums payable hereunder by the Bond Issuer; and
- (iii) the Bond Issuer has delivered to the Bond Trustee an Officer's Certificate, an Opinion of Counsel and (if required by the Bond Trustee) an Independent Certificate from a firm of certified public accountants, each stating that all conditions precedent herein provided for relating to the satisfaction and discharge of this Bond Indenture with respect to the Bonds have been complied with.
- (b) Notwithstanding Section 4.01(a), but subject to Sections 4.01(c) and 4.02, the Bond Issuer at any time may terminate all its obligations under this Bond Indenture with respect to the Bonds (a "Legal Defeasance"). In the event of a Legal Defeasance, the maturity of the Bonds defeased pursuant to such Legal Defeasance may not be accelerated because of an Event of Default.

Upon satisfaction of the conditions set forth herein to a Legal Defeasance, the Bond Trustee, on reasonable written demand of and at the expense of the Bond Issuer, shall execute such instruments as the Bond Issuer reasonably requests acknowledging satisfaction and discharge of the obligations that are terminated pursuant to such exercise.

(c) Notwithstanding Sections 4.01(a) and 4.01(b) above, (i) rights of registration of transfer and exchange, (ii) substitution of mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Bonds, (iii) rights of Bondholders to receive payments of principal and interest, (iv) Sections 4.03 and 4.04, (v) the rights, obligations and immunities of the Bond Trustee hereunder (including the rights of the Bond Trustee under Section 6.07 and the obligations of the Bond Trustee under Section 4.03) and (vi) the rights of Bondholders as beneficiaries hereof with respect to the property deposited with the Bond Trustee payable to all or any of them, shall survive until the Bonds, as to which this Bond Indenture or certain obligations hereunder have been satisfied and discharged pursuant to Section 4.01(a) or 4.01(b), have been paid in full. Thereafter, the obligations in Sections 4.04 and 6.07 shall survive.

#### Section 4.02. Conditions to Defeasance.

The Bond Issuer may exercise a Legal Defeasance of Bonds only if:

- (a) the Bond Issuer irrevocably deposits or causes to be irrevocably deposited in trust with the Bond Trustee cash or non-callable Defeasance Securities for the payment of principal or Redemption Price of and interest on each such Serial Bond to the Scheduled Maturity Date (or, if applicable, at the election of the Bond Issuer, any earlier optional redemption date) and Term Bond to the Scheduled Sinking Fund Redemption Date (or, if applicable, any earlier optional redemption date), or with respect to the Bonds of any Tranche subject to optional redemption pursuant to Section 2.02(f), cash or non-callable Defeasance Securities for the payment of principal or Redemption Price of and interest on each such Serial Bond to the Redemption Date set forth in the written notice provided by the Bond Issuer pursuant to Section 10.03;
- (b) the Bond Issuer delivers to the Bond Trustee a certificate from a nationally recognized firm of Independent certified public accountants expressing its opinion that the payments of principal and interest when due and without reinvestment on the deposited Defeasance Securities plus any deposited cash without investment will provide cash at such times and in such amounts (but not substantially more than such amounts) as will be sufficient to pay in respect of the Bonds (i) principal on the Scheduled Maturity Date in accordance with the Expected Amortization Schedule therefor (or, if applicable, at the election of the Bond Issuer, any earlier optional redemption date) or Redemption Price on the Scheduled Sinking Fund Redemption Date in accordance with the Expected Sinking Fund Schedule therefor (or, if applicable, at the election of the Bond Issuer, any earlier optional redemption date), as applicable, and (ii) interest when due;
- (c) if an election is made to redeem any such Bonds prior to maturity, the Bond Issuer irrevocably designates such Bonds for redemption on the redemption date and proper notice of redemption shall have been made or provision satisfactory to the Bond Trustee shall have been irrevocably made for the giving of such notice;
- (d) no Default has occurred and is continuing on the day of such deposit and after giving effect thereto;
- (e) the Bond Issuer shall have delivered to the Bond Trustee an Opinion of Counsel stating that the Holders of such Bonds will not recognize income, gain or loss for federal or New York income tax purposes as a result of such legal defeasance and will be subject to federal or New York income tax on

the same amounts, in the same manner and at the same times as would have been the case if such legal defeasance had not occurred; and

(f) the Bond Issuer delivers to the Bond Trustee an Officer's Certificate and an Opinion of Counsel, each stating that all conditions precedent to the satisfaction and discharge of the Bonds to the extent contemplated by this Article IV have been complied with.

# Section 4.03. Application of Trust Money.

All moneys or Defeasance Securities deposited with the Bond Trustee pursuant to Section 4.01 or 4.02 hereof shall be held in trust and applied by it, in accordance with the provisions of the Bonds and this Bond Indenture, to the payment, either directly or through any Paying Agent, as the Bond Trustee may determine, to the Holders of the particular Bonds for the payment of which such moneys or Defeasance Securities have been deposited with the Bond Trustee, of all sums due and to become due thereon for principal and interest, but such moneys need not be segregated from other funds except to the extent required herein or in the Servicing Agreement or required by law. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Article IV, the Bond Trustee shall deliver or pay to the Bond Issuer from time to time upon Issuer Request any money or Defeasance Securities held by it pursuant to Section 4.02 which, in the opinion of a nationally recognized firm of Independent certified public accountants expressed in a written certification thereof delivered to the Bond Trustee (and not at the cost or expense of the Bond Trustee), are in excess of the amount thereof which would be required to be deposited for the purpose for which such moneys or Defeasance Securities were deposited.

## Section 4.04. Repayment of Moneys Held by Paving Agent.

In connection with the satisfaction and discharge of this Bond Indenture or a Legal Defeasance with respect to the Bonds, all moneys then held by any Paying Agent other than the Bond Trustee under the provisions of this Bond Indenture with respect to such Bonds shall, upon demand of the Bond Issuer, be paid to the Bond Trustee to be held and applied according to Section 3.03 and thereupon such Paying Agent shall be released from all further liability with respect to such moneys.

# ARTICLE V Remedies

# Section 5.01. Events of Default.

"Event of Default", wherever used herein, means any one of the following events (whatever the reason for such Event of Default and whether it shall be voluntary or involuntary or be effected by operation of law or pursuant to any judgment, decree or order of any court or any order, rule or regulation of any administrative or governmental body):

- (a) default in the payment of any interest or redemption premium on any Bond when the same becomes due and payable, and such default shall continue for a period of five (5) Business Days; or
- (b) default in the payment of the then unpaid principal of any Bond of any Tranche on the Final Maturity Date of such Tranche; or
- (c) default in the observance or performance in any material respect of any covenant or agreement of the Bond Issuer made in this Bond Indenture (other than a covenant or agreement, a default in the observance or performance of which is elsewhere in this Section specifically dealt with), or any representation or warranty of the Bond Issuer made in this Bond Indenture or in any certificate or other

writing delivered pursuant hereto or in connection herewith proving to have been incorrect in any material respect as of the time when the same shall have been made, and such default shall continue or not be cured, or the circumstance or condition in respect of which such misrepresentation or warranty was incorrect shall not have been eliminated or otherwise cured, for a period of thirty (30) days after the earlier of (i) the date that there shall have been given, by registered or certified mail, to the Bond Issuer by the Bond Trustee or to the Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee by the Holders of at least twenty-five percent (25%) of the Outstanding Amount of the Bonds, a written notice specifying such default or incorrect representation or warranty and requiring it to be remedied and stating that such notice is a "Notice of Default" hereunder or (ii) the date the Bond Issuer has actual knowledge of the default; or

- (d) the filing of a decree or order for relief by a court having jurisdiction in the premises in respect of the Bond Issuer or any substantial part of the Collateral in an involuntary case under any applicable federal or state bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar law now or hereafter in effect, or appointing a receiver, liquidator, assignee, custodian, trustee, sequestrator or similar official of the Bond Issuer or for any substantial part of the Collateral, or ordering the winding-up or liquidation of the Bond Issuer's affairs, and such decree or order shall remain unstayed and in effect for a period of ninety (90) consecutive days; or
- (e) the commencement by the Bond Issuer of a voluntary case or proceeding under any applicable federal or state bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar law now or hereafter in effect, or the consent by the Bond Issuer to the entry of an order for relief in an involuntary case or proceeding under any such law, or the consent by the Bond Issuer to the appointment or taking possession by a receiver, liquidator, assignee, custodian, trustee, sequestrator or similar official of the Bond Issuer or for any substantial part of the Collateral, or the making by the Bond Issuer of any general assignment for the benefit of creditors, or the failure by the Bond Issuer generally to pay its debts as such debts become due, or the taking of action by the Bond Issuer in furtherance of any of the foregoing; or
- (f) any act or failure to act by the State of New York or any of its agencies (including the Authority), officers or employees which violates or is not in accordance with the Financing Order or the State Pledge.

The Bond Issuer shall deliver to a Responsible Officer of the Bond Trustee and the Rating Agencies, within five (5) days after an Authorized Officer has knowledge of the occurrence thereof, written notice in the form of an Officer's Certificate of any event (i) which is an Event of Default under clause (a), (b), (d), (e) or (f) or (ii) which with the giving of notice, the lapse of time, or both would become an Event of Default under clause (b) or (c), including, in each case, the status of such Default or Event of Default and what action the Bond Issuer is taking or proposes to take with respect thereto.

# Section 5.02. Acceleration of Maturity; Rescission and Annulment.

If an Event of Default should occur and be continuing, then and in every such case the Bond Trustee or the Holders of Bonds representing not less than a majority of the Outstanding Amount of the Bonds may declare all the Bonds to be immediately due and payable, by a notice in writing to the Bond Issuer (and to the Bond Trustee if given by Bondholders), and upon any such declaration the unpaid principal amount of the Bonds, together with accrued and unpaid interest thereon through the date of acceleration, shall become immediately due and payable.

At any time after such declaration of acceleration of maturity has been made and before a judgment or decree for payment of the money due has been obtained by the Bond Trustee as hereinafter in this Article V provided, the Holders of Bonds representing a majority of the Outstanding Amount of the

Bonds, by written notice to the Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee, may rescind and annul such declaration and its consequences if

- (a) the Bond Issuer has paid or deposited with the Bond Trustee a sum sufficient to pay:
- (i) all sums paid or advanced by the Bond Trustee hereunder and the reasonable compensation, expenses, disbursements and advances of the Bond Trustee and its agents and counsel; and
- (ii) all payments of principal of and interest on all Bonds and all other amounts that would then be due hereunder or upon such Bonds if the Event of Default giving rise to such acceleration had not occurred; and
- (b) all Events of Default, other than the nonpayment of the principal of the Bonds that has become due solely by such acceleration, have been cured or waived as provided in Section 5.12.

No such rescission shall affect any subsequent Default or impair any right consequent thereto.

Section 5.03. Collection of Indebtedness and Suits for Enforcement by Bond Trustee.

- (a) The Bond Issuer covenants that if (i) default is made in the payment of any interest on any Bond when the same becomes due and payable, and such default continues for a period of five (5) days or (ii) default is made in the payment of the then unpaid principal of any Bond on the Final Maturity Date for such Bond, the Bond Issuer will, upon demand of the Bond Trustee, pay to it, for the benefit of the Holders of the Bonds, the whole amount then due and payable on such Bonds for principal and interest, with interest upon the overdue principal and, to the extent payment at such rate of interest shall be legally enforceable, upon overdue installments of interest, at the respective rate borne by the Bonds of the applicable Tranche and in addition thereto such further amount as shall be sufficient to cover the costs and expenses of collection, including the reasonable compensation, expenses, disbursements and advances of the Bond Trustee and its agents and counsel.
- (b) Subject to Sections 11.10 and 11.11, in case the Bond Issuer shall fail forthwith to pay such amounts upon such demand, the Bond Trustee, in its own name and as trustee of an express trust, may institute a Proceeding for the collection of the sums so due and unpaid, and may prosecute such Proceeding to judgment or final decree, and may enforce the same against the Bond Issuer or other obligor upon such Bonds and collect in the manner provided by law out of the property of the Bond Issuer or other obligor upon such Bonds, wherever situated, the moneys adjudged or decreed to be payable.
- (c) If an Event of Default occurs and is continuing, the Bond Trustee may, as more particularly provided in Section 5.04, in its discretion, proceed to protect and enforce its rights and the rights of the Bondholders, by such appropriate Proceedings as the Bond Trustee shall deem most effective to protect and enforce any such rights, whether for the specific enforcement of any covenant or agreement in this Bond Indenture or in aid of the exercise of any power granted herein, or to enforce any other proper remedy or legal or equitable right vested in the Bond Trustee by this Bond Indenture or by law.
- (d) In case there shall be pending, relative to the Bond Issuer or any other obligor upon the Bonds or any Person having or claiming an ownership interest in the Collateral, Proceedings under any applicable federal or state bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar law, or in case a receiver, assignee or trustee in bankruptcy or reorganization, liquidator, sequestrator or similar official shall have been appointed for or taken possession of the Bond Issuer or its property or such other obligor or Person, or in case of any other comparable judicial Proceedings relative to the Bond Issuer or other obligor upon the

Bonds, or to the creditors or property of the Bond Issuer or such other obligor, the Bond Trustee, irrespective of whether the principal of any Bonds shall then be due and payable as therein expressed or by declaration or otherwise and irrespective of whether the Bond Trustee shall have made any demand pursuant to the provisions of this Section, shall be entitled and empowered, by intervention in such Proceedings or otherwise:

- (i) to file and prove a claim or claims for the whole amount of principal and interest owing and unpaid in respect of the Bonds and to file such other papers or documents as may be necessary or advisable in order to have the claims of (A) the Bond Trustee (including any claim for reasonable compensation to the Bond Trustee and each predecessor Bond Trustee, and their respective agents, attorneys and counsel, and for reimbursement of all expenses and liabilities incurred, and all advances made, by the Bond Trustee and each predecessor Bond Trustee, except as a result of negligence or willful misconduct), (B) the Bondholders and (C) each Person for whom a claim may be made under this Bond Indenture allowed in such Proceedings;
- (ii) unless prohibited by applicable law and regulations, to vote on behalf of the Bondholder in any election of a trustee, a standby trustee or Person performing similar functions in any such Proceedings;
- (iii) to collect and receive any moneys or other property payable or deliverable on any such claims and to distribute all amounts received with respect to the claims of the Bondholders and of the Bond Trustee on their behalf;
- (iv) to file such proofs of claim and other papers and documents as may be necessary or advisable in order to have the claims of the Bond Trustee or the Bondholders allowed in any judicial proceeding relative to the Bond Issuer, its creditors and its property; and
- (v) to participate as a member, voting or otherwise, of any official committee of creditors appointed in such matter.

and any trustee, receiver, liquidator, assignee, sequestrator, custodian or other similar official in any such Proceeding is hereby authorized by each of such Bondholders to make payments to the Bond Trustee, and, in the event that the Bond Trustee shall consent to the making of payments directly to such Bondholders, to pay to the Bond Trustee (or such other beneficiary under this Bond Indenture) such amounts as shall be sufficient to cover reasonable compensation and other amounts owing hereunder to the Bond Trustee or such Person, each predecessor Bond Trustee and their respective agents, attorneys and counsel, and all other reasonable expenses and liabilities incurred, and all advances made, by the Bond Trustee and each predecessor Bond Trustee except as a result of negligence or willful misconduct.

- (e) Nothing herein contained shall be deemed to authorize the Bond Trustee to authorize or consent to or vote for or accept or adopt on behalf of any Bondholder any plan of reorganization, arrangement, adjustment or composition affecting the Bonds or the rights of any Holder thereof or to authorize the Bond Trustee to vote in respect of the claim of any Bondholder in any such proceeding except, as aforesaid, to vote for the election of a trustee in bankruptcy or similar Person.
- (f) All rights of action and of asserting claims under this Bond Indenture, or under any of the Bonds, may be enforced by the Bond Trustee without the possession of any of the Bonds or the production thereof in any trial or other Proceedings relative thereto, and any such action or proceedings instituted by the Bond Trustee shall be brought in its own name as trustee of an express trust, and any recovery of judgment, subject to the payment of the expenses, disbursements and compensation of the

Bond Trustee, each predecessor Bond Trustee and their respective agents and attorneys, shall be for the ratable benefit of the Holders of the Bonds.

(g) In any Proceedings brought by the Bond Trustee (and also any Proceedings involving the interpretation of any provision of this Bond Indenture to which the Bond Trustee shall be a party), the Bond Trustee shall be held to represent all the Holders of the Bonds, and it shall not be necessary to make any Bondholder a party to any such Proceedings.

### Section 5.04. Remedies; Priorities.

- (a) If an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, the Bond Trustee may do one or more of the following (subject to Section 5.05):
  - (i) institute Proceedings in its own name and as trustee of an express trust for the collection of all amounts then payable on the Bonds or under this Bond Indenture with respect thereto, whether by declaration or otherwise, enforce any judgment obtained, and collect from the Bond Issuer and any other obligor upon such Bonds moneys adjudged due;
  - (ii) institute Proceedings from time to time for the complete or partial foreclosure of this Bond Indenture with respect to the Collateral;
  - (iii) exercise any remedies of a secured party under the LIPA Reform Act or other applicable law and take any other appropriate action to protect and enforce the rights and remedies of the Bond Trustee and the Holders of the Bonds;
  - (iv) sell the Collateral or any portion thereof or rights or interest therein, at one or more public or private sales called and conducted in any manner permitted by law; and
  - (v) exercise all rights, remedies, powers, privileges and claims of the Bond Issuer against the Servicer under or in connection with, and pursuant to the terms of, the Servicing Agreement;

provided, however, that the Bond Trustee may not sell or otherwise liquidate any portion of the Collateral following an Event of Default, other than an Event of Default described in Section 5.01(a) or (b) unless (A) the Holders of one hundred percent (100%) of the Outstanding Amount of the Bonds consent thereto, (B) the proceeds of such sale or liquidation distributable to the Bondholders are sufficient to discharge in full all amounts then due and unpaid upon such Bonds for principal and interest after taking into account payment of all amounts due prior thereto pursuant to the priorities set forth in Section 8.02(e) or (C) the Bond Trustee determines that the Collateral will not continue to provide sufficient funds for all payments on the Bonds as they would have become due if the Bonds had not been declared immediately due and payable, and the Bond Trustee obtains the written consent of Holders of at least a majority of the Outstanding Amount of the Bonds. In determining such sufficiency or insufficiency with respect to clause (B) and (C), the Bond Trustee may, but need not, obtain and conclusively rely upon an opinion of an Independent investment banking or accounting firm of national reputation as to the feasibility of such proposed action and as to the sufficiency of the Collateral for such purpose.

(b) If the Bond Trustee collects any money pursuant to this Article V, it shall pay out such money in accordance with the priorities set forth in Section 8.02(e).

# Section 5.05. Optional Possession of the Collateral.

If the Bonds have been declared to be due and payable under Section 5.02 following an Event of Default and such declaration and its consequences have not been rescinded and annulled, the Bond Trustee may, but need not, elect to maintain possession of the Collateral. It is the desire of the parties hereto and the Bondholders that there be at all times sufficient funds for the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds, and the Bond Trustee shall take such desire into account when determining whether or not to maintain possession of the Collateral. In determining whether to maintain possession of the Collateral or sell or liquidate the same, the Bond Trustee may, but need not, obtain and conclusively rely upon an opinion of an Independent investment banking or certified public accounting firm of national reputation as to the feasibility of such proposed action and as to the sufficiency of the Collateral for such purpose.

### Section 5.06. Limitation of Suits.

Each Holder agrees, by its acceptance of any Bond, to the fullest extent permitted by law, that no Holder of any Bond shall have any right to institute any Proceeding, judicial or otherwise, with respect to this Bond Indenture, or to avail itself of the right to foreclose on the Collateral or otherwise enforce the Lien and the security interest on the Collateral with respect to this Bond Indenture, or to avail itself of any remedies in the LIPA Reform Act or to utilize or enforce the Statutory Lien, or for the appointment of a receiver or trustee, or for any other remedy hereunder, unless:

- (a) such Holder previously has given written notice to the Bond Trustee of a continuing Event of Default;
- (b) the Holders of not less than a majority of the Outstanding Amount of the Bonds have made written request to the Bond Trustee to institute such Proceeding in respect of such Event of Default in its own name as Bond Trustee hereunder;
- (c) such Holder or Holders have offered to the Bond Trustee indemnity satisfactory to it against the costs, expenses and liabilities to be incurred in complying with such request;
- (d) the Bond Trustee for sixty (60) days after its receipt of such notice, request and offer of indemnity has failed to institute such Proceedings; and
- (e) no direction inconsistent with such written request has been given to the Bond Trustee during such 60-day period by the Holders of at least a majority of the Outstanding Amount of the Bonds;

it being understood and intended that no one or more Holders of Bonds shall have any right in any manner whatever by virtue of, or by availing of, any provision of this Bond Indenture to affect, disturb or prejudice the rights of any other Holders of Bonds or to obtain or to seek to obtain priority or preference over any other Holders or to enforce any right under this Bond Indenture, except in the manner herein provided.

In the event the Bond Trustee shall receive conflicting or inconsistent requests and indemnity from two or more groups of Holders of Bonds, each representing less than a majority of the Outstanding Amount of the Bonds, the Bond Trustee in its sole discretion may determine what action, if any, shall be taken, notwithstanding any other provisions of this Bond Indenture.

## Section 5.07. Unconditional Rights of Bondholders To Receive Principal and Interest.

Notwithstanding any other provisions in this Bond Indenture, the Holder of any Bond shall have the right, which is absolute and unconditional, (a) to receive payment of (i) the interest, if any, on such Bond on or after the due dates thereof expressed in such Bond or in this Bond Indenture or (ii) the unpaid principal, if any, of such Bonds on or after the Final Maturity Date therefor and (b) to institute suit for the enforcement of any such payment, and such right shall not be impaired without the consent of such Holder.

## Section 5.08. Restoration of Rights and Remedies.

If the Bond Trustee or any Bondholder has instituted any Proceeding to enforce any right or remedy under this Bond Indenture and such Proceeding has been discontinued or abandoned for any reason or has been determined adversely to the Bond Trustee or to such Bondholder, then and in every such case the Bond Issuer, the Bond Trustee and the Bondholders shall, subject to any determination in such Proceeding, be restored severally and respectively to their former positions hereunder, and thereafter all rights and remedies of the Bond Trustee and the Bondholders shall continue as though no such Proceeding had been instituted.

## Section 5.09. Rights and Remedies Cumulative.

No right or remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to the Bond Trustee or to the Bondholders is intended to be exclusive of any other right or remedy, and every right and remedy shall, to the extent permitted by law, be cumulative and in addition to every other right and remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or otherwise. The assertion or employment of any right or remedy hereunder, or otherwise, shall not prevent the concurrent assertion or employment of any other appropriate right or remedy.

# Section 5.10. Delay or Omission Not a Waiver.

No delay or omission of the Bond Trustee or any Bondholder to exercise any right or remedy accruing upon any Default or Event of Default shall impair any such right or remedy or constitute a waiver of any such Default or Event of Default or an acquiescence therein. Every right and remedy given by this Article V or by law to the Bond Trustee or to the Bondholders may be exercised from time to time, and as often as may be deemed expedient, by the Bond Trustee or by the Bondholders, as the case may be.

### Section 5.11. Control by Bondholders.

The Holders of a majority of the Outstanding Amount of the Bonds (or, if less than all Tranches are affected, the affected Tranche or Tranches) shall have the right to direct the time, method and place of conducting any Proceeding for any remedy available to the Bond Trustee with respect to the Bonds of such Tranche or Tranches or exercising any trust or power conferred on the Bond Trustee with respect to such Tranche or Tranches; provided, however, that

- (a) such direction shall not be in conflict with any rule of law or with this Bond Indenture;
- (b) subject to the express terms of Section 5.04, any direction to the Bond Trustee to sell or liquidate the Collateral shall be by the Holders of Bonds representing not less than one hundred percent (100%) of the Outstanding Amount of the Bonds;

- (c) if the conditions set forth in Section 5.05 have been satisfied and the Bond Trustee elects to retain the Collateral pursuant to such Section 5.05, then any direction to the Bond Trustee by Holders of Bonds representing less than 100 percent of the Outstanding Amount of the Bonds to sell or liquidate the Collateral shall be of no force and effect; and
- (d) the Bond Trustee may take any other action deemed proper by the Bond Trustee that is not inconsistent with such direction;

provided, however, that, subject to Section 6.01, the Bond Trustee need not take any action that it determines might involve it in liability or might materially adversely affect the rights of any Bondholders not consenting to such action. Furthermore and without limiting the foregoing, the Bond Trustee shall not be required to take any action for which it reasonably believes that it will not be indemnified to its satisfaction against any cost, expense or liability.

# Section 5.12. Waiver of Past Defaults.

Prior to the declaration of the acceleration of the maturity of the Bonds as provided in Section 5.02, the Holders of Bonds of a majority of the Outstanding Amount of the Bonds (or, if less than all Tranches are affected, the Holders of Bonds of a majority of the Bonds of the affected Tranche or Tranches in the aggregate) may, by written notice to the Bond Trustee, waive any past Default or Event of Default and its consequences, except a Default (a) in payment of principal of or interest on any of the Bonds or (b) in respect of a covenant or provision hereof which cannot be modified or amended without the consent of the Holder of each Bond of all Tranches affected. In the case of any such waiver, the Bond Issuer, the Bond Trustee and the Holders of the Bonds shall be restored to their former positions and rights hereunder, respectively, but no such waiver shall extend to any subsequent or other Default or Event of Default or impair any right consequent thereto.

Upon any such waiver, such Default shall cease to exist and be deemed to have been cured and not to have occurred, and any Event of Default arising therefrom shall be deemed to have been cured and not to have occurred, for every purpose of this Bond Indenture; but no such waiver shall extend to any subsequent or other Default or Event of Default or impair any right consequent thereto.

# Section 5.13. Undertaking for Costs.

All parties to this Bond Indenture agree, and each Holder of any Bond by such Holder's acceptance thereof shall be deemed to have agreed, that any court may in its discretion require, in any suit for the enforcement of any right or remedy under this Bond Indenture, or in any suit against the Bond Trustee for any action taken, suffered or omitted by it as Bond Trustee, the filing by any party litigant in such suit of an undertaking to pay the costs of such suit, and that such court may in its discretion, subject to applicable law, assess reasonable costs, including reasonable attorneys' fees, against any party litigant in such suit, having due regard to the merits and good faith of the claims or defenses made by such party litigant; but the provisions of this Section 5.13 shall not apply to (a) any suit instituted by the Bond Trustee, (b) any suit instituted by any Bondholder, or group of Bondholders, in each case holding in the aggregate more than ten percent (10%) of the Outstanding Amount of the Bonds or (c) any suit instituted by any Bondholder for the enforcement of the payment of (i) interest on any Bond on or after the due dates expressed in such Bond and in this Bond Indenture or (ii) the unpaid principal, if any, of any Bond on or after the Final Maturity Date therefor.

# Section 5.14. Waiver of Stay or Extension Laws.

The Bond Issuer covenants (to the extent that it may lawfully do so) that it will not at any time insist upon, or plead or in any manner whatsoever, claim or take the benefit or advantage of, any stay or extension law wherever enacted, now or at any time hereafter in force, that may affect the covenants or the performance of this Bond Indenture; and the Bond Issuer (to the extent that it may lawfully do so) hereby expressly waives all benefit or advantage of any such law, and covenants that it will not hinder, delay or impede the execution of any power herein granted to the Bond Trustee, but will suffer and permit the execution of every such power as though no such law had been enacted.

### Section 5.15. Action on Bonds.

The Bond Trustee's right to seek and recover judgment on the Bonds or under this Bond Indenture shall not be affected by the seeking, obtaining or application of any other relief under or with respect to this Bond Indenture. Neither the Lien of this Bond Indenture nor any rights or remedies of the Bond Trustee or the Bondholders shall be impaired by the recovery of any judgment by the Bond Trustee against the Bond Issuer or by the levy of any execution under such judgment upon any portion of the Collateral or upon any of the assets of the Bond Issuer.

## Section 5.16. Performance and Enforcement of Certain Obligations.

- (a) Promptly following a request from the Bond Trustee to do so and at the Bond Issuer's expense, the Bond Issuer agrees to take all such lawful action as the Bond Trustee may reasonably request to compel or secure the performance and observance by the Seller and the Servicer, as applicable, of each of their obligations to the Bond Issuer under or in connection with the Sale Agreement and the Servicing Agreement, respectively, in accordance with the terms thereof, and to exercise any and all rights, remedies, powers and privileges lawfully available to the Bond Issuer under or in connection with the Sale Agreement and the Servicing Agreement, respectively, to the extent and in the manner directed by the Bond Trustee, including the transmission of notices of default on the part of the Seller or the Servicer thereunder and the institution of legal or administrative actions or proceedings to compel or secure performance by the Seller or the Servicer of each of their obligations under the Sale Agreement and the Servicing Agreement, respectively.
- (b) If an Event of Default has occurred and shall be continuing, the Bond Trustee may, and, at the written direction of the Holders of at least a majority of the Outstanding Amount of the Bonds shall, subject to Article VI, exercise all rights, remedies, powers, privileges and claims of the Bond Issuer against the Seller or the Servicer under or in connection with the Sale Agreement and the Servicing Agreement, respectively, including the right or power to take any action to compel or secure performance or observance by the Seller or the Servicer of each of their obligations to the Bond Issuer thereunder and to give any consent, request, notice, direction, approval, extension or waiver under the Sale Agreement or the Servicing Agreement, respectively, and any right of the Bond Issuer to take such action shall be suspended.

# **ARTICLE VI**

The Bond Trustee and Paying Agents

## Section 6.01. Duties of Bond Trustee.

(a) If an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, the Bond Trustee shall exercise the rights and powers vested in it by this Bond Indenture and use the same degree of care and skill in their

exercise as a prudent person would exercise or use under the circumstances in the conduct of such person's own affairs.

- (b) Except during the continuance of an Event of Default:
- (i) the Bond Trustee undertakes to perform such duties and only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Bond Indenture and no implied covenants or obligations shall be read into this Bond Indenture against the Bond Trustee; and
- (ii) in the absence of bad faith on its part, the Bond Trustee may conclusively rely, as to the truth of the statements and the correctness of the opinions expressed therein, upon certificates or opinions furnished to the Bond Trustee and conforming to the requirements of this Bond Indenture; however, the Bond Trustee shall examine the certificates and opinions to determine whether or not they appear on their face to conform to the requirements of this Bond Indenture.
- (c) The Bond Trustee may not be relieved from liability for its own negligence or willful misconduct, except that:
  - (i) this paragraph does not limit the effect of paragraph (b) of this Section;
  - (ii) the Bond Trustee shall not be liable for any error of judgment made in good faith by a Responsible Officer unless it is proved that the Bond Trustee was negligent in ascertaining the pertinent facts; and
  - (iii) the Bond Trustee shall not be liable with respect to any action it takes or omits to take in good faith in accordance with a direction received by it hereunder.
- (d) Every provision of this Bond Indenture that in any way relates to the Bond Trustee is subject to paragraphs (a), (b) and (c) of this Section 6.01.
- (e) The Bond Trustee shall not be liable for interest on any money received by it except as the Bond Trustee may agree in writing with the Bond Issuer.
- (f) Money held in trust by the Bond Trustee need not be segregated from other funds except to the extent required by law or the terms of this Bond Indenture, the Sale Agreement or the Servicing Agreement.
- (g) No provision of this Bond Indenture shall require the Bond Trustee to expend or risk its own funds or otherwise incur financial liability in the performance of any of its duties hereunder or in the exercise of any of its rights or powers, if it shall have reasonable grounds to believe that repayments of such funds or indemnity satisfactory to it against such risk or liability is not reasonably assured to it.
- (h) Every provision of this Bond Indenture relating to the conduct or affecting the liability of or affording protection to the Bond Trustee shall be subject to the provisions of this Section and to the provisions of the Trust Indenture Act.
- (i) In the event that the Bond Trustee is also acting as Paying Agent or Bond Registrar hereunder, this Article VI shall also be afforded to such Paying Agent or Bond Registrar.

(j) Under no circumstances shall the Bond Trustee be liable for any indebtedness of the Bond Issuer, the Servicer or the Seller evidenced by or arising under the Bonds, any Basic Document or the Bond Purchase Agreement.

# Section 6.02. Rights of Bond Trustee.

- (a) The Bond Trustee may conclusively rely and shall be fully protected in acting or refraining from acting in reliance upon any resolution, certificate, statement, instrument, opinion, report, notice, request, direction, consent, order, bond, debenture, paper or other document believed by it to be genuine and to have been signed or presented by the proper party or parties and the Bond Trustee need not investigate any matter or fact stated in such document;
- (b) any request or direction of the Bond Issuer mentioned herein shall be sufficiently evidenced by an Issuer Request;
- (c) before the Bond Trustee acts or refrains from acting, it may require and shall be entitled to receive an Officer's Certificate or an Opinion of Counsel of external counsel of the Bond Issuer (at no cost or expense to the Bond Trustee) that such action is required or permitted hereunder. The Bond Trustee shall not be liable for any action it takes or omits to take in good faith in reliance on such Officer's Certificate or Opinion of Counsel.
- (d) the Bond Trustee may consult with counsel, and the advice or opinion of counsel with respect to legal matters relating to this Bond Indenture and the Bonds shall be full and complete authorization and protection from liability in respect of any action taken, omitted or suffered by it hereunder in good faith and in accordance with the advice or opinion of such counsel.
- (e) the Bond Trustee shall be under no obligation to exercise any of the rights or powers vested in it by this Bond Indenture or to institute, conduct or defend any litigation hereunder or in relation hereto at the request or direction of any of the Bondholders pursuant to this Bond Indenture, unless such Bondholders shall have offered to the Bond Trustee security or indemnity satisfactory to it against the cost, expenses (including reasonable legal fees and expenses) and liabilities that might be incurred by it in compliance with such request or direction;
- (f) the Bond Trustee shall not be bound to make any investigation into the facts or matters stated in any resolution, certificate, statement, instrument, opinion, report, notice, request, direction, consent, order, bond, debenture, paper or other document;
- (g) the Bond Trustee may execute any of the trusts or powers hereunder or perform any duties hereunder either directly or by or through agents, attorneys, custodians or nominees and the Bond Trustee shall not be responsible for any misconduct or negligence on the part of, or for the supervision of, any agent, attorney, custodian or nominee appointed with due care by it hereunder; and the Bond Trustee shall give prompt written notice to the Rating Agencies of the appointment of any such agent, custodian or nominee to whom it delegates any of its express duties under this Bond Indenture; provided, that the Bond Trustee shall not be obligated to give such notice (i) if the Bond Issuer or the Holders have directed the Bond Trustee to appoint such agent, custodian or nominee (in which event the Bond Issuer shall give prompt notice to the Rating Agencies of any such direction) or (ii) of the appointment of any agents, custodians or nominees made at any time that an Event of Default on account of non-payment of principal or interest on the Bonds or insolvency of the Bond Issuer has occurred and is continuing.
- (h) the Bond Trustee shall not be liable with respect to any action taken or omitted to be taken by it in good faith in accordance with the direction of the Holders of Bonds relating to the time,

method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the Bond Trustee, or exercising any trust or power conferred upon the Bond Trustee, under this Bond Indenture;

- (i) the Bond Trustee shall not be required to expend or risk its own funds in the performance of any of its duties hereunder, or in the exercise of any of its rights or powers, if it shall have reasonable grounds for believing that repayment of such funds or indemnity satisfactory to it against such risk is not reasonably assured to it;
- (j) the Bond Trustee shall not be personally liable for any action taken or suffered or omitted to be taken by it in good faith and reasonably believed by it to be authorized or within the discretion or rights or powers conferred upon it by this Bond Indenture; provided, however, that the Bond Trustee's conduct does not constitute willful misconduct, negligence or bad faith;
- (k) in the event that the Bond Trustee is also acting as Paying Agent or Bond Registrar hereunder, the rights and protections afforded to the Bond Trustee pursuant to this Article VI shall also be afforded to such Paying Agent, authenticating agent or Bond Registrar;
- (l) the Bond Trustee shall not be charged with knowledge of an Event of Default unless a Responsible Officer obtains actual knowledge of such event or the Bond Trustee receives written notice of such event from the Bond Issuer, the Servicer or a majority of the Holders of Bonds of the Tranche or Tranches so affected:
- (m) without limiting its rights under bankruptcy law, when the Bond Trustee incurs expenses or renders services in connection with the insolvency or bankruptcy of any party hereto or with the Basic Documents to which it is a party such expenses (including the fees and expenses of its counsel) and the compensation for such services are intended to constitute expenses of administration under any bankruptcy or insolvency law;
- (n) the Bond Trustee shall not be required to give any bond or surety in respect of the execution of the trust created herby or the power granted hereunder;
- (o) in no event shall the Bond Trustee be liable for special, punitive, indirect or consequential loss or damage of any kind whatsoever (including but not limited to lost profits), even if the Bond Trustee has been advised of the likelihood of such loss or damage and regardless of the form of action;
- (p) the right of the Bond Trustee to perform any discretionary act enumerated in this Bond Indenture shall not be construed as a duty, and the Bond Trustee shall not be answerable for other than its negligence or willful misconduct in the performance of any such act;
- (q) the Bond Trustee shall have no duty to file any financing statement or continuation statement evidencing a security interest or to maintain any such filing, other than to file continuation statements pursuant to Section 2.14, or to maintain any insurance; and
- (r) the Bond Trustee shall have no obligation to supervise the Servicer or act as successor Servicer, and shall not be liable for any default or misconduct of the Servicer.

# Section 6.03. Individual Rights of Bond Trustee.

The Bond Trustee in its individual or any other capacity may become the owner or pledgee of Bonds and may otherwise deal with the Bond Issuer or its affiliates with the same rights it would have if

it were not Bond Trustee. Any Paying Agent, Bond Registrar, co-registrar or co-paying agent may do the same with like rights. However, the Bond Trustee must comply with Sections 6.11 and 6.12.

## Section 6.04. Bond Trustee's Disclaimer.

Except as set forth in Section 6.13, the Bond Trustee shall not be responsible for and makes no representation as to the validity or adequacy of this Bond Indenture or the Bonds, it shall not be accountable for the Bond Issuer's use of the proceeds from the Bonds, and it shall not be responsible for any statement of the Bond Issuer in the Bond Indenture or in any document issued in connection with the sale of the Bonds or in the Bonds other than the Bond Trustee's certificate of authentication. The Bond Trustee shall not be responsible for the form, character, genuineness, sufficiency, value or validity of any of the Collateral, for the validity, priority or perfection of any lien or security interest granted to it hereunder (except to the extent impaired by action or omission constituting negligence or willful misconduct on the part of the Bond Trustee, or for or in respect of the Bonds (other than the certificate of authentication for the Bonds) or the Basic Documents and the Bond Trustee shall in no event assume or incur any liability, duty or obligation to any Holder, other than as expressly provided in this Bond Indenture. The Bond Trustee shall not be liable for the default or misconduct of the Bond Issuer or the Servicer under the Basic Documents or otherwise, and the Bond Trustee shall have no obligation or liability to perform the obligations of such Persons.

## Section 6.05. Notice of Defaults.

If a Default occurs and is continuing and if it is actually known to a Responsible Officer of the Bond Trustee, the Bond Trustee shall transmit to each Holder of Bonds and to the Rating Agencies notice of the Default within 30 days after actual notice of such Default was received by a Responsible Officer of the Bond Trustee (provided that the Bond Trustee shall give the Rating Agencies prompt written notice of any payment Default in respect of the Bonds). Except in the case of a Default in payment of principal of or interest on any Bond, the Bond Trustee may withhold the notice if and so long as a committee of its Responsible Officers in good faith determines that prompt notice of the Default is not likely to be material to Holders and the Default is likely to be cured and therefore that withholding the notice is in the interests of Bondholders.

# Section 6.06. Reports by Bond Trustee to Holders.

- (a) So long as the Bond Trustee is the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent, upon the written request of a current or former Bondholder or the Bond Issuer, the Bond Trustee shall deliver to such Bondholder, within the prescribed period of time for tax reporting purposes after the end of each calendar year, such information in its possession as may be required to enable such Holder to prepare its federal and any applicable state or local income tax returns. If the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent is other than the Bond Trustee, such Bond Registrar and Paying Agent, within the prescribed period of time for tax reporting purposes after the end of each calendar year, shall deliver to each relevant current or former Holder such information in its possession as may be required to enable such Holder to prepare its federal income and any applicable state or local tax returns.
- (b) On or prior to each Payment Date therefor, the Bond Trustee will provide to each Holder of Bonds on such Payment Date a statement prepared by the Servicer and provided to the Bond Trustee which will include (to the extent applicable) the following information as to the Bonds with respect to such Payment Date or the period since the previous Payment Date, as applicable:
  - (i) the amount of the payment to Bondholders allocable to principal;

- (ii) the amount of the payment to Bondholders allocable to interest;
- (iii) the Outstanding Amount, before and after giving effect to payments allocated to principal reported under clause (i) above;
- (iv) the difference, if any, between the Outstanding Amount and the Projected Principal Balance as of such Payment Date, after giving effect to payments to be made on such Payment Date;
- (v) the amount on deposit in the Operating Reserve Subaccount as of the Payment Date;
- (vi) the amount on deposit in the Debt Service Reserve Subaccount as of the Payment Date;
- (vii) the amount, if any, on deposit in the Excess Funds Subaccount as of the Payment Date;
  - (viii) the amount paid to the Bond Trustee since the previous Payment Date;
  - (ix) the amount paid to the Servicer since the previous Payment Date;
  - (x) the amount paid to the Administrator since the previous Payment Date; and
- (xi) any other transfers and payments to be made pursuant to the Bond Indenture since the previous Payment Date.
- (c) The Bond Issuer shall send a copy of each Certificate of Compliance delivered to it pursuant to Section 3.06 of the Servicing Agreement and Annual Accountant's Report delivered to it pursuant to Section 3.07 of the Servicing Agreement to the Bond Trustee, the Bondholders and the Rating Agencies and to the Servicer for posting on the 17g-5 Website in accordance with Rule 17g-5 of the Commission.

## Section 6.07. Compensation and Indemnity.

Subject to Section 8.02(e), the Bond Issuer shall pay to the Bond Trustee from time to time reasonable compensation for its services. The Bond Trustee's compensation shall not be limited by any law on compensation of a trustee of an express trust.

Subject to Section 8.02(e), the Bond Issuer shall reimburse the Bond Trustee for all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses, disbursements and advances incurred or made by it, including costs of collection, in addition to the compensation for its services. Such expenses shall include the reasonable compensation and expenses, disbursements and advances of the Bond Trustee's agents, counsel, accountants and experts. Subject to Section 8.02(e), the Bond Issuer shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Bond Trustee and any of its affiliates, officials, officers, directors, employees, consultants, counsel and agents (the "Indemnified Persons") from and against any and all losses, claims, actions, suits, taxes, damages, expenses (including, without limitation, reasonable legal fees and expenses) and liabilities (including liabilities under state or federal securities laws) of any kind and nature whatsoever (collectively, "Expenses"), to the extent that such Expenses arise out of or are imposed upon or asserted against such Indemnified Persons with respect to the creation, administration, operation or termination of this trust and the performance by the Bond Trustee of its duties hereunder, the failure of the Bond Issuer or any other

Person (other than the Person being indemnified) to perform its obligations hereunder or under any of the Basic Documents or the Bond Purchase Agreement, or otherwise in connection with the Basic Documents, the Bond Purchase Agreement or the transactions contemplated by any of them; provided, however, that the Bond Issuer is not required to indemnify any Indemnified Person for any Expenses that result from the willful misconduct or negligence of such Indemnified Person. The willful misconduct or negligence of any Bond Trustee shall not affect the rights of any predecessor or successor Bond Trustee hereunder. The Indemnified Person shall notify the Bond Issuer as soon as is reasonably practicable of any claim for which it may seek indemnity. Failure by the Indemnified Person to so notify the Bond Issuer shall not relieve the Bond Issuer of its obligations hereunder. The Bond Issuer shall defend the claim and the Indemnified Person may have separate counsel and the Bond Issuer shall pay the fees and expenses of such counsel. The Bond Issuer will not, without the prior written consent of the Indemnified Person, settle or compromise or consent to the entry of any judgment with respect to any pending or threatened claim, action, suit or proceeding in respect of which indemnification may be sought under this Section 6.07, (whether or not the Indemnified Person is an actual or potential party to such claim or action) unless such settlement, compromise or consent includes an unconditional release of the Indemnified Person from all liability arising out of such claim, action, suit or proceeding.

The Bond Issuer's payment obligations to the Bond Trustee pursuant to this Section shall survive the discharge of this Bond Indenture or the earlier resignation or removal of the Bond Trustee. When the Bond Trustee incurs expenses after the occurrence of an Event of Default specified in Section 5.01(d) or (e) with respect to the Bond Issuer, the expenses are intended to constitute expenses of administration under Title II of the United States Code or any other applicable federal or state bankruptcy, insolvency or similar law.

# Section 6.08. Replacement of Bond Trustee.

The Bond Trustee may resign at any time by so notifying the Bond Issuer, provided, however, that no such resignation shall be effective until either (a) the Collateral has been completely liquidated and the proceeds of the liquidation distributed to the Bondholders or (b) a successor trustee having the qualifications set forth in Section 6.11 has been designated and has accepted such trusteeship. The Holders of a majority in Outstanding Amount of the Bonds may remove the Bond Trustee by so notifying the Bond Trustee and may appoint a successor Bond Trustee. The Bond Issuer shall remove the Bond Trustee if:

- (a) the Bond Trustee fails to comply with Section 6.11;
- (b) the Bond Trustee is adjudged a bankrupt or insolvent;
- (c) a receiver or other public officer takes charge of the Bond Trustee or its property; or
- (d) the Bond Trustee otherwise becomes incapable of acting.

If the Bond Trustee resigns or is removed or if a vacancy exists in the office of Bond Trustee for any reason (the Bond Trustee in such event being referred to herein as the retiring Bond Trustee), the Bond Issuer shall promptly appoint a successor Bond Trustee.

A successor Bond Trustee shall deliver a written acceptance of its appointment to the retiring Bond Trustee and to the Bond Issuer. Thereupon the resignation or removal of the retiring Bond Trustee shall become effective, and the successor Bond Trustee shall have all the rights, powers and duties of the Bond Trustee under this Bond Indenture. The successor Bond Trustee shall mail a notice of its succession

to Bondholders and to the Rating Agencies. The retiring Bond Trustee shall promptly transfer all property held by it as Bond Trustee to the successor Bond Trustee.

If a successor Bond Trustee does not take office within sixty (60) days after the retiring Bond Trustee resigns or is removed, the retiring Bond Trustee, the Bond Issuer or the Holders of a majority in Outstanding Amount of the Bonds may petition any court of competent jurisdiction for the appointment of a successor Bond Trustee.

If the Bond Trustee fails to comply with Section 6.11, any Bondholder may petition any court of competent jurisdiction for the removal of the Bond Trustee and the appointment of a successor Bond Trustee.

Notwithstanding the replacement of the Bond Trustee pursuant to this Section, the Bond Issuer's obligations under Section 6.07 shall continue for the benefit of the retiring Bond Trustee.

Section 6.09. Successor Bond Trustee by Merger.

If the Bond Trustee consolidates with, merges or converts into, or transfers all or substantially all its corporate trust business or assets to, another corporation or banking association, the resulting, surviving or transferee corporation or banking association without any further act shall be the successor Bond Trustee. The successor Bond Trustee shall mail a notice of its merger, conversion, consolidation or transfer to the Rating Agencies.

In case at the time such successor or successors by merger, conversion, consolidation or transfer to the Bond Trustee shall succeed to the trusts created by this Bond Indenture any of the Bonds shall have been authenticated but not delivered, any such successor to the Bond Trustee may adopt the certificate of authentication of any predecessor trustee, and deliver such Bonds so authenticated; and in case at that time any of the Bonds shall not have been authenticated, any successor to the Bond Trustee may authenticate such Bonds either in the name of any predecessor hereunder or in the name of the successor to the Bond Trustee; and in all such cases such certificates shall be valid for all purposes hereunder and under the Bonds.

# Section 6.10. Appointment of Co-Trustee or Separate Trustee.

- (a) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Bond Indenture, at any time, for the purpose of meeting any legal requirement of any jurisdiction in which any part of the Collateral may at the time be located or to address divergent or conflicting interests among Holders of Bonds of separate Tranches of Bonds as a result of variations in terms of the respective underlying Bonds of corresponding Tranches, the Bond Trustee shall have the power and may execute and deliver all instruments to appoint one or more Persons to act as a co-trustee or co-trustees, or separate trustee or separate trustees, of all or any part of the Collateral, and to vest in such Person or Persons, in such capacity and for the benefit of the Bondholders, such title to the Collateral, or any part hereof, and, subject to the other provisions of this Section 6.10, such powers, duties, obligations, rights and trusts as the Bond Trustee may consider necessary or desirable. No co-trustee or separate trustee hereunder shall be required to meet the terms of eligibility as a successor trustee under Section 6.11 and no notice to Bondholders of the appointment of any co-trustee or separate trustee shall be required under Section 6.08 hereof. Notice of any such appointment shall be promptly given to each Rating Agency by the Bond Trustee.
- (b) Every separate trustee and co-trustee shall, to the extent permitted by law, be appointed and act subject to the following provisions and conditions:

- (i) all rights, powers, duties and obligations conferred or imposed upon the Bond Trustee shall be conferred or imposed upon and exercised or performed by the Bond Trustee and such separate trustee or co-trustee jointly (it being understood that such separate trustee or co-trustee is not authorized to act separately without the Bond Trustee joining in such act), except to the extent that under any law of any jurisdiction in which any particular act or acts are to be performed the Bond Trustee shall be incompetent or unqualified to perform such act or acts, in which event such rights, powers, duties and obligations (including the holding of title to the Collateral or any portion thereof in any such jurisdiction) shall be exercised and performed singly by such separate trustee or co-trustee, but solely at the direction of the Bond Trustee;
- (ii) no trustee hereunder shall be personally liable by reason of any act or omission of any other trustee hereunder; and
- (iii) the Bond Trustee may at any time accept the resignation of or remove any separate trustee or co-trustee.
- (c) Any notice, request or other writing given to the Bond Trustee shall be deemed to have been given to each of the then separate trustees and co-trustees, as effectively as if given to each of them. Every instrument appointing any separate trustee or co-trustee shall refer to this Bond Indenture and the conditions of this Article VI. Each separate trustee and co-trustee, upon its acceptance of the trusts conferred, shall be vested with the estates or property specified in its instrument of appointment, either jointly with the Bond Trustee or separately, as may be provided therein, subject to all the provisions of this Bond Indenture, specifically including every provision of this Bond Indenture relating to the conduct of, affecting the liability of, or affording protection to, the Bond Trustee. Every such instrument shall be filed with the Bond Trustee.
- (d) Any separate trustee or co-trustee may at any time constitute the Bond Trustee, its agent or attorney-in-fact with full power and authority, to the extent not prohibited by law, to do any lawful act under or in respect of this Bond Indenture on its behalf and in its name. If any separate trustee or co-trustee shall die, become incapable of acting, resign or be removed, all of its estates, properties, rights, remedies and trusts shall vest in and be exercised by the Bond Trustee, to the extent permitted by law, without the appointment of a new or successor trustee.

#### Section 6.11. Eligibility; Disqualification.

The Bond Trustee shall at all times be a corporation organized and doing business under the laws of the United States or of any State or of the District of Columbia which (i) is authorized under such laws to exercise corporate trust powers, and (ii) is subject to supervision or examination by federal, State or District of Columbia authority. The Bond Trustee shall have a combined capital and surplus of at least \$100,000,000 as set forth in its most recent published annual report of condition and it shall have a long term debt rating of at least "A" (or the equivalent thereof) or better by the Rating Agencies.

# Section 6.12. Representations and Warranties of Bond Trustee.

The Bond Trustee hereby represents and warrants that:

- (a) the Bond Trustee is a New York banking corporation validly existing in good standing under the laws of the State of New York; and
- (b) the Bond Trustee has full power, authority and legal right to execute, deliver and perform this Bond Indenture and the Basic Documents to which the Bond Trustee is a party and has taken all

necessary action to authorize the execution, delivery, and performance by it of this Bond Indenture and such Basic Documents.

## Section 6.13. The Paying Agents.

- (a) Each Paying Agent other than the Bond Trustee shall execute and deliver to the Bond Trustee an instrument in which such Paying Agent shall agree with the Bond Trustee (and if the Bond Trustee acts as Paying Agent, it hereby so agrees), subject to the provisions of this Section 6.13, that such Paying Agent will:
  - (i) hold all sums held by it for the payment of amounts due with respect to the Bonds in trust for the benefit of the Persons entitled thereto until such sums shall be paid to such Persons or otherwise disposed of as herein provided and pay such sums to such Persons as herein provided;
  - (ii) give the Bond Trustee written notice of any Default by the Bond Issuer of which it has actual knowledge in the making of any payment required to be made with respect to the Bonds;
  - (iii) at any time during the continuance of any such Default, upon the written request of the Bond Trustee, forthwith pay to the Bond Trustee all sums so held in trust by such Paying Agent;
  - (iv) immediately resign as a Paying Agent and forthwith pay to the Bond Trustee all sums held by it in trust for the payment of Bonds if at any time the Paying Agent determines that it has ceased to meet the standards required to be met by a Paying Agent at the time of such determination:
  - (v) comply with all requirements of the Code and other tax laws with respect to the withholding from any payments made by it on any Bonds of any applicable withholding taxes imposed thereon and with respect to any applicable reporting requirements in connection therewith; and
  - (vi) keep such books and records as shall be consistent with prudent corporate trust industry practice and to make such books and records available for inspection by the Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee at all reasonable times.
- (b) The Paying Agent shall be a corporation or association duly organized under the laws of the United States of America or any state or territory thereof, or a bank or trust company having a combined capital stock, surplus and undivided profits of at least \$50,000,000 and authorized by law to perform all the duties imposed upon it by this Bond Indenture. The Paying Agent may at any time resign and be discharged of the duties and obligations created by this Bond Indenture by giving at least 60 days' notice to the Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee. In the event that the Bond Issuer shall fail to appoint a successor Paying Agent, upon the resignation or removal of the Paying Agent, the Bond Trustee shall either appoint a Paying Agent or itself act as Paying Agent until the appointment of a successor Paying Agent. Any successor Paying Agent shall have a long term debt rating of at least "A" by the Rating Agencies. The Paying Agent may be removed at any time by an instrument signed by the Bond Issuer filed with the Bond Trustee.

(c) In the event of the resignation or removal of the Paying Agent, the Paying Agent shall deliver any Bonds and money held by it in such capacity to its successor or, if there is no successor, to the Bond Trustee.

# Section 6.14. Custody of Collateral.

The Bond Trustee shall hold such of the Collateral (and any other collateral that may be granted to the Bond Trustee) as consists of instruments, deposit accounts, securities accounts, negotiable documents, money, goods, letters of credit, and advices of credit in the State of New York. The Bond Trustee shall hold such of the Collateral as constitutes investment property through the Securities Intermediary (which, as of the date hereof, is The Bank of New York Mellon). The initial Securities Intermediary hereby agrees (and each future Securities Intermediary shall agree) with the Bond Trustee that (a) such investment property shall at all times be credited to a securities account of the Bond Trustee, (b) the Securities Intermediary shall treat the Bond Trustee as entitled to exercise the rights that comprise each financial asset credited to such securities account, (c) all property credited to such securities account shall be treated as a financial asset, (d) the Securities Intermediary shall comply with entitlement orders originated by the Bond Trustee without the further consent of any other Person, (e) the Securities Intermediary will not agree with any Person other than the Bond Trustee to comply with entitlement orders originated by such other Person, (f) such securities accounts and the property credited thereto shall not be subject to any Lien or right of set-off in favor of the Securities Intermediary or anyone claiming through it (other than the Bond Trustee), and (g) such securities accounts shall be governed by the internal laws of the State of New York. Terms used in the preceding sentence that are defined in the UCC and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the UCC. Except as permitted by this Section 6.14, or elsewhere in this Bond Indenture, the Bond Trustee shall not hold Collateral through an agent or a nominee.

#### **ARTICLE VII**

#### The Bondholders

#### Section 7.01. Acts of Bondholders; Evidence of Ownership.

- (a) Any request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent, waiver or other action provided by this Bond Indenture to be given or taken by Bondholders may be embodied in and evidenced by one or more instruments of substantially similar tenor signed by such Bondholders in person or by agents duly appointed in writing; and except as herein otherwise expressly provided such action shall become effective when such instrument or instruments are delivered to the Bond Trustee, and, where it is hereby expressly required, to the Bond Issuer. Such instrument or instruments (and the action embodied therein and evidenced thereby) are herein sometimes referred to as the "Act" of the Bondholders signing such instrument or instruments. Proof of execution of any such instrument or of a writing appointing any such agent shall be sufficient for any purpose of this Bond Indenture and (subject to Section 6.01) conclusive in favor of the Bond Trustee and the Bond Issuer, if made in the manner provided in this Section 7.01.
- (b) The fact and date of the execution by any person of any such instrument or writing may be proved in any manner that the Bond Trustee deems sufficient.
  - (c) The ownership of Bonds shall be proved by the Bond Register.
- (d) Any request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent, waiver or other action by the Holder of any Bonds shall bind the Holder of every Bond issued upon the registration thereof or in exchange therefor or in lieu thereof, in respect of anything done, omitted or suffered to be done by the

Bond Trustee or the Bond Issuer in reliance thereon, whether or not notation of such action is made upon such Bond.

#### Section 7.02. Notice to Bondholders.

Where this Bond Indenture provides for notice to Bondholders of any event, such notice shall be sufficiently given (unless otherwise herein expressly provided) if in writing and mailed, first-class, postage prepaid to each Bondholder affected by such event, at such Bondholder's address as it appears on the Bond Register, not later than the latest date, and not earlier than the earliest date, prescribed for the giving of such notice. In any case where notice to Bondholders is given by mail, neither the failure to mail such notice nor any defect in any notice so mailed to any particular Bondholder shall affect the sufficiency of such notice with respect to other Bondholders, and any notice that is mailed in the manner herein provided shall conclusively be presumed to have been duly given.

Where this Bond Indenture provides for notice in any manner, such notice may be waived in writing by any Person entitled to receive such notice, either before or after the event, and such waiver shall be the equivalent of such notice. Waivers of notice by Bondholders shall be filed with the Bond Trustee but such filing shall not be a condition precedent to the validity of any action taken in reliance upon such a waiver.

In case, by reason of the suspension of regular mail service as a result of a strike, work stoppage or similar activity, it shall be impractical to mail notice of any event of Bondholders when such notice is required to be given pursuant to any provision of this Bond Indenture, then any manner of giving such notice as shall be satisfactory to the Bond Trustee shall be deemed to be a sufficient giving of such notice.

Where this Bond Indenture provides for notice to the Rating Agencies, failure to give such notice shall not affect any other rights or obligations created hereunder, and shall not under any circumstance constitute a Default or Event of Default.

#### Section 7.03. Bond Issuer to Furnish Bond Trustee Names and Addresses of Bondholders.

Unless the Bond Trustee is the Bond Registrar, the Bond Issuer shall furnish or cause to be furnished to the Bond Trustee (a) not more than five (5) days after the earlier of (i) each Record Date and (ii) six (6) months after the last Record Date, a list, in such form as the Bond Trustee may reasonably require, of the names and addresses of the Holders as of such Record Date, and (b) at such other times as the Bond Trustee may request in writing, within 30 days after receipt by the Bond Issuer of any such request, a list of similar form and content as of a date not more than 10 days prior to the time such list is furnished. The Bond Trustee shall be the initial Bond Registrar hereunder.

#### Section 7.04. Preservation of Information; Communications to Bondholders.

- (a) The Bond Trustee shall preserve, in as current a form as is reasonably practicable, the names and addresses of the Holders contained in the most recent list furnished to the Bond Trustee as provided in Section 7.03 and the names and addresses of Holders received by the Bond Trustee in its capacity as Bond Registrar. The Bond Trustee may destroy any list furnished to it as provided in such Section 7.03 upon receipt of a new list so furnished.
- (b) Upon the written request of any Holder or group of Holders, each of whom has held its Bond for at least six (6) months, the Bond Trustee shall afford the Holder or Holders making such request a copy of a current list of Holders of the Bonds, for purposes of communicating with other Holders with respect to their rights hereunder. The Bond Trustee may elect not to afford the requesting Holders access

to the list of Holders of the Bonds if it agrees to mail the desired communication or proxy, on behalf and at the expense of the requesting Holders, to all Holders of the Bonds.

Section 7.05. Provisions of Servicer Reports.

Upon the written request of any Bondholder or any Rating Agency to the Bond Trustee addressed to the Corporate Trust Office, the Bond Registrar, or in its absence or failure the Paying Agent, shall provide such requesting party, the Bond Trustee and the Paying Agent or Bond Registrar, as applicable, with a copy of any Semiannual Servicer Certificate, Annual Accountant's Report and any other report of the Servicer referred to in the Servicing Agreement.

#### ARTICLE VIII

Accounts, Disbursements and Releases

Section 8.01. Collection of Money.

Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the Bond Trustee may demand payment or delivery of, and shall receive and collect, directly and without intervention or assistance of any fiscal agent or other intermediary, all money and other property payable to or receivable by the Bond Trustee pursuant to this Bond Indenture and the other Basic Documents. The Bond Trustee shall apply all such money received by it as provided in this Bond Indenture. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Bond Indenture, if any default occurs in the making of any payment or performance under any agreement or instrument that is part of the Collateral, the Bond Trustee may take such action as may be appropriate to enforce such payment or performance, subject to Article VI, including the institution and prosecution of appropriate Proceedings. Any such action shall be without prejudice to any right to assert a Default or Event of Default under this Bond Indenture and any right to proceed thereafter as provided in Article V.

#### Section 8.02. Collection Account.

- (a) (i) Prior to the Issuance Date, the Bond Trustee shall establish or cause to be established at the Bond Trustee's Corporate Trust Office, or at another Eligible Institution, one or more segregated trust accounts in the Bond Trustee's name for the deposit of Restructuring Property and other amounts remitted under the Servicing Agreement or otherwise received with respect to the Collateral (collectively, the "Collection Account"). The Bond Trustee shall hold the Collection Account for the benefit of Bondholders, the Bond Trustee and the other Persons indemnified hereunder. The Collection Account will consist of four Subaccounts: a general subaccount (the "General Subaccount"), an excess funds subaccount (the "Excess Funds Subaccount", a reserve subaccount (the "Reserve Subaccount"), a Financing Costs subaccount (the "Upfront Financing Costs Subaccount"). The Reserve Subaccount shall consist of two subaccounts, an operating reserve subaccount (the "Operating Reserve Subaccount") and a debt service reserve subaccount (the "Debt Service Reserve Subaccount"). For administrative purposes, the Subaccounts, including, without limitation, the Subaccounts within the Reserve Subaccount, may be established by the Bond Trustee as separate accounts. All references to the Collection Account shall be deemed to include reference to all Subaccounts.
  - (ii) Concurrently with the issuance of the Bonds, there shall be deposited into the Operating Reserve Subaccount moneys provided by the Authority in an amount equal to the Required Operating Reserve Level and into the Upfront Financing Costs Subaccount proceeds of the Bonds expected to be used for Upfront Financing Costs as provided in the Issuance Advice Letter. Concurrently with the issuance of the Bonds, there shall also be deposited into the Debt Service Reserve Subaccount proceeds of the Bonds in an amount equal to the Required Debt Service Reserve Level. All amounts in the Collection Account not allocated to any other

Subaccount shall be allocated to the General Subaccount. Prior to the initial Payment Date, all amounts in the Collection Account (other than funds deposited into the Operating Reserve Subaccount, up to the Required Operating Reserve Level, in the Debt Service Reserve Subaccount, up to the Required Debt Service Reserve Level, and in the Upfront Financing Costs Subaccount, up to the amount initially deposited therein) shall be allocated to the General Subaccount. Withdrawals from and deposits to each of the Subaccounts shall be made as set forth in this Section 8.02.

- (iii) The Collection Account shall at all times be maintained in an Eligible Account and only the Bond Trustee shall have access to the Collection Account for the purpose of making deposits in and withdrawals from the Collection Account in accordance with this Bond Indenture. Funds in the Collection Account shall not be commingled with any other moneys. Except as provided in Section 8.03, all moneys deposited from time to time in the Collection Account, all deposits therein pursuant to this Bond Indenture, and all investments made in Eligible Investments with such moneys, including all income or other gain from such investments, shall be held by the Bond Trustee in the Collection Account as part of the Collateral as herein provided.
- The Lien of this Bond Indenture is pursuant to, in accordance with and governed by subdivision 2 of Section 7 of the LIPA Reform Act. The following provisions of this paragraph are included only to the extent Article 8 of the UCC is deemed to apply to any part of the Trust Estate, in addition to, and not as a qualification or limitation of, the preceding sentence. The Securities Intermediary hereby confirms that (A) the Collection Account is, or at inception will be established as, a "securities account" as such term is defined in Section 8-501(a) of the UCC, (B) it is a "securities intermediary" (as such term is defined in Section 8-102(a) (14) of the UCC) and is acting in such capacity with respect to such accounts, and (C) the Bond Trustee for the benefit of the Bondholders is the sole "entitlement holder" (as such term is defined in Section 8-102(a)(7) of the UCC) with respect to such accounts and no other Person shall have the right to give "entitlement orders" (as such term is defined in Section 8-102(a)(8)) with respect to such accounts, and agrees that each item of property (whether investment property, financial asset, security, instrument or cash) received by it will be credited to the Collection Account and shall be treated by it as a "financial asset" within the meaning of Section 8-102(a)(9) of the UCC. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, New York State shall be deemed to be the jurisdiction of the Securities Intermediary for purposes of Section 8-110 of the UCC, and the Collection Account (as well as the securities entitlements related thereto) shall be governed by the laws of the State of New York.
- (b) The Bond Trustee shall have sole dominion and exclusive control over all moneys in the Collection Account and shall apply such amounts therein as provided in this Section 8.02.
- (c) All remittances to the Bond Trustee as provided in Sections 3.03 and 5.11 and Annex 2 of the Servicing Agreement shall be deposited in the General Subaccount. All deposits to and withdrawals from the Collection Account and all allocations to the Subaccounts of the Collection Account shall be made by the Bond Trustee in accordance with the written instructions provided by the Servicer in the Semiannual Servicer Certificate or as otherwise provided herein. To the extent that the Bond Trustee shall receive from the Servicer or the Allocation Agent an amount not constituting Collateral, other than as Excess Remittances to be repaid as contemplated by the last paragraph of Section 8.02(e) below, the Bond Trustee shall promptly notify the Bond Issuer, the Authority, the Allocation Agent and the Servicer and remit such amount to or upon the order of the Authority and thereupon notify the Authority of such remittance.

- (d) On any Business Day upon which the Bond Trustee receives a written request from the Administrator stating that any Operating Expense payable by the Bond Issuer (but only as described in clauses (i) through (iv) of Section 8.02(e) below) will become due and payable prior to the next succeeding Payment Date, and setting forth the amount and nature of such Operating Expenses, as well as any supporting documentation that the Bond Trustee may reasonably request, the Bond Trustee, upon receipt of such information, will make payment of such Operating Expenses on or before the date such payment is due from amounts on deposit in the General Subaccount, the Excess Funds Subaccount and the Operating Reserve Subaccount, in that order and only to the extent required to make such payment. In no event shall amounts on deposit in the Debt Service Reserve Subaccount be applied to pay Operating Expenses or to any purpose other than the payment of amounts payable under clauses (v) through (vii) of Section 8.02(e) below.
- (e) On each Payment Date, or for any amount payable under clauses (i) through (iv) below on any Business Day pursuant to Section 8.02(d), the Bond Trustee shall apply, at the direction of the Servicer, all amounts on deposit in the Collection Account (other than amounts on deposit in the Debt Service Reserve Subaccount which shall be applied solely to amounts payable under clauses (v) through (vii) below), including all earnings thereon, to allocate or pay the following amounts, in accordance with the Semiannual Servicer Certificate, in the following priority:
  - (i) all fees, costs, expenses (including legal fees and expenses) and, to the extent not in excess of \$800,000 in each calendar year, indemnity amounts owed by the Bond Issuer to the Bond Trustee under the applicable Basic Documents shall be paid to the Bond Trustee; provided, however, that in the event of an Event of Default the provisions of Sections 5.02(a)(ii), 5.13 and 6.01(g) shall apply;
  - (ii) the Servicing Fee for such Payment Date, and all unpaid Servicing Fees from prior Payment Dates, to the extent of Servicing Fees not in excess of 0.60% of the aggregate initial principal amount of the Bonds in each calendar year shall be paid to the Servicer;
  - (iii) the Administration Fee and all unpaid Administration Fees from prior Payment Dates shall be paid to the Administrator;
  - (iv) the payment of all other Operating Expenses (other than as provided by clauses (viii) and (ix) below) for such Payment Date shall be paid to the Persons entitled thereto;
  - (v) (A) first, any overdue interest (together with, to the extent lawful, interest on such overdue interest at the applicable Bond Interest Rate) and (B) second, interest for such Payment Date shall be paid to the Bondholders;
  - (vi) principal due and payable on the Bonds as a result of an Event of Default (assuming the Bonds have been declared immediately due and payable) or on the Final Maturity Date of a Tranche of the Bonds shall be paid to the Bondholders;
  - (vii) principal for such Payment Date shall be paid to the Bondholders in accordance with the priorities of Section 2.02(c);
  - (viii) indemnity amounts owed by the Bond Issuer to the Bond Trustee under the applicable Basic Documents, to the extent in excess of \$800,000 in each calendar year, shall be paid to the Bond Trustee and premiums for directors' and officers' liability insurance for trustees and officers of the Bond Issuer shall be paid to the provider of such insurance or, if such premium

is paid by the Administrator pursuant to Section 1.03(a) of the Administration Agreement, the amount of such premium shall be paid to the Administrator in reimbursement thereof;

- (ix) the Servicing Fee for such Payment Date, and all unpaid Servicing Fees from prior Payment Dates, to the extent of Servicing Fees in excess of 0.60% of the aggregate initial principal amount of the Bonds in each calendar year shall be paid to the Servicer;
- (x) the amount, if any, by which the Required Debt Service Reserve Level exceeds the amount in the Debt Service Reserve Subaccount as of such Payment Date shall be paid or allocated to the Debt Service Reserve Subaccount;
- (xi) the amount, if any, by which the Required Operating Reserve Level exceeds the amount in the Operating Reserve Subaccount as of such Payment Date shall be paid or allocated to the Operating Reserve Subaccount;
- (xii) the amount, if any, by which the amount in the Debt Service Reserve Subaccount exceeds the Required Debt Service Reserve Level on any Payment Date shall be retained in the Debt Service Reserve Subaccount until the next Payment Date, at which time such excess amount in the Debt Service Reserve Subaccount shall be applied to the payment of amounts then due under clauses (v) through (vii) above prior to any other moneys available for such purpose and, to the extent that such excess amount exceeds amounts then due under such clause on such next Payment Date, such excess amount shall continue to be held in the Debt Service Reserve Subaccount and shall be applied under such clauses (v) through (vii) prior to any other moneys available for such purpose on succeeding Payment Dates until fully applied; and
- (xiii) the balance, if any, shall be paid or allocated to the Excess Funds Subaccount for distribution on subsequent Payment Dates.

The entire amount on deposit in the Debt Service Reserve Subaccount shall be used to the extent practicable to make all or a portion of the last remaining payments contemplated by clauses (v), (vi) and (vii) above and the entire amount on deposit in the Excess Funds Subaccount shall be used to the extent practical to make all or a portion of the last remaining payments contemplated by clause (v), (vi) and (vii) above and any unpaid Operating Expenses, then the balance, if any, in the Excess Funds Subaccount shall be paid to the Bond Issuer, free from the Lien of this Bond Indenture and shall be applied by the Bond Issuer to customer refunds in accordance with the Financing Order. When no Bonds remain Outstanding and all Ongoing Financing Costs (including any rebate or other amounts payable to the United States of America under Section 148 of the Code) have been paid, or their payment provided for, in full, then the balance, if any, in the Collection Account (including all Subaccounts therein) shall be deposited in the Operating Reserve Subaccount and paid to or at the direction of the Bond Issuer and applied to customer refunds in accordance with the Financing Order.

All partial payments of interest pursuant to clause (v) shall be allocated among each Tranche of Bonds *pro rata* based upon the respective amounts of interest owed on the Bonds of each Tranche, and allocated and paid to Holders within each Tranche *pro rata* based upon the respective principal amount of Bonds held. All partial payments of principal pursuant to clause (vi) shall be made to such Holders *pro rata* based on the respective principal amounts of Bonds held by such Holders. All payments of principal or Redemption Price pursuant to clause (vii) above with respect to each Tranche shall be made to the Holders of the Tranche then entitled to payment, based upon, in the case of Serial Bonds, the Outstanding Amount of such Bonds and, in the case of Term Bonds, the Scheduled Sinking Fund Payment of such Bonds, all in accordance with the priorities of Section 2.02(c).

Amounts on deposit in the General Subaccount or the Excess Funds Subaccount if necessary shall be applied, at the direction of the Authority, to pay Excess Remittances to the Servicer pursuant to Section 3.03(c) of the Servicing Agreement.

- If on any Payment Date, or for any amounts payable under clauses (i) through (iv) above, on any Business Day, funds on deposit in the General Subaccount are insufficient to make the payments contemplated by clauses (i) through (ix) of Section 8.02(e), the Bond Trustee shall (i) first, draw from amounts on deposit in the Excess Funds Subaccount and (ii) second, draw from amounts on deposit in the Operating Reserve Subaccount, in each case, up to the amount of such shortfall in order to make the payments contemplated by clauses (i) through (ix) of Section 8.02(e). In addition, if on any Payment Date, funds on deposit in the General Subaccount, together with moneys available in the Excess Funds Subaccount and the Operating Reserve Subaccount, are insufficient to make the payments contemplated by clauses (v) through (vii) of Section 8.02(e), the Bond Trustee shall then draw from amounts on deposit in the Debt Service Reserve Subaccount, up to the amount of such shortfall in order to make the payments contemplated by such clauses (v) through (vii) of Section 8.02(e). In addition, if on any Payment Date funds on deposit in the General Subaccount are insufficient to make the allocation contemplated by clause (x) of Section 8.02(e), the Bond Trustee shall draw from amounts on deposit in the Excess Funds Subaccount to make such allocation. If on any Payment Date funds on deposit in the Collection Account are insufficient to make the transfers contemplated by clause (v), (vi) or (vii) of Section 8.02(e), the Bond Trustee will allocate the funds drawn pursuant to the first and second sentences of this paragraph among the Tranches *pro rata* as provided in Section 8.02(e).
- (g) In the event bonds, notes or other obligations authorized by Section 2.17 are issued to refund in advance of maturity any Bonds, amounts may be withdrawn from the Operating Reserve Subaccount to pay or provide for the payment of such Bonds; provided, however, that immediately after such withdrawal, there shall remain on deposit in the Operating Reserve Subaccount an amount of moneys and Eligible Investments at least equal in the aggregate to the Required Operating Reserve Level then applicable to the Bonds.
- (h) Eligible Investments shall, for purposes of determining the amount on deposit in any Subaccount, be valued at par or maturity value.

# Section 8.03. General Provisions Regarding the Collection Account.

So long as no Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, all or a portion of the funds in the Collection Account shall be invested in Eligible Investments and reinvested by the Bond Trustee at the written direction provided by or on behalf of the Bond Issuer, upon Issuer Order; provided, however, that (i) such Eligible Investments shall mature or be redeemable at the option of the holder on or prior to the Business Day next preceding the next Payment Date or, if applicable, special payment date pursuant to Section 2.08(c), and (ii) such Eligible Investment shall not be sold, liquidated or otherwise disposed of at a loss prior to the maturity or redemption date thereof. All income or other gain from investments of moneys deposited in the Collection Account shall be deposited by the Bond Trustee in the Collection Account, and any loss resulting from such investments shall be charged to the Collection Account. The Bond Issuer will not direct the Bond Trustee to make any investment of any funds or to sell any investment held in the Collection Account unless the security interest Granted and perfected in such Collection Account will continue to be perfected in such investment or the proceeds of such sale, in either case without any further action by any Person, and, in connection with any direction to the Bond Trustee to make any such investment or sale, if requested by the Bond Trustee, the Bond Issuer shall deliver to the Bond Trustee an Opinion of Counsel, reasonably acceptable to the Bond Trustee, to such effect. The Bond Trustee shall have no liability in respect of losses incurred as a result of the liquidation of any Eligible Investment prior to its stated maturity or date of redemption the failure of the Bond Issuer to provide timely written investment direction. The Bond Trustee shall have no obligation to invest or reinvest any amounts held hereunder in the absence of written investment direction pursuant to an Issuer Order. If the rating of the Eligible Institution, which may be the Bond Trustee's Corporate Trust Office, falls below the rating requirements set forth in clause (b) of the definition of Eligible Institution, the Bond Issuer shall, within one (1) month after notice of such rating change, cause the Collection Account to be transferred to an institution meeting the requirements set forth in clause (b) of the definition of "Eligible Institution."

- (b) Subject to Section 6.01(c), the Bond Trustee shall not in any way be held liable by reason of any insufficiency in the Collection Account resulting from any loss on any Eligible Investment included therein except for losses attributable to the Bond Trustee's failure to make payments on such Eligible Investments issued by the Bond Trustee, in its commercial capacity as principal obligor and not as trustee, in accordance with their terms.
- If (i) the Bond Issuer shall have failed to give written investment directions for any funds on deposit in the Collection Account to the Bond Trustee by 11:00 am. Eastern Time (or such other time as may be agreed by the Bond Issuer and Bond Trustee) on any Business Day or (ii) a Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing with respect to the Bonds but the Bonds shall not have been declared immediately due and payable pursuant to Section 5.02, then the Bond Trustee shall, to the fullest extent practicable, invest and reinvest funds in the Collection Account in one or more money market funds (described in clause (d) of the definition of "Eligible Investments") specified in the most recent investment directions delivered by the Bond Issuer to the Bond Trustee with respect to such type of Eligible Investments; provided, however, that such investments shall mature (i) on or before the Business Day preceding the next Payment Date or, if and when established, any special payment date pursuant to Section 2.08(c), and (ii) in the case of investments in the Excess Funds Subaccount after June 15, which mature on or before the Business Day preceding the next June 30 (or such earlier date(s) as the Servicer shall specify to the Bond Trustee in writing) to permit Excess Remittances to be paid pursuant to Section 3.03(c) of the Servicing Agreement; and provided further, however, that if the Bond Issuer has never delivered written investment directions to the Bond Trustee, the Bond Trustee shall not invest or reinvest such funds in any investments.

#### Section 8.04. Release of Collateral.

- (a) So long as the Bond Issuer is not in default hereunder and no Default hereunder would occur as a result of such action, the Bond Issuer, through the Servicer, may collect, sell or otherwise dispose of written-off receivables, at any time and from time to time in the ordinary course of business, without any notice to, or release or consent by, the Bond Trustee or the Holders, but only as and to the extent permitted by the Basic Documents. All proceeds of such dispositions that are allocable to Charges shall become Collateral and be deposited to the General Subaccount pursuant to the Servicing Agreement. Without limiting the foregoing, the Bond Issuer, through the Servicer, may at any time and from time to time without any notice to, or release or consent by, the Bond Trustee or the Holders, sell or otherwise dispose of any Collateral which is part of a utility bill previously written-off as a defaulted or uncollectible account in accordance with the Servicing Agreement and the requirements of the immediately preceding sentence.
- (b) The Bond Trustee may, and when required by the provisions of this Bond Indenture shall, execute instruments to release property from the Lien of this Bond Indenture, or convey the Bond Trustee's interest in the same, in a manner and under circumstances that are not inconsistent with the provisions of this Bond Indenture. No party relying upon an instrument executed by the Bond Trustee as provided in this Article VIII shall be bound to ascertain the Bond Trustee's authority, inquire into the satisfaction of any conditions precedent or see to the application of any moneys.

(c) The Bond Trustee shall, at such time as there are no Bonds Outstanding and all sums payable by the Bond Issuer to the Bond Trustee under this Bond Indenture have been paid, release any remaining portion of the Collateral that secured the Bonds from the Lien of this Bond Indenture and release to the Bond Issuer or any other Person entitled thereto any funds then on deposit in the Collection Account. The Bond Trustee shall release property from the Lien of this Bond Indenture pursuant to this Section 8.04(c) only upon receipt of an Issuer Request accompanied by an Officer's Certificate and an Opinion of Counsel.

Section 8.05. Opinion of Counsel.

The Bond Trustee shall receive at least seven (7) days' notice when requested by the Bond Issuer to take any action pursuant to Section 8.04(b), accompanied by copies of any instruments involved, and the Bond Trustee shall also require, as a condition to such action, an Opinion of Counsel, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Bond Trustee, stating the legal effect of any such action, outlining the steps required to complete the same, and concluding that all conditions precedent to the taking of such action have been complied with and such action will not materially and adversely impair the security for the Bonds or the rights of the Bondholders in contravention of the provisions of this Bond Indenture; provided, however that such Opinion of Counsel shall not be required to express an opinion as to the fair value of the Collateral. Counsel rendering any such opinion may rely, without independent investigation, on the accuracy and validity of any certificate or other instrument delivered to the Bond Trustee in connection with any such action.

Section 8.06. Reports by Independent Registered Accountants.

As of the Issuance Date, the Bond Issuer shall appoint a firm of Independent registered public accountants of recognized national reputation for purposes of preparing and delivering the reports or certificates of such accountants required by this Bond Indenture. Upon any resignation by such firm the Bond Issuer shall provide written notice thereof to the Bond Trustee and shall promptly appoint a successor thereto that shall also be a firm of Independent registered public accountants of recognized national reputation. If the Bond Issuer shall fail to appoint a successor to a firm of Independent registered public accountants that has resigned within fifteen (15) days after such resignation, the Bond Trustee shall promptly notify the Bond Issuer of such failure in writing. If the Bond Issuer shall not have appointed a successor within ten (10) days thereafter the Bond Trustee shall promptly appoint a successor firm of Independent registered public accountants of recognized national reputation; provided, however, that the Bond Trustee shall have no liability with respect to such appointment if the Bond Trustee acted with due care with respect thereto. The fees of such Independent registered public accountants and its successor shall be payable by the Bond Issuer.

#### **ARTICLE IX**

Supplemental Bond Indentures

Section 9.01. Supplemental Bond Indentures Without Consent of Bondholders.

- (a) Without the consent of the Holders of any Bonds but with prior notice to the Rating Agencies, the Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee, when authorized by an Issuer Order, at any time and from time to time, may enter into one or more indentures supplemental hereto, in form reasonably satisfactory to the Bond Trustee, for any of the following purposes:
  - (i) to correct or amplify the description of any property, including without limitation the Collateral, at any time subject to the Lien of this Bond Indenture, or better to assure, convey

and confirm unto the Bond Trustee any property subject or required to be subjected to the Lien of this Bond Indenture, or to subject to the Lien of this Bond Indenture additional property;

- (ii) to evidence the succession, in compliance with the applicable provisions hereof, of another person to the Bond Issuer, and the assumption by any such successor of the covenants of the Bond Issuer herein and in the Bonds contained:
- (iii) to add to the covenants of the Bond Issuer, for the benefit of the Holders of the Bonds, or to surrender any right or power herein conferred upon the Bond Issuer;
- (iv) to convey, transfer, assign, mortgage or pledge any property to or with the Bond Trustee;
- (v) to cure any ambiguity, to correct or supplement any provision herein or in any supplemental bond indenture which may be inconsistent with any other provision herein or in any supplemental bond indenture or to make any other provisions with respect to matters or questions arising under this Bond Indenture or in any supplemental bond indenture; provided, however, that such action shall not adversely affect the interests of the Holders of the Bonds;
- (vi) to evidence and provide for the acceptance of the appointment hereunder by a successor trustee with respect to the Bonds and to add to or change any of the provisions of this Bond Indenture as shall be necessary to facilitate the administration of the trusts hereunder by more than one trustee, pursuant to the requirements of Article VI; or
- (vii) to modify, eliminate or add to the provisions of this Bond Indenture to such extent as shall be necessary to effect the qualification of this Bond Indenture under the Trust Indenture Act or under any similar federal statute hereafter enacted and to add to this Bond Indenture such other provisions as may be expressly required by the Trust Indenture Act.
- (viii) to qualify the Bonds of any Tranche for listing on a securities exchange or registration with a Clearing Agency; or
- (ix) to satisfy any Rating Agency requirements or criteria or to maintain, or improve upon, the existing ratings on the Bonds.

The Bond Trustee is hereby authorized to join in the execution of any such supplemental bond indenture and to make any further appropriate agreements and stipulations that may be therein contained.

(b) The Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee, when authorized by an Issuer Order, may, also without the consent of any of the Holders of the Bonds, enter into an indenture or indentures supplemental hereto for the purpose of adding any provisions to, or changing in any manner or eliminating any of the provisions of, this Bond Indenture or of modifying in any manner the rights of the Holders of the Bonds under this Bond Indenture; provided, however, that (i) such action shall not, as evidenced by an Officer's Certificate, adversely affect in any material respect the interests of the Bondholders and (ii) the Rating Agency Condition shall have been satisfied with respect thereto.

# Section 9.02. Supplemental Bond Indentures with Consent of Bondholders.

The Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee, when authorized by an Issuer Order, also may, with prior notice to the Rating Agencies and with the consent of the Holders of not less than a majority of the Outstanding Amount of the Bonds of each Tranche to be affected, by Act of such Holders delivered to the

Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee, enter into an indenture or indentures supplemental hereto for the purpose of adding any provisions to, or changing in any manner or eliminating any of the provisions of, this Bond Indenture or of modifying in any manner the rights of the Holders of the Bonds under this Bond Indenture; provided, however, that no such supplemental bond indenture shall, without the consent of the Holder of each Outstanding Bond of each Tranche affected thereby:

- (i) change the date of payment of any installment of principal of or interest on any Bond, or reduce the principal amount thereof or the interest rate thereon, change the provisions of this Bond Indenture relating to the application of collections on, or the proceeds of the sale of, the Collateral to payment of principal of or interest on the Bonds, or change any place of payment where, or the coin or currency in which, any Bond or the interest thereon is payable, or impair the right to institute suit for the enforcement of the provisions of this Bond Indenture requiring the application of funds available therefor, as provided in Article V, to the payment of any such amount due on the Bonds on or after the respective due dates thereof;
- (ii) reduce the percentage of the Outstanding Amount of the Bonds or of a Tranche thereof, the consent of the Holders of which is required for any such supplemental bond indenture, or the consent of the Holders of which is required for any waiver of compliance with certain provisions of this Bond Indenture or certain defaults hereunder and their consequences provided for in this Bond Indenture;
- (iii) modify or alter the provisions of the proviso to the definition of the term "Outstanding";
- (iv) reduce the percentage of the Outstanding Amount of the Bonds required to direct the Bond Trustee to direct the Bond Issuer to sell or liquidate the Collateral pursuant to Section 5.04;
- (v) modify any provision of this Section 9.02 except to increase any percentage specified herein or to provide that certain additional provisions of this Bond Indenture or the other Basic Documents cannot be modified or waived without the consent of the Holder of each Outstanding Bond affected thereby;
- (vi) modify any of the provisions of this Bond Indenture in such manner as to affect the calculation of the amount of any payment of interest or principal due on any Bond on any Payment Date (including the calculation of any of the individual components of such calculation) or change the Expected Amortization Schedules, Expected Sinking Fund Schedule or Final Maturity Dates of any Tranche of Bonds;
- (vii) decrease the Required Operating Reserve Level or the Required Debt Service Reserve Level;
- (viii) modify the provisions of this Bond Indenture regarding the voting of the Bonds held by the Bond Issuer, the Servicer or any Affiliate of any of the foregoing Persons;
- (ix) decrease the percentage of the aggregate principal amount of Bonds or affected Tranche required to amend the sections of this Bond Indenture which specify applicable percentages of the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds necessary to amend any Basic Document:
  - (x) cause a violation of Section 3.14; or

(xi) permit the creation of any Lien ranking prior to or on a parity with the Lien of this Bond Indenture with respect to any part of the Collateral, other than as contemplated by Section 2.17, or, except as otherwise permitted or contemplated herein, terminate the Lien of this Bond Indenture on any property at any time subject hereto or deprive the Holder of any Bond of the security provided by the Lien of this Bond Indenture.

The Bond Trustee may in its discretion determine whether or not any Bonds of a Tranche would be affected by any supplemental bond indenture and any such determination shall be conclusive upon the Holders of all Bonds of such Tranche, whether theretofore or thereafter authenticated and delivered hereunder. The Bond Trustee shall not be liable for any such determination made in good faith.

It shall not be necessary for any Act of Bondholders under this Section 9.02 to approve the particular form of any proposed supplemental bond indenture, but it shall be sufficient if such Act shall approve the substance thereof.

Promptly after the execution by the Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee of any supplemental bond indenture pursuant to this Section 9.02, the Bond Issuer shall send or cause to be sent to the Rating Agencies and the Holders of the Bonds to which such amendment or supplemental bond indenture relates either a copy of such supplemental bond indenture or a notice setting forth in general terms the substance of such supplemental bond indenture. Any failure of the Bond Trustee to send such copy or notice, or any defect therein, shall not, however, in any way impair or affect the validity of any such supplemental bond indenture.

## Section 9.03. Execution of Supplemental Bond Indentures.

In executing any supplemental bond indenture permitted by this Article IX or the modifications thereby of the trusts created by this Bond Indenture, the Bond Trustee shall be entitled to receive, and subject to Sections 6.01 and 6.02, shall be fully protected in relying upon, an Opinion of Counsel stating that the execution of such supplemental bond indenture is authorized or permitted by this Bond Indenture. The Bond Trustee may, but shall not be obligated to, enter into any such supplemental bond indenture that affects the Bond Trustee's own rights, duties, liabilities or immunities under this Bond Indenture or otherwise.

Any supplemental bond indenture shall be accompanied by an Opinion of Counsel to the effect that it does not adversely affect the exclusion of interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes.

#### Section 9.04. Effect of Supplemental Bond Indenture.

Upon the execution of any supplemental bond indenture pursuant to the provisions hereof, this Bond Indenture shall be and be deemed to be modified and amended in accordance therewith with respect to each Tranche of Bonds affected thereby, and the respective rights, limitations of rights, obligations, duties, liabilities and immunities under this Bond Indenture of the Bond Trustee, the Bond Issuer and the Holders of the Bonds shall thereafter be determined, exercised and enforced hereunder subject in all respects to such modifications and amendments, and all the terms and conditions of any such supplemental bond indenture shall be and be deemed to be part of the terms and conditions of this Bond Indenture for any and all purposes. If required by the Bond Trustee, Bonds may bear a notation in form approved by the Bond Trustee as to any matter provided for in such supplemental bond indenture. If the Bond Issuer or the Bond Trustee shall so determine, new Bonds so modified as to conform, in the opinion of the Bond Trustee and the Bond Issuer, to any such supplemental bond indenture may be prepared and

executed by the Bond Issuer and authenticated and delivered by the Bond Trustee in exchange for Outstanding Bonds.

#### **ARTICLE X**

# Redemption of Bonds

Section 10.01. Redemption by Bond Issuer.

This Bond Indenture does not permit redemption of Bonds prior to maturity under any circumstances, except as required by Section 2.02(e) and as permitted by 2.02(f), and in each case pursuant to this Article X.

Section 10.02. Privilege of Redemption and Redemption Price.

Bonds of a Tranche subject to redemption prior to maturity shall be redeemable, upon notice as provided in this Article X, at the times and at the Redemption Prices specified in Section 2.02(e) and Section 2.02(f).

Section 10.03. Redemption at the Direction of the Bond Issuer.

In the case of any redemption of Bonds at the direction of the Bond Issuer, the Bond Issuer shall give written notice to the Bond Trustee of its direction so to redeem, of the redemption date, of the Tranche and of the principal amounts of the Bonds of each maturity of such Tranche and of the Bonds of each interest rate within a maturity to be redeemed (which Tranche, maturities and principal amounts thereof to be redeemed shall be determined by the Bond Issuer in its sole discretion, subject to any limitations with respect thereto contained in this Bond Indenture). Such notice shall be given at least 45 days prior to the redemption date or such shorter period as shall be acceptable to the Bond Trustee. In the event notice of redemption shall have been provided pursuant to Section 10.06, there shall be paid prior to the redemption date to the appropriate Paying Agent an amount in cash which, in addition to other moneys, if any, available therefor held by such Paying Agent, will be sufficient to redeem on the redemption date at the Redemption Price thereof, plus interest accrued and unpaid to the redemption date, all of the Bonds to be redeemed. The Bond Issuer shall promptly notify the Bond Trustee in writing of all such payments by it to a Paying Agent other than the Bond Trustee.

Section 10.04. Redemption Otherwise Than at the Bond Issuer's Direction.

Whenever by the terms of this Bond Indenture the Bond Trustee is required or authorized to redeem Bonds otherwise than at the direction of the Bond Issuer, the Bond Trustee shall (i) select the Bonds to be redeemed, (ii) give the notice of redemption for and on behalf of and at the expense of the Bond Issuer, and (iii) pay out of moneys available therefor the Redemption Price thereof, plus interest accrued and unpaid to the redemption date, to the appropriate Paying Agents in accordance with the terms of this Article X.

Section 10.05. Selection of Bonds to be Redeemed.

If fewer than all of the Bonds of like Tranche shall be called for prior redemption, the particular Bonds or portions of Bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by the Bond Trustee in such manner as the Bond Trustee in its discretion may deem fair and appropriate; provided, however, that for any Bond of a denomination of more than the Minimum Denomination, the portion of such Bond to be redeemed shall be in a principal amount equal to such Minimum Denomination, and that, in selecting portions of such Bonds for redemption, the Bond Trustee shall treat each such Bond as representing that number of Bonds

of such Minimum Denomination which is obtained by dividing the principal amount of such Bond to be redeemed in part by the amount of such Minimum Denomination.

# Section 10.06. Notice of Redemption.

- When the Bond Trustee shall receive notice from the Bond Issuer of its election or direction to redeem Bonds pursuant to Section 10.03, and when redemption of Bonds is authorized or required pursuant to Section 10.04, the Bond Trustee shall give notice, in the name of, on behalf of and at the expense of the Bond Issuer, of the redemption of such Bonds, which notice shall specify the Series, CUSIP number, if any, maturities and interest rates within maturities, if any, of the Bonds to be redeemed, the redemption date and the place or places where amounts due upon such redemption will be payable and, if fewer than all of the Bonds of any like Tranche, maturity and interest rate within maturities are to be redeemed, the letters and numbers or other distinguishing marks of such Bonds so to be redeemed, and, in the case of Bonds to be redeemed in part only, such notice shall also specify the respective portions of the principal amount thereof to be redeemed. Such notice shall further state that on such date there shall become due and payable upon each Bond to be redeemed the Redemption Price thereof, or the Redemption Price of the specified portions of the principal thereof in the case of Bonds to be redeemed in part only, together with interest accrued to the redemption date, and that from and after such date interest thereon shall cease to accrue and be payable, subject to Section 10.06(b) below. Such notice shall be mailed by the Bond Trustee, postage prepaid, not less than 30 days before the redemption date, to the Registered Holders of any Bonds or portions of Bonds which are to be redeemed, at their last addresses, if any, appearing upon the Bond Register, subject to Section 2.16(b), and also promptly shall be given to the Rating Agencies.
- (b) Any notice of optional redemption of Bonds may state that it is conditional in whole or in part upon receipt by the Bond Trustee of moneys sufficient to pay the Redemption Price together with accrued interest to the redemption date, or upon the satisfaction of any other condition, or that it may be rescinded upon the occurrence of any other event, and any conditional notice so given may be rescinded if and to the extent any such other event occurs. Notice of such rescission, failure to fund the Redemption Price or satisfaction of such other condition shall be given by the Bond Trustee to affected Registered Holders of such Bonds as promptly as practicable upon the failure of such condition or the occurrence of such other event, in the same manner as the conditional notice of redemption was given.
- (c) Failure of the Registered Holder of any Bond which is to be redeemed to receive any notice given pursuant to subsection (a) or (b) of this Section 10.06 shall not affect the sufficiency or validity of the proceedings contemplated thereby.

#### Section 10.07. Payment of Redeemed Bonds.

Notice having been given in the manner provided in Section 10.06, the Bonds or portions thereof so called for redemption shall become due and payable on the redemption date so designated at the Redemption Price, plus interest accrued and unpaid to the redemption date, and, if presentation and surrender thereof are required hereby, upon presentation and surrender thereof at the office specified in such notice, such Bonds or portions thereof shall be paid at the Redemption Price plus interest accrued and unpaid to the redemption date. If there shall be drawn for redemption less than all of a Bond, if presentation and surrender thereof are required hereby, the Bond Issuer shall execute and the Bond Trustee shall authenticate and the Paying Agent shall deliver, upon the surrender of such Bond, without charge to the owner thereof, for the unredeemed balance of the principal amount of the Bonds so surrendered, at the option of the owner thereof, Bonds of like Tranche, maturity and interest rate in any of the authorized denominations. If, on the redemption date, moneys for the redemption of all the Bonds or portions thereof of any like Tranche, maturity, or of like interest rate within a maturity, to be redeemed,

together with interest to the redemption date, shall be held by the Paying Agents so as to be available therefor on said date and if notice of redemption shall have been given as aforesaid, then, from and after the redemption date interest on the Bonds or portions thereof of such Series, maturity and interest rate so called for redemption shall cease to accrue and become payable. If said moneys shall not be so available on the redemption date, such Bonds or portions thereof shall continue to bear interest until paid at the same rate as they would have borne had they not been called for redemption.

# ARTICLE XI Miscellaneous

Section 11.01. Form of Documents Delivered to Bond Trustee.

In any case where several matters are required to be certified by, or covered by an opinion of, any specified Person, it is not necessary that all such matters be certified by, or covered by the opinion of, only one such Person, or that they be so certified or covered by only one document, but one such Person may certify or give an opinion with respect to some matters and one or more other such Persons as to other matters, and any such Person may certify or give an opinion as to such matters in one or several documents.

Any certificate or opinion of an Authorized Officer of the Bond Issuer may be based, insofar as it relates to legal matters, upon a certificate or opinion of, or representations by, counsel, unless such officer knows, or in the exercise of reasonable care should know, that the certificate or opinion or representations with respect to the matters upon which his or her certificate or opinion is based are erroneous. Any such certificate of an Authorized Officer or Opinion of Counsel may be based, insofar as it relates to factual matters, upon a certificate or opinion of, or representations by, an officer or officers of the Servicer, the Seller, the Bond Issuer or the Administrator, stating that the information with respect to such factual matters is in the possession of the Servicer, the Seller, the Bond Issuer or the Administrator, unless such counsel knows, or in the exercise of reasonable care should know, that the certificate or opinion or representations with respect to such matters are erroneous.

Whenever in this Bond Indenture, in connection with any application or certificate or report to the Bond Trustee, it is provided that the Bond Issuer shall deliver any document as a condition of the granting of such application, or as evidence of the Bond Issuer's compliance with any term hereof, it is intended that the truth and accuracy, at the time of the granting of such application or at the effective date of such certificate or report (as the case may be), of the facts and opinions stated in such document shall in such case be conditions precedent to the right of the Bond Issuer to have such application granted or to the sufficiency of such certificate or report. The foregoing shall not, however, be construed to affect the Bond Trustee's right to rely upon the truth and accuracy of any statement or opinion contained in any such document as provided in Article VI.

Where any Person is required to make, give or execute two or more applications, requests, consents, certificates, statements, opinions or other instruments under this Bond Indenture, they may, but need not, be consolidated and form one instrument.

Section 11.02. Notices.

(a) Unless otherwise specifically provided herein, all notices, directions, consents and waivers required under the terms and provisions of this Bond Indenture shall be in English and in writing, and any such notice, direction, consent or waiver may be given by United States mail, courier service, facsimile transmission or electronic mail (confirmed by telephone, United States mail or courier service in the case of notice by facsimile transmission or electronic mail) or any other customary means of

communication, and any such notice, direction, consent or waiver shall be effective when delivered, or if mailed, three (3) days after deposit in the United States mail with proper postage for ordinary mail prepaid,

if to the Bond Issuer, to:

Utility Debt Securitization Authority c/o LIPA, as Administrator 333 Earle Ovington Boulevard Uniondale, New York 11553 Attention: Chief Financial Officer Telephone: (516) 222-7700 Telecopy: (516) 222-9137

if to the Bond Trustee, to:

Email: tfalcone@lipower.org

The Bank of New York Mellon 101 Barclay Street - Floor 7-W New York, New York 10286 Attention: Frederic Belen Telephone: (212) 815-2588 Telecopy: (732) 667-9205

Email: frederic.belen@bnymellon.com

if to the Rating Agencies, to:

Standard & Poor's Ratings Services
55 Water Street
New York, New York 10041
Attention: Structured Credit Surveillance

Telephone: 212-438-8991

E-mail: servicer-report@standardandpoors.com

and

Moody's Investors Service, Inc. 25th Floor, 7 World Trade Center, 250 Greenwich Street New York, New York 10007 Attention: ABS/RMBS Monitoring Department E-mail: ServicerReports@moodys.com

and

Fitch Ratings 33 Whitehall Street New York, New York 10004 Attention: ABS Surveillance Telephone: 212-908-0500

E-mail: surveillance-abs-other@fitchratings.com

or in each case at such other address as shall be designated to the Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee.

Section 11.03. Effect of Headings and Table of Contents.

The Article and Section headings herein and the Table of Contents are for convenience only and shall not affect the construction hereof.

Section 11.04. Successors and Assigns.

All covenants and agreements in this Bond Indenture and the Bonds by the Bond Issuer shall bind its successors and assigns, whether so expressed or not. All agreements of the Bond Trustee in this Bond Indenture shall bind its successors.

Section 11.05. Severability.

In case any provision in this Bond Indenture or in the Bonds shall be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby.

Section 11.06. Benefits of Bond Indenture.

Nothing in this Bond Indenture or in the Bonds, express or implied, shall give to any Person, other than the parties hereto and their successors hereunder, and the Bondholders, and any other party secured hereunder, and any other Person with an ownership interest in any part of the Collateral, any benefit or any legal or equitable right, remedy or claim under this Bond Indenture.

Section 11.07. Legal Holidays.

In any case where the date on which any payment is due shall not be a Business Day, then (notwithstanding any other provision of the Bonds or this Bond Indenture) payment need not be made on such date, but may be made on the next succeeding Business Day with the same force and effect as if made on the date on which nominally due, and no interest shall accrue for the period from and after any such nominal date. In any case where the last date for performance of any act or the exercising of any right, as provided in this Bond Indenture, is not a Business Day, such act may be performed and such right may be exercised on the next succeeding Business Day, with the same force and effect as if done on the date on which nominally required.

Section 11.08. Governing Law.

THIS BOND INDENTURE SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK, WITHOUT REFERENCE TO ITS CONFLICT OF LAW PROVISIONS, AND THE OBLIGATIONS, RIGHTS AND REMEDIES OF THE PARTIES HEREUNDER SHALL BE DETERMINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SUCH LAWS.

Section 11.09. Counterparts.

This Bond Indenture may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which so executed shall be deemed to be an original, but all such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same instrument.

#### Section 11.10. No Recourse to Trustees, Etc., and Shareholders, Etc.

No recourse may be taken, directly or indirectly, with respect to the obligations of the Bond Issuer or the Bond Trustee on the Bonds or under this Bond Indenture or any certificate or other writing delivered in connection herewith or therewith, against (i) any trustee, director, officer, employee, agent or attorney of the Bond Issuer or (ii) any shareholder, partner, owner, beneficiary, agent, officer, director or employee of the Bond Trustee. Each Bondholder by accepting a Bond specifically confirms the non-recourse nature of these obligations and waives and releases all such liability. These waivers and releases are part of the consideration for issuance of the Bonds.

#### Section 11.11. No Recourse to Bond Issuer, Authority or LIPA.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Bond Indenture or any supplemental bond indenture to the contrary, Bondholders and the Bond Trustee shall have no recourse to the credit or any assets of the Authority, LIPA or the Bond Issuer (other than, in the case of the Bond Issuer, the Collateral), but shall look only to the Collateral, with respect to any amounts due to the Bondholders hereunder and under the Bonds and to the Bond Trustee. Each Bondholder by accepting a Bond, and the Bond Trustee, specifically confirms the non-recourse nature of these obligations and waives and releases all such liability. These waivers and releases are part of the consideration for issuance of the Bonds.

# Section 11.12. Inspection.

The Bond Issuer agrees that, on reasonable prior notice, it will permit any representative of the Bond Trustee, during the Bond Issuer's normal business hours, to examine all the books of account, records, reports, and other papers of the Bond Issuer, to make copies and extracts therefrom, to cause such books to be audited by Independent certified public accountants, and to discuss the Bond Issuer's affairs, finances and accounts with the Bond Trustee's officers, employees, and Independent certified public accountants, all at such reasonable times and as often as may be reasonably requested. The Bond Trustee shall and shall cause its representatives to hold in confidence all such information except to the extent disclosure may be required by law (and all reasonable applications for confidential treatment are unavailing) and except to the extent that the Bond Trustee may reasonably determine that such disclosure is consistent with its obligations hereunder. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the foregoing shall not be construed to prohibit (i) disclosure of any and all information that is or becomes publicly known, or information obtained by the Bond Trustee from sources other than the Bond Issuer, provided such parties are rightfully in possession of such information and do not have an obligation of confidentiality, (ii) disclosure of any and all information (A) if required to do so by any applicable LIPA Reform Act, law, rule or regulation, (B) pursuant to any subpoena, civil investigative demand or similar demand or regulatory authority exercising its proper jurisdiction, (C) in any preliminary or final official statement, or contract or other document pertaining to the transactions contemplated by this Bond Indenture or the other Basic Documents approved in advance by the Bond Issuer or (D) to any affiliate, independent or internal auditor, agent, employee or attorney of the Bond Trustee having a need to know the same, provided that such parties agree to be bound by the confidentiality provisions contained in this Section 11.12, or (iii) any other disclosure authorized by the Bond Issuer.

#### Section 11.13. Trustee Capacity.

Each of the Bondholders by accepting the Bonds shall be deemed to acknowledge and consent to The Bank of New York Mellon acting in the capacity of Bond Trustee.

# Section 11.14. Waiver of Jury Trial.

EACH OF THE BOND ISSUER AND THE BOND TRUSTEE HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, ANY AND ALL RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LEGAL PROCEEDING ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS BOND INDENTURE, THE BONDS OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY.

# Section 11.15. Rule 17g-5 Compliance.

- (a) The Bond Trustee agrees that any notice, report, request for satisfaction of the Rating Agency Condition, document or other information provided by the Bond Trustee to any Rating Agency under this Bond Indenture or any other Basic Document to which it is a party for the purpose of determining the initial credit rating of the Bonds or undertaking credit rating surveillance of the Bonds shall be provided, substantially concurrently, to the Servicer for posting on a password-protected website (the "17g-5 Website"). The Servicer shall be responsible for posting all of the information on the 17g-5 Website.
- (b) The Bond Trustee will not be responsible for creating or maintaining the 17g-5 Website, posting any information to the 17g-5 Website or assuring that the 17g-5 Website complies with the requirements of this Bond Indenture, Rule 17g-5 or any other law or regulation. In no event shall the Bond Trustee be deemed to make any representation in respect of the content of the 17g-5 Website or compliance by the 17g-5 Website with this Bond Indenture, Rule 17g-5 or any other law or regulation. The Bond Trustee shall have no obligation to engage in or respond to any oral communications with respect to the transactions contemplated hereby, any transaction documents relating hereto or in any way relating to the Bonds or for the purposes of determining the initial credit rating of the Bonds or undertaking credit rating surveillance of the Bonds with any Rating Agency or any of its respective officers, directors or employees. The Bond Trustee shall not be responsible or liable for the dissemination of any identification numbers or passwords for the 17g-5 Website, including by the Servicer, the Rating Agencies, a nationally recognized statistical rating organization ("NRSRO"), any of their respective agents or any other party. Additionally, the Bond Trustee shall not be liable for the use of the information posted on the 17g-5 Website, whether by the Servicer, the Rating Agencies, an NRSRO or any other third party that may gain access to the 17g-5 Website or the information posted thereon.

[Balance of Page Intentionally Left Blank; Signature Page Follows] IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee have caused this Bond Indenture to be duly executed by their respective officers, thereunto duly authorized, all as of the day and year first above written.

	ΓΥ DEBT SECURITIZATION AUTHORITY d Issuer,
By:	
Name:	Joseph A. Branca
Title:	Chief Financial Officer
	ANK OF NEW YORK MELLON, d Trustee
Ву:	
Name:	Joseph M. Lawlor
Title:	Vice President

## EXHIBIT A FORM OF BOND

REGISTERED NO. [ ] \$[ ]

UNLESS AND UNTIL IT IS EXCHANGED IN WHOLE OR IN PART FOR SECURITIES IN DEFINITIVE REGISTERED FORM, THIS SECURITY MAY NOT BE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT AS A WHOLE BY THE CLEARING AGENCY TO THE NOMINEE OF THE CLEARING AGENCY OR BY A NOMINEE OF THE CLEARING AGENCY TO THE CLEARING AGENCY OR ANOTHER NOMINEE OF THE CLEARING AGENCY OR BY THE CLEARING AGENCY OR ANY SUCH NOMINEE TO A SUCCESSOR CLEARING AGENCY OR A NOMINEE OF SUCH SUCCESSOR CLEARING AGENCY. UNLESS THIS SECURITY IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY, A NEW YORK CORPORATION ("DTC"), TO THE ISSUER OR ITS AGENT FOR REGISTRATION OF TRANSFER, EXCHANGE OR PAYMENT, AND ANY SECURITY ISSUED IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF CEDE & CO. OR IN SUCH OTHER NAME AS IS REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC (AND ANY PAYMENT IS MADE TO CEDE & CO. OR TO SUCH OTHER ENTITY AS IS REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH AS THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, CEDE & CO., HAS AN INTEREST HEREIN.

THE PRINCIPAL OF THIS BOND WILL BE PAID IN INSTALLMENTS AS SET FORTH HEREIN. ACCORDINGLY, THE OUTSTANDING PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF THIS BOND AT ANY TIME MAY BE LESS THAN THE AMOUNT SHOWN ON THE FACE HEREOF. THE HOLDER OF THIS BOND HAS NO RECOURSE TO THE BOND ISSUER HEREOF AND AGREES TO LOOK ONLY TO THE COLLATERAL, AS DESCRIBED IN THE BOND INDENTURE, FOR PAYMENT OF ANY AMOUNTS DUE HEREUNDER. ALL OBLIGATIONS OF THE BOND ISSUER OF THIS BOND UNDER THE TERMS OF THE BOND INDENTURE WILL BE RELEASED AND DISCHARGED UPON PAYMENT IN FULL HEREOF OR AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN THE BOND INDENTURE.

NEITHER THE FULL FAITH AND CREDIT NOR THE TAXING POWER OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK IS PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF, OR INTEREST ON, THIS BOND.

#### RESTRUCTURING BONDS

Series 2016B

TRANCHE [ - ] BOND

Interest Rate

Final Maturity Date

Original Cusip

# Original Principal Amount:

Utility Debt Securitization Authority, a special purpose corporate municipal instrumentality, body corporate and politic, political subdivision and public benefit corporation of the State of New York (herein referred to as the "Bond Issuer"), for value received, hereby promises to pay to

[\_\_\_\_\_\_\_], or registered assigns, the Original Principal Amount shown above in semiannual installments on the Payment Dates and in the amounts specified in the Bond Indenture hereinafter mentioned or, if less, the amounts determined pursuant to Section 8.02 of the Bond Indenture, in each year, commencing on the date determined pursuant to Section 2.02 of the Bond Indenture and ending on or before the Final Maturity Date (if this Bond has a Final Maturity Date on and after December 15, 2030, subject to redemption prior to maturity as described below) and to pay interest on the principal amount of this Bond, at the Interest Rate shown above, on each June 15 and December 15, commencing on June 15, 2017, or if any such day is not a Business Day, the next succeeding Business Day, and continuing until the earlier of the payment of the principal hereof or the Final Maturity Date (each a "Payment Date"). Interest on this Bond will accrue for each Payment Date from the most recent Payment Date on which interest has been paid to but excluding such Payment Date or, if no interest has yet been paid, from September 8, 2016. Interest will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.

The principal of and interest on this Bond are payable in such coin or currency of the United States of America as at the time of payment is legal tender for payment of public and private debts. All payments made by the Bond Issuer with respect to this Bond shall be applied first to interest due and payable on this Bond as provided above and then to the unpaid principal of this Bond, all in the manner set forth in Section 8.02 of the Bond Indenture.

This Bond is one of a duly authorized issue of Bonds of the Bond Issuer, designated as its Restructuring Bonds, Series 2016B (herein called the "Bonds"), issuable in one or more Tranches, and further designated as a Tranche [-] Bond (collectively with all other Tranche [-] Bonds of this Series, the "Tranche [-] Bonds" or the "Bonds of this Tranche"), all issued or to be issued under a Bond Indenture dated as of September 8, 2016 (the "Bond Indenture"), between the Bond Issuer and The Bank of New York Mellon, as Bond Trustee (the "Bond Trustee," which term includes any successor trustee under the Bond Indenture), to which Bond Indenture and all indentures supplemental thereto reference is hereby made for a statement of the respective rights and obligations thereunder of the Bond Issuer, the Bond Trustee and the Holders of the Bonds. All terms used in this Bond that are defined in the Bond Indenture, as supplemented or amended, shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Bond Indenture, as supplemented or amended.

The Bonds of this Tranche and the other Tranches of Bonds issued and to be issued by the Bond Issuer under the Bond Indenture are and will be equally and ratably secured by the Collateral, as provided in the Bond Indenture.

Neither the full faith and credit nor the taxing power of the State of New York is pledged to the payment of the principal of, or interest on, this Bond.

The principal of this Bond shall be payable on each Payment Date only to the extent that amounts in the Collection Account are available therefor, and only until the outstanding principal balance thereof on such Payment Date (after giving effect to all payments of principal, if any, made on such Payment Date) has been reduced to the principal balance specified in the Expected Amortization Schedule or Expected Sinking Fund Schedule, as applicable, which is included in Section 2.02 of the Bond Indenture, unless payable earlier either because an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing and the Bond Trustee or the Holders of Bonds representing not less than a majority of the Outstanding Amount of the Bonds have declared the Bonds to be immediately due and payable in accordance with Section 5.02 of the Bond Indenture (unless such declaration shall have been rescinded and annulled in accordance with Section 5.02 of the Bond Indenture) or, if this Bond is subject to optional redemption prior to maturity, because this Bond has been redeemed prior to maturity. However, actual principal payments may be made in lesser than expected amounts and at later than expected times as determined pursuant to

Section 8.02 of the Bond Indenture. The entire unpaid principal amount of this Bond shall be due and payable on the Final Maturity Date hereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the entire unpaid principal amount of the Bonds shall be due and payable, if not then previously paid, on the date on which an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing and the Bond Trustee or the Holders of the Bonds representing not less than a majority of the Outstanding Amount of the Bonds have declared the Bonds to be immediately due and payable in the manner provided in Section 5.02 of the Bond Indenture (unless such declaration shall have been rescinded and annulled in accordance with Section 5.02 of the Indenture). All principal payments on the Bonds of this Tranche shall be made pro rata to the Holders of the Bonds of this Tranche entitled thereto based on the respective principal amounts of the Bonds of this Tranche held by them.

Payments of interest on this Bond due and payable on each Payment Date, together with the installment of principal shall be made by check mailed first-class, postage prepaid, to the Person whose name appears as the Registered Holder of this Bond (or one or more Predecessor Bonds) on the Bond Register as of the close of business on the Record Date, except that (i) upon application to the Bond Trustee by any Holder owning Bonds in the principal amount of \$10,000,000 or more not later than the applicable Record Date, payment will be made by wire transfer to an account maintained by such Holder and (ii) if this Bond is a Book-Entry Bond, payments will be made by wire transfer in immediately available funds to the account designated by the Holder of this Bond unless and as required by the operational rules and procedures of the Clearing Agency until such Bond is exchanged for Definitive Bonds (in which event payments shall be made as provided above), and except for the final installment of principal payable with respect to this Bond on a Payment Date which shall be payable as provided below. Such checks shall be mailed to the Person entitled thereto at the address of such Person as it appears on the Bond Register as of the applicable Record Date without requiring that this Bond be submitted for notation of payment. Any reduction in the principal amount of this Bond (or any one or more Predecessor Bonds) effected by any payments made on any Payment Date shall be binding upon all future Holders of this Bond and of any Bond issued upon the registration of transfer hereof or in exchange hereof or in lieu hereof, whether or not noted hereon. If funds are expected to be available, as provided in the Bond Indenture, for payment in full of the then remaining unpaid principal amount of this Bond on a Payment Date, then the Bond Trustee, in the name of and on behalf of the Bond Issuer, will notify the Person who was the Registered Holder hereof as of the Record Date preceding such Payment Date by notice mailed no later than five days prior to such final Payment Date and shall specify that such final installment will be payable only upon presentation and surrender of this Bond and shall specify the place where this Bond may be presented and surrendered for payment of such installment.

The Bond Issuer shall pay interest on overdue installments of interest at the Bond Interest Rate to the extent lawful.

If this Bond is part of Tranche 15 through Tranche 20 of the Bonds it shall be subject to redemption from time to time prior to maturity from Sinking Fund Payments at a Redemption Price of 100% of the principal amount of such Tranche of the Bonds to be redeemed. Unless an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing and the unpaid principal amount of all Bonds and accrued interest thereon has been declared to be due and payable, on each Payment Date, the Bond Trustee shall redeem such Tranche of the Bonds prior to maturity and pay to the Registered Holders amounts payable pursuant to Section 8.02(e) as a Sinking Fund Payment until the Outstanding Amount of such Tranche of the Bonds has been reduced to zero; provided, however, that any payment that reduces the Outstanding Amount to zero shall be applied as a payment of a maturity of such Tranche of the Bonds and not as a redemption prior to maturity; provided further, however, that no Sinking Fund Payment shall be made prior to the first Scheduled Sinking Fund Redemption Date specified in the Expected Sinking Fund Schedule included in Section 2.02 of the Bond Indenture and on any Payment Date in an amount that reduces the Outstanding Amount of such Tranche of the Bonds below the Minimum Remaining

Outstanding Amount specified in the Expected Sinking Fund Schedule included in Section 2.02 of the Bond Indenture; and provided further, however, that any Bonds of such Tranche of the Bonds presented to the Bond Trustee for cancellation on or before forty-five (45) days prior to a Payment Date shall reduce the amount to be redeemed on such Payment Date by a like principal amount.

If this Bond has a Final Maturity Date on or after December 15, 2030, it shall be subject to optional redemption by the Bond Issuer in whole or in part, in any order, from time to time on any Business Day on and after June 15, 2026, upon payment of the Redemption Price of 100% of the principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed, together with accrued interest to the redemption date.

Notice of redemption of Bonds shall be given as provided by Section 10.06 of the Bond Indenture not less than 30 days before the redemption date to the Registered Holders of the Bonds to be redeemed, at their last addresses, if any, appearing on the Bond Register; provided, however, that if this Bond is a Book-Entry Bond, such notice shall be given to the Clearing Agency. Failure of the Registered Holder of any Bond which is to be redeemed to receive any notice of redemption shall not affect the sufficiency or validity of the proceedings for the redemption thereof.

Any notice of optional redemption of Bonds may state that it is conditional in whole or in part upon receipt by the Bond Trustee of moneys sufficient to pay the Redemption Price together with accrued interest to the redemption date, or upon the satisfaction of any other condition, or that it may be rescinded upon the occurrence of any other event, and any conditional notice so given may be rescinded if and to the extent any such other event occurs. Notice of such rescission, failure to fund the Redemption Price or satisfaction of such other condition shall be given by the Bond Trustee to affected Registered Holders of such Bonds as promptly as practicable upon the failure of such condition or the occurrence of such other event, in the same manner as the conditional notice of redemption was given.

As provided in the Bond Indenture and subject to certain limitations set forth therein, the transfer of this Bond may be registered on the Bond Register upon surrender of this Bond for registration of transfer at the office or agency designated by the Bond Issuer pursuant to the Bond Indenture, duly endorsed by, or accompanied by (a) a written instrument of transfer in form satisfactory to the Bond Trustee duly executed by the Holder hereof or his attorney duly authorized in writing, with such signature guaranteed by an institution which is a member of one of the following recognized Signature Guaranty Programs: (i) The Securities Transfer Agent Medallion Program (STAMP); (ii) The New York Stock Exchange Medallion Program (MSP); (iii) The Stock Exchange Medallion Program (SEMP); or (iv) in such other guarantee program acceptable to the Bond Trustee, and (b) such other documents as the Bond Trustee may require, and thereupon one or more new Bonds of this Tranche of Minimum Denominations and in the same aggregate principal amount will be issued to the designated transferee or transferees. No service charge will be charged for any registration of transfer or exchange of this Bond, but the transferor may be required to pay a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in connection with any such registration of transfer or exchange.

Prior to the due presentment for registration of transfer of this Bond, the Bond Issuer, the Bond Trustee and any agent of the Bond Issuer or the Bond Trustee may treat the Person in whose name this Bond is registered (as of the day of determination) as the owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payments of principal of and interest on this Bond and for all other purposes whatsoever, whether or not this Bond be overdue, and neither the Bond Issuer, the Bond Trustee nor any such agent shall be affected by notice to the contrary.

The Bond Indenture permits, with certain exceptions as therein provided, the amendment thereof and the modification of the rights and obligations of the Bond Issuer and the rights of the Holders of the Bonds under the Bond Indenture at any time by the Bond Issuer with the consent of the Holders of Bonds

representing a majority of the Outstanding Amount of all Bonds at the time Outstanding of each Tranche to be affected. The Bond Indenture also contains provisions permitting the Holders of Bonds representing specified percentages of the Outstanding Amount of the Bonds, on behalf of the Holders of all the Bonds, to waive compliance by the Bond Issuer with certain provisions of the Bond Indenture and certain past defaults under the Bond Indenture and their consequences. Any such consent or waiver by the Holder of this Bond (or any one of more Predecessor Bonds) shall be conclusive and binding upon such Holder and upon all future Holders of this Bond and of any Bond issued upon the registration of transfer hereof or in exchange hereof or in lieu hereof whether or not notation of such consent or waiver is made upon this Bond. The Bond Indenture also permits the Bond Trustee to amend or waive certain terms and conditions set forth in the Bond Indenture without the consent of Holders of the Bonds issued thereunder.

The Bond Indenture contains provisions for defeasance at any time of the indebtedness of the Bond Issuer on this Bond upon compliance by the Bond Issuer with certain conditions set forth in the Bond Indenture.

The term "Bond Issuer" as used in this Bond includes any successor to the Bond Issuer under the Bond Indenture.

The Bonds are issuable only in registered form in Minimum Denominations as provided in the Bond Indenture, subject to certain limitations therein set forth.

This Bond and the Bond Indenture shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York, without reference to its conflict of law provisions, and the obligations, rights and remedies of the parties hereunder and thereunder shall be determined in accordance with such laws.

No reference herein to the Bond Indenture and no provision of this Bond or of the Bond Indenture shall alter or impair the obligation of the Bond Issuer, which is absolute and unconditional, to pay the principal of and interest on this Bond at the times, place, and rate, and in the coin or currency herein prescribed.

The Holder of this Bond by acceptance hereof agrees to be bound by the terms of the Bond Indenture. Further, the Holder of this Bond by acceptance hereof agrees that, notwithstanding any provision of the Bond Indenture to the contrary, the Holder shall have no recourse against the Bond Issuer, but shall look only to the Collateral, with respect to any amounts due to the Holder under this Bond.

Subject to and in accordance with the terms of the Bond Indenture and pursuant to Section 9(a) of the LIPA Reform Act, the State of New York has pledged and agreed with the Bond Issuer and the Holders of the Bonds (the "State Pledge"), as follows:

"The state pledges to and agrees with the holders of restructuring bonds, any assignee, and all financing entities that the state will not in any way take or permit any action that limits, alters or impairs the value of restructuring property or, except as required by the adjustment mechanism described in the restructuring cost financing order, reduce, alter or impair transition charges that are imposed, collected and remitted for the benefit of the owners of restructuring bonds, any assignee, and all financing entities, until any principal, interest and redemption premium in respect of restructuring bonds, all ongoing financing costs and all amounts to be paid to an assignee or financing party under an ancillary agreement are paid or performed in full."

It is hereby certified, recited and declared that all acts, conditions and things required to have happened, to exist and to have been performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond and the series of which it is one have happened, do exist and have been performed in regular and due time, form and manner as required by law; that this Bond and the series of which it is one do not exceed any constitutional or statutory or charter limitation of indebtedness; and that provision has been made for the payment of the principal of and interest on this Bond and the series of which it is one as provided in the Bond Indenture.

Unless the certificate of authentication hereon has been executed by the Bond Trustee whose name appears in the Bond Trustee's Certificate of Authentication below by manual signature, this Bond shall not be entitled to any benefit under the Bond Indenture, or be valid or obligatory for any purpose.

[Signature Page Follows]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Bor	d Issuer has	caused thi	is instrument	to be	signed,	manually	or
in facsimile, by its Authorized Officer.					_		

Date: September 8, 2016	
	UTILITY DEBT SECURITIZATION AUTHORITY
	By:Authorized Officer

# BOND TRUSTEE'S CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

Dated: September 8, 2016	
This is one of the Bonds described in the within	n-mentioned Bond Indenture.
	THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON as Bond Trustee
	By:Authorized Officer

#### **ABBREVIATIONS**

The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription of the face of this Restructuring Bond, shall be construed as though they were written out in full according to applicable laws or regulations.

TEN COM	as tenants in common	
TEN ENT	as tenants by the entireties	
JT TEN	as joint tenants with right of survivorsh	ip and not as tenants in common
UNIF GIFT MIN ACT	Custodian	
	(Custodian) Under Uniform Gifts to Minor Act (	(minor)
	(Custodian) Under Uniform Gifts to Minor Act (	(State)
Additional abbreviations may	also be used though not in the above list.	
	ASSIGNMENT	
Social Security or tax	apayer I.D. or other identifying number of a	nssignee:
FOR VALUE RECE	IVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assign	
	(name and address of assignee)	
	ats thereunder, and hereby irrevocably corpooks kept for registration thereof, with	
Dated:		
	Signature Guar	ranteed:

<sup>\*</sup> NOTE: The signature to this assignment must correspond with the name of the registered owner as it appears on the face of the within Bond in every particular, without alteration, enlargement or any change whatsoever.

<sup>\*</sup> NOTE: Signature(s) must be guaranteed by an institution which is a member of one of the following recognized Signature Guaranty Programs: (i) The Securities Transfer Agent Medallion Program (STAMP), (ii) The New York Stock Exchange Medallion Program (MSP), (iii) the Stock Exchange Medallion Program (SEMP) or (iv) such other guarantee program acceptable to the Indenture Trustee.

# UTILITY DEBT SECURITIZATION AUTHORITY

as Bond Issuer

AND

# LONG ISLAND LIGHTING COMPANY

as Servicer

# RESTRUCTURING PROPERTY SERVICING AGREEMENT

Dated as of September 8, 2016

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

		<b>Page</b>
ARTICLE I. DE	FINITIONS	1
Section 1.01	Definitions	1
Section 1.02	Other Definitional Provisions	1
ARTICLE II. AF	POINTMENT AND AUTHORIZATION	2
Section 2.01	Appointment of Servicer; Acceptance of Appointment	2
Section 2.02	Authorization	2
Section 2.03	Dominion and Control Over the Restructuring Property	2
ARTICLE III. B	ILLING SERVICES	2
Section 3.01	Duties of Servicer	2
Section 3.02	Collection and Allocation of the Charge	4
Section 3.03	Transfer of Charge Collections	4
Section 3.04	Servicing and Maintenance Standards	5
Section 3.05	Servicer's Certificates	6
Section 3.06	Annual Statement as to Compliance	6
Section 3.07	Annual Independent Registered Public Accountants' Report	6
Section 3.08	Restructuring Property Documentation	6
Section 3.09	Computer Records: Audits of Documentation	7
Section 3.10	Defending Restructuring Property Against Claims	7
ARTICLE IV. SI	ERVICES RELATED TO TRUE-UP ADJUSTMENTS	8
Section 4.01	True-Up Adjustments	8
ARTICLE V. TH	IE SERVICER	8
Section 5.01	Representations and Warranties of Servicer	8
Section 5.02	Indemnities of Servicer.	10
Section 5.03	Merger or Consolidation of, or Assumption of the Obligations of, Servicer	11
Section 5.04	Assignment	12
Section 5.05	Limitation on Liability of Servicer and Others	12
Section 5.06	LIPA Not to Resign as Servicer	12
Section 5.07	Servicing Fee	13
Section 5.08	Servicer Expenses	13
Section 5.09	Subservicing	13
Section 5.10	No Servicer Advances	13
Section 5.11	Remittances	13
Section 5.12	Protection of Title	14
Section 5.13	Tax Exempt Bonds	14
Section 5.14	Compliance with Bond Issuer's Bylaws	14

ARTICLE VI. DI	EFAULT	14
Section 6.01	Servicer Default	14
Section 6.02	Notice of Servicer Default	16
Section 6.03	Waiver of Past Defaults	16
Section 6.04	Appointment of Successor	16
Section 6.05	Cooperation with Successor	17
ARTICLE VII. M	MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	17
Section 7.01	Amendment	17
Section 7.02	Notices	19
Section 7.03	Limitations on Rights of Others	20
Section 7.04	Severability	21
Section 7.05	Separate Counterparts	21
Section 7.06	Headings	21
Section 7.07	Governing Law	21
Section 7.08	Collateral Assignment to Bond Trustee	21
Section 7.09	Nonpetition Covenant	21
Section 7.10	Termination	21
Section 7.11	Rule 17g-5 Compliance	21
Section 7.12	Continuing Disclosure Under Rule 15c2-12	22
Section 7.13	Third Party Billers	22

# **ANNEXES**

Annex 1 Certificates and Adjustments

Annex 2 Servicing Procedures

# **EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES**

Exhibit A Form of Monthly Servicer Certificate
Exhibit B Form of Semiannual Servicer Certificate
Exhibit C Form of Servicer Compliance Certificate
Exhibit D Form of Adjustment Notice

Exhibit D Form of Adjustment Notice
Schedule Expected Amortization Schedule

# **APPENDICES**

Appendix A Definitions

This RESTRUCTURING PROPERTY SERVICING AGREEMENT, dated as of September 8, 2016, is between Utility Debt Securitization Authority, a New York public authority (the "Bond Issuer"), and the Long Island Lighting Company, a New York corporation doing business under the name of LIPA ("LIPA").

#### RECITALS

WHEREAS the Servicer is willing to service the Restructuring Property purchased from the Seller by the Bond Issuer; and

WHEREAS the Bond Issuer, in connection with ownership of Restructuring Property, desires to engage the Servicer to carry out the functions described herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants herein contained and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties hereto agree as follows:

#### ARTICLE I

## **DEFINITIONS**

Section 1.01 <u>Definitions</u>. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein have the meanings assigned to them in Appendix A hereto.

#### Section 1.02 Other Definitional Provisions.

- (a) "Agreement" means this Restructuring Property Servicing Agreement, together with all Exhibits, Schedules, Appendices and Annexes hereto, as the same may be amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time.
- (b) Non-capitalized terms used herein which are defined in the Statute, as the context requires, have the meanings assigned to such terms in the Statute, but without giving effect to amendments to the Statute after the date hereof which have a material adverse effect on the Bond Issuer or the Bondholders.
- (c) All terms defined in this Agreement shall have the defined meanings when used in any certificate or other document made or delivered pursuant hereto unless otherwise defined therein.
- (d) The words "hereof," "herein," "hereunder" and words of similar import, when used in this Agreement, shall refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular provision of this Agreement; Section, Schedule, Exhibit, Appendix and Annex references contained in this Agreement are references to Sections, Schedules, Exhibits, Appendices and Annexes in or to this Agreement unless otherwise specified; and the term "including" shall mean "including without limitation."

(e) The definitions contained in this Agreement are applicable to the singular as well as the plural forms of such terms and to the masculine as well as to the feminine and neuter forms of such terms.

#### ARTICLE II

#### APPOINTMENT AND AUTHORIZATION

Section 2.01 <u>Appointment of Servicer; Acceptance of Appointment.</u> The Bond Issuer hereby appoints the Servicer, and the Servicer hereby accepts such appointment, to perform the Servicer's obligations pursuant to this Agreement on behalf of and for the benefit of the Bond Issuer in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. This appointment and the Servicer's acceptance thereof may not be revoked except in accordance with the express terms of this Agreement.

Section 2.02 <u>Authorization</u>. With respect to all or any portion of the Restructuring Property, the Servicer is hereby authorized and empowered by the Bond Issuer to:

- (a) execute and deliver, on behalf of itself and/or the Bond Issuer, as the case may be, any and all instruments, documents or notices, and
- (b) on behalf of itself and/or the Bond Issuer, as the case may be, make any filing and participate in proceedings of any kind with any governmental authorities, including with the Authority.

The Bond Issuer shall execute and furnish the Servicer with such documents as have been prepared by the Servicer for execution by the Bond Issuer, and with such other documents as may be in the Bond Issuer's possession, as the Servicer may determine to be necessary or appropriate to enable it to carry out its servicing and administrative duties hereunder. Upon the Servicer's written request, the Bond Issuer shall furnish the Servicer with any powers of attorney or other documents necessary or appropriate to enable the Servicer to carry out its duties hereunder.

Section 2.03 <u>Dominion and Control Over the Restructuring Property</u>. Notwithstanding any other provision herein, the Bond Issuer shall have dominion and control over the Restructuring Property, and the Servicer, in accordance with the terms hereof, is acting solely as the servicing agent and custodian for the Bond Issuer with respect to the Restructuring Property and the Restructuring Property Documentation. The Servicer shall not take any action with respect to the Restructuring Property that is not authorized by this Agreement or that shall impair the rights of the Bond Issuer or the Bond Trustee in the Restructuring Property, in each case unless such action is required by applicable law.

#### ARTICLE III

#### **BILLING SERVICES**

Section 3.01 <u>Duties of Servicer</u>. The Servicer, as agent for the Bond Issuer, shall have the following duties:

- (a) <u>Duties of Servicer Generally</u>. The Servicer will manage, service, administer and make collections in respect of the Charge. The Servicer's duties will include:
- (i) obtaining meter reads, calculating electricity usage and billing the Charge in accordance with the Financing Order and collecting (from Customers and Third Parties, as applicable) all Charge Collections;
- (ii) responding to inquiries by Customers, Third Parties, the Authority, or any federal, local or other State governmental authority with respect to the Charge;
- (iii) delivering bills to customers and Third Parties, accounting for Charge Collections, investigating and resolving delinquencies, processing and depositing collections, making periodic remittances and furnishing periodic reports to the Bond Issuer, the Authority, the Bond Trustee and the Rating Agencies;
- (iv) selling, as the agent for the Bond Issuer, as its interest may appear, defaulted or written off accounts in accordance with the Servicer's usual and customary practices for accounts of Customers for T&D Rates;
- (v) taking action in connection with True-Up Adjustments as is set forth herein.

Anything to the contrary notwithstanding, the duties of the Servicer set forth in this Agreement shall be qualified in their entirety by the Statute, the Financing Order and any Authority Regulations, as in effect at the time such duties are to be performed. Without limiting the generality of this Section 3.01(a), in furtherance of the foregoing, the Servicer hereby agrees that it shall also have, and shall comply with, the duties and responsibilities set forth in Annex 1 which, among other things, relate to data acquisition, usage and bill calculation, billing, customer service functions, collections, payment processing and remittance.

- (b) <u>Notification of Laws and Regulations</u>. The Servicer shall promptly notify the Bond Issuer, the Authority, the Bond Trustee and the Rating Agencies in writing of any laws or Authority Regulations hereafter promulgated that have a material adverse effect on the Servicer's ability to perform its duties under this Agreement.
- (c) Other Information. Upon the reasonable request of the Bond Issuer, the Authority, the Administrator, the Bond Trustee, or any Rating Agency, the Servicer shall provide to the Bond Issuer, the Authority, the Bond Trustee or the Rating Agencies, as the case may be, any public financial information in respect of the Servicer, or any material information regarding the Restructuring Property to the extent it is reasonably available to the Servicer, as may be reasonably necessary and permitted by law for the Bond Issuer, the Authority, the Administrator, the Bond Trustee or the Rating Agencies to monitor the Servicer's performance hereunder. In addition, so long as any of the Bonds of any Tranche are outstanding, the Servicer shall provide to the Bond Issuer, the Authority, the Administrator and to the Bond Trustee, within a reasonable time after written request therefor, any information available to the Servicer or reasonably obtainable by it that is necessary to calculate the Charge.

## Section 3.02 Collection and Allocation of the Charge.

- (a) The Servicer shall use all reasonable efforts, consistent with its customary servicing procedures, to collect all amounts owed in respect of the Charge as and when the same shall become due and shall follow such collection procedures as it follows with respect to collection activities that the Servicer conducts for itself or others. The Servicer shall not change the amount of or reschedule the due date of any scheduled payment of the Charge, except as contemplated in this Agreement or as required by law or court or Authority Regulations; provided, however, that the Servicer may take any of the foregoing actions to the extent that such action would be in accordance with its customary billing and collection practices for T&D Rates. The Servicer shall enforce the obligations of any Third Parties providing billing and collection services with respect to the Charge.
- (b) As specified in the Statute and the Financing Order, any amounts received from or on behalf of a Customer that represent a partial payment of unpaid Charges and any other charges payable by the Customer will be allocated pro rata between transition charges, including the Charges, and such other charges unless the Customer specifies that a greater proportion of such payment is to be allocated to transition charges, including the Charges, except that such other charges shall be reduced by the amount of any claims by such Customer of setoff, counterclaim, surcharge or defense for purposes of such calculation.

## Section 3.03 Transfer of Charge Collections.

- (a) On each Business Day, commencing on the Business Day in October 2016 on which payments on bills sent out in September 2016 are received, the Servicer shall calculate the total Charge Collections estimated to have been received from or on behalf of Customers on such Business Day in respect of all previously billed Charges which have been deposited in the Allocation Account and that are required to be remitted from the Allocation Account to the Collection Account (the "Daily Remittance"). Each Daily Remittance shall be calculated according to the procedures set forth in Annex 2 and shall be remitted as soon as reasonably practicable but in any event no later than the second Business Day after such payments are estimated to have been received from the Customers. Not later than 9:00 a.m. New York time on each Business Day, the Servicer shall provide written notice to the Allocation Agent and the Bond Trustee of the amount that the Allocation Agent is required to remit to the Collection Account on such date (i.e., the Daily Remittance). The Servicer shall also, promptly upon receipt, remit to the Collection Account any other proceeds of the Collateral which it may have received from time to time.
- (b) The Servicer agrees and acknowledges that it holds all Charge Collections collected by it and any other proceeds of the Collateral received by it for the benefit of the Bond Trustee and the Holders and that all such amounts will be remitted to the Collection Account or the Allocation Account in accordance with this Section 3.03 and Section 5.11 without any surcharge, fee, offset, charge or other deduction except as set forth in clause (c) below. Except as set forth in clause (c) below, the Servicer further agrees not to make any claim to reduce its obligation to remit or cause to be remitted all Charge Collections collected by it or deposited in the Allocation Account.

- (c) Within fifteen days prior to the date any Adjustment Notice is filed with the Authority, the Servicer shall calculate the amount of any Remittance Shortfall or Excess Remittance for the Reconciliation Period, as provided in Section 6(d) of Annex 2. If a Remittance Shortfall exists, the Servicer shall cause the Allocation Agent to make a supplemental remittance from the Allocation Account to the Collection Account within two (2) Business Days after such calculation. If an Excess Remittance exists, the Servicer shall cause such Excess Remittance to be corrected as soon as practicable by (i) reducing the amount of each Daily Remittance from the Allocation Account until the balance of such Excess Remittance has been reduced to zero or (ii) causing payment of the amount of such Excess Remittance to the Servicer (for remittance to the LIPA Bond Trustee) from the General Subaccount or the Excess Funds Subaccount, if necessary. The results of any such reconciliation shall be reported in the next issued Monthly Servicer's Certificate.
- (d) Unless otherwise directed to do so by the Bond Issuer, the Servicer shall be responsible for selecting Eligible Investments (as defined in the Indenture) in which the funds in the Collection Account shall be invested pursuant to Section 8.03 of the Indenture.

Section 3.04 <u>Servicing and Maintenance Standards</u>. The Servicer shall, on behalf of the Bond Issuer:

- (a) manage, service, administer and make collections in respect of the Restructuring Property with reasonable care and in material compliance with applicable law, including all applicable Authority Regulations, using the same degree of care and diligence that the Servicer exercises with respect to billing and collection activities that the Servicer conducts for itself and others;
- (b) follow customary standards, policies and procedures in performing its duties as Servicer that are customary in the electric distribution industry;
- (c) use all reasonable efforts, consistent with its customary servicing procedures, to enforce and maintain the Bond Issuer's and the Bond Trustee's rights in respect of the Restructuring Property;
  - (d) calculate Charges in compliance with the Statute and the Financing Order;
  - (e) invoice Customers in accordance with the procedures set forth in Annex 2,

except where the failure to comply with any of the foregoing would not materially and adversely affect the Bond Issuer's or the Bond Trustee's interest in the Restructuring Property. The Servicer shall follow such customary and usual practices and procedures as it shall deem necessary or advisable in its servicing of the Restructuring Property, which, in the Servicer's judgment, may include the taking of legal action pursuant to Section 3.10 or otherwise. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Servicer shall not change its customary and usual practices and procedures in any manner that would materially and adversely affect the Bond Issuer's or the Bond Trustee's interest in the Restructuring Property unless it shall have provided the Rating Agencies with prior written notice.

- Section 3.05 <u>Servicer's Certificates</u>. The Servicer will provide to the Bond Issuer, the Authority and to the Bond Trustee the statements and certificates specified in Annex 1.
- Section 3.06 <u>Annual Statement as to Compliance</u>. The Servicer shall deliver to the Bond Issuer, the Authority, the Bond Trustee and each Rating Agency, on or before March 31 of each year beginning March 31, 2017 to and including March 31 succeeding the retiring of the Bonds, an Officer's Certificate, stating that:
- (a) a review of the activities of the Servicer (including any party to which the Servicer has subcontracted services under this Agreement) during the preceding calendar year (or relevant portion thereof in the case of the first such Officer's Certificate) and of its performance under this Agreement has been made under such officer's supervision, and
- (b) to the best of such officers' knowledge, based on such review, the Servicer has fulfilled all its obligations under this Agreement throughout such period or, if there has been a default in the fulfillment of any such obligation, describing each such default and its status.

## Section 3.07 Annual Independent Registered Public Accountants' Report.

- The Servicer shall cause a firm of Independent registered public accountants (which may provide other services to the Servicer or its affiliates) to prepare annually, and the Servicer shall deliver annually to the Bond Issuer, the Bond Trustee, the Rating Agencies, and the Authority, on or before March 31 of each year, commencing with 2017 to and including the March 31st succeeding the Final Maturity Date of the Bonds, a report addressed to the Servicer (the "Annual Accountant's Report"), which may be included as part of the Servicer's customary auditing activities, to the effect that such firm has performed certain procedures, agreed between the Servicer and such accountants, in connection with the Servicer's compliance with its obligations under this Agreement during the preceding twelve months ended December 31 (or, in the case of the first Annual Accountant's Report to be delivered on or before March 31, 2017, the period of time from the date of this Agreement until December 31, 2016), identifying the results of such procedures and including any exceptions noted. In the event such accounting firm requires the Bond Trustee to agree or consent to the procedures performed by such firm, the Bond Issuer shall direct the Bond Trustee in writing to so agree; it being understood and agreed that the Bond Trustee will deliver such letter of agreement or consent in conclusive reliance upon the direction of the Bond Issuer, and the Bond Trustee will not make any independent inquiry or investigation as to, and shall have no obligation or liability in respect of, the sufficiency, validity or correctness of such procedures.
- (b) The Annual Accountant's Report shall also indicate that the accounting firm providing such report is independent of the Servicer in accordance with the New York Public Authorities Law or the Code of Professional Ethics of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, as then in effect.
- Section 3.08 <u>Restructuring Property Documentation</u>. To assure uniform quality in servicing the Restructuring Property and to reduce administrative costs, the Servicer shall keep on file, in accordance with its customary procedures, all Restructuring Property Documentation,

it being understood that the Servicer is acting solely as the servicing agent and custodian for the Bond Issuer with respect to the Restructuring Property Documentation.

# Section 3.09 Computer Records: Audits of Documentation.

- The Servicer shall maintain accurate and complete accounts, Safekeeping. records and computer systems pertaining to the Restructuring Property and the Restructuring Property Documentation in accordance with its standard accounting procedures and in sufficient detail to permit reconciliation between payments or recoveries on (or with respect to) the Charge and the Charge Collections from time to time remitted to the Bond Trustee pursuant to Section 3.03 and to enable the Bond Issuer to comply with this Agreement and the Bond Indenture. The Servicer shall conduct, or cause to be conducted, periodic audits of the Restructuring Property Documentation held by it under this Agreement and of the related accounts, records and computer systems, in such a manner as shall enable the Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee, as pledgee of the Bond Issuer, to verify the accuracy of the Servicer's record keeping. The Servicer shall promptly report to the Bond Issuer, the Authority, the Administrator, and the Bond Trustee any failure on the Servicer's part to hold the Restructuring Property Documentation and maintain its accounts, records and computer systems as herein provided and promptly take appropriate action to remedy any such failure. Nothing herein shall be deemed to require an initial review or any periodic review by the Bond Issuer or the Bond Trustee of the Restructuring Property Documentation. The Servicer's duties to hold the Restructuring Property Documentation on behalf of the Bond Issuer set forth in this Section 3.09, to the extent such Restructuring Property Documentation has not been previously transferred to a successor Servicer, shall terminate three years after the earlier of the date on which (i) the Servicer is succeeded by a successor Servicer pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement or (ii) no Bonds of any Tranche are outstanding.
- (b) <u>Maintenance of and Access to Records</u>. The Servicer shall maintain the Restructuring Property Documentation at 333 Earle Ovington Blvd. Ste. 403, Uniondale, New York or at such other office as shall be specified to the Bond Issuer, the Authority and to the Bond Trustee by written notice not later than 30 days prior to any change in location. The Servicer shall permit the Bond Issuer, the Authority, the Administrator and the Bond Trustee or their respective duly authorized representatives, attorneys, agents or auditors at any time during normal business hours to inspect, audit and make copies of and abstracts from the Servicer's records regarding the Restructuring Property, the Charge and the Restructuring Property Documentation. The failure of the Servicer to provide access to such information as a result of an obligation or applicable law (including Authority Regulations) prohibiting disclosure of information regarding customers shall not constitute a breach of this Section 3.09(b).
- Section 3.10 <u>Defending Restructuring Property Against Claims</u>. The Servicer shall institute and maintain any action or proceeding necessary to compel performance by the Authority or the State of New York of any of their obligations or duties under the Statute or the Financing Order with respect to the Restructuring Property, and the Servicer agrees to take such legal or administrative actions, including defending against or instituting and pursuing legal actions and appearing or testifying at hearings or similar proceedings, as may be reasonably necessary to block or overturn any attempts to cause a repeal of, modification of or supplement to the Statute or the Financing Order, as the case may be, or the rights of holders of Restructuring

Property that would be adverse to Bondholders. The costs of any such action reasonably allocated by the Servicer to the Restructuring Property shall be payable from Charge Collections as an Ongoing Financing Cost in accordance with the Bond Indenture.

The Servicer's obligations pursuant to this Section 3.10 shall survive and continue notwithstanding the fact that the payment of Ongoing Financing Costs pursuant to the Bond Indenture may be delayed (it being understood that the Servicer may be required to advance its own funds to satisfy its obligations under this Section 3.10).

#### ARTICLE IV

#### SERVICES RELATED TO TRUE-UP ADJUSTMENTS

Section 4.01 <u>True-Up Adjustments</u>. The Servicer shall perform the calculations and take the actions relating to adjusting the Charge, as set forth in Annex 1.

## ARTICLE V

#### THE SERVICER

- Section 5.01 <u>Representations and Warranties of Servicer</u>. The Servicer makes the following representations and warranties, as of the Closing Date, on which the Bond Issuer has and will rely in entering into this Agreement relating to the servicing of the Restructuring Property. The representations and warranties shall survive the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the sale of the Restructuring Property to the Bond Issuer and the pledge thereof to the Bond Trustee pursuant to the Bond Indenture.
- (a) Organization and Good Standing. The Servicer is a corporation duly organized and in good standing under the laws of the State of New York, with the requisite corporate power and authority to own its properties as such properties are currently owned and to conduct its business as such business is now conducted by it, and has the requisite corporate power and authority to service the Restructuring Property and to hold the Restructuring Property and Restructuring Property Documentation as custodian.
- (b) <u>Due Qualification</u>. The Servicer is duly qualified to do business, and has obtained all necessary licenses and approvals, in all jurisdictions in which the ownership or lease of property or the conduct of its business (including the servicing of the Restructuring Property as required by this Agreement) shall require such qualifications, licenses or approvals (except where the failure to so qualify or obtain such licenses and approvals would not be reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the Servicer's business, operations, assets, revenues or properties or adversely affect the servicing of the Restructuring Property).
- (c) <u>Power and Authority</u>. The Servicer has the requisite corporate power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and to carry out its terms; and the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action on the part of the Servicer.

- (d) <u>Binding Obligation</u>. This Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of the Servicer enforceable against it in accordance with its terms, subject to applicable bankruptcy, receivership, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, fraudulent transfer and other laws relating to or affecting creditors' rights generally from time to time in effect and to general principles of equity (including concepts of materiality, reasonableness, good faith and fair dealing), regardless of whether considered in a proceeding in equity or at law.
- (e) No Violation. The consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the fulfillment of the terms hereof do not: (i) conflict with or result in any breach of any of the terms and provisions of, nor constitute (with or without notice or lapse of time) a default under, the articles of incorporation or by-laws of the Servicer, or any material indenture, agreement or other instrument to which the Servicer is a party or by which it is bound; (ii) result in the creation or imposition of any Lien upon any of the Servicer's properties pursuant to the terms of any such indenture, agreement or other instrument; or (iii) violate any existing law or any existing order, rule or regulation applicable to the Servicer of any federal or state court or regulatory body, administrative agency or other governmental instrumentality having jurisdiction over the Servicer or its properties.
- (f) <u>Approvals</u>. No approval, authorization, consent, order or other action of, or filing with, any federal or state court, regulatory body, administrative agency or other governmental instrumentality is required in connection with the execution and delivery by the Servicer of this Agreement, the performance by the Servicer of the transactions contemplated hereby or the fulfillment by the Servicer of the terms hereof, except those that have been obtained or made and those that the Servicer is required to make in the future pursuant to Article III or IV hereof.
- (g) No Proceedings. There are no proceedings pending and, to the Servicer's knowledge, there are no proceedings threatened and no investigations pending or threatened, before any federal or state court, regulatory body, administrative agency or other governmental instrumentality having jurisdiction over the Servicer or its properties involving or relating to the Servicer, the Authority or the Bond Issuer or, to the Servicer's knowledge, any other Person: (i) asserting the invalidity of this Agreement; (ii) seeking to prevent the consummation of any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement; or (iii) seeking any determination or ruling that might materially adversely affect the performance by the Servicer of its obligations under, or the validity or enforceability of, this Agreement.
- (h) Reports and Certificates. Each report and certificate delivered in connection with the Issuance Advice Letter or delivered in connection with any filing made to the Authority by the Servicer with respect to the Charges or True-Up Adjustments will constitute a representation and warranty by the Servicer that each such report or certificate, as the case may be, is true and correct in all material respects; but to the extent any such report or certificate is based in part upon or contains assumptions, forecasts or other predictions of future events, the representation and warranty of the Servicer with respect thereto will be limited to the representation and warranty that such assumptions, forecasts or other predictions of future events are reasonable based upon historical performance (and facts known to the Servicer on the date such report or certificate is delivered).

#### Section 5.02 Indemnities of Servicer.

- (a) The Servicer shall be liable in accordance herewith only to the extent of the obligations specifically undertaken by the Servicer under this Agreement.
- (b) The Servicer shall indemnify the Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee (for itself and on behalf of the Bondholders) and each of their respective trustees, members, managers, officers, directors, employees and agents for, and defend and hold harmless each such Person from and against, any and all Losses that may be imposed upon, incurred by or asserted against any such Person as a result of:
- (i) the Servicer's willful misconduct or negligence in the performance of its duties or observance of its covenants under this Agreement or the Servicer's reckless disregard of its obligations and duties under this Agreement;
- (ii) the Servicer's breach of any of its representations or warranties in this Agreement; and
- (iii) litigation and related expenses relating to its status and obligations as Servicer,

provided, however, that the Servicer shall not be liable for any Losses resulting from the willful misconduct or gross negligence of any Person indemnified pursuant to this Section 5.02 (each, an "Indemnified Person") or resulting from a breach of a representation or warranty made by such Indemnified Person in any of the Basic Documents that gives rise to the Servicer's breach.

Promptly after receipt by an Indemnified Person of notice of its involvement in any action, proceeding or investigation, such Indemnified Person shall, if a claim for indemnification in respect thereof is to be made against the Servicer under this Section 5.02, notify the Servicer in writing of such involvement. Failure by an Indemnified Person to so notify the Servicer shall relieve the Servicer from the obligation to indemnify and hold harmless such Indemnified Person under this Section 5.02 only to the extent that the Servicer suffers actual prejudice as a result of such failure. With respect to any action, proceeding or investigation brought by a third party for which indemnification may be sought under this Section 5.02, the Servicer shall be entitled to assume the defense of any such action, proceeding or investigation. Upon assumption by the Servicer of the defense of any such action, proceeding or investigation, the Indemnified Person shall have the right to participate in such action or proceeding and to retain its own counsel (including local counsel), and the Servicer shall bear the reasonable fees, costs and expenses of such separate counsel. The Indemnified Person shall not settle or compromise or consent to the entry of any judgment with respect to any pending or threatened claim, action, suit or proceeding in respect of which indemnification may be sought under this Section 5.02 (whether or not the Servicer is an actual or potential party to such claim or action) unless the Servicer agrees in writing to such settlement, compromise or consent and such settlement, compromise or consent includes an unconditional release of the Servicer from all liability arising out of such claim, action, suit or proceeding.

(c) The Servicer shall indemnify the Bond Trustee and its respective officers, directors and agents for, and defend and hold harmless each such Person from and against, any

and all Losses that may be imposed upon, incurred by or asserted against any such Person as a result of the acceptance or performance of the trusts and duties contained herein and in the Bond Indenture, except to the extent that any such Loss is due to the willful misconduct, bad faith or gross negligence of the Bond Trustee; provided, however, that the foregoing indemnity is extended to the Bond Trustee solely in its individual capacity and not for the benefit of the Bondholders or any other Person. Such amounts with respect to the Bond Trustee shall be deposited and distributed in accordance with the Bond Indenture.

- (d) The Servicer's indemnification obligations under Section 5.02(b) and (c) for events occurring prior to the removal or resignation of the Bond Trustee or the termination of this Agreement shall survive the resignation or removal of the Bond Trustee or the termination of this Agreement and shall include reasonable costs, fees and expenses of investigation and litigation (including the Bond Issuer's and the Bond Trustee's reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses).
- (e) Except to the extent expressly provided for in the Basic Documents (including the Servicer's claims with respect to the Servicing Fees), the Servicer hereby releases and discharges the Bond Issuer (including its trustees, officers, employees and agents, if any), and the Bond Trustee (including its respective officers, directors and agents) (collectively, the "Released Parties") from any and all actions, claims and demands whatsoever, which the Servicer shall or may have against any such Person relating to the Restructuring Property or the Servicer's activities with respect thereto other than any actions, claims and demands arising out of the willful misconduct, bad faith or gross negligence of the Released Parties.
- (f) The Servicer will not indemnify any person for any loss, damages, liability, obligation, claim, action, suit or payment resulting solely from a downgrade in the ratings on the Bonds or for any consequential damages, including any loss of market value of the Bonds, resulting from any default or any downgrade of the ratings on the Bonds.

Section 5.03 Merger or Consolidation of, or Assumption of the Obligations of, Servicer. Any Person (a) into which the Servicer may be merged or consolidated, (b) which may result from any merger or consolidation to which the Servicer shall be a party or (c) which may succeed to the properties and assets of the Servicer substantially as a whole, which Person in any of the foregoing cases executes an agreement of assumption to perform every obligation of the Servicer under this Agreement, shall be the successor to the Servicer under this Agreement without the execution or filing of any document or any further act by any of the parties to this Agreement; provided, however, that (i) immediately after giving effect to such transaction, no representation or warranty made pursuant to Section 5.01 shall have been breached and no Servicer Default and no event which, after notice or lapse of time, or both, would become a Servicer Default shall have occurred and be continuing, (ii) the Servicer shall have delivered to the Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee an Officer's Certificate stating that such consolidation, merger or succession and such agreement of assumption comply with this Section and that all conditions precedent provided for in this Agreement relating to such transaction have been complied with, (iii) the Servicer shall have delivered to the Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee an Opinion of Counsel either (A) stating that, in the opinion of such counsel, all statutory filings to be made by the Servicer, including filings with the Authority pursuant to the Statute and filings under the applicable UCC, that are necessary fully to preserve and protect the interests of the Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee in the Restructuring Property have been executed and filed and reciting the details of such filings or (B) stating that, in the opinion of such counsel, no such action is necessary to preserve and protect such interests, (iv) the Rating Agencies shall have received prior written notice of such transaction and (v) the Servicer shall have delivered to the Bond Issuer, the Authority and the Bond Trustee an opinion of independent tax counsel (as selected by, and in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to, the Servicer, and which may be based on a ruling from the Internal Revenue Service) to the effect that, for federal income tax purposes, such consolidation or merger will not result in a material adverse federal income tax consequence to the Bond Issuer, the Bond Trustee or the then existing Bondholders.

The Servicer shall not consummate any transaction referred to in subclauses (a), (b) or (c) above except upon execution of the above described agreement of assumption and compliance with subclauses (i), (ii), (iii), (iv) and (v) above. When any Person acquires the properties and assets of the Servicer substantially as a whole and becomes the successor to the Servicer in accordance with the terms of this Section 5.03, then upon satisfaction of all of the other conditions of this Section 5.03, the Servicer shall automatically and without further notice be released from all its obligations hereunder.

Section 5.04 <u>Assignment</u>. The Servicer may assign any or all of its obligations hereunder to any successor if either (i) the Rating Agency Condition and any other condition specified in the Financing Order have been satisfied, or (ii) the Servicer is replaced by a successor pursuant to Section 5.03 hereof.

Section 5.05 <u>Limitation on Liability of Servicer and Others</u>. The Servicer shall not be liable to the Bond Issuer or the Bond Trustee, except as provided under this Agreement, for any action taken or for refraining from the taking of any action pursuant to this Agreement or for errors in judgment; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that this provision shall not protect the Servicer against any liability that would otherwise be imposed by reason of willful misconduct, bad faith or negligence in the performance of its duties or by reason of reckless disregard of obligations and duties under this Agreement. The Servicer and any director, officer, employee or agent of the Servicer may rely in good faith on the advice of counsel reasonably acceptable to the Bond Trustee or on any document of any kind, prima facie properly executed and submitted by any Person, respecting any matters arising under this Agreement. Except as provided in this Agreement, the Servicer shall not be under any obligation to appear in, prosecute or defend any legal action incidental to incidental to its duties to service the Restructuring Property in accordance with this Agreement or related to its obligation to pay indemnification, and that in its reasonable opinion may cause it to incur any expense or liability.

Section 5.06 <u>LIPA Not to Resign as Servicer</u>. Subject to the provisions of Sections 5.03 and 5.04, LIPA shall not resign from the obligations and duties hereby imposed on it as Servicer under this Agreement except upon a determination that LIPA's performance of its duties under this Agreement shall no longer be permissible under applicable law. Notice of any such determination permitting the resignation of LIPA shall be communicated to the Bond Issuer, the Authority, the Allocation Agent, the Bond Trustee and each Rating Agency at the earliest practicable time (and, if such communication is not in writing, shall be confirmed in writing at the earliest practicable time), and any such determination shall be evidenced by an Opinion of Counsel to such effect delivered to the Bond Issuer, the Authority, the Allocation

Agent and the Trustee concurrently with or promptly after such notice. No such resignation shall become effective until a successor Servicer has assumed the servicing obligations and duties hereunder of the Servicer in accordance with Section 6.04.

Section 5.07 Servicing Fee. The Bond Issuer agrees to pay the Servicer an annual servicing fee (the "Servicing Fee") for all obligations to be performed by the Servicer under this Agreement. For so long as LIPA is the Servicer, the Servicing Fee shall be 0.05% of the aggregate initial principal amount of the Bonds. The foregoing fee constitutes a fair and reasonable price for the obligations to be performed by the Servicer and approximates the estimated incremental cost of performing the services required by this Agreement exclusive of the expenses payable under Section 5.08. If the Servicer is not affiliated with the owner of the T&D System Assets or not performing similar services with respect to the base rates of the owner of the T&D System Assets, the Servicing Fee shall be an amount agreed upon by the Bond Issuer and the successor Servicer, provided that any Servicing Fee in excess of 0.60% of the aggregate initial principal amount of the Bonds shall be approved by the Authority and the Indenture Trustee, with notice provided to each of the Rating Agencies, and provided, further, that if the Authority fails to approve or disapprove any such Servicing Fee within 30 days following its receipt of a written request to approve the same, the Authority shall be deemed to have approved such Servicing Fee.

Section 5.08 <u>Servicer Expenses</u>. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the Bond Issuer shall pay all expenses incurred by the Servicer in connection with its activities hereunder (including any fees to and disbursements by accountants, counsel, or any other Person, any taxes or payments in lieu of taxes imposed on the Servicer (other than taxes based on the Servicer's net income) and any expenses incurred in connection with reports to Bondholders, subject to the priorities set forth in Section 8.02(e) of the Bond Indenture).

Section 5.09 <u>Subservicing</u>. The Servicer may at any time contract with a subservicer to perform all or any portion of its obligations as Servicer hereunder; provided, however, the Rating Agency Condition shall have been satisfied in connection therewith; and provided further that the Servicer shall remain obligated and be liable to the Bond Issuer, the Bond Trustee and the Bondholders for the servicing and administering of the Restructuring Property in accordance with the provisions hereof without diminution of such obligation and liability by virtue of the appointment of such subservicer and to the same extent and under the same terms and conditions as if the Servicer alone were servicing and administering the Restructuring Property. The fees and expenses of the subservicer shall be as agreed between the Servicer and its subservicer from time to time, and none of the Bond Issuer, the Bond Trustee or the Bondholders shall have any responsibility therefor. Any such appointment shall not constitute a Servicer resignation under Section 5.06. For purposes of this Section 5.09, the Operation Services Agreement shall be deemed to satisfy the Rating Agency Condition.

Section 5.10 <u>No Servicer Advances</u>. The Servicer shall not make any advances of interest on or principal of the Bonds.

Section 5.11 <u>Remittances</u>. No later than the second Business Day following receipt, the Servicer shall cause all payments by or on behalf of Customers, including all Charge Collections (from whatever source), to be deposited into the Allocation Account. As provided in

Section 3.03(a), the Servicer shall cause the Allocation Agent to remit the Daily Remittances due on such date to the Bond Trustee for deposit into the Collection Account. The Servicer shall transfer (i) any Indemnity Amounts and (ii) any other proceeds of other Collateral paid to or received by Servicer to the Bond Trustee for deposit in the Collection Account not later than the second Business Day following such receipt.

Section 5.12 Protection of Title. The Servicer shall execute and file such filings and cause to be executed and filed such filings, all in such manner and in such places as may be required by law fully to preserve, maintain and protect the interests of the Bond Trustee in the Restructuring Property, including all filings required under the UCC or the Statute relating to the transfer of ownership of or a security interest in the Restructuring Property by the Seller to the Bond Issuer or the security interest granted by the Bond Issuer to the Bond Trustee in the Restructuring Property. The Servicer shall deliver (or cause to be delivered) to the Bond Issuer, the Authority and the Bond Trustee file-stamped copies of, or filing receipts for, any document filed as provided above, as soon as available following such filing. The costs of any such action reasonably allocated by the Servicer to the Restructuring Property shall be payable from Charge Collections as an Ongoing Financing Cost in accordance with the Bond Indenture. The Servicer's obligations pursuant to this Section 5.12 shall survive and continue notwithstanding the fact that the payment of Ongoing Financing Costs pursuant to the Bond Indenture may be delayed (it being understood that the Servicer may be required to advance its own funds to satisfy its obligations under this Section 5.12).

Section 5.13 <u>Tax Exempt Bonds</u>. The Servicer covenants that it shall comply with the tax certificates to be executed and delivered by it in connection with the issuance of the Bonds and with letters of instruction, if any, delivered by bond counsel in connection with the issuance of the Bonds, as such tax certificates and letters may be amended from time to time. Notwithstanding anything else in this Agreement to the contrary, the covenants of this Section 5.13 shall survive the payment, redemption or defeasance of the Bonds and the termination of this Agreement.

Section 5.14 <u>Compliance with Bond Issuer's Bylaws</u>. The Servicer agrees to comply with the provisions of Article XI of the Bond Issuer's by-laws, including any amendments thereof made with the consent of the Servicer, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, to the extent that such provisions are applicable to its duties as agent for the Bond Issuer hereunder and, to the extent that the Servicer employs others to perform such duties in accordance with this Agreement, the Servicer will require that such others comply with such applicable provisions.

## ARTICLE VI

#### **DEFAULT**

Section 6.01 <u>Servicer Default</u>. If any one of the following events (each a "Servicer Default") shall occur and be continuing:

(a) any failure by the Servicer to cause all payments by or on behalf of Customers, including all Charge Collections (from whatever source), received by the Servicer to be

deposited into the Allocation Account as provided in Section 5.11 or any failure to cause the Allocation Agent to transfer to the Bond Trustee any required Daily Remittance and cause other amounts received from Collateral to be deposited to the Collections Account pursuant to Section 3.03 hereof that shall continue unremedied for a period of five (5) Business Days after written notice of such failure is received by the Servicer from the Bond Issuer or the Bond Trustee; or

- (b) any failure by the Servicer duly to observe or perform in any material respect any other covenant or agreement of the Servicer set forth in this Agreement, which failure:
- (i) materially and adversely affects the Restructuring Property or the rights of the Bondholders, and
- (ii) continues unremedied for a period of 60 days after written notice of such failure has been given to the Servicer by the Bond Issuer, the Authority, the Allocation Agent, the Administrator or the Bond Trustee or after discovery of such failure by an officer of the Servicer; or
- (c) any representation or warranty made by the Servicer in this Agreement proves to have been incorrect when made, which has a material adverse effect on the Bond Issuer or the Bondholders and which material adverse effect continues unremedied for a period of 60 days after the date on which written notice thereof has been given to the Servicer by the Bond Issuer, the Authority or the Bond Trustee or after discovery of such failure by an officer of the Servicer, as the case may be; or
  - (d) an Insolvency Event occurs with respect to the Servicer;

then, and in each and every case, so long as the Servicer Default shall not have been remedied, either the Bond Trustee may, or shall upon the written instruction of the Authority (acting on behalf of Customers) or the Holders of a majority of the outstanding principal amount of the Bonds, by notice then given in writing to the Servicer (and to the Bond Trustee if given by the Bondholders) (a "Termination Notice") may terminate all the rights and obligations (other than the indemnification obligations set forth in Section 5.02 hereof and the obligation under Section 6.04 to continue performing its functions as Servicer until a successor Servicer is appointed) of the Servicer under this Agreement. In addition, upon a Servicer Default, any interested person shall be entitled to apply to any court in New York for sequestration and payment of revenues arising with respect to the Restructuring Property. On or after the receipt by the Servicer of a Termination Notice, all authority and power of the Servicer under this Agreement, whether with respect to the Restructuring Property, the Charge or otherwise, shall, upon appointment of a successor Servicer pursuant to Section 6.04, without further action, pass to and be vested in such successor Servicer and, without limitation, the Bond Trustee is hereby authorized and empowered to execute and deliver, on behalf of the predecessor Servicer, as attorney-in-fact or otherwise, any and all documents and other instruments, and to do or accomplish all other acts or things necessary or appropriate to effect the purposes of such Termination Notice, whether to complete the transfer of the Restructuring Property Documentation and related documents, or otherwise. The predecessor Servicer shall cooperate with the successor Servicer, the Bond Trustee, the Bond Issuer and the Allocation Agent in

effecting the termination of the responsibilities and rights of the predecessor Servicer under this Agreement, including the transfer to the successor Servicer for administration by it of all cash amounts that shall at the time be held by the predecessor Servicer for remittance, or shall thereafter be received by it with respect to the Restructuring Property or the Charge. As soon as practicable after receipt by the Servicer of such Termination Notice, the Servicer shall deliver the Restructuring Property Documentation to the successor Servicer. All reasonable costs and expenses (including attorneys fees and expenses) incurred in connection with transferring the Restructuring Property Documentation to the successor Servicer and amending this Agreement to reflect such succession as Servicer pursuant to this Section 6.01 shall be paid by the predecessor Servicer upon presentation of reasonable documentation of such costs and expenses.

Section 6.02 <u>Notice of Servicer Default</u>. The Servicer shall deliver to the Bond Issuer, the Authority, the Bond Trustee, the Administrator, the Allocation Agent and each Rating Agency, promptly after having obtained knowledge thereof, but in no event later than five Business Days thereafter, written notice in an Officer's Certificate of any event or circumstance which with the giving of notice or passage of time, or both, would become a Servicer Default under Section 6.01.

Section 6.03 <u>Waiver of Past Defaults</u>. The Bond Trustee, with the consent of the Authority and Holders of the majority of the outstanding principal amount of the Bonds, on behalf of all Bondholders, may waive in writing any default by the Servicer in the performance of its obligations hereunder and its consequences, except a default under Section 6.01(a). The Servicer shall provide notice of any such waivers to each Rating Agency, promptly after its receipt thereof from the Bond Trustee. Upon any such waiver of a past default, such default shall cease to exist, and any Servicer Default arising therefrom shall be deemed to have been remedied for every purpose of this Agreement. No such waiver shall extend to any subsequent or other default or impair any right consequent thereto.

## Section 6.04 Appointment of Successor.

Upon the Servicer's receipt of a Termination Notice pursuant to Section 6.01 or the Servicer's resignation in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, the predecessor Servicer shall continue to perform its functions as Servicer under this Agreement, and shall be entitled to receive the requisite portion of the Servicing Fee and reimbursement of expenses as provided herein, until a successor Servicer has assumed in writing the obligations of the Servicer hereunder as described below. In the event of the Servicer's removal or resignation hereunder and upon application of the Bond Trustee, the Authority will designate a successor Servicer. Any appointment of a successor Servicer requires the consent of the Holders of a majority of the outstanding principal amount of the Bonds, and the successor Servicer shall accept its appointment by a written assumption in form reasonably acceptable to the Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee. If within 30 days after the delivery of the Termination Notice, a new Servicer has not been appointed and accepted such appointment, the Bond Trustee may petition the Authority or a court of competent jurisdiction to appoint a successor Servicer under this Agreement. A Person shall qualify as a successor Servicer only if (i) such Person is permitted to perform the duties of the Servicer pursuant to the Statute, the Authority Regulations, the Financing Order and this Agreement, (ii) the Rating Agency Condition has been satisfied and (iii) such Person enters

into a servicing agreement with the Bond Issuer having substantially the same provisions as this Agreement.

- (b) Upon appointment, the successor Servicer shall be the successor in all respects to the predecessor Servicer under this Agreement and shall be subject to all the responsibilities, duties and liabilities arising thereafter relating thereto placed on the predecessor Servicer and shall be entitled to the Servicing Fee and all the rights granted to the predecessor Servicer by the terms and provisions of this Agreement.
- (c) The successor Servicer may resign only if it is prohibited from serving as such by applicable law.

Section 6.05 <u>Cooperation with Successor</u>. The Servicer covenants and agrees with the Bond Issuer that it will, on an ongoing basis, cooperate with the successor Servicer and provide whatever information is, and take whatever actions are, reasonably necessary to assist the successor Servicer in performing its obligations hereunder.

#### ARTICLE VII

#### MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

## Section 7.01 Amendment.

(a) This Agreement may be amended by the Servicer and the Bond Issuer, with the consent of the Bond Trustee and the satisfaction of the Rating Agency Condition. Promptly after the execution of any such amendment or consent, the Bond Issuer shall furnish written notification of the substance of such amendment or consent to each of the Rating Agencies.

Prior to the execution of any amendment to this Agreement, the Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee shall be entitled to receive and rely upon an Opinion of Counsel stating that the execution of such amendment is authorized or permitted by this Agreement and the Opinion of Counsel referred to in Section 3.11. The Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee may, but shall not be obligated to, enter into any such amendment which affects their own rights, duties or immunities under this Agreement or otherwise.

- (b) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this paragraph, no amendment or modification of this Agreement shall be effective except upon satisfaction of the conditions precedent in this paragraph (b).
- (i) At least fifteen days prior to the effectiveness of any such amendment or modification and after obtaining the other necessary approvals set forth in paragraph (a) above (except that the consent of the Bond Trustee may be subject to the consent of Holders if such consent is required or sought by the Bond Trustee in connection with such amendment or modification), the Servicer shall have delivered to the Authority's chief executive officer and general counsel written notification of any proposed amendment, which notification shall contain:
  - (A) a reference to the Financing Order;

- (B) an officer's certificate stating that the proposed amendment or modification has been approved by all parties to this Agreement; and
- (C) a statement identifying the person to whom the Authority or its staff is to address any response to the proposed amendment or to request additional time.
- (ii) If the Authority or its staff, within fifteen days (subject to extension as provided in clause (iii) below) of receiving a notification complying with paragraph (a) above, shall have delivered to the office of the person specified in paragraph (i)(C) above a written statement that the Authority might object to the proposed amendment or modification, then such proposed amendment or modification shall not be effective unless and until the Authority subsequently delivers a written statement that it does not object to such proposed amendment or modification.
- (iii) If the Authority or its staff, within fifteen days of receiving a notification complying with paragraph (a) above, shall have delivered to the office of the person specified in paragraph (i)(C) above a written statement requesting an additional amount of time not to exceed thirty days in which to consider such proposed amendment or modification, then such proposed amendment or modification shall not be effective if, within such extended period, the Authority shall have delivered to the office of the person specified in paragraph (i)(C) above a written statement as described in clause (ii) above, unless and until the Authority subsequently delivers a written statement that it does not object to such proposed amendment or modification.
- (iv) If the Authority or its staff shall not have delivered written notice that the Authority might object to such proposed amendment or modification within the time periods described in clause (ii) or clause (iii) above, whichever is applicable, then the Authority shall be conclusively deemed not to have any objection to the proposed amendment or modification and such amendment or modification may subsequently become effective upon satisfaction of the other conditions specified in paragraph (a) above.
- (v) Following the delivery of a notice to the Authority by the Servicer under clause (ii) above, the Servicer and the Bond Issuer shall have the right at any time to withdraw from the Authority further consideration of any proposed amendment.
- (c) Notwithstanding Sections 7.01(a) and 7.01(b) or anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the Servicer may, with the prior written consent of the Authority, amend Annex 2 to this Agreement in writing with prior written notice given to the Bond Trustee, the Bond Issuer and the Rating Agencies, but without the consent of the Bond Trustee, the Bond Issuer, any Rating Agency or any Holder, solely to address changes to the Servicer's method of calculating Charge Payments as a result of changes to the Servicer's (or its subservicer's) computerized customer information system, including changes which would replace the remittances contemplated by the estimation procedures set forth in Annex 2 with remittances of Charge Collections determined to have been actually received; provided that any such amendment shall not have a material adverse effect on the Holders of the Bonds.
- (d) The Servicer shall promptly provide each of the Rating Agencies and the Authority with a copy of any amendment to this Agreement.

Section 7.02 <u>Notices</u>. Unless otherwise specifically provided herein, all notices, directions, consents and waivers required under the terms and provisions of this Agreement shall be in English and in writing, and any such notice, direction, consent or waiver may be given by United States mail, reputable overnight courier service, facsimile transmission or electronic mail (confirmed by telephone, United States mail or reputable overnight courier service in the case of notice by facsimile transmission or electronic mail) or any other customary means of communication, and any such notice, direction, consent or waiver shall be effective when delivered or transmitted, or if mailed, five days after deposit in the United States mail with proper postage for ordinary mail prepaid:

## (a) if to the Servicer, to:

LIPA
333 Earle Ovington Boulevard
Uniondale, New York 11553
Attention: Chief Financial Officer
Telephone: (516) 222-7700
Telecopy: (516) 222-9137
Email: tfalcone@lipower.org

# (b) if to the Bond Issuer, to:

Utility Debt Securitization Authority c/o LIPA, as Administrator 333 Earle Ovington Boulevard Uniondale, New York 11553 Attention: Chief Financial Officer Telephone: (516) 222-7700 Telecopy: (516) 222-9137 Email: tfalcone@lipower.org

#### (c) if to the Bond Trustee, to:

The Bank of New York Mellon 101 Barclay Street - Floor 7-W New York, New York 10286 Attention: Frederic Belen Telephone: (212) 815-2588

Telecopy: (732) 667-9205

Email: frederic.belen@bnymellon.com

## (d) if to the Authority, to:

Long Island Power Authority 333 Earle Ovington Boulevard Uniondale, New York 11553 Attention: Chief Financial Officer

Telephone: (516) 222-7700 Telecopy: (516) 222-9137 Email: tfalcone@lipower.org

## (e) if to Moody's, to:

Moody's Investors Service, Inc. 25th Floor, 7 World Trade Center, 250 Greenwich Street New York, New York 10007 Attention: ABS/RMBS Monitoring Department E-mail: ServicerReports@moodys.com

# (f) if to Standard & Poor's, to:

Standard & Poor's Ratings Services 55 Water Street New York, New York 10041 Attention: Structured Credit Surveillance

E-mail: servicer-report@standardandpoors.com

Telephone: (212) 438-8991

### (g) if to Fitch, to:

Fitch Ratings 33 Whitehall Street New York, New York 10004 Attention: ABS Surveillance

Email: surveillance-abs-other@fitchratings.com

Telephone: (212) 908-0500

# (h) as to each of the foregoing, at such other address as shall be designated by written notice to the other parties.

Section 7.03 <u>Limitations on Rights of Others</u>. The provisions of this Agreement are solely for the benefit of the Servicer, the Bond Issuer, the Authority, the Allocation Agent, the Bondholders, the Bond Trustee and the other Persons expressly referred to herein and such Persons shall have the right to enforce the relevant provisions of this Agreement, except that the Bondholders shall be entitled to enforce their rights against the Servicer under this Agreement solely through a cause of action brought for their benefit by the Bond Trustee. Nothing in this Agreement, whether express or implied, shall be construed to give to any other Person any legal

or equitable right, remedy or claim in the Restructuring Property or under or in respect of this Agreement or any covenants, conditions or provisions contained herein.

Section 7.04 <u>Severability</u>. Any provision of this Agreement that is prohibited or unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without invalidating the remaining provisions hereof, and any such prohibition or unenforceability in any jurisdiction shall not invalidate or render unenforceable such provision in any other jurisdiction.

Section 7.05 <u>Separate Counterparts</u>. This Agreement may be executed by the parties hereto in separate counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be an original, but all such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same instrument.

Section 7.06 <u>Headings</u>. The headings of the various Articles and Sections herein are for convenience of reference only and shall not define or limit any of the terms or provisions hereof.

Section 7.07 <u>Governing Law</u>. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the substantive laws of the State of New York, without giving effect to its conflict of law or other principles that would cause the application of the laws of another jurisdiction, and the obligations, rights and remedies of the parties hereunder shall be determined in accordance with such laws.

Section 7.08 <u>Collateral Assignment to Bond Trustee</u>. The Servicer hereby acknowledges and consents to the grant of a security interest and collateral assignment by the Bond Issuer pursuant to the Bond Indenture of all of the Bond Issuer's rights hereunder to the Bond Trustee for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds and the Bond Trustee in and to this Agreement.

Section 7.09 Nonpetition Covenant. Notwithstanding any prior termination of this Agreement or the Bond Indenture, but subject to the right of a court of competent jurisdiction to order the sequestration and payment of revenues arising with respect to the Restructuring Property notwithstanding any bankruptcy, reorganization or other insolvency proceedings with respect to any person or entity pursuant to Section 7.1(d) of the Statute, the Servicer solely in its capacity as creditor of the Bond Issuer, shall not, prior to the date which is one year and one day after the termination of the Bond Indenture with respect to the Bond Issuer, petition or otherwise invoke or cause the Bond Issuer to invoke the process of any court or governmental authority for the purpose of commencing or sustaining an involuntary case against the Bond Issuer under any federal or state bankruptcy, insolvency or similar law or appointing a receiver, liquidator, assignee, trustee, custodian, sequestrator or other similar official of the Bond Issuer or any substantial part of the property of the Bond Issuer, or, to the fullest extent permitted by law, ordering the winding up or liquidation of the affairs of the Bond Issuer.

Section 7.10 <u>Termination</u>. This Agreement shall terminate when all Bonds have been retired, redeemed or defeased in full.

Section 7.11 <u>Rule 17g-5 Compliance</u>. The Servicer agrees that any notice, report, request for satisfaction of the Rating Agency Condition, document or other information provided

by the Servicer to any Rating Agency under this Agreement or any other Basic Document to which it is a party for the purposes of determining the initial credit rating of the Bonds or undertaking credit rating surveillance of the Bonds with any Rating Agency, shall be, substantially concurrently, posted by the Servicer on the 17g-5 Website.

Section 7.12 <u>Continuing Disclosure Under Rule 15c2-12</u>. The Servicer shall prepare and provide to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, through its Electronic Municipal Market Access system ("EMMA"), in the format prescribed by the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, the reports, certificates and notices required under the Continuing Disclosure Agreement.

## Section 7.13 Third Party Billers.

- (a) If at any time in the future the State of New York takes any action to amend the Statute, or the Authority takes any action to adopt, supplement or amend Authority Regulations, in either case, to permit the billing and/or collecting of Charges by Third Parties, the Servicer, on behalf of the Bondholders, shall take such legal or administrative actions, including defending against or instituting and pursuing legal actions and appearing or testifying at hearings or similar proceedings, as may be reasonably necessary to (A) if the Servicer reasonably believes that such action could result in a downgrade of the Bonds or is otherwise contrary to the Statute or the Financing Order, block or overturn such action of the State or the Authority, as the case may be, including by asserting that such action violates the State Pledge (as defined in the Indenture); and (B) if such challenge or opposition fails, compel performance by the Authority or the State of New York, as the case may be, of their obligations and duties under the Statute and the Financing Order, as applicable, with respect to Third Parties, including but not limited to ensuring that the implementation of any such amendment, supplement, rule or regulation does not result in a downgrade in the credit ratings assigned to the Bonds and otherwise conforms with the matters referenced in Annex 1 hereto;
- (i) the Servicer, on behalf of the Bondholders, will take reasonable steps to monitor on an ongoing basis proceedings in the legislature of the State of New York and at the Authority for proposed legislation, rules, regulations or other initiatives that could reasonably result in the taking by the State of New York or the Authority of any action referenced in (ii) above; and
- (ii) the costs of any action taken by, and the obligations of, the Servicer under this Section shall be treated in the same manner as expenses under Section 5.08.
- (b) Should the laws of the State of New York be changed to permit the billing and/or collecting of Charges by Third Parties, the Servicer shall, using the same degree of care and diligence that it exercises with respect to payments owed to it for its own account, implement such procedures and policies as would be necessary to properly enforce the obligations of each Third Party to remit Charges, in accordance with the terms and provisions of the Financing Order.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Restructuring Property Servicing Agreement to be duly executed by their respective officers as of the day and year first above written.

# UTILITY DEBT SECURITIZATION AUTHORITY, as Bond Issuer

By:	
Name:	Joseph A. Branca
Title:	Chief Financial Officer
LONG I as Ser	SLAND LIGHTING COMPANY, vicer
By:	
Name:	Joseph A. Branca
Title:	Chief Financial Officer

#### ANNEX 1

## **CERTIFICATES AND ADJUSTMENTS**

The Servicer agrees to comply with the following with respect to the Bond Issuer:

SECTION 1. Definitions. Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings set forth in Appendix A to the Restructuring Property Servicing Agreement dated as of September 8, 2016, between the Bond Issuer and LIPA, as Servicer (the "Servicing Agreement").

SECTION 2. Monthly Servicer Certificates. On or before the 13th Business Day of each calendar month commencing with October 2016, the Servicer will deliver to the Allocation Agent, the Bond Issuer, the Authority, the Bond Trustee and each Rating Agency a monthly certificate in substantially the form of Exhibit A hereto (the "Monthly Servicer Certificate") stating the amount of the total charges received from Customers deposited into the Allocation Account during the preceding calendar month, the estimated amount of Charge Collections transferred to the Collection Account during the preceding calendar month, the amount of any transfers or reductions in respect of Excess Remittances or the Remittance Shortfalls occurring during the preceding calendar month, and the amount of any transfers or reductions in respect of Excess Remittances or Remittance Shortfalls required to occur on any Remittance Date during the current month pursuant to Section 3.03(b) of the Servicing Agreement.

SECTION 3. Semiannual Servicer Certificates. At least one Business Day before each Payment Date, the Servicer shall provide to the Bond Issuer, the Bond Trustee, each Rating Agency and the Authority, a certificate in substantially the form of Exhibit B hereto (the "Semiannual Servicer Certificate") indicating:

- 1. the amount to be paid to the Bondholders of each Tranche in respect of principal on such Payment Date in accordance with Section 8.02(e) of the Bond Indenture;
- 2. the amount to be paid to the Bondholders of each Tranche in respect of interest on such Payment Date in accordance with Section 8.02(e) of the Bond Indenture;
- 3. the Projected Bond Balance and the Bond Balance for each Tranche as of that Payment Date (after giving effect to the payments on such Payment Date);
- 4. the amount on deposit in the Reserve Subaccount as of that Payment Date (after giving effect to the transfers to be made from or into the Reserve Subaccount on such Payment Date);
- 5. the amount, if any, on deposit in the Excess Funds Subaccount as of that Payment Date (after giving effect to the transfers to be made from or into the Excess Funds Subaccount on such Payment Date);
- 6. the amounts paid to the Bond Trustee since the preceding Payment Date pursuant to Section 8.02(e) of the Bond Indenture;

- 7. the amounts paid to the Servicer since the preceding Payment Date pursuant to Section 8.02(e) of the Bond Indenture; and
- 8. the amount of any other transfers and payments to be made on such Payment Date pursuant to Sections 8.02(e) of the Bond Indenture.
- SECTION 4. Annual Certificates. The Servicer shall provide the Certificate of Compliance required by Section 3.06 of the Servicing Agreement in substantially the form of Exhibit C hereto.

# SECTION 5. True-Up Adjustments.

- (a) The Servicer will make adjustments to the Charge at least annually, beginning November 15, 2016 and continuing until the last Scheduled Maturity Date of the Bonds (or any series of Bonds). The Annual True-up (defined below) will be performed on a mandatory basis; the Mid-year Review (defined below) will also be performed on a mandatory basis and the Mandatory Mid-year True-up (defined below) will only be required to be performed if the Servicer projects under collections to be experienced up to the end of the next succeeding Mid-year Calculation Period ( as defined below), provided that the Servicer may elect to perform a Voluntary Mid-year True-up (defined below) in any year as provided below. For each Annual True-up, Mandatory Mid-year True-up or Voluntary True-up adjustment (each a "True-Up Adjustment"), the Servicer will file with the Securitization Authority a notice of adjustment to the Charge approximately 30 days prior to the effective date of such adjustment.
- Annually, the Servicer will file a notice of adjustment (the "Annual True-up") (i) to correct for any over-collections or under-collections to date and anticipated to be experienced to the end of the then current Annual Calculation Period, as defined below (the next succeeding December 15), and (ii) to ensure that the Charge during the period commencing on each November 15 and ending on the following November 14 is adequate to pay timely principal and interest on the Bonds when due pursuant to the Expected Amortization Schedule and to make timely payment on all other Ongoing Financing Costs due during the period beginning on the next December 16 and ending on the following December 15 (each such period, an "Annual Calculation Period"). Before April 15, 2017 and each April 15 thereafter, the Servicer will perform a mid-year review (each a "Mid-year Review") to ensure that the expected collections of the Charge are adequate to pay timely principal and interest on the Bonds when due and to make timely payment on all other Ongoing Financing Costs to the end of the then current Annual Calculation Period. If the Mid-year Review results in a projection that the Charge Collections will be insufficient to make such payments, the Servicer must file a notice of adjustment (the "Mandatory Mid-Year True-Up Adjustment") to ensure that Charge during the period beginning on May 15 and ending on the following May 14 is adequate to pay timely principal and interest on the Bonds when due pursuant to the Expected Amortization Schedule and to make timely payment on all other Ongoing Financing Costs due during the period beginning on the next June 16 and ending on the following June 15 (each such period a "Mid-year Calculation Period"). If it is determined that a Mandatory Mid-year True-up is not required, the Servicer may nevertheless voluntarily elect to file a notice of adjustment (i) to correct for any over-collections to date and anticipated to be experienced up to the end of the then current Mid-year Calculation Period and (ii) to ensure that the Charge during the period beginning on May 15 and ending on the following

May 14 is adequate to pay timely principal and interest on the Bonds when due pursuant to the Expected Amortization Schedule and to make timely payment on all other Ongoing Financing Costs due during the next Mid-year Calculation Period (a "Voluntary Mid-year True-up"). Any such notice of adjustment for a Mandatory Mid-year True-up or a Voluntary Mid-year True-up shall be filed no later than April 15 of such year, any such adjustment to become effective on May 15 of such year of such year. Additionally, the Servicer may file at any time an additional optional notice of adjustment to ensure that the expected collections of the Charge are adequate to pay timely principal and interest on the Bonds when due pursuant to the Expected Amortization Schedule and to make timely payment on all other Ongoing Financing Costs (an "Optional True-up").

- (c) Following the last Scheduled Maturity Date of the Bonds (or any series of Bonds), if any such Bonds remain outstanding after such Scheduled Maturity Date, the Servicer will file quarterly notices of adjustments to the Charge to ensure that the Charge Collections will be sufficient to pay timely interest and principal in full on the Bonds (or any series of Bonds) that remain outstanding after such Scheduled Maturity Date and to make timely payment on all other Ongoing Financing Costs on the next payment date.
- (d) All adjustments will be designed to cause (i) the outstanding principal balance of the Bonds (or any series of Bonds) to be equal to the scheduled balance (based on the Expected Amortization Schedule) with respect to such Bonds (or any series of Bonds); (ii) the amount in the Reserve Subaccount to be equal to the Required Reserve Level; (iii) with respect to the Annual True-up only, any amount in the Excess Funds Subaccount to be targeted to be zero by the Payment Date immediately preceding the effective date of the next Annual True-up or by the Final Maturity Date on the Bonds, if the next Payment Date is the Final Maturity Date of all of the Bonds (or any series of Bonds); and (iv) with respect to a Voluntary Mid-year True-up only, any amount in the Excess Funds Subaccount to be targeted to be zero by the Payment Date immediately following the effective date of the next Mid-year Review or by the Final Maturity Date on the Bonds, if the next Payment Date is the Final Maturity Date of all of the Bonds (or any series of Bonds).
- (e) For the period prior to the last Scheduled Maturity Date of the Bonds (or any series of Bonds), the Servicer will calculate the adjustments for the Annual True-up to be effective as of each November 15 in the following manner:
  - (1) Calculate under-collections or over-collections of Charge Collections from all prior Collection Periods on a cumulative basis by subtracting (a) the sum of (i) principal and interest paid and scheduled to be paid on the Bonds through the end of the current Annual Calculation Period and (ii) all Ongoing Financing Costs paid and expected to be payable through the end of the current Annual Calculation Period from (b) the Charge Collections to date and amounts released from the Reserve Subaccount that are in excess of the Required Debt Service Reserve Level as well as all Charge Collections projected to be received prior to the end of the current Annual Calculation Period.
  - (2) Calculate the amount of Charges that must be billed through November 14 of the next succeeding calendar year such that the Charges are sufficient (a) to pay timely

principal and interest on the Bonds when due pursuant to the Expected Amortization Schedule during the Annual Calculation Period ending on December 15 of the next succeeding calendar year, and (b) to make timely payment on all other Ongoing Financing Costs, given (i) projected energy consumption, (ii) projected uncollectibles, and (iii) projected lags in collection of billed Charges through at least the end of such next succeeding Annual Calculation Period.

- (3) Sum amounts in steps (1) and (2) above.
- (4) Divide the resulting amount in step (3) above by the forecasted energy billing units for the twelve month period ending on such November 14 of the next succeeding calendar year to determine the Charge to be in effect until the effective date of the next True-up Adjustment.
- (f) For the period prior to the last Scheduled Maturity Date of the Bonds (or any series of Bonds), the Servicer will perform the Mid-year Review before April 15 following the effective date of each Annual True-up, calculated in the following manner:
- (1) Determine the Charge Collections from the applicable Annual Calculation Period, taking into account actual collections and collections projected to be received prior to the end of the current Annual Calculation Period.
- (2) Calculate the amount of Charges that must be billed prior to the effective date of the next Annual True-up such that the Charges are sufficient (a) to pay timely principal and interest on the Bonds when due during the current Annual Calculation Period pursuant to the Expected Amortization Schedule and (b) to make timely payment on all other Ongoing Financing Costs during such Annual Calculation Period, given (i) projected energy consumption, (ii) projected uncollectibles, and (iii) projected lags in collection of billed Charges through at least the end of such Annual Calculation Period.
- (3) If the amount resulting from the calculation in step (2) is greater than step (1), the Servicer will institute a Mandatory Mid-year True-up in the manner described below.
- (g) For the period prior to the last Scheduled Maturity Date of the Bonds (or any series of Bonds), the Servicer will calculate the adjustments for the Mandatory Mid-year True-up in the following manner:
  - (1) Calculate the amount of Charges that must be billed prior to May 15 of the next succeeding calendar year such that the Charges are sufficient (a) to pay timely principal and interest on the Bonds when due pursuant to the Expected Amortization Schedule during the Mid-year Calculation Period ending on June 15 of the next succeeding calendar year and (b) to make timely payment on all other Ongoing Financing Costs during such Mid-year Calculation Period, given (i) projected energy consumption, (ii) projected uncollectibles, and (iii) projected lags in collection of billed Charges through at least end of such Mid-year Calculation Period.

- (2) Divide the amount in step (1) above by the forecasted energy billing units to determine the Charge to be in effect until May 15 of the next succeeding calendar year.
- (h) For the period prior to the last Scheduled Maturity Date of the Bonds (or any series of Bonds) if the Servicer elects to implement a Voluntary Mid-year True-up, the Servicer shall calculate the adjustments for the Voluntary Mid-year True-up in the same manner described in clause (e) above with respect to an Annual True-up provided that references in such clause (e) to an Annual Calculation Period shall be deemed to refer to a Mid-year Calculation Period and references in clause (e)(4) to the effective date of the next True-up Adjustment shall be deemed to refer to May 15 of the next succeeding calendar year.
- (i) Each Adjustment Notice shall include a description of the adjustment calculation, the mathematical formulas used for such calculations and the amounts of each variable used in such formulas.
- (j) If necessary to provide for timely payment of scheduled principal of and interest on the Bonds and the payment and recovery of other Ongoing Financing Costs, the Servicer shall prepare and file an Adjustment Notice with the Authority for each Optional True-up. Such filings shall be made at least 30 days prior to the proposed effective date of the proposed adjustments.

#### (k) Notices.

(1) Notices to the Bond Issuer, Bond Trustee and Rating Agencies. Whenever the Servicer files an Adjustment Notice with the Authority, the Servicer shall send a copy of such filing to the Bond Issuer, the Bond Trustee, the Administrator, the Allocation Agent and the Rating Agencies concurrently therewith, post a copy of such filing on the 17g-5 Website and within thirty (30) days of such filing, to the Electronic Municipal Market Access system maintained by the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. If any True-Up Adjustment described in any such Adjustment Notice filing does not become effective on the applicable date for any reason, the Servicer shall notify the Bond Issuer, the Allocation Agent, the Bond Trustee and the Rating Agencies by the end of the second Business Day after such applicable date.

## (2) Notices to Customers.

- (A) After each revised Charge has gone into effect pursuant to a True-Up Adjustment, the Servicer shall, to the extent and in the manner and time frame required by applicable Authority Regulations, if any, cause to be prepared and delivered to customers any required notices announcing such revised Charges.
- (B) The Servicer shall comply with the requirements of the LIPA Reform Act and the Financing Order with respect to the identification of the Charges on Bills. In addition, at least once each year, the Servicer shall (to the extent that it does not separately identify the Charges as being owned by the Bond Issuer in the Bills regularly sent to Customers) cause to be prepared and delivered to such Customers a notice stating, in effect, that the Restructuring Property and the Charges are owned solely by the Bond Issuer and not the Servicer. Such

notice shall be included either as an insert to or in the text of the Bills delivered to such Customers or shall be delivered to Customers by electronic means or such other means as the Servicer may from time to time use to communicate with its own Customers.

#### ANNEX 2

### **PROCEDURES**

The Servicer agrees to comply with the following servicing procedures:

### SECTION 1. Definitions.

- (a) Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings set forth in the Restructuring Property Servicing Agreement dated as of September 8, 2016, between the Bond Issuer and LIPA, as Servicer (the "Servicing Agreement").
- (b) Whenever used in this <u>Annex 2</u>, the following words and phrases shall have the following meanings:
- "Applicable MDMA" means, with respect to each Customer, the meter data management agent or other person providing meter reading services for that Customer's account.
- "Applicable Third Party" means, with respect to each Customer, the Third Party, if any, providing billing or metering services to that Customer.
- "Billed Charges" means the amounts billed to Customers pursuant to the Charge, whether billed directly to such Customers by the Servicer or indirectly through a Third Party pursuant to Consolidated Third Party Billing.
- "Bills" means each of the regular monthly bills, the summary bills, the initial bills and the Closing Bills issued to Customers or Third Parties by LIPA.
- "Budget Payment Plan" means a levelized payment plan offered by LIPA, which, if elected by a Customer, provides for level monthly Bill charges to such Customer. For residential Customers, this charge is calculated by calculating actual electricity usage for the previous 12 months, multiplying that usage by the applicable rates and non-usage sensitive charges and dividing this amount by twelve. The number which results from this calculation is charged to the residential Customer each month. The procedure is similar for small industrial and commercial Customers.
- "Charge Effective Date" means the date on which the initial Charge goes into effect pursuant to the Financing Order.
  - "Closing Bill" means the final bill issued to a Customer at the time service is terminated.
- "Consolidated Third Party Billing" means the billing option available to Customers served by a Third Party pursuant to which such Third Party will be responsible for billing and collecting all charges to Customers electing such billing option, including the Charge, and will become obligated to the Servicer for the Billed Charges, all in accordance with applicable Authority Regulations and the Financing Order.

"Days Sales Outstanding" means the average number of days that monthly bills to Customers for electric transmission and distribution services in the Service Area (or, following the authorization of Third Parties to bill and collect Customers for electric transmission and distribution services in the Service Area, monthly bills to Third Parties) remain outstanding during the calendar year immediately preceding the calculation of projected lags in collection of billed Charges pursuant to Annex 2 of the Servicing Agreement. The initial Days Sales Outstanding shall be 39 days until updated pursuant to Annex 2 of the Servicing Agreement.

"Servicer Policies and Practices" means, with respect to the Servicer's duties under this Annex 2, the policies and practices applicable to such duties that the Servicer (or its sub-servicer) follows with respect to the T&D Rates.

## SECTION 2. <u>Data Acquisition</u>.

- (a) Installation and Maintenance of Meters. Except to the extent that a Third Party is responsible for such services, the Servicer shall use commercially reasonable efforts to cause to be installed, replaced and maintained meters in such places and in such condition as will enable the Servicer to obtain usage measurements for each Customer approximately every 30 days or as provided in the applicable tariff.
- (b) Meter Reading. At least once each Billing Period, the Servicer shall obtain usage measurements from the Applicable MDMA for each Customer; provided, however, that the Servicer may determine any Customer's usage on the basis of estimates in accordance with applicable Authority Regulations.
- (c) Cost of Metering. The Bond Issuer shall not be obligated to pay any costs associated with the metering duties set forth in this Section 2, including, but not limited to, the costs of installing, replacing and maintaining meters, nor shall the Bond Issuer be entitled to any credit against the Servicing Fee for any cost savings realized by the Servicer or any Third Party as a result of new metering and/or billing technologies.

#### SECTION 3. Usage and Bill Calculation.

The Servicer shall obtain a calculation of each Customer's usage (which may be based on data obtained from such Customer's meter read or on usage estimates determined in accordance with applicable Authority Regulations) at least once each Billing Period and shall determine therefrom the amount of the Charge to be included on such Customer's Bill pursuant to the Financing Order and Authority Regulations.

## SECTION 4. Billing.

The Servicer shall implement the Charge as of the Charge Effective Date and shall thereafter bill each Customer or the Applicable Third Party for the respective Customer's outstanding current and past due charges relating to the Charge, accruing until all payments of principal and interest on the Bonds and all other Ongoing Financing Costs have been paid in accordance with the Indenture, all in accordance with the following:

(a) Frequency of Bills; Billing Practices. In accordance with the Servicer's then-existing Servicer Policies and Practices, as such Servicer Policies and Practices may be modified from time to time, the Servicer shall generate and issue a Bill to each Customer, or, in the case of a Customer who has elected Consolidated Third Party Billing, to an Applicable Third Party, for such Customer's respective Charge as a general practice once approximately every 30 days or such other time period as allowed by the Authority, at the same time, with the same frequency and on the same Bill as that containing the Servicer's T&D Rates to such Customer or Third Party, as the case may be. In the event that the Servicer makes any material modification to these practices, it shall notify the Bond Issuer, the Bond Trustee, the Allocation Agent and the Rating Agencies as soon as practicable, and in no event later than 60 Business Days after such modification goes into effect; provided, however, that the Servicer may not make any modification that will materially adversely affect the Bondholders.

## (b) Format.

- (i) Pursuant to the Financing Order, each Bill will identify the Charges included in such Bill by means of a footnote or other description of the amount of the Charge or the Charge per kWh and a statement to the effect that the Charges belong to the Bond Issuer.
- (ii) In the case of each Customer that has elected Consolidated Third Party Billing, the Servicer shall deliver to the Applicable Third Party itemized charges for such Customer including the amount of such Customer's Charge and text identifying the Bond Issuer as the owner of such Charge.
- (iii) The Servicer shall conform to such requirements in respect of the format, structure and text of Bills delivered to Customers and Third Parties as applicable Authority Regulations shall from time to time prescribe. To the extent that Bill format, structure and text are not prescribed by the Statute, other applicable law or Authority Regulations, the Servicer shall, subject to clauses (i) and (ii) above, determine the format, structure and text of all Bills in accordance with its reasonable business judgment, the Servicer Policies and Practices and prevailing industry standards.

## (c) Delivery. The Servicer shall deliver all Bills to Customers

- (i) by United States mail in such class or classes as are consistent with the Servicer Policies and Practices followed by the Servicer with respect to the T&D Rates or
- (ii) by any other means, whether electronic or otherwise, that the Servicer may from time to time use to bill the T&D Rates to Customers. In the case of Customers that have elected Consolidated Third Party Billing, the Servicer shall deliver all Bills to the applicable Third Parties by such means as are prescribed by applicable Authority Regulations, or if not prescribed by applicable Authority Regulations, by such means as are mutually agreed upon by the Servicer and the applicable Third Party and are consistent with Authority Regulations. The Servicer or a Third Party, as applicable, shall pay from its own funds all costs of issuance and delivery of all Bills, including but not limited to printing and postage costs as the same may increase or decrease from time to time.

### SECTION 5. Customer Service Functions.

The Servicer shall handle all Customer inquiries and other Customer service matters according to the same procedures it uses to service Customers with respect to the T&D Rates.

## SECTION 6. Collections; Payment Processing; Remittances.

## (a) <u>Collection Efforts, Policies, Procedures.</u>

- (i) The Servicer shall use reasonable efforts to collect all Billed Charges from Customers and Third Parties as and when the same become due and shall follow such collection procedures as it follows with respect to the T&D Rates, including, as follows:
- (A) The Servicer shall prepare and deliver overdue notices to Customers and Third Parties in accordance with applicable Authority Regulations and the Servicer Policies and Practices.
- (B) The Servicer shall apply late payment charges to outstanding Customer and Third Party balances in accordance with applicable Authority Regulations. All late payment charges and interest collected shall be payable to and retained by the Servicer as a component of its compensation under the Servicing Agreement, and the Bond Issuer shall not have any right to share in the same.
- (C) The Servicer shall deliver verbal and written final call notices in accordance with applicable Authority Regulations and Servicer Policies and Practices.
- (D) The Servicer shall adhere and carry out disconnection policies in accordance with the Statute, other applicable law and Authority Regulations and Servicer Policies and Practices.
- (E) The Servicer may employ the assistance of collections agents in accordance with applicable Authority Regulations and Servicer Policies and Practices.
- (F) The Servicer shall apply Customer and Third Party deposits, Customers' letters of credit and Customer posted surety bonds to the payment of delinquent accounts in accordance with applicable Authority Regulations and Servicer Policies and Practices and according to the priorities set forth in Section 6(b)(ii), (iii) and (iv) of this Annex 2.
- (G) The Servicer shall promptly take all necessary action in accordance with applicable Authority Regulations to terminate billing of Charges by Third Parties whose payments are delinquent and to collect the Billed Charges directly from the applicable Customers.
- (ii) The Servicer shall not waive any late payment charge or any other fee or charge relating to delinquent payments, if any, or waive, vary or modify any terms of payment of any amounts payable by a Customer, in each case unless such waiver or action:

- (A) would be in accordance with the Servicer's customary practices or those of any successor Servicer with respect to comparable assets that it services for itself and for others:
  - (B) would not materially adversely affect the rights of the Bondholders; and
- (C) would comply with applicable law; provided, however, that notwithstanding anything in the Servicing Agreement or this Annex 2 to the contrary, the Servicer is authorized to write off any Billed Charges in accordance with its Servicer Policies and Practices that remain outstanding for 120-150 days.
- (iii) The Servicer shall accept payment from Customers in respect of Billed Charges in such forms, by such methods and at such times and places as it accepts payment of the T&D Rates. The Servicer shall accept payment from Third Parties in respect of Billed Charges in such forms, by such methods and at such times and places as the Servicer and each Third Party shall mutually agree in accordance with applicable Authority Regulations.

## (b) Payment Processing; Allocation; Priority of Payments.

- (i) The Servicer shall post all payments received to Customer accounts as promptly as practicable, and, in any event, substantially all payments shall be posted no later than two Business Days after receipt.
- (ii) Subject to clause (iii) below, the Servicer shall apply payments received to each Customer's or Third Party's account in proportion to the charges contained on the outstanding Bill to such Customer or Third Party.
- (iii) Any amounts collected by the Servicer that represent partial payments of the total Bill to a Customer or Third Party shall be allocated in accordance with the priorities set forth in Section 3.02(b) of the Servicing Agreement.
- (iv) The Servicer shall cause all over-payments to be deposited into the Allocation Account and shall allocate such funds in accordance with clauses (ii) and (iii).
- (v) For Customers on a Budget Payment Plan, the Servicer shall treat Charge Collections received from such Customers as if such Customers had been billed for the Charge in the absence of the Budget Payment Plan. Partial payment of a Budget Payment Plan payment shall be allocated according to clause (iii) above, and overpayment of a Budget Payment Plan payment shall be allocated according to clause (iv) above.

### (c) Accounts; Records.

(i) The Servicer shall maintain accounts and records as to the Restructuring Property accurately and in accordance with its standard accounting procedures and in sufficient detail to permit reconciliation between payments or recoveries with respect to the Restructuring Property and the amounts from time to time remitted to the Collection Account in respect of the Restructuring Property.

(ii) The Servicer shall maintain accounts and records as to Third Parties performing Consolidated Third Party Billing for Customers accurately and in accordance with its standard accounting procedures and in sufficient detail to permit reconciliation between payments or recoveries with respect to the Restructuring Property and amounts owed by such Customers in respect of the Charge.

## (d) Calculation of Daily Remittances, Excess Remittances and Remittance Shortfalls.

- 1. For purposes of calculating the Daily Remittance, (i) all Billed Charges shall be estimated to be collected the same number of days after billing as is equal to the Days Sales Outstanding then in effect (or on the next Business Day) and (ii) the Servicer will, on each Business Day, cause the Allocation Agent to remit to the Collection Account an amount equal to the product of the Billed Charges estimated to be collected on such Business Day multiplied by one hundred percent less the percentage of projected uncollectibles used by the Servicer to calculate the most recent adjustment pursuant to Annex 1 of the Servicing Agreement. Such product shall constitute the amount of Estimated Charge Collections for such Business Day.
- 2. Pursuant to Section 3.03(c) of the Servicing Agreement, within fifteen days prior to the date on which an Adjustment Notice is filed with the Authority, the Servicer shall calculate and report in the next succeeding Monthly Servicer's Certificate the amount of Actual Charge Collections for all completed Collection Periods during the Reconciliation Period as compared to the Estimated Charge Collections remitted to the Collection Account in respect of such Reconciliation Period and any Excess Remittance or Remittance Shortfall. Actual Charge Collections will be calculated using actual data, including actual electricity consumption, actual uncollectibles and actual lags in collection for the Reconciliation Period. If Third Parties are authorized to bill, collect and remit Charges, the Servicer shall be allowed to use the reimbursement of any Excess Remittance to reimburse any Third Parties for the excess of their remittances over actual Charge Payments received by such Third Parties in accordance with the terms of Authority Regulations.
- 3. On or before the times specified in Annex 1 to the Servicing Agreement, the Servicer shall, in a timely manner so as to perform all required calculations under Annex 1 to the Servicing Agreement for the True-up Adjustments, update the Days Sales Outstanding, the projected lags in collection of billed Charges and the projected uncollectibles in order to be able to calculate the next True-Up Adjustment and to calculate any change in the Daily Remittances for the next Reconciliation Period.
- 4. All calculations of collections, each update of the Days Sales Outstanding, the projected lags in collection of billed Charges, the projected uncollectibles and any changes in procedures used to calculate the Estimated Charge Payments pursuant to this Section 6(d) of this Annex 2 shall be made in good faith, and

in the case of any update pursuant to clause 6(d)(2) above, in a manner reasonably intended to provide estimates and calculations that are at least as accurate as those that were provided on the Closing Date utilizing the initial procedures.

## (e) <u>Remittances</u>.

- 1. The Servicer shall make or cause payments to the Collection Account or the Allocation Account in accordance with Sections 3.03 and 5.11 and this Annex 2 of the Servicing Agreement.
- 2. In the event of any change of account or change of institution affecting the remittances, the Bond Issuer shall provide written notice thereof to the Servicer by the earlier of:
  - (A) five Business Days from the effective date of such change, or
  - (B) five Business Days prior to the next applicable Remittance Date.

# **EXHIBIT A**

# FORM OF MONTHLY SERVICER CERTIFICATE

Utility Debt Securitization Authority Restructuring Bonds

**Long Island Lighting Company** Servicer:

Pursuant to the Restructuring Property Servicing Agreement, dated as of September 8, 2016 (the "Servicing Agreement"), between the LONG ISLAND LIGHTING COMPANY, as h

Servicer, and the UTILITY DEBT SECURITIZATION AUTHOR hereby certify as follows:	
1. For period beginningand ended (the "Certificate	Period"):
Deposits into Allocation Account	\$
Actual Charge Collections deposited into Allocation Account	\$
Estimated Charge Collections remitted to Collection Account	\$
Excess Remittance deducted during period	\$
Remittance Shortfall instructed to be transferred to the	\$
Collection Account	
Excess Remittance instructed to be deducted from future	\$
Daily Remittances	
Excess Remittance to be paid or transferred from the	\$
Collection Account or the Excess Funds Subaccount	
<ol> <li>To the best of the undersigned's knowledge, the Service obligations in all material respects under Section 3.03(a) of throughout the Certificate Period [, except].</li> <li>In WITNESS HEREOF, the undersigned has duly executed Servicer Certificate the day of [Name of Entity]</li> </ol>	f the Servicing Agreement
By	
Name:	
Title:	

### **EXHIBIT B**

## FORM OF SEMIANNUAL SERVICER CERTIFICATE

Utility Debt Securitization Authority Restructuring Bonds

Pursuant to the Restructuring Property Servicing Agreement, dated as of September 8, 2016, (the "Servicing Agreement"), between LONG ISLAND LIGHTING COMPANY, as Servicer, and UTILITY DEBT SECURITIZATION AUTHORITY, the undersigned does hereby certify, for the \_\_\_\_, 20\_ Payment Date (the "Current Payment Date"), as follows:

Capitalized terms used herein have their respective meanings as set forth in the Servicing

Refere	nent, or if not defined in the Servicing Agreement, as set forth in the Bond Indenture, nees herein to certain sections and subsections are references to the respective sections of rvicing Agreement or the Bond Indenture, as the context indicates.
Collec	tion Period: [] through []
Payme	ent Date: []
Date o	f Certificate: []
Cut-O	ff Date (not more than ten days prior to the date hereof): []:
(a)	Available Amounts on Deposit in Collection Account (including Excess Funds Subaccount) as of Cut-Off Date [date nor more than ten days prior to date of this certificate]: \$
(b)	Actual or Estimated Remittances from the date in (a) above through the Servicer Business Day preceding Current Payment Date: \$
(c)	Total Amounts Available to Trustee for Payment of Bonds and Other Ongoing Financing Costs: \$

(d)	Allocation of Available Amounts as of Current Payment Date allocable to payment of principal and interest on Bonds on Current Payment Date:
	Principal
	<u>Aggregate</u>
	Total
	Interest
	<u>Aggregate</u>
	Total
(e)	Outstanding Amount of Bonds prior to, and after giving effect to the payment on the Current Payment Date and the difference, if any, between the Outstanding Amount specified in the Expected Amortization Schedule (after giving effect to payments to be made on such Payment Date set forth above) and the Principal Balance to be Outstanding (following payment on Current Payment Date):
	Principal Balance Outstanding (as of the date of this certification):
	Total
	Principal Balance to be Outstanding (following payment on Current Payment Date):
	Total
(f)	Difference between (e) above and Outstanding Amount specified in the Expected Amortization Schedule:
	Total
(g)	All other transfers to be made on the Current Payment Date, including amounts to be paid to the Bond Trustee and to the Servicer pursuant to Section 8.02(e) of the Bond Indenture:
	Ongoing Financing Costs:
	Bond Trustee Fees and Expenses: Servicer Fees and Expenses: Administration Fees and Expenses: Rating Agency Fees: Accounting Fees:
	Funding of Reserve Subaccount (to required amount): Total:

(h)	Estimated amounts on deposit in the Reserve Subaccount and Excess Funds Subaccount after giving effect to the foregoing payments:
	Reserve Subaccount
	Total:
	Excess Funds Subaccount
	Total:
Servic	In witness hereof, the undersigned has duly executed and delivered this Semiannual $\frac{1}{2}$ certificate this _day of, 20
[Name	e of Entity]
Ву	
Name	:
Title:	

# **EXHIBIT C**

## **CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE**

Utility Debt Securitization Authority Restructuring Bonds

Pursuant to the Restructuring Property Servicing Agreement, dated as of September 8, 2016, (the "Servicing Agreement"), between LONG ISLAND LIGHTING COMPANY, as
Servicer, and UTILITY DEBT SECURITIZATION AUTHORITY, the undersigned does hereby certify, for the, 20_ Payment Date (the "Current Payment Date"), as follows:
The undersigned hereby certifies that he/she is the duly elected and acting [] of [] and further that:
1. A review of the activities of the Servicer and any of its subcontractors and of its performance under the Servicing Agreement during the twelve months ended [], [] has been made under the supervision of the undersigned pursuant to Section 3.06 of the Servicing Agreement; and
2. To the best of the undersigned's knowledge, based on such review, the Servicer has fulfilled all of its obligations in all material respects under the Servicing Agreement throughout the twelve months ended [], [], except
Executed as of this day of,
Name: Title:
Title.

### **EXHIBIT D**

### ADJUSTMENT NOTICE

Pursuant to the Restructuring Cost Financing Order No. 4 of the Long Island Power Authority ("Authority") dated June 26, 2015 (the "Financing Order") and the Restructuring Property Servicing Agreement, dated as of September 8, 2016 (the "Servicing Agreement"), between the LONG ISLAND LIGHTING COMPANY, as Servicer, and the UTILITY DEBT SECURITIZATION AUTHORITY, the undersigned does hereby provides notice of an adjustment to the Charge to take effect on the Adjustment Date specified below.

Adjustment Date:
Adjusted Charge:
The adjusted Charge was calculated as follows:
Executed as of this day of
By:
Name: Title:

# EXPECTED AMORTIZATION SCHEDULE

Maturity Date	Principal	Coupon	Interest	Debt Service	Annual Debt Service
6/15/2017	\$26,250,000.00	5.000%	\$17,978,838.89	\$44,228,838.89	
12/15/2017	\$33,200,000.00	5.000%	\$11,026,750.00	\$44,226,750.00	\$88,455,588.89
6/15/2018	\$37,715,000.00	5.000%	\$10,196,750.00	\$47,911,750.00	
12/15/2018	\$38,655,000.00	5.000%	\$9,253,875.00	\$47,908,875.00	\$95,820,625.00
6/15/2019			\$8,287,500.00	\$8,287,500.00	
12/15/2019			\$8,287,500.00	\$8,287,500.00	\$16,575,000.00
6/15/2020	\$8,015,000.00	5.000%	\$8,287,500.00	\$16,302,500.00	
12/15/2020	\$8,215,000.00	5.000%	\$8,087,125.00	\$16,302,125.00	\$32,604,625.00
6/15/2021	\$35,850,000.00	5.000%	\$7,881,750.00	\$43,731,750.00	
12/15/2021	\$36,745,000.00	5.000%	\$6,985,500.00	\$43,730,500.00	\$87,462,250.00
6/15/2022	\$44,930,000.00	5.000%	\$6,066,875.00	\$50,996,875.00	
12/15/2022	\$46,050,000.00	5.000%	\$4,943,625.00	\$50,993,625.00	\$101,990,500.00
6/15/2023	\$12,930,000.00	5.000%	\$3,792,375.00	\$16,722,375.00	
12/15/2023	\$13,255,000.00	5.000%	\$3,469,125.00	\$16,724,125.00	\$33,446,500.00
6/15/2024			\$3,137,750.00	\$3,137,750.00	
12/15/2024			\$3,137,750.00	\$3,137,750.00	\$6,275,500.00
6/15/2025	\$2,940,000.00	5.000%	\$3,137,750.00	\$6,077,750.00	
12/15/2025	\$3,010,000.00	5.000%	\$3,064,250.00	\$6,074,250.00	\$12,152,000.00
6/15/2026			\$2,989,000.00	\$2,989,000.00	
12/15/2026			\$2,989,000.00	\$2,989,000.00	\$5,978,000.00
6/15/2027			\$2,989,000.00	\$2,989,000.00	
12/15/2027			\$2,989,000.00	\$2,989,000.00	\$5,978,000.00
6/15/2028	\$18,095,000.00	5.000%	\$2,989,000.00	\$21,084,000.00	
12/15/2028	\$18,550,000.00	5.000%	\$2,536,625.00	\$21,086,625.00	\$42,170,625.00
6/15/2029			\$2,072,875.00	\$2,072,875.00	
12/15/2029			\$2,072,875.00	\$2,072,875.00	\$4,145,750.00
6/15/2030	\$2,150,000.00	5.000%	\$2,072,875.00	\$4,222,875.00	
12/15/2030	\$2,200,000.00	5.000%	\$2,019,125.00	\$4,219,125.00	\$8,442,000.00
6/15/2031	\$13,250,000.00	5.000%	\$1,964,125.00	\$15,214,125.00	
12/15/2031	\$13,580,000.00	5.000%	\$1,632,875.00	\$15,212,875.00	\$30,427,000.00
6/15/2032	\$13,920,000.00	5.000%	\$1,293,375.00	\$15,213,375.00	
12/15/2032	\$14,265,000.00	5.000%	\$945,375.00	\$15,210,375.00	\$30,423,750.00
6/15/2033	\$12,630,000.00	** %	\$588,750.00	\$13,218,750.00	
12/15/2033	\$12,920,000.00	** %	\$298,000.00	\$13,218,000.00	\$26,436,750.00
	\$469,320,000.00		\$159,464,463.89	\$628,784,463.89	\$628,784,463.89

### **APPENDIX A**

### **DEFINITIONS**

Whenever used in this Agreement, the following words and phrases shall have the following meanings:

"Actual Charge Collections" means the Charge Collections, which are calculated pursuant to Section 3.03(c) of the Servicing Agreement and section 6(d) of Annex 2 thereof to have been collected from Customers and deposited into the Allocation Account during a Reconciliation Period.

"<u>Adjustment Date</u>" means the date specified in an Adjustment Notice on which the adjusted Charge described in such Adjustment Notice shall take effect.

"Adjustment Notice" means any filing made with the Authority by the Servicer on behalf of the Bond Issuer to set or adjust the Charge, including the Issuance Advice Letter.

"Allocation Account" means the deposit accounts or other accounts designated by the Authority from time to time and controlled by the Allocation Agent, into which all payments from or on behalf of Customers are to be deposited and from which transfers of estimated Charge Collections and Remittance Shortfalls are to be made to the Collection Account and transfers of Estimated Other Payments are to be made to appropriate accounts of the Authority. Initially, the Allocation Account shall refer to the clearing account(s) that have been established by the Authority with J.P. Morgan Chase Bank.

"Allocation Agent" means the entity designated by the Authority (which may be the Authority) that agrees to control the Allocation Account in trust for the benefit of the Bond Trustee and the Authority Trustee, to accept all payments from or on behalf of Customers for deposit into the Allocation Account, to notify the Servicer on each Business Day of the amount deposited into the Allocation Account on the preceding Business Day, and, to the extent that funds are available in the Allocation Account, to transfer the estimated Charge Collections and Remittance Shortfalls from the Allocation Account to the Collection Account as instructed by the Servicer or the Bond Trustee in writing and to transfer the Estimated Other Payments as instructed by the Authority or the Authority Trustee. The initial Allocation Agent shall be the Authority.

"<u>Annual Accountant's Report</u>" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.07 of the Servicing Agreement.

"Annual True-up" has the meaning assigned to that term in Annex 1.

"Authority" means the Long Island Power Authority and any successor thereto.

"<u>Authority Regulations</u>" means all regulations, rules, tariffs and laws applicable to public utilities, owners of the T&D System Assets or Third Parties, as the case may be, and promulgated by, enforced by or otherwise within the jurisdiction of the Authority.

"<u>Authority Trustee</u>" means the trustee under the Authority's Bond Resolution dated May 13, 1998.

"<u>Basic Documents</u>" means the Bond Indenture, the Sale Agreement, this Agreement, the Administration Agreement, the Continuing Disclosure Agreement and the Bond Purchase Agreement.

"Billing Month" means a calendar month during which the Charge is billed to Customers.

"<u>Billing Period</u>" means the period during which the electric transmission and distribution services reflected on a Customer's Bill were received by such Customer.

"Bills" means each of the regular monthly bills, summary bills and other bills issued to Customers for T&D Rates by the Servicer or by a Third Party.

"Bond" means any bond or other debt security issued pursuant to the Financing Order and the Bond Indenture.

"Bondholders" has the meaning specified in Section 1.01 of the Bond Indenture.

"Bond Balance" means, as of any date, the aggregate Outstanding Amount of all Bonds on such date.

"Bond Indenture" means the Bond Indenture, dated as of September 8, 2016, between the Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee, as the same may be amended and supplemented from time to time.

"Bond Issuer" means the Utility Debt Securitization Authority.

"Bond Trustee" has the meaning specified in Section 1.01 of the Bond Indenture.

"<u>Business Day</u>" means any day other than a Saturday, a Sunday or a day on which banking institutions or trust companies in New York, New York, are authorized or obligated by law, regulation or executive order to remain closed.

"Certificate of Compliance" means the certificate referred to in Section 3.06 of this Agreement.

"Charge" means the Charge authorized in the Financing Order, as the same may be adjusted from time to time as provided in the Financing Order.

"Charge Collections" means the payments of the Charges by or on behalf of Customers.

"Closing Date" means September 8, 2016.

"Collateral" has the meaning specified in Section 1.01 of the Bond Indenture.

"Collection Account" means the account established and maintained by the Bond Trustee in accordance with Section 8.02(a) of the Bond Indenture and any subaccounts contained therein.

"Collection Period" means the period from and including the first day of a calendar month to but excluding the first day of the next calendar month.

"Customers" means consumers as defined in the Statute.

"<u>Daily Remittance Date</u>" means, if the Servicer has not satisfied the conditions of Section 5.11(b) of the Servicing Agreement, each Business Day commencing on the second Business Day following the date on which the Servicer begins remittance procedures under Section 3.03(a)(ii) of the Servicing Agreement.

"EMMA" has the meaning specified in Section 7.12 of the Servicing Agreement.

"ERISA" means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974.

"<u>Estimated Charge Collections</u>" means the estimated Charge Collections calculated as provided in Annex 2 of the Servicing Agreement.

"<u>Estimated Other Payments</u>" means all payments by or on behalf of Customers other than estimated Charge Collections and any Remittance Shortfalls net of any Excess Remittance.

"Excess Remittance" means the amount, if any, calculated for a particular Reconciliation Period, by which all Estimated Charge Collections remitted to the Collection Account during such Reconciliation Period exceed Actual Charge Collections received by the Servicer during such Reconciliation Period and taking into account any Excess Remittance or Remittance Shortfall previously paid during such Reconciliation Period.

"Excess Funds Subaccount" means any residual or excess funds subaccount of the Collection Account other than the Reserve Subaccount.

"Expected Amortization Schedule" means the Expected Amortization Schedule attached to this Agreement.

"Expected Final Payment Date" means the Payment Date on which all of the Bonds are scheduled to be paid in full.

"<u>Final Maturity Date</u>" means, with respect to any Tranche of Bonds, the date by which all principal and interest on that Tranche is required to be paid, as specified in the Bond Indenture.

"Fitch" means Fitch, Inc. or its successor.

"<u>Financing Order</u>" means the Restructuring Cost Financing Order No. 4 of the Authority adopted on June 26, 2015.

"Governmental Authority" means any nation or government, any federal, state, local or other political subdivision thereof and any court, administrative agency, or other instrumentality or entity exercising executive, legislative, judicial, regulatory or administrative function of government.

"<u>Holder</u>" or "<u>Bondholder</u>" means the Person in whose name a Bond is registered on the Bond Register, and to the extent specified by the Bond Indenture, the owners of bearer Bonds.

"Independent" has the meaning specified in Section 1.01 of the Bond Indenture.

"Insolvency Event" means, with respect to a specified Person, (a) the filing of a decree or order for relief by a court having jurisdiction in the premises in respect of such Person or any substantial part of its property in an involuntary case under any applicable federal or state bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar law now or hereafter in effect, or appointing a receiver, liquidator, assignee, custodian, trustee, sequestrator or similar official for such Person or for any substantial part of its property, or ordering the winding-up or liquidation of such Person's affairs, and such decree or order shall remain unstayed and in effect for a period of 60 consecutive days; or (b) the commencement by such Person of a voluntary case under any applicable federal or state bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar law now or hereafter in effect, or the consent by such Person to the entry of an order for relief in an involuntary case under any such law, or the consent by such Person to the appointment of or taking possession by a receiver, liquidator, assignee, custodian, trustee, sequestrator or similar official for such Person or for any substantial part of its property, or the making by such Person of any general assignment for the benefit of creditors, or the failure by such Person generally to pay its debts as such debts become due.

"Investment Company Act" means the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended.

"<u>Issuance Advice Letter</u>" means the initial Issuance Advice Letter, dated August \_\_\_, 2016, filed by the Servicer with the Authority pursuant to the Statute.

"Issuer Annex" means Annex 1 of the Servicing Agreement.

"Lien" has the meaning specified in Section 1.01 of the Bond Indenture.

"LIPA" has the meaning set forth in the preamble to this Agreement.

"<u>Losses</u>" means collectively, any and all liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, payments, costs or expenses of any kind whatsoever.

"Mid-year Review" has the meaning assigned to that term in Annex 1.

"Mid-year True-up" has the meaning assigned to that term in Annex 1.

"Monthly Servicer Certificate" has the meaning assigned to that term in Annex 1 to the Servicing Agreement.

"Moody's" means Moody's Investors Service Inc. or its successor.

"Officer's Certificate" means a certificate of the Servicer signed by a Responsible Officer.

"Ongoing Financing Costs" has the meaning assigned to that term in the Financing Order.

"Opinion of Counsel" means one or more written opinions of counsel who may be an employee of or counsel to the party providing such opinion(s) of counsel, which counsel shall be reasonably acceptable to the party receiving such opinion(s) of counsel.

"Optional True-up" has the meaning assigned to that term in Annex I.

"Operation Services Agreement" means the Amended and Restated Operation Services Agreement between PSE&G Long Island LLC and LIPA, as amended from time to time.

"Outstanding" has the meaning specified in Section 1.01 of the Bond Indenture.

"Outstanding Amount" has the meaning specified in Section 1.01 of the Bond Indenture.

"<u>Payment Date</u>" means, with respect to any Tranche of Bonds, the dates specified in the Bond Indenture for the payment of interest on the Bonds; or if any such date is not a Business Day, the next Business Day.

"Person" has the meaning specified in Section 1.01 of the Bond Indenture.

"<u>Principal Balance</u>" means, as of any Payment Date, the sum of the outstanding principal amount of the Bonds.

"Proceeding" means any suit in equity, action at law or other judicial or administrative proceeding.

"Projected Bond Balance" means, as of any Payment Date, the sum of the projected outstanding principal amount of the Bonds for such Payment Date set forth in the Expected Amortization Schedule.

"Rating Agency" means, as of any date, any rating agency rating the Bonds of any Tranche at the time of issuance thereof at the request of the Bond Issuer. If no such organization or successor is any longer in existence, "Rating Agency" shall be a nationally recognized statistical rating organization or other comparable Person designated by the Bond Issuer, notice of which designation shall be given to the Bond Trustee, the Authority and the Servicer.

"Rating Agency Condition" means, with respect to any action, not less than ten Business Days' prior written notification to each Rating Agency of such action, and written confirmation from each of Standard & Poor's and Moody's to the Servicer, the Bond Trustee and the Bond Issuer that such action will not result in a suspension, reduction or withdrawal of the then current rating by such Rating Agency of any Tranche of Bonds and that prior to the taking of the proposed action no other Rating Agency shall have provided written notice to the Bond Issuer that such action has resulted or would result in the suspension, reduction or withdrawal of the then current rating of any Tranche of Bonds; provided, that if within such ten Business Day period, any Rating Agency (other than Standard & Poor's) has neither replied to such notification nor responded in a manner that indicates that such Rating Agency is reviewing and considering the notification, then (i) the Bond Issuer shall be required to confirm that such Rating Agency has received the Rating Agency Condition request, and if it has, promptly request the related Rating Agency Condition confirmation and (ii) if the Rating Agency neither replies to

such notification nor responds in a manner that indicates it is reviewing and considering the notification within five Business Days following such second request, the applicable Rating Agency Condition requirement shall not be deemed to apply to such Rating Agency. For the purposes of this definition, any confirmation, request, acknowledgment or approval that is required to be in writing may be in the form of electronic mail or a press release (which may contain a general waiver of a Rating Agency's right to review or consent).

"Reconciliation Period" means the twelve-month period ending the last day of the Collection Period preceding the calculation of Remittance Shortfalls or Excess Remittances under Section 3.03(c) the Servicing Agreement; provided, that the initial Reconciliation Period shall commence on the Closing Date and may be less than twelve months.

"Remittance" means each transfer hereunder of estimated Charge Collections or Remittance Shortfalls from the Allocation Account to the Collection Account.

"Remittance Date" means each Business Day on which a Remittance is to be made by the Servicer pursuant to Section 3.03 of this Agreement.

"Remittance Shortfall" means the amount, if any, calculated for a particular Reconciliation Period, by which Actual Charge Collections received by the Servicer during such Reconciliation Period exceed all Estimated Charge Collections remitted to the Collection Account during such Reconciliation Period and taking into account any Excess Remittance or Remittance Shortfall previously paid during such Reconciliation Period.

"Required Debt Service Reserve Level" has the meaning specified in Section 1.01 of the Bond Indenture.

"Required Reserve Level" has the meaning specified in Section 1.01 of the Bond Indenture.

"Reserve Subaccount" has the meaning specified in Section 1.01 of the Bond Indenture.

"Responsible Officer" means the chief executive officer, the president, any vice president, the treasurer, any assistant treasurer, the clerk, any assistant clerk, the controller or the director of finance and cash management of the Servicer.

"Restructuring Property" means the Restructuring Property that is created pursuant to the Financing Order and is sold by the Seller to the Bond Issuer under the Sale Agreement.

"Restructuring Property Documentation" means all documents relating to the Restructuring Property, including copies of the Financing Order and all documents filed with the Authority in connection with any Adjustment Notice.

"Retirement of the Bonds" means the day on which the final payment is made to the Bond Trustee in respect of the last outstanding Bond.

"Rule 15c2-12" or the "Rule" means Rule 15c2-12 of the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

- "<u>Sale Agreement</u>" means the Restructuring Property Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of September 8, 2016, between the Long Island Power Authority, as Seller, and the Bond Issuer, as the same may be amended and supplemented from time to time.
- "Scheduled Maturity Date" has the meaning specified in Section 1.01 of the Bond Indenture.
  - "SEC" means the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.
- "Seller" means the Long Island Power Authority, a New York public authority, and its permitted successors and assigns under the Sale Agreement.
- "Semiannual Servicer Certificate" has the meaning assigned to that term in Annex 1 to this Agreement.
- "Service Area" means the geographical area within which LIPA provided electric distribution services as of July 29, 2013.
- "Servicer" means LIPA, as the servicer of the Restructuring Property, or each successor (in the same capacity) pursuant to Section 5.03 or 6.04 of this Agreement.
  - "Servicer Default" means an event specified in Section 6.01 of this Agreement.
  - "Servicing Fee" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.07 of this Agreement.
- "Sponsor" means the Authority and its permitted successors and assigns under the Sale Agreement.
- "Standard & Poor's" means Standard & Poor's, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. or its successor.
- "Statute" means Part B of Chapter 173, Laws of New York, 2013, as amended to the date hereof.
  - "T&D System Assets" means the T&D system assets as defined in the Statute.
- "<u>T&D Rates</u>" means the rates and charges for electric transmission and distribution services in the Service Area. "T&D Rates" shall not include charges for the generation or resale of electricity or any charges imposed to fund public purpose programs.
- "<u>Termination Notice</u>" has the meaning assigned to that term in Section 6.01 of this Agreement.
- "<u>Third Party</u>" means an entity (other than the Servicer and its agents, subservicers or subcontractors) who bills and collects the Charge to and from Customers in accordance with the Statute, Authority Regulations and any order of the Authority.
- "<u>Tranche</u>" or "<u>Tranche of Bonds</u>" has the meaning specified in Section 1.01 of the Bond Indenture.

"<u>True-Up Adjustment</u>" means each adjustment to the Charge made in accordance with Annex 1 of this Agreement.

"Written Notice", "written notice" or "notice in writing" means notice in writing which may be delivered by hand or first class mail and also means electronic transmission.

"17g-5 Website" has the meaning specified in Section 1.01 of the Bond Indenture.

#### ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT

This Administration Agreement, dated as of September 8, 2016, is made by and between Utility Debt Securitization Authority, a special purpose corporate municipal instrumentality, body corporate and politic, political subdivision and public benefit corporation of the State of New York (the "Bond Issuer"), and the Long Island Lighting Company, a New York corporation doing business under the name of LIPA ("LIPA"), as Administrator (the "Administrator").

#### RECITALS

- A. The Bond Issuer is issuing the Bonds pursuant to the Bond Indenture dated as of September 8, 2016 (as amended, modified or supplemented from time to time in accordance with the provisions thereof, the "Bond Indenture"). Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings assigned such terms in the Bond Indenture or Servicing Agreement (hereinafter defined).
- B. The Bond Issuer has entered into certain agreements in connection with the issuance of the Bonds, including (i) a Restructuring Property Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of September 8, 2016 (the "Sale Agreement"), between the Bond Issuer and the Long Island Power Authority, as Seller (in such capacity, the "Seller"), (ii) a Restructuring Property Servicing Agreement dated as of September 8, 2016 (the "Servicing Agreement"), between the Bond Issuer and LIPA, as Servicer (in such capacity, the "Servicer"), (iii) a Bond Purchase Agreement dated as of September 8, 2016 (the "Bond Purchase Agreement"), among the Bond Issuer and the Underwriters named therein, and (iv) the Bond Indenture. The Sale Agreement, the Servicing Agreement, the Bond Purchase Agreement and the Bond Indenture, all as amended or modified from time to time, are herein referred to collectively as the "Related Agreements."
- C. Pursuant to the Related Agreements, the Bond Issuer is required to perform certain duties in connection with the Bonds and the collateral therefor pledged pursuant to the Bond Indenture (the "Collateral") and to maintain its existence and comply with applicable laws.
- D. The Bond Issuer desires to have the Administrator perform certain duties of the Bond Issuer referred to in the preceding clause, and to provide such additional services consistent with the terms of this Agreement and the Related Agreements as the Bond Issuer may from time to time request.
- E. The Administrator is willing to perform such services and provide such facilities for the Bond Issuer on the terms set forth herein.
- NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

# ARTICLE I. Duties of Administrator

Section 1.01 <u>Appointment of Administrator: Acceptance of Appointment</u>. The Bond Issuer hereby appoints the Administrator, and the Administrator hereby accepts such

appointment, to perform the Administrator's obligations pursuant to this Agreement on behalf of and for the benefit of the Bond Issuer in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and applicable law.

Section 1.02 <u>Duties of the Administrator</u>. The Administrator agrees to perform all its duties as Administrator hereunder in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and applicable law.

- (a) To the extent not required to be performed by the Servicer, the Administrator shall provide for the performance by the Bond Issuer of its obligations under each of the Related Agreements and shall prepare for execution by the Bond Issuer, or shall cause the preparation by other appropriate Persons (including third parties with respect to professional services, to the extent required or contemplated in accordance with the terms of this Agreement) of all such documents, reports, filings, instruments, notices, certificates and opinions as it shall be the duty of the Bond Issuer to prepare, file or deliver pursuant to the Related Agreements. In furtherance of and without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Administrator shall provide for the performance by the Bond Issuer of its duties pursuant to the Bond Indenture, including such of the foregoing as are required with respect to the following matters under the Bond Indenture (references are to sections of the Bond Indenture):
  - (i) confirmation that any non-responding Rating Agency has received the Rating Agency Condition request, and if it has, promptly request the related Rating Agency Condition confirmation (definition of Rating Agency Condition, Bond Indenture Section 1.01);
  - (ii) the preparation of or obtaining of the documents and instruments required for authentication of the Bonds, if any, and delivery of the same to the Bond Trustee and such other actions on behalf of the Bond Issuer as are necessary for the issuance and delivery of the Bonds, whether for original issuance, exchanges, transfers, replacements or redemptions (Sections 2.03, 2.05, 2.06, 2.10 and 10.07);
  - (iii) the duty to cause a Bond Register to be kept and to give the Bond Trustee notice of any appointment of a new Bond Registrar and the location, or change in location, of the Bond Register (Section 2.05);
  - (iv) the fixing or causing to be fixed of any special record date and the notification of each affected Bondholder with respect to special record dates, payment dates, and the amount of defaulted interest (plus interest on such defaulted interest) to be paid, if any (Section 2.08(c));
  - (v) advising the Bond Trustee of an election to terminate the bookentry system through a Clearing Agency with respect to the Bonds (Section 2.16(f));
  - (vi) maintenance of an office or agency in the Borough of Manhattan, The City of New York, New York, where Bonds may be surrendered for

registration of transfer or exchange, which may be the Bond Trustee (Section 3.02);

- (vii) the duty to cause newly appointed Paying Agents, if any, to deliver to the Bond Trustee the instrument specified in the Bond Indenture regarding funds held in trust (Section 3.03);
- (viii) the direction to Paying Agents to pay to the Bond Trustee all sums held in trust by such Paying Agents (Section 3.03);
- (ix) to the extent not required to be performed by the Servicer, the preparation of all supplements and amendments to the Bond Indenture, filings pursuant to the Statute or the Financing Order, instruments of further assurance and other instruments, in accordance with Section 3.04 of the Bond Indenture, necessary to protect the Collateral (Section 3.04);
- (x) the identification to the Bond Trustee in an Officer's Certificate of any Person with whom the Bond Issuer has contracted to perform its duties under the Bond Indenture (Section 3.05(a));
- (xi) the delivery of notice to the Bond Trustee and the Rating Agencies of each Event of Default and each default by the Servicer or Seller of its obligations under the Servicing Agreement or the Sale Agreement, respectively (Sections 3.05(c), 3.12, 5.01);
- (xii) notification of the appointment of any successor Servicer (Section 3.05(e));
- (xiii) the preparation and filing of all documents required under the Statute relating to the transfer of the ownership or security interest in the Restructuring Property (Section 3.04);
- (xiv) the preparation of an Officer's Certificate and Independent Certificate relating to (i) the satisfaction and discharge of the Bond Indenture under Section 4.01 of the Bond Indenture or (ii) a Legal Defeasance under Section 4.02 of the Bond Indenture (Sections 4.01 and 4.02);
- (xv) sending a copy of each Certificate of Compliance delivered to it pursuant to Section 3.06 of the Servicing Agreement and Annual Accountant's Report delivered to it pursuant to Section 3.07 of the Servicing Agreement to the Bond Trustee, the Bondholders and the Rating Agencies and to the Servicer. (Section 6.06(c));
- (xvi) the furnishing to the Bond Trustee of (i) each Record Date and (ii) the names and addresses of Bondholders during any period when the Bond Trustee is not the Bond Registrar (Section 7.03);

- (xvii) to the extent not required to be performed by the Servicer, the opening of one or more segregated trust accounts in the Bond Trustee's name, the preparation of Issuer Orders, and the obtaining of Opinions of Counsel and the taking of all other actions necessary with respect to investment and reinvestment of funds in the Collection Account including transfer of the Collection Account to an Eligible Institution if it ceases to be maintained at an Eligible Institution (Sections 8.02 and 8.03);
- (xviii) to the extent not required to be performed by the Servicer, the preparation, obtaining or filing of the instruments, opinions and certificates and other documents required for the release of collateral (Sections 8.04 and 8.05);
- (xix) appointment of a firm of Independent registered public accountants of recognized national reputation for purposes of preparing and delivering the reports or certificates of such accountants required by the Bond Indenture and, upon any resignation by such firm, providing written notice thereof to the Bond Trustee and promptly appointing a successor thereto that shall also be a firm of Independent registered public accountants of recognized national reputation (Section 8.06);
- (xx) the preparation of Issuer Orders and the obtaining of Officers' Certificates with respect to the execution of supplemental bond indentures (Sections 9.01, 9.02 and 9.03);
- (xxi) the preparation of new Bonds conforming to any supplemental bond indenture (Section 9.04);
- (xxii) in the case of any redemption of Bonds at the direction of the Bond Issuer, giving written notice to the Bond Trustee of the Bond Issuer's direction to redeem such Bonds (Bond Indenture Section 10.03):
- (xxiii) the notification of the Bond Trustee of any notice received by the Bond Issuer from the Bondholders (Section 11.02)); and
- (xxiv) interacting with the Allocation Agent with respect to Excess Remittances and Remittance Shortfalls (Section 8.02(c)).
- (b) The Administrator shall also furnish the Bond Issuer with ordinary clerical, bookkeeping and other administrative services necessary and appropriate for the Bond Issuer, including, without limitation, the following services:
  - (i) to the extent not required to be performed by the Servicer, the preparation and, after execution by the Bond Issuer, the filing with the applicable Governmental Authorities, the Rating Agencies and the Bond Trustee of the annual reports, periodic reports, applications, certificates and other filings and of the information, documents, statements and other reports required to be filed on a periodic basis with, and summaries thereof as may be required by rules and regulations prescribed by, the applicable Governmental Authorities;

- (ii) maintain at the facilities (referenced in Section 2.01 below) general accounting records of the Bond Issuer (the "Account Records"), subject to year-end audit, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, separate and apart from its own accounting records, prepare or cause to be prepared such quarterly and annual financial statements as may be necessary or appropriate and arrange for year-end audits of the Bond Issuer's financial statements by the Bond Issuer's independent accountants;
- (iii) prepare for execution by the Bond Issuer and cause to be filed such income, franchise or other tax returns of the Bond Issuer as may be required to be filed by applicable law (the "Tax Returns"), perform any obligations of the Bond Issuer under its tax covenants and agreements pursuant to Bond Indenture Section 3.14 and cause to be paid on behalf of the Bond Issuer from the Bond Issuer's funds any taxes required to be paid by the Bond Issuer under applicable law;
- (iv) prepare or cause to be prepared for execution by the Bond Issuer's trustees minutes of the meetings of the Bond Issuer's trustees and such other documents deemed appropriate by the Bond Issuer to maintain the separate public authority existence and good standing of the Bond Issuer (the "Bond Issuer Minutes") or otherwise required under the Related Agreements (together with the Account Records, the Tax Returns, the Bond Issuer Minutes and its by-laws, the "Bond Issuer Documents"), and any other documents deliverable by the Bond Issuer thereunder or in connection therewith; and
- (v) hold, maintain and preserve at the facilities (or such other place as shall be required by any of the Related Agreements) executed copies (to the extent applicable) of the Bond Issuer Documents and other documents executed by the Bond Issuer thereunder or in connection therewith.
- (c) To the full extent allowable under applicable law, the Administrator shall enforce each of the rights of the Bond Issuer under the Related Agreements;
- (d) The Administrator shall provide for the defense, at the direction of the Bond Issuer's Trustees, of any action, suit or proceeding brought against the Bond Issuer or affecting the Bond Issuer or any of its assets or the Collateral. (Bond Indenture Sections 3.04(d) and 6.07).

Section 1.03 <u>Additional Duties</u>. (a) In addition to the duties of the Administrator set forth above, the Administrator shall (1) undertake such other administrative services as may be appropriate, necessary or requested by the Bond Issuer and (2) provide such other services as are incidental to those set forth in <u>Section 1.02</u> or this <u>Section 1.03</u> or as the Bond Issuer and Administrator may agree. As part of its administrative services, the Administrator shall obtain and maintain a directors' and officers' insurance policy covering the trustees of the Bond Issuer (which policy may cover the officers of the Bond Issuer as well), the Administrator shall pay the premiums therefor as a reimbursable expense hereunder to the extent there are insufficient funds on deposit in the Collection Account to pay such premiums when due in accordance with the

priorities specified in the Bond Indenture, and the reimbursement of such expense shall have the priority specified in the Bond Indenture for such premiums. Subject to Section 5.01 of this Agreement, and in accordance with the directions of the Bond Issuer, the Administrator shall administer, perform or supervise the performance of such other activities in connection with the Collateral and the Related Agreements as are not covered by any of the foregoing provisions and as are expressly requested by the Bond Issuer and are reasonably within the capability of the Administrator.

- (b) In carrying out the foregoing duties or any of its other obligations under this Agreement, the Administrator may enter into transactions with or otherwise deal with any of its Affiliates; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that the terms of any such transactions or dealings shall be, in the Administrator's reasonable opinion, no less favorable to the Bond Issuer than would be available from unaffiliated parties.
- (c) In providing the services under this Article I and as otherwise provided under this Administration Agreement, the Administrator will not knowingly take any actions on behalf of the Bond Issuer which (i) the Bond Issuer is prohibited from taking under the Related Agreements, or (ii) would cause the Bond Issuer to be in violation of any federal, state or local law. Promptly upon obtaining knowledge that it has taken any such actions, the Administrator shall take all reasonable steps to cure such breach or violation and to cause the Bond Issuer to be in compliance with the applicable Related Agreement or law.
- (d) The Administrator covenants that with respect to Bonds the interest on which is intended to be excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes (hereinafter "Tax Exempt Bonds") it shall comply with the tax certificates to be executed and delivered by it in connection with the issuance of the Tax Exempt Bonds and with letters of instruction, if any, delivered by bond counsel in connection with the issuance of the Tax Exempt Bonds, as such tax certificates and letters may be amended from time to time. Notwithstanding anything else in this Agreement to the contrary, the covenants of this Section 1.03(d) shall survive the payment, redemption or defeasance of the Tax Exempt Bonds and the termination of this Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, all the Bonds constitute Tax Exempt Bonds.
- (e) In performing its duties hereunder, the Administrator shall use the same degree of care and diligence that the Administrator exercises with respect to performing such duties for its own account and, if applicable, for others.
- (f) The Administrator agrees to comply with the provisions of Article XI of the Bond Issuer's by-laws, including any amendments thereof made with the consent of the Administrator, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, to the extent that such provisions are applicable to its duties as agent for the Bond Issuer hereunder and, to the extent that the Administrator employs others to perform such duties in accordance with this Agreement, the Administrator will require that such others comply with such applicable provisions.
- Section 1.04 <u>Non-Ministerial Matters</u>. (a) With respect to matters that in the reasonable judgment of the Administrator are non-ministerial, the Administrator shall not take any action unless the Administrator shall have notified the Bond Issuer of the proposed action and the Bond

Issuer shall have consented. For the purpose of the preceding sentence, "non-ministerial matters" shall include, without limitation:

- (i) the amendment of, or any supplement to, the Bond Indenture;
- (ii) the initiation of any claim or lawsuit by the Bond Issuer and the compromise of any action, claim or lawsuit brought by or against the Bond Issuer (other than in connection with the collection of the Charge);
- (iii) the amendment, change or modification of the Related Agreements;
- (iv) the appointment of successor Bond Registrars, successor Paying Agents and successor Bond Trustees pursuant to the Bond Indenture or the appointment of successor Administrators or successor Servicers, or the consent to the assignment by the Bond Registrar, Paying Agent or Bond Trustee of its obligations under the Bond Indenture (Bond Indenture Section 6.08); and
  - (v) the removal of the Bond Trustee (Bond Indenture Section 6.08).
- (b) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the Administrator shall not be obligated to, and hereby agrees that it shall not, take any action that the Bond Issuer directs the Administrator not to take on its behalf.

# ARTICLE II. Facilities

Section 2.01 <u>Facilities</u>. During the term of this Agreement, the Administrator shall make available to or provide the Bond Issuer with such facilities and reasonable ancillary services as are necessary to conduct the business of the Bond Issuer and to comply with the terms of the Related Agreements. Such facilities shall include office space to serve as the principal place of business of the Bond Issuer. Initially such office space will be located at 333 Earle Ovington Blvd., Ste. 403, Uniondale, New York 11553. All facilities provided to the Bond Issuer hereunder shall be provided without warranty of any kind.

# ARTICLE III. Compensation

Section 3.01 <u>Compensation</u>. As compensation for the performance of the Administrator's obligations under this Agreement, including the provision of facilities pursuant to Section 2.01, the Administrator shall be entitled to an annual fee (the "Administration Fee") equal to \$100,000 payable in equal semiannual installments on each Payment Date as defined in Section 2.01(d)(iii) of the Bond Indenture. In addition, to the extent not included in the Administration Fee, the Bond Issuer shall reimburse the Administrator for all filing fees and expenses, legal fees, fees of outside auditors and other out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the Administrator in the course of performing its duties hereunder. The Administrator's compensation and other expenses payable hereunder shall be paid from the Collection Account pursuant to, and in accordance with, Section 8.02(e) of the Bond Indenture, and the

Administrator shall have no recourse against the Bond Issuer for payment of such amounts other than in accordance with Section 8.02 of the Bond Indenture.

# ARTICLE IV. Additional Information

Section 4.01 <u>Additional Information To Be Furnished to Bond Issuer</u>. The Administrator shall furnish to the Bond Issuer from time to time such additional information regarding the Collateral as the Bond Issuer shall reasonably request.

# ARTICLE V. <u>Miscellaneous Provisions</u>

- Section 5.01 <u>Independence of Administrator</u>. For all purposes of this Agreement, the Administrator shall be an independent contractor and shall not be subject to the supervision of the Bond Issuer with respect to the manner in which it accomplishes the performance of its obligations hereunder. Unless expressly authorized by the Bond Issuer, the Administrator shall have no authority to act for or represent the Bond Issuer in any way and shall not otherwise be deemed an agent of the Bond Issuer.
- Section 5.02 <u>No Joint Venture</u>. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall (a) constitute the Administrator and the Bond Issuer as members of any partnership, joint venture, association, syndicate, unincorporated business or other separate entity, (b) be construed to impose any liability as such on any of them or (c) be deemed to confer on any of them any express, implied or apparent authority to incur any obligation or liability on behalf of the others.
- Section 5.03 Other Activities of Administrator. Nothing herein shall prevent the Administrator or its Affiliates from engaging in other businesses or, in its sole discretion, from acting in a similar capacity as an administrator for any other person or entity even though such person or entity may engage in business activities similar to those of the Bond Issuer.
- Section 5.04 <u>Term of Agreement: Resignation and Removal of Administrator</u>. (a) This Agreement shall continue in force for one year and one day after the retirement of all Bonds issued pursuant to the Bond Indenture.
- (b) Subject to Sections 5.04(e) and 5.04(f), the Administrator may resign its duties hereunder by providing the Bond Issuer with at least 60 days prior written notice.
- (c) Subject to Sections 5.04(e) and 5.04(f), the Bond Issuer may remove the Administrator without cause by providing the Administrator with at least 60 days prior written notice.
- (d) Subject to Sections 5.04(e) and 5.04(1), at the sole option of the Bond Issuer, the Administrator may be removed immediately upon written notice of termination from the Bond Issuer to the Administrator if any of the following events shall occur:
  - (i) the Administrator shall default in the performance of any of its duties under this Agreement and, after notice of such default, shall not cure such

default within ten days (or, if such default is curable but cannot be cured in such time, shall not give within ten days such assurance of cure as shall be reasonably satisfactory to the Bond Issuer);

- (ii) a court having jurisdiction in the premises shall enter a decree or order for relief, and such decree or order shall not have been vacated within 60 days, in respect of the Administrator in any involuntary case under any applicable bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar law now or hereafter in effect or appoint a receiver, liquidator, assignee, custodian, trustee, sequestrator or similar official for the Administrator or any substantial part of its property or order the winding-up or liquidation of its affairs; or
- (iii) the Administrator shall commence a voluntary case under any applicable bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar law now or hereafter in effect, shall consent to the entry of an order for relief in an involuntary case under any such law, or shall consent to the appointment of a receiver, liquidator, assignee, trustee, custodian, sequestrator or similar official for the Administrator or any substantial part of its property, shall consent to the taking of possession by any such official of any substantial part of its property, shall make any general assignment for the benefit of creditors or shall fail generally to pay its debts as they become due.

The Administrator agrees that if any of the events specified in clause (ii) or (iii) of this Section shall occur, it shall give written notice thereof to the Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee within seven days after the happening of such event.

- (e) No resignation or removal of the Administrator pursuant to this Section 5.04 shall be effective until (i) a successor Administrator shall have been appointed by the Bond Issuer and (ii) such successor Administrator shall have agreed in writing to be bound by the terms of this Agreement in the same manner as the Administrator is bound hereunder. The Bond Issuer shall promptly provide written notice to each of the Rating Agencies prior to the effectiveness of any resignation or removal of the Administrator.
- (f) The appointment of any successor Administrator shall be effective only after satisfaction of the Rating Agency Condition with respect to the proposed appointment.

Section 5.05 Action upon Termination, Resignation or Removal. Promptly upon the effective date of termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 5.04(a) or the resignation or removal of the Administrator pursuant to Sections 5.04(b) or 5.04(c), respectively, the Administrator shall be entitled to be paid all fees accrued to it and expenses accrued by it in the performance of its duties hereunder through the date of such termination, resignation or removal, to the extent permitted under Article III. The Administrator shall forthwith upon such termination pursuant to Section 5.04(a) deliver to the Bond Issuer all property and documents of or relating to the Collateral then in the custody of the Administrator. In the event of the resignation or removal of the Administrator pursuant to Sections 5.04(b) or 5.04(c), respectively, the Administrator shall cooperate with the Bond Issuer and take all reasonable steps requested to assist the Bond Issuer in making an orderly transfer of the duties of the Administrator.

Section 5.06 <u>Notices</u>. Unless otherwise specifically provided herein, all notices, directions, consents and waivers required under the terms and provisions of this Administration Agreement shall be in English and in writing, and any such notice, direction, consent or waiver may be given by United States mail, courier service, facsimile transmission or electronic mail (confirmed by telephone, United States mail or courier service in the case of notice by facsimile transmission or electronic mail) or any other customary means of communication, and any such notice, direction, consent or waiver shall be effective when delivered, or if mailed, three days after deposit in the United States mail with proper postage for ordinary mail prepaid:

### (a) if to the Bond Issuer, to:

Utility Debt Securitization Authority c/o LIPA, as Administrator 333 Earle Ovington Boulevard Uniondale, New York 11553 Attention: Chief Financial Officer Telephone: (516) 222-7700

Telecopy: (516) 222-9137 Email: tfalcone@lipower.org

### (b) if to the Administrator, to:

LIPA
333 Earle Ovington Boulevard
Uniondale, New York 11553
Attention: Chief Financial Officer
Telephone: (516) 222-7700
Telecopy: (516) 222-9137
Email: tfalcone@lipower.org

## (c) if to the Bond Trustee, to:

The Bank of New York Mellon 101 Barclay Street - Floor 7-W New York, New York 10286 Attention: Frederic Belen

Telephone: (212) 815-2588 Telecopy: (732) 667-9205

Email: frederic.belen@bnymellon.com

or to such other address as any party shall have provided to the other parties in writing. Any notice required to be in writing hereunder shall be deemed given if such notice is mailed by certified mail, postage prepaid, telecopied or hand-delivered to the address of such party as provided above, except that notices to the Bond Trustee are effective only upon receipt.

Section 5.07 <u>Amendments</u>. This Agreement may be amended in writing by the Administrator and the Bond Issuer with the written consent of the Bond Trustee, but without the

consent of any of the Bondholders, to cure any ambiguity, to correct or supplement any provisions in this Agreement or for the purpose of adding any provisions to or changing in any manner or eliminating any of the provisions in this Agreement or of modifying in any manner the rights of the Bondholders; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that such action shall not, as evidenced by an Officer's Certificate delivered to the Bond Trustee, adversely affect in any material respect the interests of any Bondholder.

This Agreement may also be amended in writing from time to time by the Administrator and the Bond Issuer with the written consent of the Bond Trustee and, subject to the first paragraph of this Section 5.07, the written consent of the Holders of Bonds evidencing not less than a majority of the Outstanding Amount of the Bonds of all Series, for the purpose of adding any provisions to or changing in any manner or eliminating any of the provisions of this Agreement or of modifying in any manner the rights of the Bondholders; provided, however, that no such amendment shall increase or reduce in any manner the amount of, or accelerate or delay the timing of, Charge Collections without the consent of the Holders of all the outstanding Bonds.

Prior to the effectiveness of any such amendment, the Administrator shall provide written notice of such amendment to each of the Rating Agencies and promptly after the execution of any such amendment and the requisite consents, the Administrator shall furnish a copy of such amendment to the Bond Trustee and each of the Rating Agencies.

Approval by Bondholders of the substance of any proposed amendment or consent shall constitute sufficient consent of the Bondholders pursuant to this Section, and it shall not be necessary that Bondholders approve of the particular form of any amendment or consent.

Prior to its consent to any amendment to this Agreement, the Bond Trustee shall be entitled to receive and rely upon an Opinion of Counsel stating that such amendment is authorized or permitted by this Agreement. The Bond Trustee may, but shall not be obligated to, enter into any such amendment which affects the Bond Trustee's own rights, duties or immunities under this Agreement or otherwise.

Section 5.08 Successors and Assigns. Except as provided below and in Section 5.17, this Agreement may not be assigned by the Administrator unless such assignment is previously consented to in writing by the Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee and is subject to the satisfaction of the Rating Agency Condition in respect thereof. An assignment with such consent and satisfaction, if accepted by the assignee, shall bind the assignee hereunder in the same manner as the Administrator is bound hereunder. This Agreement may be assigned by the Administrator without the consent of the Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee to a corporation or other organization that is a successor (by merger, consolidation or purchase of assets) to the Administrator, provided that such successor organization executes and delivers to the Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee an agreement in which such corporation or other organization agrees to be bound hereunder by the terms of said assignment in the same manner as the Administrator is bound hereunder and the Rating Agency Condition is satisfied. Subject to the foregoing, this Agreement shall bind any successors or assigns of the parties hereto. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent the Administrator from subcontracting with other persons or entities to perform all or part of its duties under this Agreement, but such subcontracting shall not release the

Administrator from any of its obligations under this Agreement. The Administrator shall provide prompt written notice of any such subcontracting to each of the Rating Agencies.

Section 5.09 <u>Limitations on Rights of Others</u>. The provisions of this Agreement are solely for the benefit of the Administrator, the Bond Issuer, the Bond Trustee, the Bondholders and the other Persons expressly referred to herein. The Bondholders shall be entitled to enforce their rights and remedies against the Administrator under this agreement solely through a cause of action brought for their benefit by the Bond Trustee, and nothing in this Agreement, whether express or implied, shall be construed to give to any other Person any legal or equitable right, remedy or claim in the Restructuring Property or under or in respect of this Agreement or any covenants, conditions or provisions contained herein, except for the indemnities specifically provided in Section 5.15. The Persons listed in this section as having the benefit of this Agreement and the indemnified Persons listed in Section 5.15 shall have rights of enforcement with respect to this Agreement.

Section 5.10 <u>GOVERNING LAW</u>. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK, WITHOUT REFERENCE TO ITS CONFLICT OF LAW PROVISIONS AND THE OBLIGATIONS, RIGHTS AND REMEDIES OF THE PARTIES HEREUNDER SHALL BE DETERMINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SUCH LAWS.

Section 5.11 <u>Headings</u>. The section headings hereof have been inserted for convenience of reference only and shall not be construed to affect the meaning, construction or effect of this Agreement.

Section 5.12 <u>Counterparts</u>. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which when so executed shall together constitute but one and the same agreement.

Section 5.13 <u>Severability</u>. Any provision of this Agreement that is prohibited or unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without invalidating the remaining provisions hereof and any such prohibition or unenforceability in any jurisdiction shall not invalidate or render unenforceable such provision in any other jurisdiction.

Section 5.14 Nonpetition Covenant. Notwithstanding any prior termination of this Agreement or the Bond Indenture, but subject to the right of a court in New York to order the sequestration and payment of revenues arising with respect to the Restructuring Property notwithstanding any bankruptcy, reorganization or other insolvency proceedings with respect to any person or entity pursuant to Section 7.1(d) of the Statute, the Administrator, solely in its capacity as a creditor of the Bond Issuer, shall not, prior to the date which is one year and one day after the termination of the Bond Indenture with respect to the Bond Issuer, petition or otherwise invoke or cause the Bond Issuer to invoke the process of any court or government authority for the purpose of commencing or sustaining an involuntary case against the Bond Issuer under any Federal or state bankruptcy, insolvency or similar law or appointing a receiver, liquidator, assignee, trustee, custodian, sequestrator or other similar official of the Bond Issuer or any substantial part of the property of the Bond Issuer, or, to the fullest extent permitted by law, ordering the winding up or liquidation of the affairs of the Bond Issuer.

Section 5.15 <u>Indemnification</u>. The Administrator shall indemnify the Bond Issuer, the Bond Trustee, and their respective trustees, officers, officials, directors, employees and agents (each an "Indemnified Person") for, and defend and hold harmless each such Person from and against, any and all liabilities, obligations, actions, suits, claims, losses, damages, payments, costs or expenses of any kind whatsoever that may be imposed on, incurred by or asserted against any such Person as a result of the Administrator's willful misconduct or negligence in the performance of its duties or observance of its covenants under this Agreement. The Bondholders shall be entitled to enforce their rights and remedies against the Administrator under this indemnification solely through a cause of action brought for their benefit by the Bond Trustee. The Administrator will not, without the prior written consent of the Indemnified Person, settle or compromise or consent to the entry of any judgment with respect to any pending or threatened claim, action, suit or proceeding in respect of which indemnification may be sought under this Section 5.15, (whether or not the Indemnified Person is an actual or potential party to such claim or action) unless such settlement, compromise or consent includes an unconditional release of the Indemnified Person from all liability arising out of such claim, action, suit or proceeding. The indemnification obligations of the Administrator under this Section 5.15 shall survive the termination of this Agreement and the resignation or removal of the Bond Trustee.

Section 5.16 <u>Administrator's Liability</u>. Except as otherwise provided herein, the Administrator assumes no liability other than to render or stand ready to render the services called for herein, and neither the Administrator nor any of its directors, officers, employees, subsidiaries or affiliates shall be responsible for any action of the Bond Issuer or any of the trustees, officers, employees, subsidiaries or affiliates of the Bond Issuer (other than the Administrator itself). The Administrator shall not be liable for nor shall it have any obligation with regard to any of the liabilities, whether direct or indirect, absolute or contingent of the Bond Issuer or any of the trustees, officers, employees, subsidiaries or affiliates of the Bond Issuer (other than the Administrator itself).

Section 5.17 <u>Collateral Assignment to Bond Trustee</u>. The Administrator hereby acknowledges and consents to the Grant of a security interest and collateral assignment by the Bond Issuer to the Bond Trustee for the benefit of the Bondholders and the Bond Trustee pursuant to the Bond Indenture of all of the Bond Issuer's rights hereunder.

Section 5.18 <u>Rule 17g-5 Compliance</u>. The Administrator agrees that any notice, report, request for satisfaction of the Rating Agency Condition, document or other information provided by the Administrator to any Rating Agency under this Agreement or any other Basic Document to which it is a party for the purposes of determining the initial credit rating of the Bonds or undertaking credit rating surveillance of the Bonds with any Rating Agency shall be provided, substantially concurrently, to the Servicer for posting on the 17g-5 Website.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Administration Agreement to be duly executed and delivered under seal as of the day and year first above written.

# UTILITY DEBT SECURITIZATION AUTHORITY, as Bond Issuer

By: Name: Joseph A. Branca Title: Chief Financial Officer			
LONG ISLAND LIGHTING COMPANY, as Administrator			
By:Name: Joseph A. Branca Title: Chief Financial Officer			

# RESTRUCTURING PROPERTY PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT

between

## UTILITY DEBT SECURITIZATION AUTHORITY,

as Bond Issuer

and

LONG ISLAND POWER AUTHORITY

as Seller

Dated as of September 8, 2016

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Paş</u>	<u>3e</u>
ARTICLE I. DE	FINTIONS	.1
Section 1.01.	Definitions	.1
Section 1.02.	Rules of Construction	.4
ARTICLE II. CO	ONVEYANCE OF RESTRUCTURING PROPERTY	.5
Section 2.01.	Conveyance of Restructuring Property	.5
ARTICLE III. R	EPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF SELLER	.5
Section 3.01.	Organization and Good Standing	.5
Section 3.02.	Due Qualification	.6
Section 3.03.	Power and Authority	.6
Section 3.04.	Binding Obligation	.6
Section 3.05.	No Violation	.6
Section 3.06.	No Proceedings	.6
Section 3.07.	Approvals	.7
Section 3.08.	The Restructuring Property	.7
Section 3.09.	Limitations on Representations and Warranties	.8
ARTICLE IV. C	OVENANTS OF THE SELLER	.9
Section 4.01.	Existence	.9
Section 4.02.	No Liens	.9
Section 4.03.	Delivery of Collections	.9
Section 4.04.	Notice of Liens.	.9
Section 4.05.	Compliance with Law	.9
Section 4.06.	Covenants Related to Bonds and Restructuring Property	10
Section 4.07.	Protection of Title	10
Section 4.08.	Nonpetition Covenant	11
Section 4.09.	Taxes	11
Section 4.10.	Additional Sales of Restructuring Property	11
Section 4.11.	Tax Exempt Bonds	12
ARTICLE V. TI	HE SELLER	12
	Liability of Seller: Indemnities	
Section 5.02.	Merger or Consolidation of, or Assumption of the Obligations of, Seller	14
Section 5.03	Limitation on Liability of Seller and Others	15

IISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	15
Amendment	15
Notices	15
Assignment	17
Limitations on Rights of Third Parties	17
Severability	17
Separate Counterparts	17
Headings	17
Governing Law	17
Collateral Assignment to Bond Trustee	17
	Amendment

This RESTRUCTURING PROPERTY PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT, dated as of September 8, 2016, is between Utility Debt Securitization Authority, a special purpose corporate municipal instrumentality, body corporate and politic, political subdivision and public benefit corporation of the State of New York (the "Bond Issuer"), and the Long Island Power Authority, a corporate municipal instrumentality, body corporate and politic and a political subdivision of the State of New York (together with its successors in interest to the extent permitted hereunder, the "Seller").

### RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Bond Issuer desires to purchase the Restructuring Property (as defined herein) created pursuant to the Statute and the Financing Order (each as defined herein); and

WHEREAS, the Seller is willing to sell the Restructuring Property to the Bond Issuer.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties hereto agree as follows:

#### ARTICLE I. DEFINTIONS

- Section 1.01. <u>Definitions</u>. Whenever used in this Agreement, the following words and phrases shall have the following meanings:
- "Adjustment Notice" has the meaning specified in Appendix A of the Servicing Agreement.
- "<u>Administration Agreement</u>" means the Administration Agreement, dated as of September 8, 2016, between Long Island Lighting Company, d/b/a LIPA, as Administrator, and the Bond Issuer, as amended and supplemented from time to time.
- "Agreement" means this Restructuring Property Purchase and Sale Agreement, as amended and supplemented from time to time.
  - "Authority" means the Long Island Power Authority and any successor thereto.
- "<u>Authorized Officer</u>" means the chief executive officer, the president, any vice president, the treasurer or any assistant treasurer of the Seller.
- "<u>Authority Regulations</u>" has the meaning specified in Appendix A of the Servicing Agreement.
  - "Back-Up Security Interest" has the meaning specified in Section 2.01.
- "<u>Basic Documents</u>" means, collectively, this Agreement, the Bond Indenture, the Servicing Agreement, the Administration Agreement, the Continuing Disclosure Agreement and the Bond Purchase Agreement.
  - "Bonds" means the Bonds issued under the Bond Indenture.

- "Bondholder" or "Holder" means the Person in whose name a Bond is registered on the Bond Register.
- "Bond Indenture" means the Bond Indenture, dated as of September 8, 2016, between the Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee, as amended and supplemented from time to time.
  - "Bond Issuer" has the meaning set forth in the preamble of this Agreement.
- "<u>Bond Purchase Agreement</u>" means the Bond Purchase Agreement, dated August 11, 2016, among the Bond Issuer and the underwriters named therein.
  - "Bond Register" has the meaning specified in Section 2.05 of the Bond Indenture.
  - "Bond Trustee" means the Person acting as trustee under the Bond Indenture.
- "Business Day" means any day other than a Saturday, a Sunday or a day on which banking institutions or trust companies in New York, New York are authorized or obligated by law, regulation or executive order to remain closed.
- "Charge" has the meaning specified in the Financing Order, as the same may be adjusted from time to time as provided in the Financing Order.
- "Charge Collections" has the meaning specified in Appendix A of the Servicing Agreement.
  - "Closing Date" means the date of the issuance of the Bonds.
  - "Collateral" has the meaning specified in the Granting Clause of the Bond Indenture.
  - "Collection Account" has the meaning specified in Section 8.02(a) of the Bond Indenture.
- "Continuing Disclosure Agreement" means the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, dated as of September 8, 2016, between the Issuer and the Servicer.
- "Corporate Trust Office" has the meaning specified in Section 1.01 of the Bond Indenture.
  - "Customers" means consumers as defined in the Statute.
  - "Financing Cost" has the meaning specified in Section 1.01 of the Bond Indenture.
- "<u>Financing Order</u>" means the Restructuring Cost Financing Order No. 4 of the Authority adopted on June 26, 2015.
  - "Fitch" means Fitch Ratings or its successor.
- "Grant" means mortgage, pledge, collaterally assign and grant a Lien upon and a security interest in. A Grant of any agreement or instrument shall include all rights, powers and options (but none of the obligations) of the Granting Person thereunder, the immediate and continuing

right to claim for, collect, receive and give receipts for payments in respect of and all other monies payable thereunder, to give and receive notices and other communications, to make waivers or other agreements, to exercise all rights and options, to bring proceedings in the name of the Granting Person or otherwise, and generally to do and receive anything that the Granting Person is or may be entitled to do or receive thereunder with respect thereto.

"Indemnified Person" has the meaning specified in Section 5.01(g).

"<u>Issuance Advice Letter</u>" means the initial Issuance Advice Letter, dated August 16, 2016, filed with the Authority and the Bond Issuer by the Servicer pursuant to Section 3.5 of the Statute.

"<u>Lien</u>" means a security interest, lien, mortgage, charge, pledge, claim or encumbrance of any kind.

"Losses" has the meaning specified in Section 5.01(d).

"Moody's" means Moody's Investors Service, Inc. or its successor.

"Officer's Certificate" means a certificate signed by any Authorized Officer of the Seller.

"Ongoing Financing Costs" has the meaning specified in the Financing Order.

"Operating Expenses" has the meaning specified in Section 1.01 of the Bond Indenture.

"Opinion of Counsel" means one or more written opinions of counsel who may be an employee of or counsel to the party providing such opinion of counsel, which counsel shall be reasonably acceptable to the party receiving such opinion of counsel.

"Outstanding Amount" has the meaning specified in Section 1.01 of the Bond Indenture.

"Person" means any individual, corporation, limited liability company, estate, partnership, joint venture, association, joint stock company, trust (including any beneficiary thereof), unincorporated organization or government or any agency or political subdivision thereof.

"Rating Agencies" means, collectively, S&P, Moody's and Fitch.

"Required Reserve Level" has the meaning specified in Section 1.01 of the Bond Indenture.

"Reserve Subaccount" has the meaning specified in Section 1.01 of the Bond Indenture.

"Restructuring Costs" has the meaning specified in the final Financing Order.

"Restructuring Property" means the restructuring property that is created simultaneous with the sale of such property by the Seller to the Bond Issuer and continues to exist pursuant to and in accordance with the Financing Order and Section 7 of the Statute.

- "Seller" has the meaning set forth in the preamble of this Agreement.
- "Servicer Default" means an event specified in Section 6.01 of the Servicing Agreement.
- "Servicing Agreement" means the Restructuring Property Servicing Agreement, dated as of September 8, 2016, between the Long Island Lighting Company, as Servicer, and the Bond Issuer, as amended and supplemented from time to time.
- "S&P" means Standard & Poor's Ratings Services, a division of McGraw Hill Financial, Inc., or its successor.
- "Statute" means Part B of Chapter 173 of the State of New York Laws of 2013, as amended to the date hereof.
- "<u>UCC</u>" means, unless the context otherwise requires, the Uniform Commercial Code, as in effect in the relevant jurisdiction, as amended from time to time.
  - "Upfront Financing Costs" has the meaning specified in the Financing Order.
  - Section 1.02. Rules of Construction. Unless the context otherwise requires:
  - (a) a term has the meaning assigned to it;
- (b) all terms defined in this Agreement shall have the defined meanings when used in any certificate or other document made or delivered pursuant hereto unless otherwise defined therein.
- (c) an accounting term not otherwise defined has the meaning assigned to it in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as in effect from time to time;
  - (d) "or" is not exclusive; "including" means including without limitation;
  - (e) words in the singular include the plural and words in the plural include the singular;
- (f) words of the masculine gender shall mean and include correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders;
- (g) words importing persons shall include firms, associations, partnerships (including limited partnerships), trusts, corporations and other legal entities, including public bodies, as well as natural persons, and shall include successors and assigns;
- (h) each time of day shall be local time in The City of New York, New York, except as otherwise specified herein;
  - (i) each reference to Bonds includes portions thereof in authorized denominations;
- (j) the words "herein," "hereof," "hereunder" and other words of similar import refer to this Bond Indenture as a whole and not to any particular Article, Section or other subdivision;

- (k) all references in this Agreement to designated "Articles," "Sections" and other subdivisions are to the designated Articles, Sections and other subdivisions of this Agreement; and
- (l) except as otherwise specified herein, UCC terms shall have the meanings given to such terms in the UCC.

#### ARTICLE II. CONVEYANCE OF RESTRUCTURING PROPERTY

Section 2.01. Conveyance of Restructuring Property. In consideration of the Bond Issuer's delivery to or upon the order of the Seller of an amount equal to the net proceeds of the sale of the Bonds as set forth in Section B of the Issuance Advice Letter (such amount representing the proceeds of the Bonds net of the Upfront Financing Costs as set forth in Section B of the Issuance Advice Letter), the Seller does hereby irrevocably sell, transfer, assign, set over and otherwise convey to the Bond Issuer, WITHOUT RECOURSE OR WARRANTY, except as specifically set forth herein, all right, title and interest of the Seller in and to the Restructuring Property (such sale, transfer, assignment, setting over and conveyance of the Restructuring Property includes, to the fullest extent permitted by the Statute, the assignment of all revenues, collections, claims, payments, money or proceeds of or arising from the Charge pursuant to the Financing Order) and copies of all books and records related thereto. Such sale, transfer, assignment, setting over and conveyance is hereby expressly stated to be a sale and, pursuant to Section 7.3 of the Statute and the Financing Order, shall be treated as an absolute transfer of all of the Seller's right, title and interest in (as in a true sale), and not as a pledge or other financing of, the Restructuring Property, other than for accounting and federal, state and local income and franchise tax purposes. If such sale, transfer, assignment, setting over and conveyance is held by any court of competent jurisdiction not to be a true sale as provided in Section 7.3 of the Statute and the Financing Order, then such sale, transfer, assignment, setting over and conveyance shall be treated as the creation of a security interest in the Restructuring Property and, without prejudice to its position that it has absolutely transferred all of its right, title and interest in and to the Restructuring Property to the Bond Issuer, the Seller hereby Grants to the Bond Issuer a security interest in the Restructuring Property (including, to the fullest extent permitted by the Statute, the assignment of all revenues, collections, claims, payments, money or proceeds of or arising from the Charge pursuant to the Financing Order) to secure a payment obligation incurred by the Seller in respect of the amount paid by the Bond Issuer to the Seller pursuant to this Agreement (the "Back-Up Security Interest"). A UCC-1 financing statement will be filed in order to perfect the Back-Up Security Interest.

### ARTICLE III. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF SELLER

Subject to <u>Section 3.09 hereof</u>, the Seller makes the following representations and warranties, as of the Closing Date, on which the Bond Issuer has relied in acquiring the Restructuring Property.

Section 3.01. <u>Organization and Good Standing</u>. The Seller is duly organized and validly existing as a corporate municipal instrumentality, body corporate and politic and a political subdivision of the State of New York, in good standing under the laws of the State of New York, with the requisite power and authority to own its properties as such properties are currently

owned and to conduct its business as such business is now conducted by it, and has the requisite power and authority to own the Restructuring Property.

Section 3.02. <u>Due Qualification</u>. The Seller is duly qualified to do business, and has obtained all necessary licenses and approvals, in all jurisdictions in which the ownership or lease of property or the conduct of its business shall require such qualifications, licenses or approvals (except where the failure to so qualify or obtain such licenses and approvals would not be reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the Seller's business, operations, assets, revenues or properties).

Section 3.03. <u>Power and Authority</u>. The Seller has the requisite power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and to carry out its terms; and the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement have been duly authorized by all necessary action on the part of the Seller.

Section 3.04. <u>Binding Obligation</u>. This Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of the Seller enforceable against it in accordance with its terms, subject to applicable insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, fraudulent transfer and other laws relating to or affecting creditors' or secured parties' rights generally from time to time in effect and to general principles of equity (including concepts of materiality, reasonableness, good faith and fair dealing), regardless of whether considered in a proceeding in equity or at law.

Section 3.05. No Violation. The sale of the Restructuring Property and the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Statute and this Agreement and the fulfillment of the terms hereof and thereof do not: (i) conflict with or result in any breach of any of the terms and provisions of, nor constitute (with or without notice or lapse of time) a default under, the organizational documents of the Seller or any material indenture, agreement or other instrument to which the Seller is a party or by which it is bound; (ii) result in the creation or imposition of any Lien upon any of the Seller's properties pursuant to the terms of any such indenture, agreement or other instrument (other than any Lien that may be Granted under the Basic Documents); or (iii) violate any existing law or any existing order, rule or regulation applicable to the Seller of any federal or state court or regulatory body, administrative agency or other governmental instrumentality having jurisdiction over the Seller or its properties.

Section 3.06. No Proceedings. There are no proceedings or investigations pending and, to the Seller's knowledge, there are no proceedings or investigations threatened, before any federal or state court, regulatory body, administrative agency or other governmental instrumentality having jurisdiction over the Seller or its properties involving or relating to the Seller or the Bond Issuer or, to the Seller's knowledge, any other Person: (i) asserting the invalidity of this Agreement, the Statute or the Financing Order, (ii) seeking to prevent the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or the other Basic Documents, (iii) seeking any determination or ruling that might materially and adversely affect the performance by the Seller of its obligations under, or the validity or enforceability of, this Agreement, any of the other Basic Documents or the Bonds, or the validity of the Statute or the Financing Order or (iv) seeking to adversely affect the federal or state income tax classification of the Bonds as debt.

Section 3.07. <u>Approvals</u>. No approval, authorization, consent, order or other action of, or filing with, any federal or state court, regulatory body, administrative agency or other governmental instrumentality is required in connection with the execution and delivery by the Seller of this Agreement, the performance by the Seller of the transactions contemplated hereby or the fulfillment by the Seller of the terms hereof, except for those that have been obtained, waived or made and are in full force and effect.

## Section 3.08. The Restructuring Property.

- (a) <u>Title</u>. It is the intention of the parties hereto that the transfer and assignment herein contemplated constitute a sale of the Restructuring Property from the Seller to the Bond Issuer and that no interest in, or title to, the Restructuring Property shall be part of the Seller's estate in the event of the filing of a bankruptcy petition by or against the Seller under any bankruptcy law. No portion of the Restructuring Property has been sold, transferred, assigned or pledged by the Seller to any Person other than the Bond Issuer. On the Closing Date, immediately upon the sale hereunder, the Seller has transferred, sold and conveyed the Restructuring Property to the Bond Issuer, free and clear of all Liens, except for any Lien that may be Granted under the Basic Documents, and pursuant to Section 7.3 of the Statute and the Financing Order, such transfer shall be treated as an absolute transfer of all of the Seller's right, title and interest (as in a true sale), and not as a pledge or other financing of, the Restructuring Property.
- (b) <u>Transfer Filings</u>. On the Closing Date, immediately upon the sale hereunder, the Restructuring Property has been validly transferred and sold to the Bond Issuer, the Bond Issuer shall own all such Restructuring Property free and clear of all Liens (except for any Lien that may be Granted under the Basic Documents) and all filings to be made by the Seller (including filings with the Authority under the Statute and the Financing Order) necessary in any jurisdiction to give the Bond Issuer a valid, perfected ownership interest (subject to any Lien that may be Granted under the Basic Documents) in, and for the Grant by the Bond Issuer to the Bond Trustee of a valid, first priority perfected security interest (except for any Lien that may be Granted under the Basic Documents) in, the Restructuring Property have been made. No further action is required to maintain such ownership interest or the Bond Trustee's perfected security interest (in each case, subject to any Lien that may be Granted under the Basic Documents). Filings have also been made to the extent required in any jurisdiction to perfect the Back-Up Security Interest Granted by the Seller to the Bond Issuer (subject to any Lien that may be Granted under the Basic Documents).
- (c) <u>Financing Order and Issuance Advice Letter; Other Approvals</u>. On the Closing Date, under the laws of the State of New York and the United States in effect on the Closing Date, (i) the Financing Order pursuant to which the Restructuring Property has been created is in full force and effect; (ii) the Bondholders are entitled to the protections of the Statute, and the Financing Order is not revocable by the Authority; (iii) the State of New York may not take or permit any action that impairs the value of the Restructuring Property or, except as required by the adjustment mechanism described in the Financing Order, reduce, alter or impair Charges that are imposed, charged, collected or remitted for the benefit of the Bondholders in a manner that would substantially impair the rights of the Bondholders, absent a demonstration by the State of New York that an impairment is a reasonable exercise of its sovereign power and of a character reasonable and appropriate to the public purpose justifying such action, until the Bonds, together

with interest thereon, and all other Ongoing Financing Costs are paid and performed in full; (iv) the process by which the Financing Order was adopted and approved, and the Financing Order and Issuance Advice Letter themselves, comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations; (v) the Issuance Advice Letter has been filed in accordance with the Financing Order; and (vi) no other approval, authorization, consent, order, registration or other action of, or filing with, any court, Federal or state regulatory body, administrative agency or other governmental instrumentality is required in connection with the creation or sale of the Restructuring Property, except those that have been obtained, waived or made and are in full force and effect.

- (d) <u>Assumptions</u>. On the Closing Date, based upon the information available to the Seller on the Closing Date, the assumptions used in calculating the initial Charge are reasonable and are made in good faith. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Seller makes no representation or warranty that the assumptions used in calculating such Charge will in fact be realized.
- Creation of Restructuring Property. Upon the sale by the Seller to the Bond Issuer of all of the Seller's right, title and interest in the Restructuring Property (i) there will arise and constitute an existing present property right and interest of the Bond Issuer in such Restructuring Property which shall continue to exist until such time as the Bonds, together with interest thereon, and all other approved Financing Costs are paid in full; (ii) the creation of the Seller's Restructuring Property is confirmed and is simultaneous with the sale by the Seller to the Bond Issuer of such Restructuring Property; (iii) the Restructuring Property includes the right, title and interest in and to all revenues, collections, claims, payments, money, or proceeds of or arising from the Charge, as adjusted from time to time pursuant to the Financing Order, and all rights to obtain adjustments to the Charge pursuant to the Financing Order; and (iv) the owner of the Restructuring Property is legally entitled to collect payments in respect of the Charge in the aggregate sufficient to pay the interest on and principal of the Bonds, to pay the fees and expenses incurred by or allocable to the Bond Issuer in connection with servicing the Bonds, and to replenish the Reserve Subaccount to the Required Reserve Level until the Bonds, together with interest thereon, and all other approved Financing Costs are paid in full. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Seller makes no representation or warranty that any amounts actually collected in respect of the Charge will in fact be sufficient to meet payment obligations with respect to the Bonds.
- (f) Official Statement. The information under the heading "The Seller" in the Preliminary Official Statement relating to the Bonds, dated July 28, 2016, as of its date and at all times subsequent thereto up to the Applicable Time (as defined in the Bond Purchase Agreement), does not and in the Official Statement relating to the Bonds, dated August 11, 2016, as of its date and at all times subsequent thereto up to the Closing Date, will not contain an untrue statement of a material fact and will not omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.

Section 3.09. <u>Limitations on Representations and Warranties</u>. Without prejudice to any of the other rights of the parties, the Seller will not be in breach of any representation or warranty as a result of a change in law by means of a legislative enactment, constitutional amendment or voter initiative or referendum. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the Seller makes no representation or warranty that any amounts actually collected in respect of the

Charge will in fact be sufficient to meet payment obligations with respect to the Bonds or that the assumptions used in calculating the Charge will in fact be realized nor shall the Seller be obligated to reduce, or accept a reduction of, any rates or charges to which it would otherwise be entitled in respect of services rendered or to be rendered to Customers in order to permit the payment of the Charge.

## ARTICLE IV. COVENANTS OF THE SELLER

Section 4.01. Existence. So long as any of the Bonds are outstanding, except as provided under Section 5.02, the Seller (a) will keep in full force and effect its existence, rights and franchises as a corporate municipal instrumentality, body corporate and politic and a political subdivision of the State of New York, and (b) will obtain and preserve its qualification to do business, in each case to the extent that in each such jurisdiction such existence or qualification is or shall be necessary to protect the validity and enforceability of this Agreement, the other Basic Documents to which the Seller is a party and each other instrument or agreement to which the Seller is a party necessary or appropriate to the proper administration of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby.

Section 4.02. <u>No Liens</u>. Except for the conveyances hereunder or the Back-Up Security Interest, the Seller will not sell, pledge, assign or transfer, or Grant, create, or incur any Lien on, any of the Restructuring Property, or any interest therein, and the Seller shall defend the right, title and interest of the Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee in, to and under the Restructuring Property against all claims of third parties claiming through or under the Seller. The Long Island Power Authority, in its capacity as Seller, will not at any time assert any Lien against, or with respect to, any of the Restructuring Property.

Section 4.03. <u>Delivery of Collections</u>. If the Seller receives any payments in respect of the Charge or the proceeds thereof when it is not acting as the Servicer, the Seller agrees to pay to the Servicer all payments received by it in respect thereof as soon as practicable after receipt thereof by it.

Section 4.04. <u>Notice of Liens</u>. The Seller shall notify the Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee promptly after becoming aware of any Lien Granted on any of the Restructuring Property, other than the conveyances hereunder, any Lien under the Basic Documents or for the benefit of the Bond Issuer.

Section 4.05. <u>Compliance with Law</u>. The Seller hereby agrees to comply with its organizational and governing documents and all laws, treaties, rules, regulations and determinations of any governmental instrumentality applicable to it, except to the extent that failure to so comply would not adversely affect the Bond Issuer's or the Bond Trustee's interests in the Restructuring Property or under any of the other Basic Documents to which the Seller is party or the Seller's performance of its obligations hereunder or under any of the other Basic Documents to which it is party.

### Section 4.06. Covenants Related to Bonds and Restructuring Property.

- (a) So long as any of the Bonds are outstanding, the Seller shall treat the Bonds as debt of the Bond Issuer and not of the Seller, except for financial, accounting or tax reporting purposes.
- (b) So long as any of the Bonds are outstanding, the Seller shall indicate in its financial statements that it is not the owner of the Restructuring Property and shall disclose the effects of all transactions between the Seller and the Bond Issuer in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
- (c) So long as any of the Bonds are outstanding, the Seller shall not own or purchase any Bonds.
- (d) The Seller agrees that, upon the transfer and sale by the Seller of the Restructuring Property to the Bond Issuer pursuant to this Agreement, (i) to the fullest extent permitted by law, including the applicable Authority Regulations, the Bond Issuer shall have all of the rights originally held by the Seller with respect to the Restructuring Property, including the right (subject to the terms of the Servicing Agreement) to exercise any and all rights and remedies to collect any amounts payable by any Customer in respect of the Restructuring Property, notwithstanding any objection or direction to the contrary by the Seller and (ii) any payment by any Customer to the Bond Issuer shall discharge such Customer's obligations in respect of the Restructuring Property to the extent of such payment, notwithstanding any objection or direction to the contrary by the Seller.
- (e) So long as any of the Bonds are outstanding, (i) the Seller shall not make any statement or reference in respect of the Restructuring Property that is inconsistent with the ownership thereof by the Bond Issuer (other than for financial accounting or tax reporting purposes), and (ii) the Seller shall not take any action in respect of the Restructuring Property except as otherwise contemplated by the Basic Documents.

Section 4.07. Protection of Title. The Seller shall execute and file such filings, including filings with the Authority pursuant to the Statute and UCC filings, and cause to be executed and filed such filings, all in such manner and in such places as may be required by law fully to preserve, maintain and protect the ownership interest of the Bond Issuer, and the security interest of the Bond Trustee, in the Restructuring Property and the Back-Up Security Interest, including all filings required under the Statute and the applicable UCC relating to the transfer of the ownership interest in the Restructuring Property by the Seller to the Bond Issuer, the Granting of a security interest in the Restructuring Property by the Bond Issuer to the Bond Trustee, and the Back-Up Security Interest, and the continued perfection of such ownership interest, security interest and the Back-Up Security Interest. The Seller shall deliver (or cause to be delivered) to the Bond Trustee (with copies to the Bond Issuer) file-stamped copies of, or filing receipts for, any document filed as provided above, as soon as available following such filing. The Seller shall institute any action or proceeding necessary to compel performance by the Authority or the State of New York of any of their obligations or duties under the Statute or the Financing Order, and the Seller agrees to take such legal or administrative actions, including defending against or instituting and pursuing legal actions and appearing or testifying at hearings

or similar proceedings, as may be reasonably necessary (i) to protect the Bond Issuer, the Bond Trustee, the Bondholders, and any of their respective affiliates, officials, directors, employees, and agents from claims, state actions or other actions or proceedings of third parties which, if successfully pursued, would result in a breach of any representation set forth in Article III or (ii) to block or overturn any attempts to cause a repeal of, modification of or supplement to the Statute, the Financing Order, the Issuance Advice Letter, any other Adjustment Notice, or the rights of Bondholders by executive action, legislative enactment or constitutional amendment that would be adverse to the Bond Issuer, the Bond Trustee or the Bondholders. If the Servicer performs its obligations under Section 3.10 of the Servicing Agreement in all respects, such performance shall be deemed to constitute performance of the Seller's obligations pursuant to clause (ii) of the immediately preceding sentence. In such event, the Seller agrees to assist the Servicer as reasonably necessary to perform its obligations under Section 3.10 of the Servicing Agreement in all respects. The costs of any such actions or proceedings shall be payable from Charge Collections as an Operating Expense in accordance with the priorities set forth in Section 8.02(e) of the Bond Indenture. The Seller's obligations pursuant to this Section 4.07 shall survive and continue notwithstanding the fact that the payment of Operating Expenses pursuant to Section 8.02(e) of the Bond Indenture may be delayed (it being understood that the Seller may be required to advance its own funds to satisfy its obligations hereunder).

Section 4.08. Nonpetition Covenant. Notwithstanding any prior termination of this Agreement or the Bond Indenture, but subject to the right of a court of competent jurisdiction to order the sequestration and payment of revenues arising with respect to the Restructuring Property notwithstanding any bankruptcy, reorganization or other insolvency proceedings with respect to any person or entity pursuant to Section 7.1(d) of the Statute, the Seller solely in its capacity as a creditor of the Bond Issuer shall not, prior to the date which is one year and one day after the termination of the Bond Indenture, petition or otherwise invoke or cause the Bond Issuer to invoke the process of any court or government authority for the purpose of commencing or sustaining an involuntary case against the Bond Issuer under any Federal or state bankruptcy, insolvency or similar law, appointing a receiver, liquidator, assignee, trustee, custodian, sequestrator or other similar official of the Bond Issuer or any substantial part of the property of the Bond Issuer, or, to the fullest extent permitted by law, ordering the winding up or liquidation of the affairs of the Bond Issuer.

Section 4.09. <u>Taxes</u>. So long as any of the Bonds are outstanding, the Seller shall, and shall cause each of its subsidiaries to, pay all material taxes, assessments and governmental charges imposed upon it or any of its properties or assets or with respect to any of its franchises, business, income or property before any penalty accrues thereon if the failure to pay any such taxes, assessments and governmental charges would, after any applicable grace periods, notices or other similar requirements, result in a Lien on the Restructuring Property; provided that no such tax need be paid if the Seller or one of its subsidiaries is contesting the same in good faith by appropriate proceedings promptly instituted and diligently conducted and if the Seller or such subsidiary has established appropriate reserves as shall be required in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Section 4.10. <u>Additional Sales of Restructuring Property</u>. So long as any of the Bonds are outstanding, the Seller shall not sell any "restructuring property" (as defined in the Statute) to secure another issuance of restructuring bonds (as defined in the Statute) if it would cause the

then existing ratings on the Bonds from the Rating Agencies to be downgraded, withdrawn or suspended.

Section 4.11. <u>Tax Exempt Bonds</u>. The Seller covenants that with respect to Bonds it shall comply with the tax certificates to be executed and delivered by it in connection with the issuance of the Bonds and with letters of instruction, if any, delivered by bond counsel in connection with the issuance of the Bonds, as such tax certificates and letters may be amended from time to time. Notwithstanding anything else in this Agreement to the contrary, the covenants of this <u>Section 4.11</u> shall survive the payment, redemption or defeasance of the Bonds and the termination of this Agreement.

## ARTICLE V. THE SELLER

### Section 5.01. Liability of Seller: Indemnities.

- (a) The Seller shall be liable in accordance herewith only to the extent of the obligations specifically undertaken by the Seller under this Agreement.
- (b) The Seller shall indemnify the Bond Issuer, the Bond Trustee and, the Bondholders for, and defend and hold harmless each such Person from and against, any and all taxes (other than taxes imposed on Bondholders solely as a result of their ownership of Bonds) that may at any time be imposed on or asserted against any such Person under existing law as of the Closing Date as a result of the sale of the Restructuring Property to the Bond Issuer, including any sales, gross receipts, general corporation, tangible personal property, privilege or license taxes; provided, however, that the Bondholders shall be entitled to enforce their rights against the Seller under this Section 5.01(b) solely through a cause of action brought for their benefit by the Bond Trustee.
- (c) The Seller shall indemnify the Bond Issuer, the Bond Trustee, and the Bondholders for, and defend and hold harmless each such Person from and against, any and all taxes that may be imposed on or asserted against any such Person under existing law as of the Closing Date as a result of the issuance and sale by the Bond Issuer of the Bonds or the other transactions contemplated herein, including any sales, gross receipts, general corporation, tangible personal property, privilege or license taxes; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that the Bondholders shall be entitled to enforce their rights against the Seller under this <u>Section 5.01(c)</u> solely through a cause of action brought for their benefit by the Bond Trustee. The Seller shall be reimbursed for any payments under this <u>Section 5.01(c)</u> from Charge Collections as an Operating Expense in accordance with the priorities set forth in Section 8.02(e) of the Bond Indenture.
- (d) The Seller shall indemnify the Bond Issuer, the trustees, officers, employees and agents of the Bond Issuer, and the Bondholders for, and defend and hold harmless each such Person from and against, any and all liabilities, obligations, losses, actions, suits, claims, damages, payments, costs or expenses of any kind whatsoever (collectively, "Losses") that may be imposed on, incurred by or asserted against each such Person as a result of (i) the Seller's willful misconduct or negligence in the performance of its duties or observance of its covenants under this Agreement, or (ii) the Seller's breach in any material respect of any of its representations and warranties contained in this Agreement, except in the case of both clauses (i)

- and (ii) to the extent of Losses either resulting from the willful misconduct or negligence of such indemnified person or resulting from a breach of a representation and warranty made by such indemnified person in any of the Basic Documents that gives rise to the Seller's breach; provided, however, that the Bondholders shall be entitled to enforce their rights against the Seller under this indemnification solely through a cause of action brought for their benefit by the Bond Trustee;
- (e) Indemnification under <u>Sections 5.01(b)</u>, <u>5.01(c)</u>, <u>5.01(d)</u> and <u>5.01(g)</u> shall include reasonable fees and out-of-pocket expenses of investigation and litigation (including reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses), except as otherwise provided in this Agreement.
- (f) Without prejudice to any of the other rights of the parties, the Seller will not be in breach of any representation or warranty as a result of a change in law by means of a legislative enactment or constitutional amendment. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the Seller makes no representation or warranty that any amounts actually collected in respect of the Charge will in fact be sufficient to meet payment obligations with respect to the Bonds and, hence, the Bond Issuer's allocable portion of the Certificates or that the assumptions used in calculating the Charge will in fact be realized nor shall the Seller be obligated to reduce, or accept a reduction of, any rates or charges to which it would otherwise be entitled in respect of services rendered or to be rendered to customers in order to permit the payment of the Charge.
- (g) The Seller shall indemnify and hold harmless the Bond Trustee and any of its affiliates, officials, officers, directors, employees and agents (each an "Indemnified Person") against any and all Losses incurred by any of such Indemnified Persons as a result of (i) the Seller's willful misconduct or negligence in the performance of its duties or observance of its covenants under this Agreement or (ii) the Seller's breach in any material respect of any of its representations and warranties contained in this Agreement, except in the case of both clauses (i) and (ii) to the extent of Losses either resulting from the willful misconduct or negligence of such Indemnified Person or resulting from a breach of a representation or warranty made by such Indemnified Person in any of the Basic Documents that gives rise to the Seller's breach. The Seller shall not be required to indemnify an Indemnified Person for any amount paid or payable by such Indemnified Person in the settlement of any action, proceeding or investigation without the written consent of the Seller, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. The obligations of the Seller under this Section 5.01(g) shall survive the resignation or removal of the foregoing trustees and the termination of the Basic Documents. Promptly after receipt by an Indemnified Person of notice of its involvement in any action, proceeding or investigation, such Indemnified Person shall, if a claim for indemnification in respect thereof is to be made against the Seller under this Section 5.01(g), notify the Seller in writing of such involvement. Failure by an Indemnified Person to so notify the Seller shall relieve the Seller from the obligation to indemnify and hold harmless such Indemnified Person under this Section 5.01(g) only to the extent that the Seller suffers actual prejudice as a result of such failure. With respect to any action, proceeding or investigation brought by a third party for which indemnification may be sought under this Section 5.01(g), the Seller shall be entitled to assume the defense of any such action, proceeding or investigation. Upon assumption by the Seller of the defense of any such action, proceeding or investigation, the Indemnified Person shall have the right to participate in such action or proceeding and to retain its own counsel. The Seller shall be entitled to appoint counsel of the Seller's choice at the Seller's expense to represent the Indemnified Person in any

action, proceeding or investigation for which a claim of indemnification is made against the Seller under this <u>Section 5.01(g)</u> (in which case the Seller shall not thereafter be responsible for the fees and expenses of any separate counsel retained by the Indemnified Person except as set forth below); provided, however, that such counsel shall be reasonably satisfactory to the Indemnified Person. Notwithstanding the Seller's election to appoint counsel to represent the Indemnified Person in an action, proceeding or investigation, the Indemnified Person shall have the right to employ separate counsel (including local counsel), and the Seller shall bear the reasonable fees, costs and expenses of such separate counsel if (i) the use of counsel chosen by the Seller to represent the Indemnified Person would present such counsel with a conflict of interest, (ii) the actual or potential defendants in, or targets of, any such action include both the Indemnified Person and the Seller and the Indemnified Person shall have reasonably concluded that there may be legal defenses available to it that are different from or additional to those available to the Seller, (iii) the Seller shall not have employed counsel reasonably satisfactory to the Indemnified Person to represent the Indemnified Person within a reasonable time after notice of the institution of such action or (iv) the Seller shall authorize the Indemnified Person to employ separate counsel at the expense of the Seller. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Seller shall not be obligated to pay for the fees, costs and expenses of more than one separate counsel for the Indemnified Persons other than local counsel. The Seller will not, without the prior written consent of the Indemnified Person, settle or compromise or consent to the entry of any judgment with respect to any pending or threatened claim, action, suit or proceeding in respect of which indemnification may be sought under this Section 5.01(g) (whether or not the Indemnified Person is an actual or potential party to such claim or action) unless such settlement, compromise or consent includes an unconditional release of the Indemnified Person from all liability arising out of such claim, action, suit or proceeding.

(h) The remedies of the Bond Issuer and the Bondholders provided in this Agreement are each such Person's sole and exclusive remedies against the Seller for breach of its representations and warranties in this Agreement.

Section 5.02. Merger or Consolidation of, or Assumption of the Obligations of, Seller. Any Person (a) into which the Seller may be merged or consolidated, (b) that may result from any merger or consolidation to which the Seller shall be a party or (c) that may succeed to the properties and assets of the Seller substantially as a whole, which Person in any of the foregoing cases executes an agreement of assumption to perform every obligation of the Seller hereunder, shall be the successor to the Seller under this Agreement without further act on the part of any of the parties to this Agreement; provided, however, that (i) if the Seller is the Servicer, no Servicer Default, and no event which, after notice or lapse of time, or both, would become a Servicer Default shall have occurred and be continuing, (ii) the Seller shall have delivered to the Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee an Officers' Certificate stating that such consolidation, merger or succession and such agreement of assumption comply with this Section and that all conditions precedent, if any, provided for in this Agreement relating to such transaction have been complied with, (iii) the Seller shall have delivered to the Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee an Opinion of Counsel either (A) stating that, in the opinion of such counsel, such consolidation, merger or succession and such agreement of assumption comply with this Section and that all conditions precedent provided for in this Agreement relating to such transaction have been complied with and (B) either (1) all filings to be made by the Seller, including filings with the Authority pursuant to the Statute and under the applicable UCC, have been executed and filed that are

necessary to fully preserve and protect the interests of the Bond Issuer and the Bond Trustee in the Restructuring Property and reciting the details of such filings, or (2) no such action shall be necessary to preserve and protect such interests and (iv) the Rating Agencies shall have received prior written notice of such transaction from the Seller. When any Person acquires the properties and assets of the Seller substantially as a whole and becomes the successor to the Seller in accordance with the terms of this <u>Section 5.02</u>, then upon satisfaction of all of the other conditions of this <u>Section 5.02</u>, the Seller shall automatically and without further notice be released from all of its obligations hereunder.

Section 5.03. <u>Limitation on Liability of Seller and Others</u>. The Seller and any director, officer, employee or agent of the Seller may rely in good faith on the advice of counsel or on any document of any kind, prima facie properly executed and submitted by any Person, respecting any matters arising hereunder.

#### ARTICLE VI. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 6.01. <u>Amendment</u>. This Agreement may be amended by the Seller and the Bond Issuer, with (a) ten Business Days' prior written notice given to the Rating Agencies, (b) the prior written consent of the Bond Trustee, and (c) if any amendment would adversely affect in any material respect the interests of any Bondholder, the prior written consent of a majority of the Outstanding Amount of the Bonds affected thereby.

It shall not be necessary for the consent of Bondholders pursuant to this Section to approve the particular form of any proposed amendment or consent, but it shall be sufficient if such consent shall approve the substance thereof.

Prior to the execution of any amendment to this Agreement, the Bond Trustee shall be entitled to receive and rely upon an Opinion of Counsel stating that the execution of such amendment is authorized or permitted by this Agreement and all conditions precedent have been satisfied. The Bond Trustee may, but shall not be obligated to, enter into any such amendment which affects the Bond Trustee's own rights, duties or immunities under this Agreement or otherwise.

The Bond Issuer shall provide a copy of any amendment to this Agreement to the Bond Trustee and the Rating Agencies promptly after the execution thereof.

Section 6.02. <u>Notices</u>. Unless otherwise specifically provided herein, all notices, directions, consents and waivers required under the terms and provisions of this Agreement shall be in English and in writing, and any such notice, direction, consent or waiver may be given by United States mail, courier service, facsimile transmission or electronic mail (confirmed by telephone, United States mail or courier service in the case of notice by facsimile transmission or electronic mail) or any other customary means of communication, and any such notice, direction, consent or waiver shall be effective when delivered, or if mailed, three days after deposit in the United States mail with proper postage for ordinary mail prepaid:

#### (a) if to the Seller, to:

Long Island Power Authority 333 Earle Ovington Boulevard Uniondale, New York 11553 Attention: Chief Financial Officer

Telephone: (516) 222-7700 Telecopy: (516) 222-9137 Email: tfalcone@lipower.org

#### (b) if to the Bond Issuer, to:

Utility Debt Securitization Authority c/o LIPA, as Administrator 333 Earle Ovington Boulevard Uniondale, New York 11553 Attention: Chief Financial Officer

Telephone: (516) 222-7700 Telecopy: (516) 222-9137 Email: tfalcone@lipower.org

## (c) if to the Bond Trustee, to:

The Bank of New York Mellon 101 Barclay Street - Floor 7-W New York, New York 10286 Attention: Frederic Belen

Telephone: (212) 815-2588 Telecopy: (732) 667-9205

Email: frederic.belen@bnymellon.com

## (d) if to Moody's, to:

Moody's Investors Service, Inc.

25th Floor, 7 World Trade Center, 250 Greenwich Street

New York, NY 10007

Attention: ABS/RMBS Monitoring Department

Email: ServicerReports@moodys.com

Facsimile: (212) 553-0573 Telephone: (212) 553-3686

#### (e) if to S&P, to:

Standard & Poor's Rating Services

55 Water Street

New York, NY 10041

Attention: Structured Credit Surveillance

Telephone: (212) 438-8991

E-mail: servicer-reports@standardandpoors.com

### (f) if to Fitch, to:

Fitch Ratings 33 Whitehall Street New York, New York 10004 Attention: ABS Surveillance

Email: surveillance-abs-other@fitchratings.com

Telephone: (212) 908-0500

(g) as to each of the foregoing, at such other address as shall be designated by written notice to the other parties.

Section 6.03. <u>Assignment</u>. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, except as provided in <u>Section 5.02</u> and <u>Section 6.09</u>, this Agreement may not be assigned by the Seller.

Section 6.04. <u>Limitations on Rights of Third Parties</u>. The provisions of this Agreement are solely for the benefit of the Seller, the Bond Issuer, the Bondholders, the Bond Trustee and the other Persons expressly referred to herein, and such Persons shall have the right to enforce the relevant provisions of this Agreement, except that the Bondholders shall be entitled to enforce their rights against the Seller under this Agreement solely through a cause of action brought for their benefit by the Bond Trustee. Nothing in this Agreement, whether express or implied, shall be construed to give to any other Person any legal or equitable right, remedy or claim in the Restructuring Property or under or in respect of this Agreement or any covenants, conditions or provisions contained herein.

Section 6.05. <u>Severability</u>. Any provision of this Agreement that is prohibited or unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without invalidating the remaining provisions hereof, and any such prohibition or unenforceability in any jurisdiction shall not invalidate or render unenforceable such provision in any other jurisdiction.

Section 6.06. <u>Separate Counterparts</u>. This Agreement may be executed by the parties hereto in separate counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be an original, but all such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same instrument.

Section 6.07. <u>Headings</u>. The headings of the various Articles and Sections herein are for convenience of reference only and shall not define or limit any of the terms or provisions hereof.

Section 6.08. <u>Governing Law</u>. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York, without reference to its conflict of law provisions, and the obligations, rights and remedies of the parties hereunder shall be determined in accordance with such laws.

Section 6.09. <u>Collateral Assignment to Bond Trustee</u>. The Seller hereby acknowledges and consents to the Grant of a security interest and collateral assignment by the Bond Issuer to the Bond Trustee pursuant to the Bond Indenture for the benefit of the Bondholders and the Bond

Trustee of all right, title and interest of the Bond Issuer in, to and under the Restructuring Property and the proceeds thereof and all other Collateral (including, without limitation all of the Bond Issuer's rights hereunder).

Section 6.10. <u>Rule 17g-5 Compliance</u>. The Seller and Bond Issuer agree that any notice, report, document or other information provided by the Seller or Bond Issuer to any Rating Agency under this Agreement or any other Basic Document to which it is a party, for the purpose of determining the initial credit rating of the Bonds or undertaking credit rating surveillance of the Bonds with any Rating Agency, shall be provided, substantially concurrently, to the Servicer for posting on the 17g-5 Website.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS.]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Restructuring Property Purchase and Sale Agreement to be duly executed by their respective officers as of the day and year first above written.

By: \_\_\_\_

Title:

Name: Joseph A. Branca

Chief Financial Officer

# 

UTILITY DEBT SECURITIZATION AUTHORITY,